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Maine Medical Center

MaineHealth

Qffice of the Execwiive Vice Presidant
and Chief Operating Officer

May 24, 2013

Ms. Carol Morrissetie, Chair
Portland Planning Board

389 Congress Street
Portland, Maine 04101

Site Plan Application

22 Brambhall Street

CBL 53-D-1,2,7; CBL 53-E-1,4,10,13; CBL 53-G-1,13; CBL 54-H-%;
CBL 64-C-1,2

Dear Chair Morrissette and Members of the Portland Planning Board:

Maine Medical Center (MMC) is requesting Major Site Plan approval for & +/- 40,000 s.f.
addition to the Lower Bean Building (aka Bean 2} located at 22 Brambhall Street (in the
vicinity of the MMC emergency department), The addition will modernize and upgrade
MMC’s existing surgical facilities by enlarging existing ORs to meet standard of care
requirements and adding four additional surgical suites. The addition will be located on
the roof of the Bean 2, and, as a result, will have no impact on building footprint or
dmpervious surface,

Attached please find MMC’s completed application for the required Site Plan Approval
for Major Development, Along with the Application, piease find payment of the $500.00
Application Fee. We very much look forward to the opportunity to meet with you and
discuss the Hospital’s plan for its surgical facilities.

Sincerely,

1!

Jefhe@ D, Sanders
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

Cec: Jean Fraser
Walter Pochebit

22 Bramhall Street, Portland, Maine 04102-3175 « {207) 662-2491
sandej4@mmce.org © www.mme,org



Effective August 18, 2010
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Level il - Preliminary and Final Site Plans
Development Review Application

Portland, Maine

Planning and Urban Development Department
Planning Division

Portland’s Planning and Urban Development Department coordinates the develooment review process for site
plan, subdivision and other applications under the City’s Land Use Code. Attached is the application form 1o be
used for a Level llI; Preliminary or Finai Site Plan. Piease note that Portland has delegated review from the
State of Maine for reviews under the Site Location of Development Act, Chapter 500 Stormwater Permits, and
Traffic Movement Permits. General information pertaining to the thresholids of review and fee structure is
contained on page 3 of this application. The Land Use Code (including Article V), the Technical Manual, and
the Design Manual are available on the City’s web site at biip://www.portlandmaine, gov/planning/default.asp

Level lil: Site Plan Development includes:

New structures with & total floor area of 10,600 sf or more except in Indusirial Zones.
New structures with a total floor area of 20,000 sf or more in Industrial Zones.

New temporary or permanent parking area(s) or paving of existing unpaved parking areas for more than 75
vehicles.

Building addition(s} with a total floor area of 10,000 sf or more (cumulatively within a 3 year period) except in
industrial Zones.

Building addition(s) with a totat floor area of 26,000 sf or more in Industrial Zones,

A change in the use of a total floor area of 20,000 sf or more in any existing building (cumutatively within 5 3 year
period).

Muttiple family development (3 or more dwelling units) or the addition of any additional dwelling unit if subject t¢
subdivision review.

Any new major or minor auto business in the B-2 or B-5 Zone, or the construction of any new major or minor auto
business greater than 10,000 sf of building area in any other permitted zone,

Correctional prerelease facilities.

Park improvements: New structures greater than 10,000 sf and/or facilities encompassing 20,000 sf or more
(excludes rehabilitation or replacement of existing facilities); new nighttime outdoor lighting of sporis, athletic or
recreation facilities not previously flluminated.

Land disturbance of 3 acres or more (includes stripping, grading, grubbing, filling or excavation).

L

The Land Use Code {inciuding Article V), the Technical Manual, and the Design Manual are available f
on the City’s web site at http:/www.portlandmaine gov/planning/default.asp or copies may be
purchased at the Pianning Division Office. ‘

Planning Division Office Hours
Fourth Ficor, City Hall Monday thru Friday
389 Congress Street 8:06a.m. -4:30 p.m.

(207) 874-8721 or 874-8719

Dept. of Planning and Urban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 38% Congress St. ~ Portiand, ME 04101 ~ ph (207)874-8721 or §74-871% -i-



PROJECT NAME:

Maine Medical Center - Bean 2 Roof Addition

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ADDRESS:

Bramhall Street

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Vertical Expansion of LL Bean building for new operating

rooms and mechanical systems.

CHART/BLOCK/ALOT: CBL 53-D-1.2,7
CBL 583-E-1,2,10,13
CBL 53-G-1,13
CBL 54-H-1
CBL 64-C-1,2

CONTACT INFORMATION:

PRELIMINARY PLAN
FINAL PLAN

Applicant - must be owner, Lessee or Buyer
Name: Penelope St Louis
Business Name, if applicable: Maine Health

Address: 110 Free Street

City/State : Portland ME Zip Code: 04101

5/28/13 _ (date)

Apptlicant Contact information
Work # 207-681-7157

Home# N/A
Cell# NA Fax#

e-mail: stiouis@mmc.org

[ Owner - (if different from Applicant)

Owner Contact information

Name: Same as Applicant Work #
Address: Home#
City/State : Zip Code: Cell # Fax#
e~-mail:
L

Agent/ Representative
Name: Wiliam Conway, Sebago Technics Inc.
| Address: 75 John Roberts Road, Suite 1A -

City/State : South Portland, ME Zip Code: 64106

Agent/Representative Contact information

| Work # 207-200-2055

Cell # 207- 205-5271

e-mail: weonway@sebagotechnics.com

Billing Information

Billing information

Name: Same as Applicant Work # N/A
Address: Cell # Faxi
City/State : Zip Code: e-mail;

L

Diept. of Planning and Urban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 382 Congress St. ~ Portland, ME 84101 ~ ph (207)874-8721 or 874-871%
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] Engineer

Engireer Contact Information

Name:  Same as Agent Work#  N/A

Address: Ceft # Fax#
ﬁity/State : Zip Code: e-mail:

Surveyor Surveyor Contact Information

Name: Same as Agent Work # N/A

Address: Cell # Fax#

City/State Zip Code: e-mail:

Architect Architect Contact Information

Name: Susanna Baker, Perkins&Will
Address: 55 Court Street

City/State : Boston, MA Zip Code: 02108

P Cell# NIA

Waork # 617-478-0321

Fax#t N/A

e-mail: susanna baker@perkinswill.com

Attorney Attorney Contact information
Address: Cell # Fax#
City/State : Zip Code: e-mail:

Dept. of Planning and Urban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 389 Congress St. ~ Portland, ME (4101 ~ ph (207)874-8721 or 874-8719
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APPLICATION FEES:

Check all reviews that apply. (Payment may be made by Cash or Check payable to the City of Portland.)

~evel Il Development (check applicable reviews)

____Less than 50,000 sq. ft. ($500.00)
50,000 - 100,000 sq. ft. ($1,000)
i 100,000 - 200,000 sg. ft. ($2,000)
__ 200,000 - 300,000 sq. ft. ($3,0600)
___over $300,00 sq. ft. ($5,000)
____Parking iots over 11 spaces ($1,000)
___After-the-fact Review ($1,000.0C plus
applicable application fee)

- Notices ($.75 each)
- Legal Ad (% of total Ad)
- Planning Review ($40.00 hour)
- Legal Review ($75.00 hour)
Third party review is assessed separately.

The City invoices separately for the following;

Plan Amendments (check applicable reviews)

____Planning Staff Review ($250)
___ Planning Board Review ($500)

N/A

Other Reviews (check applicable reviews)

___ Traffic Movement ($1,000)

___ Stormwater Quality ($250)

___ Subdivisions {$500 + $25/lot)
#oflots _ x $25/0t =

___ Site Location ($3,000, except for
residential projects which shall be
$200/lot)
#oflots __ x$200/0t =

. Other

___.Change of Use

__ Flood Plain
____Shoreland

___ Design Review

—___ Housing Replacement
__ Historic Preservation

N/A

Dept. of Planning and Urban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 389 Congress St. ~ Portiand, ME 04101 ~ ph (207)874-8721 or 874-8719
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APPLICATION SUBMISSION

oAl site plans and written application materiais must be uploaded to a webslte for review. Atthe time of
L appiication, instructions for uploading the plans wlli be provided to the applicant. One paper set of the plans,

written materials and application fee must be submittad to the Planning Division Offlce 1o start the review
process.

Submisslons shall include one (1) paper packet with folded plans containing the following materials:
1. One (1) full size sei of plans that must ba foided,

2. One (1) copy of all written matarials as foliows, unisss otherwise noted:
8. Application form that s completed and signed,
b, Cover letter stating the nature of the project,
¢, Al Written Submittals (Sec. 14-525 2. (©), including evidence of right, title and interest,

A stamped standard boundary survey prepared by a reglstered land surveyor at a scale not less than one inch to
50 faet,

Ptans and maps based upon the boundary survey and confaining the informaton found in the atlached sample
plan checklist,

Copy of the chacklist complated for the proposal fisting the material contained in the submitted application,
One (1) set of plans reducad to 11 x 17,

oo s W

Refer to the application checklist for a detalled list of submiital requirements.
Portiand's development review process and requirements are cullined in the Land Use Code (Chapter 14), which includes
the Subdivision Ordinance (Section 14-491) and the Slts Plan Ordinances (Section 14-521). Porlland’s Land Use Code is

on the Clity's web site: www, portlandmaina.goy Coples of the ordinances may be puirchased through the Planning
Division.

t haraby cerlify that ! am the Owner of record of the namad propetty, or that the owner of regord authorizes the proposed
work and thet | have been authorized by the owner to make this application as his/her authorlzed agent, | agres to
-.gonform to all appiicable faws of this jurisdiction. In addition, if & permit for work described in this application Is issued, !
. certify that the Planaing Authority and Code Enforcament’s authorized represeniative shall have the authority to enter all
“areas covered by this permit at any reasonable hour 1 enforce the provisions of the codes epplicahle to this permit,

This application is for a Level Il Slte Plan review. It is not a permit to bagin construction, An approved site plan, a
Ferformances Guaraniee, Inspection Fee, Building Permit, and associated fees will be reguirad prior fo construction. Other
Federal, State or local permits may be required prior to construction, which are the responsibility of the applicant o obtaln,

Signature of Applicant: Date:

| May 28, 2013
L Jaten | |
01

Dept, of Manningand Urban Devalopment ~ Partland City Hall - 389 Congress 8t ~ Portland, ME 04101 ~ ph {207)874-8721 or 874-8719 -5



PROJECT DATA

The foliowing information is required where applicable, in order complete the application.

Total Area of Site

|

12.84 +/-

Proposed Total Disturbed Area of the Site

T

!

9.0 ac +/-

(if the proposed disturbance is greater than one acre, then the applicant shall apply for a Maine Construction General Permit
| IMCGP) with DEP and a Stormwater Management Permit, Chapter 500, with the City of Portland

impervious Surface Area

Impervious Area (Existing}

9.0 ac+/-

impervious Area {Proposed)

9.0 ac +/-

Building Ground Floor Area and Total Floor Area

Building Footprint (Existing)

49,977 sq. ft.

Building Footprint (Proposed)

! Floor Area (Existing)

Floor Area (Proposed}

40,000 sg. f1.

Zoning

Existing

SeeTab 8

Proposed, if appiicable

Land Use
Existing

Proposed

Residential, If applicable

N/A

Residential Units (Existing)

Residential Units (Proposed)

# Number of Lots {Proposed)

1

Affordable Housing Units {Proposad)

Efficiency Units {Proposed)

One-Bedroom Units (Proposed)

Two-Bedroom Units {Proposed)

Three-Bedroom Units {Proposed)

Parking Spaces

See Tab 9

Parking Spaces {Existing)

Parking Spaces {Proposed)

| Handicapped Spaces {Proposed)

Bicycle Parking Spaces

SeeTab 9

Bicycie Spaces (Existing)

Bicycle Spaces {Proposed)

| Estimated Cost of Project

S40 M

Dept, of Planning and Utrban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 389 Congress 81, ~ Portland, ME 04101 ~ ph (207)874.8721 or 874-8719 -G




“General Submittal Requirements - Preliminary Plan (Optional)

Level Hi Site Plan
_ Preliminary Plan Phase Check fist (if elected by applicant)

- ppiiant Planner Number of . . "
W
Checklist Checklist Copies ritten Submittal Requirements
X (tab 2) 0l 1 Completed apalication form
X . 1 Agpplication fees
X(tab 5) In i Written description of project
X(tab 6) I 1 Evidence of right, title and interest,
X(tab 7) B I 1 Copies of required State and/or Federal permits.
X(tab 8) s 1 Written assessment of proposed project’s compliance with applicable
zaning requirements.

n/a I 1 Written description of existing and proposed easements or other

burdens,

n/a N 1 Written requests for waivers from individua! site plan and/or technical

standards, where applicabie,
X(tab g) Ol g 1 Traffic analysis {may be preliminary, in nature, during the preliminary
plan phase].

n/a o 1 Written summary of significant natural features located on the site.

X(tab 10) O 1 Written summary of project’s consistency with related city master plans.,

X(tab g) (] 1 Neighborhood Meeting Material {refer to page 13 of this application.}

Applicant Planner Number of . . .

Checklist Checklist Coples Site Plan Submittal Reguirements

¥ (p]ans) M 1 Boundary Survey meeting the requirements of Section 13 of the City of

Portiand Techn:cai Manuai

X {Plans) [ 1 ;

¥ (p| an S) O & Existing and proposed structures w:th d:stance fmm property line fincluding location of
proposed piers, docks or wharves if in Shoreland Zone),

X (Pl an S) [ = [ocation of adjacent streets and intersections and approximate location of structures
on gbutting properties,

n /a N ®  Proposed site access and circufation.

n / a 0 - Proposed grading and contours.

X (plans) 0 = locotion and dimension of existing and proposed paved areas including all parking
greas and vehicle, bicycle and pedestrian occess ways.

n /a n ¢ Preliminary landscape plan including existing vegetation to be preserved, proposed site
landscaping and street trees,

n/a 0 ®  Existing and proposed utilities (preliminary layout).

n / a [ ]" Preliminary infrastructure improvements (e.g. - curb and sidewalk improvements,

i roadway intersection modifications, utility connections, transit infrastructure, roadway
P improvementsj.

n/a N = Preliminary stormwater management and erosion control plan.

n /a (] e Existing significant natural features located on the site {including wetlonds, ponds,
watercourses, floodplains, significant wildlife habitats and fisheries or other importont
natural features listed in Section 14-526 (b) 1. of the Land Use Code).

n / a r *  Proposed alterations to and protection measures for significant natural features
focated on the site {including wetlands, ponds, watercourses, floodplains, significant
wildlife habitats and fisheries or other Impertant natural features listed in Section 14~
526 {b}1. of the Land Use Code).

X (Pl ans) [ {;- Existing and proposed easements or public or private rights of way.

Dept, of Planning and Urban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 389 Congress St. ~ Portland, ME 64101 ~ ph (207)874-8721 or §74-8719 -7-



‘General Submittal Requirements ~ Final Plan (Required)
| Level Ili Site Plan

' Planner v Num

. tal ;
Checklist Checklist of Copies Written Submittal Reguirement
X (tab 12) N ] 1 ) Evidence of financial and technical capacity.
¥ (tab 13) 0 ‘ 1 Evidence of utilities’ capacity to serve the development.
X (tab 14) " 5 Writtgn summary of fire sgfe‘iy {referencing NFPA fire code and Section 3 of
the City of Portiand Technical Manual).
X (tab :{5) N 1 Construction management plan.
X (tab 9) [ 3 Traffic Plan {if development will (1) generate 100 or more PCE or {2) generate 25
or more PCE and is located on an arterial, within 1/2 mile of a high crash
1 location, and/or within % mile of an intersection identified in a previous traffic
study as a failing intersection).
n/a 0 | 1 Stormwater management plan. _J
X (tab 16) [ 1 ‘ Wr.'ﬁtten summary of solid waste generation and preposed management of
i solid waste,
X (tab 17) 7 1 [ Written assessment of conformity with applicable design standards.
X (tab 18) N 1 ] Man.ufacturer's verification thatz HyAC and manufacturing equipment meets
i applicable state and federal emissions requirements.
______Final PlanPhase -
X{Plans}) O nal's llow
X (p| ans) 0 v Existing and proposed structures on the site with distance from property line (including
. tocation of proposed piers, docks or wharves if in Shoreland Zone).
X (Plans) [ = [location of adjocent streets and intersections and approximate location of structures
on abutting properties.
n / a 0 »  Proposed site access and circulation,
n /a M T Proposed grading and contours.
X (p% ans) n = [location and dimension of existing and proposed paved aregs including all parking
areas and vehicle, bicycle and pedestrian access ways. Proposed curb lines must be
| shown.
n /a B E = Proposed loading and servicing areas, including applicable turning tempiotes for
B delivery vehicles
n / a N ®  Proposed snow storage areas or snow removal plan,
n /a M *  Proposed trash and recycling facilities.
}‘q"—; .
n / a 0 = [andscape plon including existing vegetation to be preserved, proposed site
fandscaping and street trees.
n /a 0 «  Existing and proposed utifities.
n/a M v ilocation and detalls of proposed infrastructure improvements (e.g. - curb and sidewalk
; improvements, roadway intersection modifications, utility connections, public transit
infrastructure, roadway improvements).
n / a ] *  Proposed septic system, if not connecting to municipal sewer. (Portland Waste Water
Application included in this application}
X (Plans) [ ®  Proposed finish floor elevation (FFE].
X (p; a ns) r = Exterior building elevation(s) {(showing all 4 sides). I
n / a 5 = Proposed stormwater management and erosion controls.
n / a (] | = Exterior lighting plan, inciuding street lighting improvements..

L
Dept. of Planning andd Urbart Development ~ Porlland City Hall ~ 389 Congress St. ~ Portland, ME 04101 ~ ph (207)874-8721 or 874-8719 -8-




Praposed signage.

3
S

o}
3
-}

I“I/B ] s |dentification of existing significant natural features located on the site {including
wetlands, ponds, watercourses, floadpiains, significant wildlife habitats and fisheries or
other important natural features listed in Section 14-526 (b)1. of the Land Use Code).
Wetlands must be delineated.

n /a M ] = Proposed alterations to and protection measures for of existing significant natura!
features Jocoted on the site {including wetlonds, ponds, watercourses, floodplains,
significant wildiife habitats and fisheries or other important natural features listed in
Section 14-526 {b}1. of the Land Use Code).

n / a 0 | = Totalarea and iimits of proposed fand disturbance.

n / a M = Soil type and location of test pits and borings.

n / a (] = Details of proposed pier rehabilitation (Shorefand areas only).
n/a [ = Existing and proposed easements or public or private rights of way.

Dept. of Planning and Urban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 389 Congress St ~ Portland, ME 04101 ~ ph (207)874-8721 or §74-8719 -5 -
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May 28, 2013

Captain Chris Pirone
City of Portland
Fire Department
380G Congress Street
Portland, ME 04101

Maine Medicai Center
Bean Building Roof Addifion
Level Ill Site Plan Application

Dear Chris,

Maine Medical Center is filing an application with the City to construct a vertical expansion on the roof of
the L.L. Bean Building at the Bramhali Campus. Enclosed are the submission materials required in the Fire
Department Checklist. If you have any questions as you review the project, please let me know.

Sincerely,
SEBAGO TECHNICS, INC.

ST 3
M Lapuot”

William 7. Conway, RLA, LEED AP
Vice President, Landscape Architecture

WTC:jsf




PORTLAND FIRE DEPARTMENT
SITE REVIEW
FIRE DEPARTMENT CHECKLIST

A separate drawing{s] shall be provided to the Portiand Fire Depariment for all site plan reviews.

o g kL =

10.

Name, address, telephone number of applicant.

Narme address, telephone number of architect

Proposed uses of any structures [NFPA and IBC ciassification]
Square footage of alf structures [total and per story]

Elevation of all structures

Proposed fire protection of alt structures

° As of September 16, 20710 alf new construction of one and two farmnily homes are reguired o be

sprinkled in compliance with NFFPA 13D, This is required by City Code, (NFFA 101 2009 ed.)
Hydrant locations

Water mains] size and location

Access to all structures [min. 2 sides]

A code summary shall be included referencing NFPA 1 and all fire department. Technical standards.

Some structures may require Fire flows using annex H of NFPA 1

Dept, of Planning and Urban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 389 Congress St. ~ Portland, ME 04101 ~ ph (207)874-8721 or 874-8719 - 10



PERKINS
~WILL

Fire Safety Summary

Per the Code Report prepared for the Bean 2 Roof Addition on December 19, 2012 (and enclosed with
this submission), the project complies with the requirements of NFPA.

PA\Boston\152117.000-Maine_Medical_Master_Plan\152117.001_Master_Plam\DOCS\00.0-FrojectMgmnt\00.06-WorkPlan\Team Nigetings



Maine Medical Center
Portland, Maine

Code Report

December 19, 2012

Prepared By: Andrew P. Schwalbenberg
Reviewed By: Don E. Contois, P.E.
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5. Exterior Wall Openings & Fire Resistance Rating:.................... 2

8.  Vertical Fioor Openings

7. Finishes:............

...................................................................... .3

8. Smoke Compartments. . 3

9. Means of Egress;

10, Required Fire Protection Systems: ..o, 6

11.  Accessibifity for Persons with Disabilities

APPENDIX: Egress Plans



Bean Addition - MMC
December 19, 2012
Fage 1

Introduction

The project includes renovations and an addition to the second ficor of the Bean
Building at Maine Medical Center in Porlland, Maine. The following code
summary report is based on the plans received December 10, 2012 and the
Statement of Conditions plans received November 4, 2011, The following is a list
of applicable codes:

Applicable Code
Code Type (Méjc?el Code Basis)

Building 2009 internaticnal Building Code
Fire Prevention NFPA 101: Life Safety Code, 2009 Edition
Accessibility Maine Human Rights Commission
Electrical 2011 National Electrical Code
Mechanical ASHRAE 82.1 — 2007

ASHRAE 82.2 - 2007
Plumbing 2008 Uniform Plumbing Code {with State Amendments)
Energy Conservation | 2008 International Energy Conservation Code

For the purpese of this report, the building is assumed to be fully sprinkiered in
accordance with the International Building Code (IBC} Section 203.

1. Occupancy Classification:

IBC Occupancy Classifications {Section 302)
« |-2 (Hospital)

NFPA 101 Occupancy Ciassifications (Section 6.1)
+ Heatth Care

2. Min. Construction Type:

s |BC — Type IB (noncombustible, 2 hour rated)
s NFPA 101 ~Type | (2,2,2) (noncambustible, 2 hour rated)

3. Height and Area Limitations:

Since the existing construction type of Bean and Richard is [B, the aliowable
area for this building (Bean and Richard) is unlimited; therefore, the addition
does not exceed the area limitation Tor this building (I1BC Table 503).

The addition will be separated from the adjacent existing building by two hour
fire barriers; this separafion permiis the existing nortions of the building to
remain as-is without requiring full compliance with NFPA 101 (NFPA 101
Section 19.1.1.4.1}.

4. Fire Resistance Ratings:

The following fire resistance ratings are required in accordance with IBC
Table 601 and various sections of the code,



Bean Addition - MIMC
December 18 2012

Page 2
- Fire Resistance Openipg
New Building Elements Rating (Hrs) Protectives
| {Hrs}

Structural Frame . 2" -
Exterior Bearing Walls W 24 -
Interior Bearing Walls l 2" -
Exterior Non-Bearing Walis ) Based on FSD -
interior Non-Bearing Walls ¢ -
Floor Construction 2" -
Roof Construction 1 - ]

Exit Access Corridors (IBC 407.2 & 407.3) Smoke Rasistant | Positive-iatching

Stair Shafts (IBC 1022.1) 2 1%
Other Shafts (IBC 708 .4} 2 1%
Trash Room Greater than 100 ¥ in Area {IBC . _

| Table 508.2.5) Smoke Res;stantJ Self Closing

Rooms With Equipment Greater than 400,000 : ,
Btuh Input Capacity {IBC Table 508.2.5) Smoke Resistant | Self Closing

" Not less than the rating supported (IBC 707.5, 708.4, and 712.4).

Fire walls, fire barriers, fire partitions, smoke barriers, and smoke partitions,
or any other wall required to have protected openings or penetrations must
be identified with signs or stenciling within accessibie cencealed spaces {i.e.
fioor-ceiling, attic spaces) at 30 ft infervals with at least 0.5” letters stating:
“FIRE AND/OR SMOKE BARRIER — PROTECT ALL OPENINGS” or simitar
wording (IBC 703.6).

Exterior Wall Openings & Fire Resistance Rating:

The exterior wall rating requirements and opening limitations are based on
the fire separation distance for each wall. The fire separation distance is
measured perpendicular to the exterior wall to the centeriine of g public
street, an interior lot line, or an imaginary lot iine between twe buildings on
the same lot (IBC 702.0). Since the fire separation distance of the new
exterior walls is more than 30 ft, the walls are not required to be rated and the

aliowable area of openings is not limited {IBC Table 602 and Section 705.8.1
Exc. 2).

Vertical Floor Openings

The current plans do not indicale any unenclosed floor openings on the
second floor of the building.



Bean Addition - MIMC
December 19 2012
Page 3

7. Finishes:

New interior Finish

The new interior finish of walls, ceilings and fioors must comply with the code
for new construction as shown in the {able below,

Building Component Wa(ltigt? 8%?.‘;{)‘98 {iBgigg;.Sm?)
Exit Enclosures and Passageways Class B Ciass |l
Corridors - Class B Class I}
Rooms & Enclosed Spaces Class B DOCFF-1

Exterior Finish

Exterior wall finishes must full comply with the requirements of 2009 18C 14,
Combustible materiais are permitted to be used as an exterior wali finish for
this huilding in accordance with 2008 IBC Section 1406.0: howsver, all
exterior wall finishes and architectural trim located greater than 40 feet above
grade plane must be constructed of approved noncombustible materials and
must be secured io the wall with metal or other approved noncombustible
brackets (2002 IBC Section 1408.2.2). Additionally, combustibie exierior wall
finish is limited to 10% of the exterior wall surface area where the fire
separafion distance is 5 ft or less.

The use of plastic materials as part of the exterior wall assembly (l.e. foam
plastic insulation, exterior coatings and facings) must comply with 2008 IBC
26 (2009 IBC 1404.8). The wall assembly must be tested in accordance with
NFPA 285 (2009 IBC 28603.5.5). Note that this test standard is a full scale
assembly test. We recommend confirming with the manufacturer that the
foam plastic insulation is part of an approved NFPA 285 assembly.

Smoke Compartments:

3Smoke compartmenis are provided in the existing Bean building. The
addition must also comply with the foliowing smoke compariment
reguirements.

« FEvery story containing inpatients for sieeping or treatment, or an cccupant
load greater than 50 of any use, must be divided into not less than two
smoke compartments (NFPA 101 Sectlion 18.3.7.1{1) & {2}).

The design is comptiant.

e« The size of each smoke compartment must not exceed 22,500 SF unless
the area is an atrium separated in accordance with NFPA 101 Section
8.6.7 (NFPA 101 Section 18.3.7 1(3)}.

The addition to the Bean building will be considered a separate smoke
compartment as shown on the attached plans.
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The travel distance frem any point fo reach a door in the required smoke
barrier must be limited fo 200 ft or less {NFFA 101 Section 18.3.7.1(4)).

The design is compliani,

The smoke parrier is required to be 1 hour rated except where an atrium
is used and the smoke barrier terminates at an atrium wall and nof less
than two separate smoke compartments are provided on each floor.
Smoke dampers are not required in duct penetrations of smoke barriers in
fully ducted heating, ventilation, and air-conditioning systems where the
sysitems serve a single smoke compartment (NFPA 101 Seaction 18.3.7.3
& 2008 1BC 716.5.5).

The addition is being separated from the existing building by two hour fire
barriers,

Not less than 30 net SF per patient must be provided within the aggregate
area of corriders, patieni rooms, freatment rooms, lounge or dining areas,
and other low hazard areas on each side of the smoke barrier (NFPA 101
Section 18.3.7.5.1).

if appears that a non-sleeping suite will be inciuded within the addition fo the
Bean Building. The non-sleeping suite exceeds 2,500 SF as currently shown
on the pfans. The suite complies with the following provisions:

Non-sleeping Suites

L]

Since the suite is more than 2,500 5F a minimum of ftwo exit access
doors are required (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.7.3.2).

One exit must be directly to an exit access cerridor, the second exit is
permitted to be through a suile if the suite is separated by the same
construction as corridors (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.7.3.2).

The maximum suite size is 10,000 SF (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.7.3.2).
Travel distance between any point in the non-sleeping suite fo an exit
access door must not exceed 100 ft where the suite is arranged with cne
intervening room. Travel distance between any point in the non-sleeping
suite to an exit must not excead 50 ft where the suite is arranged with two
intervaning rooms. Travel distance between any point in the non-sleeping
suite to an exit must not exceed 200 ft (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.7.3.4).

Means of Egress:

The caiculated occupant load for the proposed floor plans, the corresponding
required number of exits, the provided number of exits, and the provided
egress capacity are summarized beiow (IBC Tables 1004.1.1, 10211 &
1005.1 and NFPA 101 Tables 7.3.1.2 & 7.3.3.1). See Appendix A of this
report for detailed egress calculations.
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Means of Egress
| Number of Exits Exit Capacity
Fioor | Qccupant Load HkRequired Provided {persons)
2| 459 2 4 660

General Egress Requirements:

Maximum exit access travel distance must be less than 200 ft (IBC Tabie
1016.1, NFPA 101 Table A7.6.1). The travel distance from any pointin a

smoke compartment 1o a smoke barrier door must not exceed 200 ft (IBC
407 .4). -

Maximum dead-end corridor length must be less than 20 ft (1IBC 1018.4).

All stair doors must swing in the direction of egress trave! (NFPA 101

Section 7.2.1.4.3).

Doors must swing in the direction of egress travel when serving an
occupani load of 50 or more persons (IBC 1008.1.2),

All means of egress lighting and exit signs throughout the building must
be provided with an emergency powsr supply to assure continued
ilumination for not less than 1.5 hours in case of primary power loss (IBC
1006.1 & 1011.1).

Remote means of egress must be separated by % of the diagonal
dimension of the room or space they serve (iBC 1015.2.1). The distance
between exits must be measured in a straight line between exit doors.

Al least 30 net SF per patient must be provided within the aggregate area
of patient rooms, corridors, treatment rooms, lounge, dining, and other
low-hazard areas on each side of the smoke barrier (iBC 407.4.1).

A means of egress must be provided from every smoke compariment
without requiring an occupant to return through the smoke compartment
from which means of egress originated (iBC 407 .4.2).

Sieeping rcoms more than 1,000 SF and non-sleeping rooms more than
2,500 SF must be provided with at least two remote means of egress
(NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.5.1 & 18.2.5.5.2).

Every habitable room must have direct access {0 an exit access corridar
unless the rooms are located in a suite (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.6.1).

Corridor walls are not required to have a fire-resistance rating but must be
smoke-resistant by forming a barrier o limit the transfer of smoke (NFPA
101 Section 18.3.6.2).



Bean Addition - MIMC
December 18, 2012
Page 6

s+ Corrider doors must be construcied to resist the passage of smoke and
he self-latching and provided with positive-latching hardware (NFPA 101
Section 18.3.8.3.1 & 18.3.6.3.5). Docrs to toilet rooms, bathrooms, sink
closets and similar auxiliary rooms that do not contain flammable or
combustibie materials are not required to comply with these requirements
(NFPA 101 Section 18.3.6.3.1(3) & 18.3.6.3.6).

o Every corridor must provide access to not less than two approved exits
without passing through intervening rooms or spaces other than corridors
or iobbies (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.4).

« Travel distance from any point in a health care sleeping room and an exit
access door in that room must not exceed 50 ff (NFPA 101 Section
18.2.6.2.3).

10. Required Fire Protection Systems:

11.

NFPA 13 sprinkier system (2008 IBC 407.5)
Fire alarm system (2009 IBC 407.8)
Standpipe sysiem (2009 IBC 905.3.1)

Fire extinguishers (2008 1BC 806.1)

Accessibility for Persons with Disabilities

This faciiity is open to and used by the general public. The new building must
therefore comply in full with the provisions of the Maine Human Rights
Commission {Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidefines).

JI2011 122700 _Files\ReportsiCode Rapert.doox
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APPENDIX: Egress Plans
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CITY OF PORTLAND WASTEWATER CAPACITY APPLICATION

‘Department of Public Services,
55 Portland Street,
Portland, Maine 04101-2991

Mr. Frank J. Brancely,

Senior Engineering Technician,
Phone #: (207) 874-8832,

Fax #: (207) 874-8852,

E-mail:fio@portlandmaine.gov
Date: May 28 2013

1. Please, Submit Utility, Site, and Locus Plans.

Site Address: 22 Bramhall Street

(Regarding addressing, plegse contact Leslie Kaynor, either ai 756-83486, or at Chart Block Lot Number:  Bramhall

LMK @portlandmaine. gov} Campus

Proposed Use: Hospital

Previous Use: Hospital g » Commercial L
Existing Sanitary Flows: Unknown GPD & 8, Industrial (compiete part 4 beiow) -
Existing Process Flows: Unknown GPD 2 Governmental

Description and location of City sewer, at proposed building 8 Residential T
sewer lateral connection: Other (specify) Hospital X
Existing connection; no new connection proposed. T
Clearly, indicaie the proposed connection, on the submilted plans.

2. Please, Submit Domestic Wastewater Design Flow Caiculations.

Estimated Domestic Wastewater Flow Generated: 3600 GPD
Peaking Factor/ Peak Times:

Specify the source of design guidelines: (fe._“Handbook of Subsurface Wastewater Disposal in Maing,” __*Plumbers and

Pipe Fitters Calculation Manual,”__ Portiand Water District Records, X_ Other (specify) Engineer - See attached letter

Note: Please submit calculations showing the derivation of your design flows, either on the following page, in the space
provided, or attached, as a separate sheet.

3. Piease, Submit Contact Information.

Owner/Developer Name: Maine Medical Center

Owner/Developer Address: 22 Bramhall Street

Phone: 622-2988 Fax: n/a E-mail: battim@mme.org
Engineering Consultant Name: AFK Group/ Peter Reilly

Engineering Consultant Address: 41 Farnsworth Street,  Boston, MA 02210

Phone:  617-737-1111 Fax: n/a , E-mail: preilly@afkgroup.com
City Planner's Name: Phone: tbhd

Note: Consultants and Developers should allow +/- 15 days, for capacity status, prior to
Planning Board Review.

4. Please, Submii industrial Process Wastewater Flow Calculations

Estimated (ndustrial Process Wastewater Flows Generated: n/a GPD
Do you currently hold Federal or State discharge permits? Yes No
is the process wastewater termed categorical under CFR 407 Yes No

GSHA Standard Industrial Code (SIC):

thito#www.osha. govioshstats/sicser, htmil)
Peaking Factor/Peak Process Times:

Note: Onthe submitted plans, please show the [ocations, where the building's sanitary, and process water sewer laterals,

exit the facility, where they enter the city’s sewer, the location of any control manholes, wet wells, or other access poinis, and
¢he locations of any filters, strainers, or grease traps.

{(n/a - no new connections)

Dept. of Plamning and Urban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 389 Congress St ~ Portland, ME 04101 ~ ph {207)874-8721 or §74-8719 -11-



Ay 24, 2013

Susanng p. ef, AlA, LEED AP RD+C
Associate
Senlor Project Manager
Peranstwill,

225 Frankiin Street, Suite 1100
Boston, A 02110

Fe Maine Medlcal Centar — Bean Roof Addition
Estimated Daily Sewage Flows
AKF Project No, B12022%-000

Dear Susanna,

Asrequasted, we are providing the estimated daily sewage calcuiations for the Maine Medicadl
Center- Bean 2 Roof Additicon Project. The calculalions represent the estimoted increass in sewage
flow anticipaled from the addition and are based on incustry standard flow rates. The project will

have minimalimpact on the utility requirements as all systemns are being served by the axisting
infrastruciure and no new site ulility work is anticipated.

Average Daily Flow Rates for hospitals are calculated on the basis of 200 GPG/1,000 sg. i with an
~ddifional 35 GPD per employee, This incorporates in-patient loading and other daily functions of a
Jlhospifal. For our calculations, we used o lower flow rate similar o a medical office buiding

because of the fact that the addition will see ¢ more transient population and does not include in-
patient services,

The anticipated flow rate esfimated for the addition is 3,600 Galions per day based on an average of
20 Gaiflons per day per 100 sg. i

(18,000 sg. f1 /100 sq. 1. x 20 GPD = 3,600 GPD

If needed the estimaled water demand for the addifion can be calculated ot 125% of the daily
sewage flowrate or 4,500 GPD

Plewse fes! free To call with any questions or comments regarding this matter or if vou wish to discuss
this further,

AKF
DR
\
Peter J Rellly, P.E. , Cc Dennis Kaiser - P+W
=artner Dieter Gariner - P+W
JRfsV BMM, RAC

41 Famswerth Street, 3rd Floor, Boston, MA 022106 /1 FITNNN SR EITI3T AT S weww ARFGIoun.com
ARUNGION ! BOSTON J MEXICO CITY [/ MINNEAPOLIS / NEW K/ PH LADE’_PHIA fPRINCETON [ ROCHESTER / STAMEORD
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Maine Medical Center (MMC) is requesting Site Plan approval for a +/- 40,000 5.1,
addition to the TL.ower Bean Building (aka Bean2)) located at 22 Brambhall Street (in the
vicinity of the MMC emergency department). The addition will begin modernizing
interventional capacity, decompressing its main surgical suite, and adding four additional
operating rooms, with accompanying prep and recovery rooms. The inclusion of
additional storage space will reduce congestion within the surgical suite. Rooftop
mechanicals will be enclosed.

The addition will be located on the roof of the Bean 2, and, as a result, will have no
impact on building footprint or impervious surface. It is within the zoning requirements
of the applicable Conditional Zoning Agreement and therefore will require only major
site plan approval from the Portland Planning Board.

The architecture of the building is compatible with the existing structures within the
campus. It is intended to promote healing while providing staff and visitors with a
pleasant experience. The glass exterior provides a light and transparent feel both
internally and externally.

The cost of the project is $40M,
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May 24, 2013

Ms. jean Fraser

Senior Planner

City of Portland

389 Congress Street
Portiand, Maine 04104

" Re: MMC/ 22 Bramhall Street
CBL 53-D-1,2,7; CBL 53-E-1,2,10,13; CBL 53-G-1,13;
CBL 54-H-1; CBL. 64-C-1,2

Dear Ms. Fraser:
Attached please find deeds providing evidence of MM{’s Right, Title and Interest to

develop the property at 22 Bramhali Street, Pertland, Maine. Please ite me know
should you have any guestions or need more information,

Sincerely,

A

Penelope St. Louis

110 Free Street = Portland, ME 04101-3908 Phone: 207-661-7001 Fax: 207-661-7029 werw, mainchealth, org



.
: (1541
i

EXECUTORD AND TRUSTENY DED, Ae)
[WHEN THY WILL ATEORITES A Xald] 9“_\,
Krpm all Men by these Presents,
-
¢ Ohat  z, =mrEv u. erIrrIv
!
i
. of Portiznd in the county of Cumberland
sole acting executor of the last ¥ill and *estament
C o Mary Davis iate of Portland
i
| deceased, testate, by virtus of the zutherity to me given by
i the said Mary Davis in herlast vill arnd
testament, in my  capaclty of executor as aforem |
said, and in comsideration of One Dellar (51.00) and other |
valushle considerations SRR LB

the laws of Maine znd situated in Portland

14 the receipt whereol is hereby zc-

1 xnowledged, <o hersby sell and (mawey unto the said Maine Medical Cents

its guccessors

the proparty of the said Mary Dawvis. . ottt

|
| WeEry and assigns, the following described real estatse, vhich was
f
i
|

i Bmhchmangarscaseceioomam:
! ‘

| .

i

| in Portland om the northerly side of Brackett Street, bounded and
1 described as follows:

owned by Hobart W. Richardson: thence running northwesterly bv said
Richardson land seventy-four (74} feet, more or less,
cwned or cccupied by W. §. Dunn; thence southwssterly by the line of

southeasterly by said lane forty-one (41l) feet, more or less, o
Brackett Street:; thence easterly by Brackett Street thirtv-seven (37}
fest, mors or less, ko the point of beginming.

Baing the same prenises conveyed to Mary Davis by Harzy Z. Davis by
deed dated March 18, 1513, recorded in Cumberiand County HRegistrv of
Deeds in Bock 943, Pnge 109.

—~

Reference 1s made o Will of said Marv Davis, abstract of which is
racorded in said Regisztrv of Deeds in Zock 3025, Page 28.

My

te me paid by MAINE MEDICAL CENTER, a corporaticn grganizsd under

[ PP

<

said Dunn‘s land fortyv-ons (41) fset, more or less, to a lane; thance

1
i
i Beginning at the intersection of the northerly side of Brackett Stwset
| with the westerly side of Russell Strzet; thence ruaning northeasterly
by Russell Street thirty-seven (37} feet, more or lsss, %o land formezl

i
to land formerliwnm

¢
i
"t



9281 @B hmxr and to hnlh the shove-granted premises unto the said

Maine Medical Center, its successors

| vt Hrefis end assigns forever. And I the said
Helen M. Griffin,

in my said gapacity, do neraby covenasnt to and witk the said

Maine Medical Center, its successors Edos and assigos, that
I am ihe lawfel exscutler of the last will and
Testament of the sald Maryv Davis t that I

have power under said ¥ill 1o sell as aforesaid; and that in making
whis conveyance, I have in a1l respects, acted in pursuance of

the authority graunted in and by the said last will and testament.




rhe saig Helen M. Griffin

[ ]

i Fitnesz Whereot,

b2}

in Y said capacity of executoer
as aforesaid have hersuntc set my hand and seal .
this Eaa day of /7// e in the year of our
Lord one theousand nine nundred and sixty-six.

Sined, Bealed o Beitwersh
. i pregeure of

Hriute nf Fatere, ( 1966,
Tnem personally appeared the above named Helen M. Griffin
and acknowledged the above ipstrument o he Ther free act and deed
in her said capacity.
Befors mey—~ -
MAR 31 12685 - "*”".Tust:.ce of the Peacs.

; SERISYEY OF DEEDS, CUMBZETAND COUTLY, .Lu\m
' Raceived at <F BITFYRY, anc “gcordsd 1 /
2005 ] S0/ BE P77 oz i7 74.._..,«,.,,,, Hegzster

7/
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‘Executot’s and Trustee’s Deed.

IwiEh THE WHR AUTHORITES A SALE)

... Helen M, Griffin

b

ical Center

- e -

e .ea, Hleglatry of Deeds.
19 N
., dnhd

Atbestr e ... itegister,

FHROMN TUE OFFIOR OF
verrill Dana Walker Philbrick

& Whitehouse

57 Bxchange Street
portland; Malne~ -

LORIIG, SHORY & HARMDHM, Law STAuonens

FOATLANG, MAMIE

CACE
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! Graptee assumes and agrees o pay.

Ho. 108 ‘ﬁ

Knomw ALl #Men by these Hreaseuts,

GOREY, beth of

That  we, WILLIZM C. GOXEY and SUZANNE E.
Stats of Maine

Portland in the County of Cumberland and

in comsidsratien of ore Dollar {$1.00) and other valuable
considerations

pald by MAINE MEDTCAL CENTER, & corporation organized and
existing under the laws of Maine and logated at Portland, County &f
Cumbariand and State of Maine

the receipt wherec? we do hereby azcknowledges, de¢ hereby gime, graui,

Trgutn, zell amd rommeg, unto the said  Maine Medical Center,

its successors Bewizs and Assigrns forever, |

the following descridbed property:

2 certain lot or parcel of laznd with the buildings therson situsted
on the southeasterly side of Ellsworth Street in said Portland,County
of Cumberland and State of Maine, hounded and described as follows:

&
Beginning at the northeasterly corner of z lot of land on Bramhall's
Hill which Jobn B. Brown sold te cne Tuttle:; thence northeasterly on
said Ellsworth Street fority (40} feet; thence southeasteriy about
seventy-four (74) feet te land formerly of Davis; thence southwesterl
by said Davis's land to land formerly of said Tuttle Zorty (40) feet:
thence northwesterly o said BEllsworth Street, the bounds hegun at,
seventy~four (74) feet.

Being the same premises conveved to William €. Gokey and Suzanne Z.
Gokey by Thelms 2. Barter, by deed dated June 18, 1968, recorded

i
Cunberland County Registrv of Deeds in Book 3045, rags 1B7.
This convevance is made subiect to taxes Zfor the year 1369 which the

¥

ERuy
BRIy 2

"

i

|

e Py P




@H 1}811’2 auh tn i;n{h the arforegrented and bargesined premises,

with gll privileges znd appurtenances thereo? to the said

Maine Medical Center, its successors

Wiy and Assigns, o its end their uss snd behool

forever.

its successors
Amd we ao rouensttf vith the said Grantes ekacioms:
and Assigns, that we are lawfully seized In Tee o the precisss;

that thevy are free of &ll insamdbrancsss

tnat  we kave good right te sell and convey the same 1o the said
Grantes <o nold as afcereszid; amd that we apnd our Heirs, shall
gnd will Werrznt xxd Befrmp tne same teo the said Grentee

its successors
Hpiwz and &ssigoms Lorever, agaipst the layful claims and demands

a2 8ll persons.



H

In Hittuess Hhereof, we the sald  willjiam C. Gokey

znd Suzanne E. Gekay, being husbhband and wife

X IXprEMiTey, hHave hereumto set our  hands and seal s this

. P
L

day of august in the wyear of our LeTd
sne thousand nine hundred and sixty-nine.

Sigredl, Sraled ard Belipersd
o in preseuce of

pt o BT e S e T

i
&
Stnte of Matne, }
Curberland = august 7/, 1869
Personally atpearsd the sbove named
Willian C. Gokey
end ackmowledged the above inatrument to be his free act and
doad,
m Before me, - ~ //"
U5 11 1889 e T T
BEGISTIY OF oEiTs. :ULE?MU COTITY, HATTE Justice of the Psace
Rocaivai zv o T.0 =3 CH. and recordsd in /
s ¥ = -y i PR
BOOK ~J ¢ F 7 pagE oL W /ng,.,j i Z’-—Aﬂ Tagrguar

4
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Warranty Deen.

EROM

Lo Ll am C. Gokey.eb o alo
T0

Maine Medical Center

DATRE........... Mgl i, 1269,

Stute of Maite,
e, 12 ey 0f Beehn

_?S,eﬁ_/z.;ﬁﬂduﬁmww, 13,

i

P : TS ' SRUURONE T 2 ¥

recorded in wacruuann

Avrrar: .

SO UR U UTTUTUTRTRUTOUUPUOTUPRORTRPT L3 1:1 £1 1:1 3

FROM THE OFFICE OF
Verrill Dana pPhilbrick Whitehouge
& Putnam
57 Bxchange Streetl

portland, Maine

No. 108, NOBRRTS OFFICH HUPELY COMPANTY
Porflrnd, Maina

PR
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o all Men by these Fresents,

Q.'rb'cli I, Tenry Z. Grant of Forvland, im the Coundy of Cuzberlsand ani 3tate

in considaration of one dollar and oifher waluable consideration

g uwzder
the lams of the State of Maine asd losated at seid Poriliand,
the receipt wahersst I de hearsby acknowledgs, de nareby

sioe, grant, bmrmehr, sl zolt commem, unto the said

¥aine Medical Cecter, its Succaessors

a certain lot or parcel of land with the W
Detwesn Irazhall and Arsepel 3ureets in said Por
Forzmerly velersirg o Soghia T. sones, and mor
zeseribed as follows:
Zegioning om Yhe portierly side lizme of seid Erampall Strest, av the seutie
wesSerly corzer of said Jomest land; thence westerly by said Zrampall Strsex,
twenty~five (25) feet to a stalm axd from bhese Hwo poinks swifending mortherly
sdloimins said Jopmes laxd, keeping the widik of wwemty-SivTe (285 feet, to
Arsenal Street.

Ixcerting and reserving however, 2 certaliy lot o parcel of land with the
uildings thereon cub of the aloreseid mroperty, a conveyance by Vesiprom
Boalty Company to Mawd L. and Janice M. Fillstury by deed deved Jsmuvary 23, 1848
and recorded in Cumberland fourty Reghsiry of Deeds in Saok 1803, Page 444, o
which reference mey be had.

Heaning and intending to comvey 2 sarcel of land at the resar of 28

Bramball Strest, which peresl of land is approximstely 267'x25! and comtains
zarsge Thereeom.

i1l

Seing the same premises comveyed to me oy Weshoroem Realdy Compary by their

warramty deed dated April 11, 1481 azd recorded iz salé Hegishtry of Deeds in
Zock 2040, Fage 182,



Crn Fave and o Eold the aforegranted and bergeined rremises

with 81l the privileges aud sppurtenznses thsrsof, to the said

Lsime Medical Cexter, its Suceessers

BeiwPd and assigns, to  its  and their use and behoof Pforover.

. Surcesscrs
Amd 1 do COVERANT with the szid Granmise A

:
, its ok

gné assigns,that - am lawfully seiged in fee of ithe premises,

that they are free of azll izcumbrances;

that I  have good right to sell and comvey the same to the sald

Zragtes +to held as aforesaid; and that I end W hairs shall

and will WARRANT AND DEFEND the same to ths said CGrantes its
Suecessers A . .
medms and assigons forever, against ths lawvdul cleims and demands

of all persons.



In Wneszs BWhereof, -, the said

and ¥, Fiadys Z. Zrany

vife of the said
Zenry ¥. Grant
joeining in this deed as Granter , and relinguishing and conveving

my Tight by descent and zll other rights in the above descrlbed

premises, have hereunto set sur hands ané seals this 4‘/

day of %@ZJ_‘ in tne vear of our Lord cme t‘*cusand uizna
hondred and Ilfwy-three.

Bimed, Sealeh o Belivessd

N N Ay S

UL\..aC;.j’\ C%:[ -/’ e

Stte of Maine, }ax. ‘ %/ 1953 .
Cupberland, s A

Peracnally sppearsd the zbove named
EENRY E. CRANT

*
and acknovledged the above insiru-

men*t 4¢ be hiz free act and deed.

Bafora me;, \WE \‘:5 &.3\__,
PSS B T PR e .

¥otary Public
<My Commission Zxplres June 2% [958
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MORTGAGE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that MAINE MEDICAL CENTER, a
corperation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Maine, having its prinecipal place of business at 22 Bramhall Street,
in Portland, County of Cumberland, State of Maine (hereinafter
referred to as the Grantor), for and In consideration of the sum
of CNE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED NINETY-NINE THEQUSAND FIVE HUNDRED
SIXTY-NINE ($1,799,569) DOLLARS, paid by MAINE SAVINGS BANK, a
hanking ccrporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Maine, having its principal office at Cne Maine Savings
Plaza, in the said Portland, County of Cumberland and State of
laine (hereinafter called the Grantee), the receipt of which is
kereby acknowledged, does give, grant, vargain, sell, and convey
unto the sald Grantee, its successors and assigns, forever,. the
following~described premises:

A& certain lot or parcel of land with the bulldings and
improvements thereon situated at and near Gilman 3treet,
Congress Street, Charles Street, Brackett Street,

Bramhall Street and the Western Promenade, in the City

of Portland, County of Cumberland and 3State of Maine,

moye particularly described in Schedule A attached hereto,
which Schedule A 15 hereby made a part of this Mortgage
and Security Agreesment by reference thereto.

Also conveyling and granting hereby as part of the realty and
in addition to said realty and as property mortgaged hereunder, all
-of the following articles now or hersafter owned or acquired by
Grantor, or in which 1t may now or hereafter acguire an interest,
and now or hereafter located on the above-described premises or used
therewith as follows: All machinery, equipment, furnishings,
furniture, fixtures, chattels and articles of tangible personal
property., Including, without limitation, &1l hospital and medical
diggnostic, treatment and convalescent eculipnent, machinery and
supplies, all beds and bedding, all food service and cafeteria
eguipment, machinery and suppiies, all other machinery, equipment
and chattels used or usable in the operation of 2 hospital aud full
service medical center, furnaces, boilers, oil burner, refrigeration,
gir conditioning and sprinkler systems, awnings, scresns, window
shades, motors, dynamos, incinerators, plants and shrubbery, whether
now owned or hereafter from time to time acquired by the Grantor,
cogether with all substitutions, replacements, additions, attach~
ments, accessories, accretions thereto or thereof, now or in the
future, situated or located on, or used or usable in connection with
the maintenance and/or operation of hospital and medlical center now
constructed and any other faecillities to be constructed on the premises
described in said Schedule A attached herete. If the lien of this
mortgages on any fixtures or personal property be subject to a lease
agreement, conditional sale agreement or chattel mortgage covering
such property, then in the event of any default hersunder all the
rights, title and interest of the Grantor in and to any and all
deposits made thereon or therefor are hereby assigned to the Grantee,
together with fthe benefit of any payments now ¢r hereafter made
thereon. There are 2lso transferrsd, set over and assigned by
Grantor te Grantee, its successors and assigns, hereby all leases
and use agreements of machinery, eguipment and other personal
property of Grantor in the categories hereinabove set forth, undesr
which Grantor iz the lessee of, or entitled fo use, such items, and
Gtrantor agrees to execute and delliver to Grantee specific separate
gssignments o Grantee of such leases and agreements when rsquested
by Grantee; and nothing herein shall obligate Grantee t¢ perform any
obligations of Grantor under such leases, or agreements, unless it so
cheooses, which obligations Granter hereby covenants and agrees to
well angd punctually perform.
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s Purther securdty for paymsnt of the indebtedness and perform—
ance of the obllgaticns, covenants znd agreements secured hereby,
Grantor hereby transfers, sets over and assigns to Grantes:

a. All rents, profits, revenues, royazlties, bonuses, rights
and benefits under any and all leases or tenancies now existinag or
hereaflter c¢reated of the premises or any part thereof, wilth tne
right tc receive and apply the same to sald indebtedness, and
Grantee may demand, sue Tor and recover such payments, but shall
ot be requlred to do s0; provided, however, that so lonz as Grantor
is not in defsult hersunder, the right to receive and retain such
rents, issues and profits is reserved to Grantor. To carry cut the
foregoing, Grantor agrees (1) fo execute and deliver to Grantes
such condltional assignments of leases and rents applicable to the
nortgaged premises as the Grantee may from time to time request
whtle this mortgage and the debt secured hepeby are outstanding,
and further (2) not to cdncel, azccept a surrender of, reduse the
rentals under, anticipate any rentals under, or medify any such
leases or tenancies, or consent to an assignment or subletting
thereof, in whole or in part, without Grantee's written consent.
Nothing herein shall cbligate the Grantee to perform the duties
of the Grantor as landlord or lessor under any such leases or
venancies, which duties Grantor hereby covenants and agrees to
well and punctually perform.

b. ALl judgments, awards of damages and settleaments hereafter
made as a result or In lieu of any taking of the premises or any
intersest thereon oy part thereof under the power of eminent domain,
or for any damage {whether caused by such taking or otherwise) to
the premises or the lmprovements thereon or any part thereol, in-
cluding any award for change of grade of streets. Grantee may apply
all such sums or any part thereof so received on the indebtedness
secured hereby in such maniner as it elects or, at its option, the
entire amount or any part therecf s¢ received may be released.
Grantor hereby irrevocably authorizes and appoints Grantee its
atterney-in~fact to collect and receive any such judgments, awards,
and settlements from the authoritiss or sntities making the same,
to appear in any proceeding therefor, to give recelpts and acquittances
therefor, and to apply the same to payment on account of the dedt
secured hereby, whether then matured or not; and the Grantor will
gxecute and deliver to the Grantee on demand such assignments and
other instruments as the Grantee¢ may reguire for said purposes and
will reimburse the Grantee for its costs {including reasonable
counsel fees) in the collection of such judgments and settlements.

Receipt of rents, awards, and any other moneys or svidences.
therecf, pursuant to the provisicns o¢f the foregoeing paragraphs a.
and b. and any dispesition of the same by (rantee shall not constliute
a waiver of the right of foreclosurse by Grantee in the event of
default or failure of performance by Grantor of any covenant or
agreement contained herein or any nofte secured hereby.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforegranted and bargained premises,
with all the privileges and appurtenances thereof, te Grantee, its
successors and assigns, to 1ts and their use and behool forever,
PROVIDED NEVERTHELESS, that if CGrantor pays teo Grantee the sum of
ONE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED NINETY-NINE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY-
NINE (3$1,799,569.00) DOLLARS, with interest and other charges, as
applicable, in accordance with all the terms and conditicns of a
sertain Mortgage Note of even date signed and given by Grantor
to Grantee, and until such payment performs all of Grantor's
obligations, covenants and agreemeénts contained herein and contained
in said promissory note, then this deed, as alse said certain

romissory note, shall be voild, otherwise shall remain in Tull force.
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Grantor covenants and agrees with Grantse as follows:

1. Phat Grantor is lawfully selzed of an indefeasible estate
in fee simple, free from epcumbrances, except 4s may have been
specifically noted herein, or ia Scnedule 4 attached hereta, and
has good right and power to convey the premises to Grantee tu hold
as aforesaid, and thar fGrantor shall and will Warrant and Defend
the same to Grantee forever agalinst the claims and demands of all
persons, exespt as aloresszid.

2. That Grantor shall pay all sums secursad hereby when due.

3. That Grantor will not permlt or suffer the use of any of

the mortgzged property for any purposes cother than hospital or
medical center purposes.

4. That the Loan Guaranty Agreement between the Grantor and
the Secretary of Health, Education,and Welfare, which is being
erxecuted simulitanecusly herewith, is incorporated herein and made
2 part of this mortgage.

5. That upon default hereunder Grantee shall be entitled, in
addition to any other rights given by this Agreement or by law, to
the appointment of a recelver by any court having jurisdiction,
without notlce, to take possession and protect the property
described herein and operate same and collect the rents profits,
ang income therefrom.

6. That the Grantor will keep the building and improvements
now existing or hereafter erected on the mortgaged property insured
against loss by fire and such other hazards, casualties, and con-
tingencies, as may be stipulated by the 3Secretary of Health,
Education, and Welfare upon the guarantee of the Note and other
hazards, all as may be reguired from time to time by the Grantee,
znd all such insurance shall be evidenced by standard fire and extended
coverage insurance pclicy or policies, in amounts not less than
necessary to comply with the applicable Coingurance Clause percentage,
but in no event shall the amounts of coverage be less than eighty
per centum {80%) of thé insurable value and in no event less than
the unpzid balance of the debt secured hereby, and in default thereofl
the Grantee shall have the right to obtain such insurance at the cost
of Grantor, such cost to be secured hereby. Such policles shall be
endorsed with standard mortgagee clause with loss payable :to the
grantee and the Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare, as their
interests may appear, and shall be deposited with the Grantee; and
that if the premises mortgaged hereby, ¢r any part therecf, shall be
damaged by Tire or other hazard against which insurance is held as
hereinabove provided, the amounts pald by any Insurance company in
pursuance of the contract of insurance to the extent of the indebted-
ness then remaining unpaid, shall be paid to the Grantee and, at the
option of Grantee and the 3ecretary of Health, Education, and Welfare,
may be applied t¢ the debt or released for the repairing or rebuilding
¢f the premises.

7. That at the reguest of Grantor with consent of Grantes, or
at the option of Grantee, the principal balance secursed hereby may
be reamortized on terms acceptable To the Secretary of Health,
Bduecation, and Welfare if a partial prepayment results from an
eminent domain or condemnation award or from a fire or casualty
insurance payment where there is a resulting loss of project income.

8. That in order morse fully to protect the security of this
Mortgage, together with, and in addition to, such payments of interest,
or of principal and interest, Grantor will pay te the (Grantee, on the
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dates each month that such payments are dug, until the Note is fully

pald, the following sums:
{a) A sum equal to the ground rents, if any, next due, plus
the premiuwms that will next become due and payable on
policies of fire and other property insurance coveriang
the premises covered hereby, plus water rates, tazes and
assessments next due on the premises coversd hereby {(all
as estimated by the Grantee) less all sums already paid
therefor divided by the number of months to elapse before
one month prior to the date when such ground rents,
premiums, water rates, taxes and assessments will become
delinguent, such sums t0 e held by Grantee in escrow to
pay sald ground rents, premiums, water rates, taxes, and
specilal assessments; no interest shall be due on sums so
held;

(b} All payments menticned in the preceding subsection of this
paragraph and all payments to be made under the Note secured
hereby shall be added together and the aggregate amount
thereol shall be paid eazch {month} in a single payment &o
be applied by Grantee tc the following items in the order
set forth:

(I} ground rents, taxes, speclal assessments, water
rates, fire and other property ipsurance premiunms;

{11} dnterest on ths Hote secursd hereby;
(IIT) amortization of the principal of said Note;

9, In the event of Grantor's failure to pay any sums provided
for in this Mortgage, the CGrantee, at its opticn, may pay the same.
Any excess funds accumulated under (a) of the precedling paragraph
remzining after payment of the items therein mentioned, ghall te
credited to subsequent periodic payments of the same nature requlred
thereunder; but 1f any such items shall excsed the estimafe thersfor,
or if the Grantor shall [zil to pay any other governmental or
nwnicipal charge, the Grantor shall forthwith make good the deficlency
or pay the charge before the same become delinguent or subject to
interest or penalties and in default thereof the Grantee may pay the
same. All sums paid by the Grantese shall bhe added to the principal
¢f the debt secured hereby and shall bear interest from the date of
payment &t the rate specified in the Note and shall be due and
payable on demand. II the property is sold under foreclosure or is
otherwise szcguired by the Grantee after defanlt, any remalning balance
of the ascumulations under {a) of the preceding paragraph shall be
eredited to the principal of the Mortgage as of the date of the
commencement of foreclosure procesdings or as of the date the property
is otherwise acquired.

10. That Grantor will keep the premises above conveyed in geood
crder and condition and will not commit or permit any waste thereofl,
reasonable wear and tear sxcepted, and in the event of the failurs
of the Grantor to keep the bulldings on said premises and those to be
srected on said premises, or improvements thereson, in good repair,
the Grantee may make such repairs &s in its discretion 1t may deem
necessary for the proper preservation thereof, and any sums paid for
such repairs shall bear interest from the date of payment at the
rate specified in the Ncte, shall be due apnd payable on demand and
shall be fully secured by this Mortgage.-

11, That CGrantor will not wvoluntarily create, permit or suffer
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10 be created against the property subject to this Mortgage any lien
or liens inferior or supserior to the ilen of this Mortgage and
further that it will keep and malntain the same free from the olzim
of all persons suppiying labor or materials which will snter into
the construction of any and all buildings and improvements now -
belng erected or fo be erected on said premises.

12. That Grantor further covenants and agrees that this mortgsge
shall constitute a security zgreement with respect to any and all
rachinery, equipment, chattels, articles of personal property, and
fixtures described and included in this mortgage, and all adstAens,
accessions, substitutions, and replacements thereto and therefor, and
all of which are nereinafter referred to as the collateral, and

rantor hereby grants and conveys Lo Grantee, its successors and
agssigns, & security interest therein. That upon default of any
term, condition or covenant of this mortgage and acceleration of any
indebtedness hereby secured, the Grantee may, at its discretion,
requlre the Grantor fo assemble the collateral and make it available
fo the Grantee at a place reasonably convenlent to both parties to
be designated by the Grantee. That the Grantee shall give the
Grantor notice, by reglistersd maill, postage prepald, of the time
and place of any public sale or other intended disposition therecf
is t¢ be made by sending notice to the Grantor at least five days
befere the time of the sale or other disposition, which provisions
for notlice the Grantor and Grantee agree are reascnable; provided,
however, that nothing herein shall preciude the Grantee from
proceeding as teo both real and personal property in acceordance
wvith Grantee's rights and remedies in respect of thz real property.
Grantee shall have all cf the remedies of a secursed party under
the Uniform Commercisal Code as now in effect in the State of Maine
and such further remedies as may from time to time hereafter be
provided in Maine for a secured party. Crantor agrees that all
rights of Grantee as to said collateral and as to said real estate,
and rights and intersests appurtenant therefc, may be exercised
together or separately and further agrees that in exerecising its
power of sale as to saild collateral and as to said real estate, and
rlghts and interest appurtenant thergto, the Grazntee may sell the
collateral or any part thereof either separately from or together
with the saild real estate, rights and interests appurtenant thereto,
or any part thereof, all as the Grantee may in its discretion elac+

13. That Grantor shall maintazin full and correct books and
records showing in detail the earnings and expenses of the mortgaged
premises; will permit the Grantee¢ and i1ts representatives to sxamine
sald books and records and all supporting vouchers and data any time
and from time to time upon request by the Grantee at the mortgaged
premises or at such other place in the County in which the mortgaged
premises are located as such books and records are customarily kept;
and Grantor hereby agrees to furnish $o Grantee within one hundred
twenty {12Q) days after the clcse of each fiscal year an audited
firanclal statement of the operation of the premises reflecting
income (inecluding sources thereof) and expenses, such statement to
be prepared by a certified or other competent accountant satisfactory to
the Grantee.

14, That Grantor within seven {7) days upon reguest in person or
within ten (10} days upon request by mail shall furnish a duly
acknowledged written statement seftting forth the amcunt of the debt
secured by thils mortgage, and stating either that no offsets or
defenses exist against the mortgage debt, or, if such offsets or
defenses are alleged tc exist, the nature thereofl.

15. That in case of foreclosure of this HMortgage, and as often
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as any procssadings shall be taken to feoraclose the same, the Grantor
will pay to the Grantee a reasonable attorney's fee, and the same
shall be a further charge and lien upon the said premises.

16. That no sale of the premises hereby mortgaged and no
Torebearance on the part ¢f the Grantee, and no extention of the
time for the payments of the debt hersby secured given by the
Grantee, shall operate to release, discharge, modify, change, or

affect the original Iiability of the Grantor nerein elther in whole
or in part.

17. That in the event of any default, as herein described,
this mortgage may be foreclossd 1n any manner prescribed or permitted
by law, appraisement bHelng hereby waived; and out of all the monies
ardising from a sale te retain the amount then due or to become due
aecording to the conditions of this instrument together with the
costs and charges of making such sale, and the overplus, if any
there be, shall be paid by the party or parties making such sale
te the Grantor, 1ts successors and assigns.

18. That no waiver of any covenant herein or of the Note
secured hersbhy shall at any time thereafter be held te be a waiver
of the terms hereof or of the Nete secured hereby.

12. That receipt and disposition of rents, income of the
premises, insurance proceeds, eminent domain awards, or any other
sums under the provisions of the mortgage, the note, or other loan
documentatieon by Grantee shall not be & waiver or relsase of any
rights of the Grantee, inciuding but not limited to, the right
of foreclosure or acceleration of the note, whether such receipt
or dispeosition shall be before or after exsrcise of any such rights.

20. That Grantee hereof, its successors and assigns, shall
nave The Statutory Power of Sale in addition to all other rights
of & Mortgagee allowed by law and this mortgage in case of default
in any term or ceondition contained or referred to herein.

21. That it is an additional condition of this Mortgage and
Security Agreement for breach of which foreclosure may be claimed
and for breach of which all indebtedness secured hereby may be
declared dus and payvable at once, that title to The within described
mortgaged premises shall not pass be deed, mortgage or other means,
or operation of law, from Grantor, or from any subseguent title
nolder, eitheyr voluntarily or inveluntarily. This condition shall
continue until a1l indebtedness and cbligations secured hereby are
satisfied, and permission given, or electicn not to foreclose or
aecelerate sald indebiedness by Grantes, i1ts successors or assigns,
as £0 any one such transfer, shall not constitute a waiver of any
rights of Grantee, 1ts sugcessors or assigns, as to any subseguent
such transfer of title as to which this condition shall remain in
full force and effect. The term title as used herein shall mean the
estate of the Grantor subject to the lien of this mortgage.

22. This Mortgage and Security Agreement is expressly made
subject and inferior to a Mortgage (FHA Porm #125~-B) and to Security
Agreement Doth of even date herewith executed and delivered by
Jrantor herein to Grantee hereln encumbering the real and perscnal
property herein described and securing a Mortgage Note (FHA Form
£125-d) of even date herewith in the amount of $3,245,431.00, all
of which documents are hereinafter collesctively called the FHA
Mortgage. Grantor herein shall perform, or cause Lo be perlormed,
when due all obligations of the mortgagor " under the terms
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&nd provisicns of the FHA Mortgage, specifically including prompt
payment when due of all indsbtedness secured and evidenesd thersby.
Should Grantor herein fall to comply with dts obligatins set forth

in this paragraph 22, such fallure shall constibtute a default under
the terms and provisions of thils Mortgage and Security Agreement and,
in gddition to any other rights which the Grantee may have hereunder
and by operaticn of law, the Gransee herein shall have the right, but
not tne obligation, to make all payments and to do all trnings ©o
render s2ild FHA Mortgage current, and 21l advances made for such
purpase, including intverest paid thereon at the rate specified in
gald FHA Mortgage Note, shall be payable by Grantoer herein to Grantee
nereln upon demand by Grantee herein and, to the extent permitted by
law, 2l)l such advances shall be secursd by the lien of fthis Mortgage
and Security Agreement.

23. That in the event of default in making any payment provided
for herein or in the Note secured hereby, or in the event of a bhreach
of any other stipulaticn, agreement, condition or covenant of this
mortgage, incliuding any transfer of title to the mortgaged premises
without permission of Grantee as set forth in paragraph 21 hereof,
and if such defszult or breach i1s not cursd prior to the expiration
of 90 days after the Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare,
aforessid, recelves notification from the holder of the loan of such
default or breach then in any such event the whole principal sum of
said Note shall, at the option of the Grantee, its successors and
.assigns, as such holder, be deemed ¢o¢ have become lmmediately due,
and the same with interest therecon and with all other costs and
charges, shall thereupon be collectible by foreclosure of this
mortgage; provided, however, such notice to sald Secretary of Health,
Education, and Welfare and such 90 day period shall not be necessary
should the guaranty of this mortgage indebtedness be terminated or
become vold pursuant to i1ts terms and Grantee receives written notice
therecof from said Secretary.

The covenants herein contazined shall bind, and the venefits and
sdvantages shall inure to, the respective successors and assigns of
the partles hereto and to the extent permitted by law shall bind any
future owner of the mortgaged premises or any part therecf. Whenever
used, the singular number shall ineclude the plural and the plural the
singular, and the use of any gender shall include all genders.

IH WITNESS WHEREQF, the sald Grantor haz caused these presents
t0 be signed in its name by JACK R. DYSON, its Treasurer, and its
corporate seal to De hereunto alfixsd thls l4th day of February, 1975.

Signed, Sealed and Delivered MAINE MEDICAL CENTER, a Maine
in the Presencs of: coprporation
//)

Sy L /1 /; L
f;;iﬁ;ff-ﬁfé ga BY ./ /Z Ao s

/;;zs Treasurer &/ .
: (CORPORATE SEAL)
STATE OF MAINE

COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND, ss. . February 14, 1975

Then personally appeared the above-named Jack R. Dyson as
Treasurer of Maine Medical Center, and acknowledged the foregoing
instrument to be his free act and deed in his said capacity and the

free act and deed of sald corporation.

Before me.

Svretes e Motary Publlc

BY TOMWISSION BXeiRes R ' -
MAY 2, 1520 : :



SCHEDULE A

GRANTOR: MAINE LEDICAL CENTER

L)

GRANTEE: MAINE SAVINGS BANK

DAT

17

February 14, 1975

. A certain lot or parcel of land together with the buildings

and improvements therean, located in the City of Portland, County

of Cumberland and State of Maine, bounded and described as follows::
Beginning at a point at the intersection of the southeasterly side |
of Congress Street and the easterly side of Gillman Street, said a
point being marked by an iron pin; thence North 79° L' Bast, four -
hundred twenty and seventy-nine hundredths {(420.79) feet tc a point
marked by an iron; thence .Scuth 18° 24' Bast by land now or formerly .
of Brophy, one hundred forty-eight and eighty-five hundredihs .
-(148.85) feet, more or less, td an iron; thence North 72° 017 East’
by said.Brophy land, seventy-four and eight tenths (74.8) feet,-
more or less, to Charles Streel; thence by Charles Streset, South
18° 247 East, three hundred fifty-seven and twenty-three hundredths |
(357.23) feet to a point; thence South 18° 043’ East, ninety-eight .
and eightyhundredths {98.80) feet to a point on‘the norihwesterly
terminus of Brackett Street; thence South 62° 24' West by Brackett
Street, thirty-eight and fifty-seven (38.57) feet to a point; .
thence Scuth 33° 29' East by said Brackett Street, sixiy and thiriiy-
two hundredths (50.32) feet to a point; thence South 57° 213! East

by said Brackett Street, fifty and eighteen hundredths (50.18) feet
to & point and land now or formerly of Gemma A. McKenzie et al; ‘
thence Soubth 61° 08%' West by said McRenzie land, forty-two and
ninety-six hundredths (42.95) feet to a point; thence South 27° 36!
East by said McKenzie land, sixty-two and twenity-eight hundredths
(62:28) feet, more or less, to the northerly side of Bramhall Street;
thence Scuth 61° 0017 West by said Bramhall Street, five hundred nine
and fifty-eight hundredihs (509‘58} feet to a point in the Western
Promenade; thence North 50° 4gf 20" West, one hundred fifty-one and
thirty-nine hundredths (15L1.39) feet toc a point on the southeasterly -
1ine of Arsenal Street; thence North £2° 247 Fast by Arsenal Street,
Fifty (50) feet te a point at the sasterly terminus of Arsepal '
Street; thence North 27° 36' West by said Arsenal Street and by lend
conveyed by the Maine Medical Center to the City of Portland by deed
dated August 4, 1972, and recorded in Cumberland County Regisiry of
Deeds in Book 3278, Page 212, one hundred (100} feet to = point;
thence South 85° 56 West by said City of Portland land, ninety-four
and two hundredths (Q4.02) feet, more or less, to Gilmen Street; thenc
Narth OL° CULY West by said Gilmen Street, six hundred ninety-five and
twenty-five hundredths {695.25) feet, more .or less, to said Congress .
Street and the point of beginning. :

Being the same premises -shown on & plan éntitled "Plan of
Property in Portland, Maine made for Maine Medical Centexm®, H.I. &
E.C. Jordan-Surveyors, dated May 31, 1966 and updated and certified
on June 13, 1666, July 7, 1966, October 26, 1872, January 24, 1375
and February 12, 1875.
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such default or breach then in any such event the entire unpaid
principal balance of This mortgage note plus accerued interest, at
the opbtion of the holder nersof shall become immediately due znd
payahle; provided, however, such notice to said Secretary and such
30 day pericd shaell not be necessary should the guaranty of this
mortgage note be terminated or become voild pursuant to its Ternms
and payee receives written notice thereof from said Secretary.

The payments due hersunder shall be made to Malne Savings Bank
at its office at Cne Mzine Savings Plaza, Portland, Maine 4111,
unless another holder or address be given in writlng to the pav “ties
liazble herefor.

A1l parties to this mortgage note, whether principal, surety,
guarantor, or endorser, hereby walve presentment for payment,
demand, protest, notice of protest, and notice of dishenor.

Signed and Sealed tﬁe day and year Tirst above writien.

WITHESS - fé?r MAINE MEDICAL CENTER, a Maine
ﬁ:;;%;P%@Q{j £§?’ l¢4/§§;gL“ corporation
“ /] 7 \

/o 7 o, s
J/“’“’ j w// il BY e A A o

‘ its Treasurer /
v

v ( CORPORATE SEAL)

THIS I3 TO CERTIFY that this is the Note described in and
secured by said Mortgage and Security Agrzement of even date herewith
and in the samsg priqclpal amount as herein stated and secured by
real estate and parsonal property situated in the City of Pertland,

Cumberland County, Maine.
/
Dated: PFebruasry 14, LS75 ) ; ‘
ey 2 LU oaf
LT o Ll VT

Neotary Public

BT COMMISSION EXPIRST
T RAAY, 2, 1980
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MORTGAGE NOTE

$1,799,56%.00 Portland, Maine

February 1%, 1675

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, MAINE MEDICAL CENTER, a
Maine corporation located in the Clty of Portland, County of
Cumberland and State of Maine, promises To pay To MAINE SAVINGS
BANX, a iaine banking corporation, or order, at its principal place
of business at Cne Maine Savings Plaza in the said City of Fortland,
County of Cumberland and 3tate of Maine, the principal sum of ONE
MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED NINETY-NINE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY-NINE
{$1,799,569.00) DOLLARS, with interest from date at the rate of
seven per centum [7%) per annum on the unpaid balance thereof until
paid; which principal and interest shall be paid as follows:'
Interest only at said rate shall be paid on the first day of March,
1975; thereafter commencing on the first day of April, 1875, monthly
installiments of interest and principal shall be paid in the sum of
Twelve Thousand Seven Hundred Eighteen and 38/100ths {($12,718.98)
Dollars each; such payments shall continue to be made monthly
thereafter upon the first day of each succeeding month until the
entire indebtedness has been paid in full; in any svent, the balance
of prinecipal, if any, remaining unpaid, plus accrued interest at
sald rate, shall be paid on March 1, 2000. Said monthly install-
ments of interest and principal shall be applied first to interest
at said rate per annum upén the prineipal sum, or so much therescf as

shall from time to time remain unpaid, and the balance thersof shall
be applied t¢ principal.

In the event any iInstallment, c¢r part of any installment, of
prineipal or interest becomes delinguent for mere than 15 days,
there shaell bhe due, at the eption of the holder hereol, an additional
sum equal to two cents ($.02) for each dollar ($1.00) of each
instaillment so delinguent; provided, nevertheless, thac as long as
this mortgage note shall be guaranteed by the Secretary of the
Tepartment of Health, BEducation, and Welfare the amount of the
monthly payment upon which such dellnguency charge may be impossd
shall be limited to the amount actually to be paid by the maker
hereof and shall not 1lnclude for such purpose any amcunt payable
as an interest subsidy by sald Secretary.

This note is secured by Moprtgage and Security Agreement upon
real estate and personal property situated In the City of Portland,
Cumberland County, State of Maine.

Privilege is reserved to pay the debi in whole or in an amount
equal to cone or more monthly payments on principal next due, on thes
first day of any month prior to maturity upon at least thirty (30)
days' prior written notlice to the holder.

No default shall exist by reascn of nonpayment of any reguired
installment of principal so long as the amount of optional additional
prepayments of principal already made pursuant to the privilege of
prepayment set forth in this mortgage note equals or sxceeds the
amount of such reguired installment of principal.

In the event of default in the making of any payment provided
for herein, inecluding any delinguency charge, or in the event of a
breach of any agreement, condition or covenant of the said Mortgage
and Security Agreement given by the makér hereof to Maine Savings
Bank, and i1f such default or breach is not cured pricr to the
expiration of 90 days after the Secretary ¢f Health, Education, and
Yelfare, aforesaid, receives notification from the holder hereol of

S Page 1 of 2

3
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Kooy ALl &en by Fhese Hresents, 5

g

Ehat we, Eenry H. Grant and Gladvs H. Grant, both of Portland in
the County of Cuxberland and State of Maine,

in sousideration of one {($1.00) dellar and other valuabls gonsicdasra-
tions

paid vy Maine Medicgal Center, a corpeoration duly organized and 1

axisting under the laws of the State of Maine and located 2t sal
Pertiand,

fl

the receipt whereof we do heredby asknoviedge, do hsredy oime. gramt,

Brmiz, sl ol rmory  umto the sald  Maine Medical Center, its successcors

YEEXE and pesigms forwver, a g¢artain leot or paresl of land with the
buildings thereon, situated in Portland in the County of Curberland
and State of Maine, on the northwesterly side of RBramhall Strzet,
bounded and described as Zollows:

cgmmencgng at the southwesterly corner of land, now or forme
I of Jemes Miller and Charlotte Johnson on Bramhall Street: thence
: nerthwesterly by land-of s2id James Miller and Charlotte Johnsaon,
f sixty (80) feet to land formerly of William J. Xnowlton; thence
i southwestarly along said Knowlton land, parallel with said street,
T fifpy-five (53) feet'to a2 cormer of land formerly of William J.
i Knowlton; thence parzllel with first menticned Line siwty (80) feet,
i more ¢r less, to said street; thence northeasterly by said street
fifey-five {55) Ffeet to the placs of begianing.

L]

)
Uy

Being the same premises conveyed teo us by Russell Fanping ow—
deed recorded in CQumberland County Registry of Deeds in Bock 1833,
Page 415, and are conveyved subiect 2o the conditions contained in
said deed. = DI

The Grantee herein, as part of the consideration hereof, assuimes
and agrees to payv taxes Zor the taxzble vear 1861,

2




8o [y wrd tw bl the aforegranted and bargeined premises with Bl the
privileges and appurtenances thereof, to the sald

Mzine Medical Center, its successors

Searma and sssigns, te its end thelr use and bshoof Lorsver.

its suCccessors
Aah we do  rovenmmt with the ssid Grantee |, [/ soedoe and eesigns,

that we are levfully seized in fee of ihs premises, that thevy are

free of 2ll incumbrences:



that we havs good right to sell and convey the zame %o the said !
Grantas te hold as aforesald; and that we and our hair=

shall azd will Ezrrant und Sefexd the same to the said Grantee |, its

SUCCES30TS i
heteecand gssigns ferever, agaiost the lawful olaips and demapds of

=ll perscns.

In Bitnens Blereef., We  the gaid Henry H. Grant

aud  Gladys H. Grant, beling husband and

¥ife Pt oy e

joining im this deed es Grantor s, and |
rslinguishing and conveying ail right by descent and all cther
rights 1o the above desgribed prewnises, have hereunte set  our

hand s and sesls this 'Dé""‘"‘% O*‘“"—*r day of  July

in the yesar of our liord onms thousand nine hundred and sixty-one.

Stuprek Sewled ot Belimrel
in prosence of

(7 £ Qe g {;ﬁ@;/\z LA

Figte ol Haive, Curberland, HH. July 3/ 1861 .

Porsonally appearsd the above named Henrv . Grant

and acinovladgead the feregeing instrument
ts be his free st and deed. !

Befors =a), i
- ¢/@’7AJ>)F6‘-—-‘L*~ !

—
Justies /of the Poase

REGISTRY OF DEZDS, CUMBERLAND COUNTZ, MAINE Forary-Potile |
Racs_vea a2t 't*: —,--7_/ ‘AJ ¥, and recorfed izm '
BUE_7 g 5 PASE WP lpmlt ffmr Registe:

/ A
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Warranty Heen
FHOM ;
Henry H. Grant, et al !
TO |
Maine Medical Center :
19.61
|
Siate of Malue, ;
“ . - na, Regitey of Doads
“. G 4 106 .
=So“qi_mm“w$ 19.
it iy e My e M, 0d
‘w tecorded 0 Book v FARD e
o Arrese
W RO ORI OO IPOPRS (£t L1 €3 '
FAOM THZ OFPIOK OF
SENSEN & DBALRD !
477 Congress Street
rortland, Maine
..h...”_.i HANTIH, FORTLAKRD, HR.—OFPFiCH FUTHITORS AV QUFFLIRE
' TrevwRITARS, ADDiNG HACHIHES, FILING CAMIMETR, SAFSR, 2TC.
MARTIN'G FOAMI NO. | — ETAHDARD REQISTRY FONM
T —— T A e B it AT = T e e e \tﬂ..]....,.[:.... e T B . -
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Knom ALl Men by these Hresenis,

-Ulral I, DONALD D. McPHEE of Portland in the County of Cumberland
and State of Maine,

in comsideration of One Dollar ($1) and ¢ther valuzble considerstions

‘paid by MAINE MEDICAL CEKTER, a corporation duly organized and ex—
isting under the laws of the State of Maine and located at Partland
in said lounty and State

the receipt whareod I d¢ nereby acknowledgs, do hereby gpiwe, gremt,
dorpzin, sell xmd mmorg, wnto the sald  MATNE MEDRICAL CENTER, its

successers  Befrmerand Asaizne forsver,

the following doscribed propertyr

& certain 1ot or parcsl of land with the bulldings thereon
situated in salid Portland and being the premises conveysd to me
by Hope K, Fletcher by deed dated November 22, 1946 and recorded
in Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 1848, Pape 160, in
which deed sz2id premises ares described as follows:

Beginning at the Northeast corner of Sophia T. Jcnes lot, so-
called, on Arsenal Street; thence Northeasterly on Arsemal Street
£ifey {50} feet to land of sne Raymond; thence Southeasterly by
line of Raymond forty-eight {4&] feet, more or less, te land of one
Haskell; thence Southwesteriy along Iine of said Haskell Iand thir-
teen (13) feet and two (2} inches to a point; thence Northwesterl
parallel to land of said Raywond three (3] feet %o a point; thence
Southwesterly slong the line of seid Haskell Iand thirty-six (36)
feet, more or less, to land of saié Jomes; thence Northwestarly
forty-six (45) feet, more or less to point of beginning,

Also eopveving all my interest in and to said Arsensl Straetg
recently abandened &y the City of Portland. '




R

o heme smi in b

1 ,Hm the afoeregrented =nd bargained premises,

€ith =211

il

privileges and appurtedences therso? to the seid
MAINE MEDICAL CENTER, its successors

By 2nd Assigns, e its end iheir use and dehoof

forevsr.

. its successcors
Amd Ide  rouenantl yitn the seid Granmtee |

1Y
ani Assigns, that T anm lawfulily seized izm fee of

the premisesy -
thet they are Iree of all incumbrances:
that I nave 004 right to sell aud comvey the same to ihe sald,

Grenise to hold as aforesaid; aznd that I

ané will Forram? oud Sxfend the same 1o thse said Srantee |, it

, 2gainst 1he lawful claims and depands



I Bitness Bherend, I the said¢ DONALD D. MePHEE

ené I, Lorraine J. McPhee vifs of the s2i¢ Jonald D. McFPhee

joining in this dsed as Grantor , aund ralinguisning and conveying
oy pights by descent and all other rights in the above
dagorihed premizes, have hmersunte g8t QU nands and ssealsg this
z . N - .
? day of May in the year 07 ocur Lord

ane tnousand mime nundred and fiftythree,

Pigmen, Fraid i Beltmersh
I prrezmer af

Doaa2 ) T e

;223“,; 2 KZ s ﬂgé: ;
.7 :

Fxtr of S,
. Tx -
Cuoh e~ Land, Yay Z 183

Personally appeared the abeve zamed leonald D, MoPhee

and aszinowledged the apove instrument to be his #ree zet apg

deed,

L

e I S

Justice of the Peace

Bafore me,




e R o i i

.

29

Warrauty Teed,

FROM

MATNE. MEDICAL CENTER W
a1 536

Lo May

L.}

Biate nt flalie,

. Gumbertand...n Heghiteg nf Deehn,
eeieed MAY. 9 J953. e,
ah p \ oy w\ ...... M., .\\ st and ‘.

recorded in Book. 2127 .., Page. 380,

Atrratt
.{.mww_..umxa%a

FROM ‘THE OFUICE OF
YERRILL DANA WALKER PHILBRICK
5 WHITEHOUSE.

-

Ho. [08. Rowxars Qrica Suppry CoMrany
Forltand - Mafna - Lanisten

7- 3V
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Koow All #en by these Hrements,

What e,
County of

in comsidsratien of cne dollar (51.00] and other valuabls conmsider-
ations

. e o as ~ . T
. kaIing Megloal nTer [ ekl tion estaklis
paid by baine Medical Cerntver, 2 Corporation estanlished

said Portland

the receipt wheresd e de nmersby =2ckumowledge, do herebdy gt gram,

Fmrpain, 22l ¥ ommem, unto the sald Faine Fedical Canter

SUCCESSOrsS Eeire and Assigns forever,

i
ot
&

<the following degeribed propertys

i certain lot or pareel of land with the buildings therscn situated
on the nertherly side of Brambhall Strest in sald Porvland which

was conveyed to the granters by Wilkelmina M, Mantine, by deed
deted Sepuember 15, I935 and recorded in Cumberland Zounty Reglstry
of Deeds in Book 1478, Page 294 and theréir described as fsllows:
Beginning on the northerly side of 3Bramball 3treet at tie sasterly
cornar of laznd formerly of James Miller; thence rnortheasterly by
Bramhall Street twenty-cne and seven twentieths (21-7/20) feev to

& stake; thente northwesterly about cpne hundred 2leven (L11) feet
To & point in the southerly side of arsenal 3treet; thence souch-
westerly by Arssnal Street twenty-twe and three guartsrs (22-3/4)
feet to sald ¥iller's land; chenmce zoucheasterly by said Hiller!s
land one hundred eleven and four tenths (111-4/10) feet %o the $einv
of beginning. )

Tt e - T
AXEETall ow riERE titie End interest in and to Arsenal Street
Qaiiiitly abandconed by Gthe City of Pornland.

LR —

>




-
Cp haup and to I}Iﬂﬁ the aforegranted amé bargeined wremises,

*ith ell privileges and appurtensnces therss® to the ssid  Maine

Medical Center, its successors

BEEFRE ané Assigms, Lo its and their use znd behos?

forever,

$UCCES50TS
Am wedo FOUPHANE witn the szid Grantee . HEYFE

, its

&
'Y
fea
|17}
1]
.
i
I
o
1
n
ot

we are lawviully seized io fee of the premisesg

that they ars free of all incumbrances:

what WE€ gavse good right to sell and copvey the sazms 1o the said
Gra=tss 1o hold as aforesazid; andé that we and &= Heirs, shell
and will Harrazut gnd Sefrnd the same to the ssid Grazmtes , it

SUCCESECTS
TECES end Assipms JeTever, asgaimst the lawful clzims ané damands

of all persons.



in ‘ﬁgﬁimﬁﬁ Ehgrgnf Vs the said Albert M. Tardif

§ir
]
i
P
by
<l
Ir
[{e]
4
j
i
0.
1
I

TInLors, Leing Zusban

£
23
5]
a5
i
[N
[t

e T T A ST
each

szen $oining in this deed as Grantors, a.nd/ relincuishing and cenveying cur

: respectiverights by descent and all cther rignts in the ahove

deseribed preamises, have kereunto set our hends and sealk this
‘ | /4/<h aay of June . in the vear of our Lerd
ons thousend nizes huzmdred end fiftvy-three.

Ftowed, Froled aud Brltweord
Bt preseror 5f

7

Sumberland June /7, Ig3.

¥ Statr of Hafre, (
{5&.

Parsonally appesrad the above named albert d. Taerdirl
and M. Louise Tardif:
and acincwledgad the ebove instmument to be their free aet and

deed.

| Befere me, 2:‘/ —

Justice of the Peace

|



hetherd 7

/
)

Werranty Been,

FROM

SDALBERE L TARDIE, eb.al
T0

»

........ MAINE. MEDIGAL. GENIER. e

ggcr_;ﬁm_ 1953,

Biate nt %: m_z.

a:z&ﬁ ms 1t gttt 0 Heeha,
Recelved..... g:z * M Mwmm {

at \\ i .. By . \:.. aud

recorded wwmcr:.:.:mu.nw.u.. mv.._mn:.:.mu..ﬁ:: .

FROM THE OFFICE OF
Verrill Dana Walker Philbrick

& Whitehouse

No. 164, Roseets Orrree Sueery ComyAny
Yoriland - KMalns - Losistoa

e
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Krom All fen by these Hresenis,

T@I}'Hf RE, FEED A. PATTERSON and ZLIA E, TEIDDEN Doth of Derry in the Courty of
Rockingham and State of New Hampshire, RURY E. McXENZITE of Eaymend in ssid County
and Stata apd ALZD ¥, PATTERSCN of Portland in the County of Curherland and State
of Yaine )

5 in consideratiza of One dollar ($1.C0) and ciher wainabla consideraticons

I peid by MATNE MEDICAL CENTER, a Corporation orgenized and exdisting under the
i laws of Maine arnd- Zocated ab said Portland,

. the receipt wnerec? == do hereﬁ'gr ackneowladgs, do nersby gime, gramt,

Farpaiz, sl evd copeen, uwmto the sald  Maire Medical Cewber, iis Successors
EHXTE and Assizns forever,

A “the falleowing deseribed property:

A certzin Job or parcel of lard with the tuildings thereon, stiuated In
said Pertland or the northerly side of Brampoall Street and bhounded and degoribed.
3 follows:s '

Bagimming o the northerly side of Hraxhall Street 3t the scutiwesterly
cerner of land formerdy of Frederick k. Carle; thence rumming westeriy by gaid
Braghall Street dwenty-five {25) feet to a giake or poinmt, and from thess two
i points exbending nertherty adjointng said Carle Jand, keeping a width of tweoty—

fiva (25) feek, to Avsenxl Street, being the premises corveyed to Dariel W.
} Fatbersen by ¥aria M. Jese by deed dated Septewber 12, 1927 and recorded in
(| Cuzbarland Counby Registry of Deeds in Boek 1085, Page 228,
1
|
|

; The said Danfel W. Patterson died intesiate on Sepiember 3, 1992 lasaving
g no widow amd a2 hiz go0le heirg-abelzw, the Crautors hersin,

4 ] .
i The Grawtee as part of the considerabion hereol asstmes ard agrees S pay
. the taxes for the tazsils year of 1953,

4 4lsc conveying all our right, $itle and imterest in and to Arsenal Stoset
recently abandoned by the City of Portland, Yaire, -



; On have and g hﬂlh the eforegranted end bargeined prezises,

with 81l privileges and eppurtenances theree? 1o the said

Maine Medical Certber, its Successors and Assigns o

i Feduercmirrioreboms. 10 its an

129

their use and behoef

i Forsver,

_— Suceegsors
Anllwe do COTRUENT witn <re seid Greotee , its / Sk

¥

20t AEsigns, that we e rawlully seized in fee of the prexises:
;f 1hat they ars free of all incumbrances) except as zforesaid,

.

, that W xave good right te =ell and coemvey the same 1o the said
Zremtze to nold as gforeszid] and thet mw  and o Heirs, snelll

, its Successors

oesr= and Assipms feorever, agsizst the lawvdiul clainms and demands
¢2 &ll wersons,



LA o

I Hitness Eherent,
Chryetine I, Pattersen, wife of the s

Elrer W. Mb‘enzia, husband of the szaid
and Bessie I, Patterson,

inimg in this deed as Granioen ,

e

ripbed premises,

day of 1“““ﬁ7

P nine hundred and

Seaieh axd Teltnered
te prraemes =i

Ry i
‘ T A
i R Pt £ Larery
' - Pt 7(’.{_
i : //(//: i W L..\i//t LA
i /_,\,m/"g; // * L .;f./ s
i‘ ! 2 i - . d
L Pl s Ader
‘f ] f s R
: i\_ji.) 4 P, wltid JJ// f(-—-—
| N7
:é 4 N
Stxtr of Kt
| Corberland 55,

Personally appeared

daed,

e

aid Fred A, Patlersong
Charles F, Whidden, husband of the said Eilsa E. Whidden: Euuy B.

wife of the said Alzo

ights by descent aad all othe

have hersgunto set

ané ackmowledgsd the above instrument to be his

the said Feed A. Patierson and

Hoe Woidden amd

Hefenzie and
Buby B, ¥efenzie, acd Alzo Patterson

F. Pattersen

-
SR

-
By

and relinguishing ard ceaveying

ner rights In the above

S nands ard seals this

in the vear of ocur Lord

fitty~threas

/Eg cF
/ 7 _y/j’,""fr %ﬁl
- ) 2
/? P~ ~ 4
= ,‘--:.__.'4 .f,_/m\-f' £t e
‘ B B
C(, e T Sl sER

/G,cf(f‘ A 7”".1.5( Feri_

o . Ja
’ E;ﬁ-?'k_éih ?ﬁff! %

Lo A8
A

_—y

ﬁj‘ou EO \;’3 faoA /jd(.uv‘_,d\/;;_

278 f/}v;é»

"05944/

2"“‘3 =& 13353

ths above nazed Alze F. Pattersen

fres act and

SBefore ne, ]/7 st
ct"’?/(—ur_ i ‘ﬂ\_. q 2"'_‘1-"1:,\

Justice q,/*“e Teaee



 Warranty Teed,

! FROM

i ALEO R PATTERSON, BT AMSe..

TO

m.:: .m ......... gﬁzngﬂﬂ%ramz.ﬂmﬁ

7 T () I8

M Biite vf Mulue.
M ..n._:sg;mm;..._....,_ﬁ_“ Bleatuteyt of Beeha,
¥ hﬁnw,_ce»m:wcz_w_.*mwm. uc\ f

i - 4
ol \\ Hay coreieeZhor g %:_ fnd
" tecorded In Bock, 2133, Wamou_.”:ﬁ

.._ >3§M.U
.....H..h

s T phoM THE oFFICE OF

Jro b D nAvsion kb, JRNSER
18 Qongress Btreet

Portland, Mains

e

e

.~ No, lob, Honeass Ozbace SupbbLy Codpany
Férihaad » Malne -~ Lewhilon
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Koo All #en hy these Hresenis,

T . . PR © ram - —_ e - - .
Taat e, Leola . Hovee and Fillian H. Woyes, Jr., tova of Portiand,
Jounty of Jumberiand, 3tate of lains,

4n comaideratisn ¢f one dollar (:1.0C) and onker walusble gonsider-
ations
Deid by iaire ¥edical Center, & Corporstion estanlished oy law in

th® receipt vhereo? we do hereby acknowledge, do hereby ghee, grad

fmerpatn, eell wnd rompep, unmto the said  Xaine Kedical Center
its successors EERS and Assigns forever,

the following descrided properiy:

A certein lot or parcel of land with the bduildines ‘-‘*erecn situated
in said Portlend between Bramhall and Arsenal 3treets ad jolining
land fomer ¥ beionging to 3opkia P, Jomes znd conveysd to us by
¥Maud L, Pillsbury by deed datad Octocer Z, 1951, recorded in

Z, rec
Cumherland Counscy Registry of Deeds iznm Bock 20'“0 Pzge 419, =nd
“hersin bounded and deseribed as follows: Bemg.z...ng on the nmorsherly
side of Bramhall Strest 2% the southwesterly corner of said Jopes
land; thence rumning westerly Uy said Bramhell 3trest twent7y-Five

23] feat to a2 st akz and frem thess twe points extanding northarly
adjoining said Jomes land Xespine a widga of twengr-five (25) fest, 7
a distanse of s_.:zcty‘«e“ ght TEET and two incles (85'2F), wnich dis- s

wd

e

"ﬁa‘ﬁmwmarlcec N ST ETES A0d WHLCA stzkes are twenty-six {20} °
feet distant from the southerly boundarw Iins of Arsenal Jtresc.



Eo hm? and fo hnlh the aforegranted and bargsined

with 2ll privileges ané appurter}ances thersof o the said

Vedical Centver, its successors
ZETZEE and Assigne, 1o its

LTorsgver,

.5»1‘{1’1 we &0

Inurtan! citr tze saia eramtse

2nd their use

rrerises,

kaine

anid bahoof

gnd Assigrs, thelwe zre lawfully seized iz fee of the premises;
thet thev ere free of 21l incumbrances;

toat we have goed right 1o sell and convey ilne same o the sald
Gramtes to holc 25 aforesaid; end that we and our Helrs, shall

i
€1}
7
[t
[

nd Assigns Zorever, ageinst

¢f all persons,

the said Grantee .

—

e lavful claims andé demsnds



In Btuess Blereof, s, the said

Jilliam 2. YMowes, Jr., the sald granteors, Tota beling unmarriad

£ b B M R A

ot B TR A Y S T e IR e e L e
Y L A A A TR R A T SR S A VAT

TEREEIREITRTERTEEET have hereunts set our Thand aud ssal this

/-E’E ¢ay of June in the year off ocur Lerd

Bigreeh, Braled zuh Helivered
B premenrr of

i T
NS o

Cumberland June /2, 18 33

Bty of Hatar. [
RE.
Persomally appessrsd the above namsd Legla J. Moves
and¢ William H. Yoyes, dJdr.

and ackuowledged the above imstruzent to he nheir Pree act and

deod.

Before e,
= é//w’&.ﬁ/%

Justice of the Zeage




A}

bl \.“.W
A

Wierrantyy Tewn,

FROM

SOLA. J. NOYES, et al

T0

o GATNE MERTCAL, GUNTER

w.;;:u.::....::...:..:..:LZS&:..:.:.:::.1,.... :wn.w f

Sriute of Huipe,
Ciumbortand

Recelved...... L ﬁ

oo Bt Beptntegg 0 Peehn, Q

:.__ \\ 1, m\\V\ My ) . M., giitd

recozded in ook,

Ariest!

m,w.u.u. F_mn.:::...mw.wm...

FROM THE OFFICE OF
Verrill Dana Walker Philbrick

&

1i boehouse

Mo 100. foarers Orricn Surpey CoMUARY
Tortinnd + Halne - Lanleton

st r
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Knomw AU Men by ihese Hresenis,

T it T, HAZZL 3. THERIO of Portland in the County of Lumberland
and 3tate of Maine

Vs

in ecormsideratisn of Cne Dollar and other valusble considerations

‘peid by MAINE MEDICAL CENTER, a corporation duly organized and exe
isting under the Laws of t“ze State of Maine and located at saa.a
Pc*’tland

the receipt wherea? I 40 nereby acknewledge, do hereby ghmwe, grast,

prpatn, aell @i comrey, unte ths said MATNE MEDICAL CENTER, its
guccessers Hooxw and Assizms forever,

“+he followirg described propertiy:

A certain lot or parcel of land with the bulldings thereem
situated on the Westerly side of Bramhall Strest in sa.:.a Porviand,
being more nartzcularly' described in deed *‘rom Bzzel E. Sk::..ll_mus
to the Gramtor, dated September 18, 'lSL5 and recorded in Cumberland
County negn_stry' of Deeds in Boek 1790, Page 500, in which deed said
mwemises are described as *ollows.

& certzain lot or parcel of lapd, with the duildings thereon

situated in said City of Porvland, on the Earthwesterly side of
Bramhall Street, bounded and described as follows: SevmmE, at

the most easﬁe*l;v' corner of land nocw or formerly of Sophia P. Jenes;
thence Nertheasterly on said Bramball Strees fifsy (50} fest to lané
now or formerly of ome Haymend; thence Nerthwesterly by said Rayamond
land fifty-aine (59) feet; thence Southwesuarly thirteen (13) feet
two (2] inches, more or .s.ess to a fence; thence Northwesterly by
the line of the division fance three {3) faet two {2} inches; Shence
Scuthwesterly by said fence Shirty-six (36) feet five (5} inches,
more or less, to said Jones land; thence Southeaster 1y by sald Jones
lana s:.xx;_:g:wo (02) *‘eetwma-ﬁw)w inches.to.the point begum 2t

T

Als®, ai... my right, title and interest in and to Arsena_ a‘c‘ee’c

£, -'ecently abandoned by the | Cicy of Portlande o




Oo hsvr amd fo Bold <re eforegrented emd bergeimed sremises,

with 211 privileges and sppurtenances thereo? <o the s=id
*
MAINE MEDICAL CENTER, its successors

BEeweE gnd Assigns, te its and their use and behoot

- its successoers
Amd Tao  rovenanl citn the seic grantes . Hooees

end Assigns, that I am law®ully seized in fee of the prexises:”
that they ars £ree of z11 Inecunmbrances;

what I reve geod Tight to sell and convey the seme to ithe said
Irantse 1o Nold es aforesaid) and tketr I end  my Hsirs, shall

znd will Warrzmt mzud Brimmd the szme to the szid Zrantes ,its successors

Eeirs and iLssigns ferever, zgainst the lawful claims and demands



the said Hazel 3. Therio,

-

Tu Eiturss Wleerot,

being unmarrisd,

L . laos, A [p— A ~ 3 v ] o ] - <
ot o 8 G R A T AT s e B T R L D S B e SR COL RS F R D

X N T TR S e ) bimgo i et fem tma shmten
PERE & S—aE

4 WendeTatmlase , have hersunto set my hand and seal this

{,?- i . . .

/ - day of May in the year of cur Lord

ome thousazné mizme humdred and fifty-three.

Eimued Bexld yzd Beliuerrd

it gresencr of
S ST Rl BT

: Srvtr of S, { s
‘ < BB z« 1953,
Cumberland { oy /8, 1853

Perscunally appeared the abeve znamed Hgzel B, Therio

and ackzmowledged the above instrument to be her fres act and

dead, .

Belors zme, )
24/7/:,5/ %/Qc.r,

Justice of ths Paage




y VERRTLL DANA WALKER PHILBRICK

3 .

! FROM

... MAZEL B, THERIO
TO

MAINE MEDIOAL CRNTER

P

DDt MAY ey 19 53

L i

Biute nf Mlatne,

_Cumberland e, Reqtotey of Beedn,
:nan:n;g}%”m#mmw.; s

‘_: \»\Q:W. m mr :; mu z.wa_m

recordéd I &aucr o MMQ_ m...xs;f»‘m

ATrRST: !

FROM THE GFFICE OF

oo

Ho. tpd. Hderars Orficr Stbely CoMEARY
Porllard - Mslua - Lawislon
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e
z, =i
i recen tl;r adandonzé oy ".‘wc of Portl=ng,

Koo All e by These Presents,

ah‘ﬂ 1, Jopn T.Lennon of Bartland in the County of Cumberland and Stabe

5T Uaine

in censideration of One Dollar and other valusble considsrationa

paid by Yaine Medical Center, & corperation organized and existing under
the Laws of the State of Mains agd leocated a3t said Portland

tha recelpt whersof I do hereby acknowledge, do hersby giny, gro=t,
barpaty, wll wrd comry vmto the aald  Moine Medical Center,its

SUSCeINT

heiss and essignm Torevar, # osTtain lota or pargel of land with the
puildings thereon sit‘uatcd ir said Portland and tounded and deacTited as follows:
PMlrst:

Beginning on the northerly side of Bramhall Street at the southwesierly :
corner of land row or formerly of Thomas E.Pratt,running thence westerly i
ty saii Bramhall Stress Tifty (50} fset to land now or formerly of Sephia ¥. i
Inight,and from these iwe poinits axtending northerly towards irwenal Streed,
nelding teskid widin of fifty feet,and a.ijoining said Pratt premises on ene
side and seid Inight precises on the other for & &lstance of sixty {(80) feet
to land now or formerly of Zdward T.Zurrowes.Tne said 1ot ix the southerly norsien
of tho premises conveyed to Albvert B.lole,¥rank H.fole azd Farren T.Cole o7

?
“Yettie I.Plerce by deed dated September 25,I5I1 axd rscarded inm the ZHeglstry 1

of Desds for said County of Cumberland in Book 822,2age IS5, Saild premises are &
mmbersd thirty {30) on said Zramball Street.

Sacond: . . B : !
4 certail lot of land with the tuildings iherson on the southerly side
of Azsena] Street in said ‘-'o:‘;la.nd. bounded and dsscribed as followsr

Comencing at & point oz the Westerly line of land of Yauds a..?*a..t al x
point sizty (6G) feet morthenly From the northerly side of Bramball Street,
tbance Westerly on a line varallel with and sixziy (B0) feet from said Bramball
Sirset, f:.ft;r (50) feet,more or less,to land of Sephia M.Xnieft:ihence o
wortherly from these @0 points keepine z width of fifty (50) feet and bounded
on the West by laod of said Inignt and on the Fast by land of zaid Prast and .
George T.Fletcher, forty-rdine {U5) fset,mux:s or less, to =aid Avsensl Sihreet. A

3eing e sane properity conveysd to me by Zarriet B.Foster Wy ner

warraniy deed dated February Z4,I345 and r-cor::.ed_ in the Comberland Coumuty ..egis"r
of Jeeds iz 3ok ITTT Page I3T.

I e e sk e TR e Mﬁw_ﬁw_mﬁ _

J.‘..-aﬂ conveying all oy ,Tlghy

tle zpd intarest iz & te Arzmml :t:eet T

i

" er e

;s
i
il
‘
7
!
:

€3

IR



Bo bupe wxdt tx il the aforegranted and bargained premises with all the

privileges and appurtensnces thereof, to the said ‘aine ¥edisal fexmter,its

suceasors

nedrs sand azasigns, to iss and thelr use andé hHehoof forever.

" ) , . Taocesers
Amd I 4o mmmmmmt  with the said @rantse |, Its eirs apd sssigas,

that L Bm lavfally seimed im fee of the premisss, that they are

free of all incumbrances;



that I have good right to sell aznd econmvey the seme to the szaid
Grantee %o hold as sforesaid; gad that 3 and I rolrs
shall amd will Farrunt and Beferh the same to the said Grantse

ALCoESBTZOTY
hadrs and aszigns forever, against the lawful olaims apd dsmands of

. it

all persgns,

In Btwpsn Wherpnf. 1 the said Jooa T.Lexzmon
i angd Ann O.Lennon
|
| wite of the said Jehn T.Lsazon
|
Joining in this deed as Granter , and

relinguisking and sonveying oy right by descent and all other

rights in the ahova deserided premises, have hereunto set  ourr

iy

hapd  end seal  this 1f5n dsy of ¥ay

| in the yeer of cur Lord ome thousand nins hundred amd  fifsy three.

Binued, Sraled o Peitrered
i presener of

AT

Ftgre of Haige. Camberiand =5 Vay =

{

i

’ - Personally appearsd the above named vehn T.Leznen
| ;

‘X:

and scknowledged the foregoing instrument

te be Bis Zree act and deed.,

Fasameetogat
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Warranty Deed

FROM

John T.Lennon

o

Hains Medlcal CGenter

Hated May Gih 1953

Fute of Matpe.

......... r:EEmz.a.& Registry of Decda

nesho MAYE 1958 iy
o ||%.!=._ ’»\P\L‘; e M and
m.mwp Mmﬁ .

CR Ay

FRON FHYE OFFIGK OF

tecorded In Book 2127

Povine, Devine, Devine
102 Exchunge 8%
Portland,Malne.

Lo HARTIH, FORTUARD, M.

~GFFICE FURRITURE RAND dUnriich
FYFIWRIVERE, ADDING HAG

(nd, FILIHS CABIHXTE, dATRF, X7,

HANTIN'G FONRK HO, | — $TARDAND nEadTnRy Fohi

o R S




We. L6

Knomw All #en by these Presenis,

{7

- _ ‘
That 1, crazs o READ, of Portland, in the Gounty of Cumberland and State

in comsideration of cne dollar and cther valuahle consideraticns

paid by MAINE MEDICAL CENTER, a Mains corporaticn having 2 place of business !

in said Portland, in said County and State,

the receipt whereef I de hersby ackmowledge, de nereby nive, groal,

tarpain, gl and mneg, untc the said ¥aine Medical Center,

its Successers Heckys end Assigas ferever, |

the Tollowing described propertiy:

A certain lot or parcel of land, with the bunildings thereon, situated on the:
gsouthwesterly side of Charles Street in said Portland, beunded and described i
as follows:

)

Seginring on sald scuthwesterly side of Charies Sirset at a point thirty
(30) feet northwesterly by said Street [rom the northeasterly corner of land
formerly of Charles A. Donmell; thence nortiwesterly by szid Street thirsy (30):
feet; thence scuthwesherly parazllel with the line of said Donpell land seventy- |
fonr and two-tenths {7h.2) Zeet to land formerly known as ihe Arsenal property;.
taence southeasterly by sald Arsemal Iot thirty (30) fest; thence northeza.s?:erly!
parallel with said Dopnell land seventy-four and two-tenths (Th.2) feet to the I
point ¢f beginning,

5
Being the same premises cenveved to itnis Grantor and Claresnce D, Read, as !
joirt temants, by Grace R. Ioomis by deed dated September 1, 1548 and recorded |
in Cumberland Comnty Gegistry of Deeds in Beook 1926, Page 33%. The said :
Clarence D. Aead having deceased and his estate is of record in the RBegistry oz !
Propate for Ciumberland Coumty, Maine, {

The Grantor herein shall nave the right to ccerwpy <the premises Zereby l
sonveyed until September 15, 13263, t




To have aud to hald  tne aforegranted end argained premises.

with all privileges and appurtsmances thereof to the said

Maine Medical Center, its Successors

Eedee 2nd Assigns, to then and thelr use and behoel
farever.
Suceessors
Anh I 4o rouenant vitk the seid Grantee , its, egos
and Assigus, that T am iavfully seized in Pee of the premizes:

that they are free of sll incumbrances:

that I nave good right to sell and convey the same Lo the said
Gremtes 1te heold as aforesaid) znd tnat I zpd my Heirs, ahall

and will HMxrrawt zod Befend the same to the said Grantee , iis

Suscessors
Hesme and Assigns forever, ggainst the lawiul claims and demands

of all persons.



I HEutness ]ﬁhgggnf_ 1, the said Clawra (. Read, being a

widew,

wbesmrdiresnomaToaar, Dave hersunte set my nend ané seal thils
Sl day of July in the year of our Lord
ane thousand nipe hundred and sixty-nine.

 Pigrned, Sraled and Belimered
in puesenre of

T A T 7 o
. LS. \,.:-—/_-; AL ‘-..\—,.4‘_, . - . -
L]
Btate of Maine, 3
g, Jul; A i .
CUMEERTAND } g ; G689
Personally appesred the above. named
CLEHA: &, READ
anéd sckunowledged the gbove inatrument to be . Iree aet and
dood.
Before e, i ‘ )
.nnigef\ et B,
,wb:/?a.‘:a CCUNTY, MAITE Justice of the Foncs
= Ml vad mecoried In !
scox. Jg a7 BaER ”’»/ Aerodd [Tl Bsgister




Warrauty Deed,
EROM
TO

DR Uy u 1069 ,
1
i Btate of Hulue,

T e, B Tealatey vl Berhn
e Wi . Z:,w 3 ¢
; Recelved. oS oo e abb L9

.
ST SUOOURUONE " SO S | ORI TN L.
w tecorded in Dook.. o Page.. ,
m ArrasT! - -~
u. FEUTUUVR 14711 1.5 1.1 N
; -
, FROM THY OFFICE OF
JOUN W, STURGIS
k15 Gongress Streeb
Portland, Haine
Mo. 108, ILGHHITTS OFFICH RUPPLY COMPANY
Poritand, Maine




KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

TE4T OLD COLORY TRUST COMPAXY a Corporetion locsated 1 Boston,

County of Snffolk and Commonwesgltr of Messachusgeitds, scle sur- i

viving Trustes under a Trust Agreement crested by ALICE 4.

BURKITT late of Portlamé and dated March 30, 196L by virtue of
the guthority %o it given by said Trust Agreememf inm its capacityi
of Trustee 3 aforesaid, and in comsideration of Ome Dollar |
{£1.060) =nd other valuable ccnsiderations te it paid by MATNE
MELICAL CENTER of Portland, Mzine, the receipt whereof Iz here-
by acknowledged, does hereby sell and convey unto the said

Maine Medical Center its successzors and assigns forever, the
following described rsal estate, whick was the property of Alice
A, Burllst labe of Portland, situated in said Portland, Maize
and boundad az fellows: . ;

a certasin lot or pearcel of land with the buildings
thareon, situated in said Portlend, bounded and
degeribed ms follows: DBegimning at & point on the
apgberly aide of Western Promenade, which point is

“oighty-five {85} feet frow the intersectiocn of the
northeasterly side line of 3rid Promensde with the
northwesterly side Line ¢f Bramhall Street; thence
nertherly by the line of sgaid Promenade seventy-
aaven and five tenths {77.5) feet, wmore or less, to
Argemal Street; tmence noriheasterly by szaid
Arsenal Street sevemby-four and cme tenths (7h.1)
faat, more or lesa, to lamd now or formerly of
Williem J. Millaer et aly thence aoutheastsrly at
right angles to Arsenal Street by 2aid Miller lend
Pifty~five and five temths (55.3) feet, nmore or
isgg, to land fermerly of Hirem Inowliton: thence

southwesterly parallel with said Arsenal Street i
ene hundred and twenty~seven (127} Pfeet, more or i
lezs, to the Westerm Promenade and peint of beginmning,
comtaining £ifty-3ix hundred (5600) zauare fast ;
mere or less.

Llso snother percel of land adjeining the shove

descrined lot, and bteunded and degeribed as follows:
Commencing at o point onm ths northwesterly side of
Zramhall Street, which polnt is the northessterly

cornegr of land of Prederick €. Eussey ot 21, and ninety-
sight and two btantks {98.2) fee:, mere or lassg, from %hs
intersection of said northwesterly side Lline of Bramhall |
Street with the sasterly gide line of the Western Fromenade;

thepce northeasterly on zald EBramhall Street fhirty-thres
and five tenths (33.3) feet to a poimt and land formerly
of Eiram Znowltom, and from thess two points extending
northwesterly keseping a width of irtw-thres and Sive

PR



tenths (33.5) feet z distames of aixty (60) feet
i to the first parcel herein conveyed, combalning
; tuo thousand and ten {2010) sgquare feet.

\
Meaning ard intending to convey znd hereby con- }
veylng the real satate mcguired by Allce 4. !
Burkitt by Warranty Deed of Goed Will Eowme !
Asgscciation dated December 11, 1930 recorded 1
in the Cumberland County Regisatry of Deeds i
Rook 1261, page 173; szaid peal sstate having {I
been devised tc the Crentor as Trustse by the '
Will of Alice A. Burkitt duly probated in the :
1
l
|
l
I
i

Cumberland Cocunty Probafe Court.

TG BAVE AND TO HCLD the above-granted premizes wmmbo the

said M’aina Medical Cembter itz successors and gzzigns forever.
And *the zaid 014 Colony Trust Company in ita said cepacity does
hareby covenant to and with the sszld Maine Medical Centsr lis
sucesssers and sssigne that it is the sole surviving Trustee
wmdar szid Trust Agreement; that it hes power under zaid Truast 1
Agresment. to sell as aforesald; and thet in wmaking this con~
veyance it hasz ir 211 respects scted in pursusnce of the

suthority granted Im andé Wy said Trust Agreemsnt.

T wITHESS WHEREQF, the 'said 014 Colony Trust Company in
ifz szid capzelby az Trustee ag aforesaid has caunged this |
instrument o be signed In 1lts cerperate nare and sesled with l

Vice Presidant ]
ts corporate szeal by 8. Vincent ity Erowictfdbmoy

therempto duly avtherized this  Lin day of
1965. .S ;.
% ‘.“ N i;
. 5 £ ;
?iitnassz: ‘ LD CC‘::CN‘“ m-wm&»w :
-~ i Yy I
T e o e By S‘:V"’m&
7 7 Tto et ey o
red e 3a3 i
COMMONWEALTE OF MASSACHUSSTTS s :
SUFFQLE, 88,

February & > 1968,

Thear parscnally appeared the sbove-nsmed 8. Ticeent

|

i

z

who maée cath that the foregoing imstrument wes his f-ee ack 1

a.nd deed and the-free act and deed of the Grantor corpey
in it said cepacity gs Trustee as aforessaid.

,! - et Before me,

Mary F. Archosks
NOTARY PUSLC
i Wy cammussian exgires May 2% (871




Maine Medical Center
22 Bramhall Street
Portland, Maine

Site Plan Application for Maine Medical Center
Bean Building Roof Addition
22 Bramhall Street, Portland

REQUIRED STATE AND FEDERAL PERMITS

The Bean Building Roof Addition consists entirely of a vertical expansion of an existing
structure; no site work nor disturbance is associated with the project. The Bramhall
Campus is subject to the conditions set forth by the currently held Maine DEP Site
Location of Development permit . The City of Portland will process this modification to
the campus under its delegated review authority to process this permit.

Maine Medical Center will also require notification of the Federal Aviation
Administration prior to construction of the project.



Maine Medical Center Surgical Suite Addition{ 2013

Zoning Compliance
Comprehensive Plan Compliance

General Overview;

Maine Medical Center (MMC) is requesting Site Plan approval for a +/~ 40,000 s.f.
addition fo the Lower Bean Building (aka Bean2)) located at 22 Bramhall Street (in the
vicinity of the MMC emergency department). The addition will both modernize, upgrade
and enhance MMC’s existing surgical facilities by enlarging existing ORs to meet
standard of care requirements and adding four additional surgical suites. The addition
will be located on the roof of the Bean 2, and, as a result, will have no impact on building
footprint or impervious surface.

Zoning;:
MMC is governed by a 2005 Conditional Rezoning Agreement, Order 172-04/05, C-41

(attached hereto). It governs the use, setback and height of buildings, among other
things. The addition being proposed conforms in all respects with the zoning
requirements of the Conditional Rezoning Agreement.

Allowed by Contract Proposed
Use [nstitutional/hospital Institutional/hospital
Height Bean Building max height 111 feet 69 feet
Setbacks 0 No change/existing footprint

City’s Comprehensive Plan:

The Portiand Comprehensive Plan's Vision for the Future characterizes Portland
as the "center for many regional service institutions, which offer high quality
medical care, an extensive range of social services for those in need, and
numerous higher education opportunities”. This characteristic is one of several
that the vision places under the heading of "Distinctive Features of Portland to
Value and Build Upon" and the subheading, "A city that provides for people".

Under the heading, "Future Directions for Portland” and the subheading, "Serve
the people”, the Vision says "Provide compassionate services for the City's
vulnerable citizens, while leading regional approaches to share the responsibility
of caring for citizens in need" and "Foster expanded oppertunities, innovative
solutions, and exemplary services from Portland's institutions of higher learning,
health care, and community services." And under the subheading of "Build a
Vibrant Small City" the Vision says, "Support a dynamic downtown that
embraces an intertwining of uses, including residential, business, retail,
institutional, service, and arts and cultural uses." Under the subheading, "Provide

I Type text] Page 1
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Maine Medical Center Surgical Suite Addition: 2013

Zoning Compliance
Comprehensive Plan Compliance

High Quality Leadership”, the Vision says, "Create a sustainable community
with vital neighborhoods, high quality infrastructure, a strong economy, and a
heaithy environment, while keeping municipal taxes affordable" and
"Incorporate environmental, economic and neighborhood considerations in
municipal decision-making."

Stated Goal A: To encourage orderly growth and development in
appropriate areas of each community, while protecting the State’s rural character;
making efficient use of public services and preventing development sprawl.

Comprehensive Plan Description of Maine Medical Center

Pages P-11 and P-12 of the Public Facilities and Services section of the
Comprehensive Plan provides the following description of Maine Medical Center:

“Maine Medical Center is located at 22 Bramball Street in Portland. 1t is the
largest hospital in Maine with 598 beds. MMC is a fully accredited, community
oriented teaching hospital serving Portland, and a referral center for the entire
State and much of northern New England. MMC is widely known for its
expanding cardiac diagnostic and open-heart surgery programs, renal diaiysis and
kidney transplant, oncology, nuclear medicine, physical medicine and
rehabiiitation, 1t maintains a graduate medical education program, has residency-
training programs in major specialties and is a teaching affiliate of the University
of Vermont College of Medicine. There are 35 separate outpatient clinics and a
highly regarded research department, programs in community medicine, and a
Community Mental Health Center. MMC has a substantial diagnostic facility,
which provides space for the Pathology and Radiology departments. 1t is the
home of the Barbara Bush Children's Hospital as well as the Southern Maine
Radiation Therapy Institute, a cancer treating consortivm of 17 Maine hospitals,
MMC operates seven facilities throughout the region, including Spring Harbor
Hospital (the former Jackson Brook Institute) in Scarborough, Maine's only
private psychiatric hospital. MMC supports a staff of approximately 4,571
emplovees.”

Compliance with Citv’s Comprehensive Plan: The MMC addition presently before the
Planning Board is consistent with a myriad of concepts contained within the City of
Portland’s Comprehensive Plan. First and foremost, it may be considered an in-fill
development in that it is an expansion of a vertical nature, The addition creates no new
footprint. But, rather attempts to achieve health care objectives by building within its
existing campus, avoiding sprawl.

[ Type text] Page 2



Maine Medical Center Surgical Suite Addition | 2013

Zoning Compliance
Comprehensive Plan Compliance

Additionally, the proposed addition will promotes economic development within the
City. While the jobs to be created by the proposed addition is modest, at 49 employees,
in today’s economic environment all job creation 1s good job creation. MMC is proud to
be an economic engine that fuels prosperity within the City of Portland and this current
phase of development will continue to provide good jobs in a central location within the
City.

The national reputation and respect for the medical providers at this teaching institution
also lends itself to the promotion of the City as a great place to live, work and play. With
this addition to the surgical suites within the Hospital, the abilities of renowned medical
professions will be expanded and the education of the students and residents that are part
of the MMC family will be enhanced. These attributes lend themselves to further
recognition of Portland as a caring, creative and growing City.

MMC is a partner with the City in promoting it as a visionary community that cares for
each and every member of it. The proposed addition of operating rooms at this health
care agency complies with the overall objectives of the city’s Comprehensive Plan.

{Type text] Page 3



Maine Medical Center Surgical Suite Addition | 2013

Zoning Compliance
Comprehensive Plan Compliance

General Overview:

Maine Medical Center (MMC) is requesting Site Plan approval for a +/- 40,000 s.1.
addition to the Lower Bean Building (aka Bean2)) located at 22 Bramhail Street (in the
vicinity of the MMC emergency department). The addition wilf both modernize, upgrade
and enhance MMC’s existing surgical facilities by enlarging existing ORs to meet
standard of care requirements and adding four additional surgical suites. The addition
will be located on the roof of the Bean 2, and, as a result, will have no impact on building
foolprint or impervious surface.

Zoning:
MMC 15 governed by a 2005 Conditional Rezoning Agreement, Order 172-04/05, C-41

(attached hereto). It governs the use, setback and height of buildings, among other
things. The addition being proposed conforms in all respects with the zoning
requirements of the Conditional Rezoning Agreement.

Allowed by Contract Proposed
Use Institutional/hospital Institutional/hospital
Height Bean Building max height 111 feet 69 feet
Setbacks 0 No change/existing footprint

Citv’'s Comprehensive Plan:

The Portland Comprehensive Plan's Vision for the Future characterizes Portland
as the "center for many regional service institutions, which offer high quality
medical care, an extensive range of social services for those in need, and
nurmerous higher education opportunities”. This characteristic is one of several
that the vision places under the heading of "Distinctive Features of Portland to
Value and Build Upon" and the subheading, "A city that provides for people".

Under the heading, "Future Directions for Portland" and the subheading, "Serve
the people”, the Vision says '"Provide compassionate services for the City's
vulnerable citizens, while leading regional approaches to share the responsibility
of caring for citizens in need"” and "Foster expanded opportunities, innovative
solutions, and exemplary services from Portland's institutions of higher learning,
health care, and community services." And under the subheading of "Build a
Vibrant Smali City" the Vision says, "Support a dynamic downtown that
embraces an intertwining of uses, including residential, business, retail,
institutional, service, and arts and cultural uses." Under the subheading, "Provide

[Type text] Page 1




Maine Medical Center Surgical Suite Addition: 2013

Zoning Compliance |
Comprehensive Plan Compliance

High Quality Leadership”, the Vision says, "Create a sustainable community
with vital neighborhoods, high quality infrastructure, a strong economy, and a
healthy environment, while keeping municipal taxes affordable" and
"Incorporate envirenmental, economic and neighborhood considerations in
municipal decision-making."

Stated Goal A: To encourage orderly growth and development in
appropriate areas of each community, while protecting the State’s rural character;
making efficient use of public services and preventing development sprawl.

Comprehensive Plan Description of Maine Medical Center

Pages P-11 and P-12 of the Public Facilities and Services section of the
Comprehensive Plan provides the following description of Maine Medical Center:

"Maine Medical Center is located at 22 Bramhall Street in Portland. It is the
largest hospital in Maine with 598 beds. MMC is a fully accredited, community
oriented teaching hospital serving Portland, and a referral center for the entire
State and much of northern New England. MMC is widely known for its
expanding cardiac diagnostic and open-heart surgery programs, renal dialysis and
kidney transplant, oncology, nuclear medicine, physical medicine and
rehabilitation. It maintains a graduate medical education program, has residency-
training programs in major specialties and is a teaching affiliate of the University
of Vermont College of Medicine. There are 35 separate outpatient clinics and a
highly regarded research department, programs in community medicine, and a
Community Mental Health Center. MMC has a substantial diagnostic facility,
which provides space for the Pathology and Radiology departments. Tt is the
home of the Barbara Bush Children’s Hospital as weli as the Southern Maine
Radiation Therapy Institute, a cancer treating consortium of 17 Maine hospitals.
MMC operates seven facilities throughout the region, including Spring Harbor
Hospital (the former Jackson Brook Institute) in Scarborough, Maine's only
private psychiatric hospital. MMC supports a staff of approximately 4,571
employees.”

Compliance with Citv’s Comprehensive Plan: The MMC addition presently before the
Planning Board is consistent with a myriad of concepts contained within the City of
Portland’s Comprehensive Plan, First and foremost, it may be considered an in-fill
development in that it is an expansion of a vertical nature. The addition creates no new
footprint. But, rather attempts to achieve health care objectives by building within its
existing campus, avoiding sprawl.
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Maine Medical Center Surgical Suite Addition{ 2013

Zoning Compliance
Comprehensive Plan Compliance

Additionally, the proposed addition will promotes economic development within the
City. While the jobs to be created by the proposed addition is modest, at 49 employees,
in today’s economic environment all job creation 1s good job creation. MMC is proud to
be an economic engine that fuels prosperity within the City of Portland and this current
phase of development will continue to provide good jobs in a central location within the

City.

The national reputation and respect for the medical providers at this feaching institution
also lends itself to the promotion of the City as a great place to live, work and play. With
this addition to the surgical suites within the Hospital, the abilities of renowned medical
professions will be expanded and the education of the students and residents that are part
of the MMC family will be enhanced. These attributes iend themselves to further
recognition of Portland as a caring, creative and growing City.

MMC is a partner with the City in promoting it as a visionary community that cares for
each and every member of it. The proposed addition of operating rooms at this health
care agency complies with the overall objectives of the city’s Comprehensive Plan.

Typetext] : Page 3




May 28, 2013

Dear Neighbor

Piease join us for a neighborhood meeting to discuss Maine Medical Center’s plans for a proposed two
story addition on the roof of the LL Bean Building, focated on the Bramhall Street Campus, 22 Bramball
Street.

Meeting Location : Dana Center Auditorium { Enter from Bramhall Street)

Meeting Date ; June 17, 2013

Meeting Time : 7:00 PM

The City Code requires that property owners within 500 feet of the proposed development and residenis
on an “interasted parties list”, be invited to participate in a neighborhood meeting. A sign-in sheet will be
circulated and minutes of the meeting will be taken. Both the sign-in sheet and minutes will be submitted
{0 the Planning Board.

If you have any questions please feel free to call me at 200-2055,

Sincerely,

SEBAGO TECHNICS, INC.
William T. Conway, RLA, LEED AP
Vice President, Landscape Architect

WTC:jsf




Neighborhood Meeting Certification

I, (applicant/consultant} hereby certify that a neighborhood meeting was held on (date) at (location) at {time).

I also certify that on (date at least seven days prior to the neighborhood meeting), invitations were mailed to all
addresses on the mailing list provided by the Planning Division, including property owners within 500 feet of
the proposed development or within 1000 feet of a proposed industriai subdivision or industrial zone change
and the residents on the “interested parties” list.

Signed,

{date)

Attached to this certification are:

1. Copy of the invitation sent
2, Sign-in sheet
3. Meeting minutes

[3ept. of Planning and Urban Development ~ Portland City Hall ~ 389 Congress 8t. ~ Portiand, ME 04101 ~ ph (207)874-8721 or 874-8719 - 16 -



Will Conway

From: Marshail W. Bartlet! [BARTLM@mme.org]

Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2013 12:42 PM

To: Fenelope St Louis

Ce: Wil Conway

Subject: FW. Neighborhood Meeling labels

Attachments: ATTO0001.0if; A Guide to Holding Nelghborhood Mestings 1-2013.doc
Hi Penny,

Barbara mentions submitting by 18:80 A M., Tuesday.
We will be submitting by 4:@@ P.M. Tuesday, as discussed, correct?

Thanks,
Marshall

From: Barbara Barhydt [BAB@portlandmaine.gov]

Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2613 12:35 PM

To: Kelly, Desiree; Penelope E. St Louls; Yeaton, Jenpifer

Cc: Conway', 'Will; Fraser, Jean; Walter Pochebit; Marshall W. Barflett
Subiject: Re: Neilghborhood Meeting labels

H1 Penny:

Thank you for your inguiry to Desiree,

We need to have the Maine Medical application submitted, in order to conduct a completion

check and irput the project into our computer system. Once that is complete, we can generate

labels for the receipt of application notice and for the neighborhood meeting. T know we

discussed that you would submit the application by 18 a.m. on May 28th.  Assuming everything

is complete, we can provide you with the mailing labels by the end of the day on the 28th,

~ You note in your e-mail that the neighborhood meeting is scheduled for June 11th. That is
the tentative date for the Planning Board workshop on MMC’s addition. As noted in the Guide

to Holding Neighborhood meeting (attached), we advise applicants not to schedule neighborhood

meetings on the same day as scheduled Planning Beoard or City Council meetings. I recommend

that you find an alternate date for the neighborhood meeting, Under the updated site plan

ordinance, the neighbeorhood meeting is to be held either within 36 days from submission of a

preliminary plan or within 21 days from submitting a final plan. Notices must be sent 16

days in advance of the meeting. The reqguirement to hold a neighborhood meeting prior to a

workshop has been eliminated.

We 1Llook forward te recelving the application.

Thank you,

Barbara

Barbara Barhydt

Development Review Services Manager
Planning Division

389 Congress Street 4th Floor
Portland, ME 84161

{287} B74-86%9

Fax: {(287) 756-8256
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
200 Berkeley Street
Eoston, MA 02116
USA

Tel: +1 617 437 2000
Fax, +1 B17 437 2111
wewwrdeloitte com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustess of
Maine Medical Center

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Maine Medical Center {a subsidiary of
MaingHealth) and subsidiaries {the “Medical Center”) as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related
consclidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Medical Center’s management, Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing zudit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpese of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, and assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financiaf statement
preseniation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in alt material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Medical Center at September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated results of its
operations, consolidated changes in net assets, and consclidated cash flows for the years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generaliy accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, The supplemental consolidating information on pages 40—43 is presented for the purpose of additional
analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position, results of operations,
and cash flows of the individual entities, and is not a required part of the consclidated financial statements, This
supplemental consolidating information is the responsibility of the Medical Center’s management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements, Such supplemental consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
our audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such Information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, such supplemental consolidating information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial staferments as a whole,

—Don;ﬁ*c. f /};"mi-e. LiLf

February §, 2013

Member of
Defoitra Touche Tobmatsu Lindted
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MAINE MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011
{In thousands)

UNRESTRICTED REVENUE AND OQTHER SUUPPORT:
Net patient service revenug
Direct research revenue
Indirect research revenue
Other revenue

Total unrestricied revenue and other support

EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee beneflis
Supplies
Professional fees and purchased services
Facility and other costs
State taxes
Interest
Depreciation.and amortization
Provision for bad debts

Total expenses
INCOME FROM QPERATIONS

NONOPERATING GAINS (LOSSES):
Gifts and donations -— net of related expenses
Imerest and dividends
Recognized gain {loss) on cash flow hedge instruments
Equity in eamings of joint ventures
Orther

Total nonoperating gains — net

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES BEFORE INCREASE IN FAIR VALUE OF
INVESTMENTS

INCREASE IN FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENTS
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT, AND
EQUIPMENT

EQUITY TRANSFER TO AFFILIATES
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN ADJUSTMENTS
CHANGE IN NET UNREALIZED LOSS ON CASH FLOW HEDGE INSTRUMENTS

INCREASE (DECREASE)} IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

See notes 1o consolidated financial statements,

2012 2011
$896,103  $853,071
13,493 17.832
4,380 4732
66,437 44,602
983,413 920,237
431,702 301,320
121,701 117,087
137,269 136,465
111,287 106,351
36,300 30,941
14,992 14,944
3,907 4851
54,487 55,899
40,714 39,119
952,368 897,877
31,045 22,360
2,752 4,166
9,965 12,601
988 (1,564)
4,960 3,713
(527)
18,665 18,389
49,710 40,749
13,983 430
63,693 41,179
2,029 186
(3,148) (2,286)
(53,504) (50,741)
{416) (758)
$ 8,654  $(12.425)




MAINE MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011
{In thousands}

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
Excess of revenue over expenses
Net assets released from restrictions for property, plant, and equipment
Equity transfer to affiliates
Retirement benefit plan adjustments
Change in net unrealized loss on cash flow hedge instruments

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

(iifts and donations

Interest and dividends

Reslized and unrealized gains (losses} on investments

Change in present value of pooled life and charitable remainder trusts

Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Net assets released from restrictions for property, plant, and equipment

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS — Gifts and donations

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS — Beginning of year

NET ASSETS — End of year

See notes to conselidated financial statements.

2012 2011

$ 63,693 $ 41,179
2,029 186
(3,148) (2,286)
(53,504) (50,741)
(416) (758)
8,654 (12,420)
636 1,281

604 432
11,147 (2,107
(257) (357)
(8,042) (1,264)
(2,029) (186)
2,059 (2.201)
1459 541
12,172 (14,080)
631,402 645,482
$643,574  $631,402




MAINE MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 20141
{in thousands)

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Increase {decrease) in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Provision for bad debis
Accretion of bond discounts
Equity transfers to affiliates
Equity in earnings of joint ventures
Net realized and change in unrealized {gain) loss on investments
Net (gain} loss on cash Now hedge instruments
Ciain on sale of property, plant, and equipment
Restricted contributions and investment income
Retirement benefit plan adjustments
{Decrease) increase in cash resulting from a change in:
Patient accounts reccivable
inventories, prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and other current Habilities
Amounts receivable/pavable under reimbursement regulations
Self-insurance reserves
Other labilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from the sales of investments
Distributions from joint ventures
Payments received {paid) on notes and amounts receivable/payable to affiliated entities

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment

Net cash used In investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments of long-term debt
Proceeds from tssuance of long-term debt
Restricted contributions and investment income
Equity transfers te affiliates

Net cash used in financing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of year

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Interest paid on long-tarm debt

Issuance of capital leases

See notes 10 consolidated {inancial statements.

2012 2011
$ 12172 § (14,080)
54,487 55,899
40,714 39,119
8 13
3,148 2,286
(4,960) (3,713)
(25,130) 1,677
(372) 2,324
(73) (560)
(2,442} (1,897
53,504 50,741
(59,445) (41,806)
345 (12,070)
{15,620) (17,803)
11,999 617
7,641 (39.411)
1,279
(12,460) 499
64,655 21,835
(654,426) (644,270)
663,390 675,192
4,400 2,500
8.015 (8,548)
(58,782) (56,973
389 936
(37,014) (25,163)
(10,874) (28,9423
19,123
2,442 1,897
(3.148) (2,286)
(11,580) (10.208)
16,061 (13,536}
5,081 18,617
$ 20142 5 5081
$ 3803 % 5077
$ 369§ 244




MAINE MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS QF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011

1.  REPORTING ENTITY

Qrganization — Maine Medical Center and subsidiaries consists of Maine Medical Center (MMC) and
its wholly owned subsidiaries, which inciude Maine Medical Partners (MMP) and MMC Realty
Corporation (MMCRC). These eniities are colleciively referred to as the “Medical Center,” The
consclidated financial statements include the accounts of MMC and its controtled subsidiaries. Upon
consalidation, intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated, Such controlied affiliates
are disclosed in the supplemental consolidating information using the cost method of accounting,

MCC is a wholly owned subsidiary of MaineHealth. The purpose of MaineHealth, a tax-exempt
corporation, is to fead a community care network that provides a broad range of integrated health care
services for populations in Maine and northern New England. Through MaineHealth’s subsidiaries and
affiliated organizations, the network’s mission is to provide services along the full continuum of care as
necessary to improve the health status of the population it serves in a cost-effective manner.,

MMC is a 637-bed, not-for-profit, major teaching hospitai providing community and tertiary health care
services. It is affiliated with the Tufts University School of Medicine undergraduate medical education
program, MMC also supports ciinical, translational, and bench research programs, but focuses on
translational research due to its more immediate benefit to patients.

MMP ig a multispecialty physician group, which includes a variety of primary care and specialfy
disciplines. In addition to providing clinical care, the practices develop and promote educational and
teaching programs and research activities.

MMCRC was formed for the purpose of acquiring, holding, managing, maintaining, developing, and
disposing of real property for the benefit of and in support of MMC.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying consoiidated financial statements have been presenied in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America {GAAP)
consistent with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification
{ASC) 954, Health Care Entiries, and other pronouncements applicable to health care organizations,

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Significant estimates are made in the areas of patient accounts receivable,
the fair value of financial instruments, amounts receivabie and payable under reimbursement
regulations, asset retirement obligations (ARQOs), retirement benefits, and self-insurance reserves.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents include fnvestments in highly liquid debt
securities with a maturity at the date of purchase of three months or iess, excluding amounts classified as
investrnents whose use is limited,



Investments — Investments are stated at fair value. The recorded value of investments in hedge funds
and limited partnerships is based on fair value as estimated by management using information provided
by external investment managers. As a practical expedient, the Medical Center measures the fair value
of these investments on the basis of the net asset value (NAV) per share {or its equivalent). The Medical
Center believes that these valuations are a reasonable estimate of fair value as of September 30, 2012
and 2011, but are subject to uncertainty and, therefore, may differ from the value that would have been
used had a market for the investments existed. Such differences could be material. Certain of the hedge
fund and limited partnership investments have restrictions on the withdrawal of the funds. Investments
are classified as current assets based on the availability of funds for current operations. The accounting
for the pension plan assets is disclosed in Note 13, Investment income or loss (inchuding realized and
unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is included in the excess of revenue
over expenses, unless the income or loss is resiricted by doner or law.

As provided for under ASC Section 8235, Financiagl Instruments, the Medical Center made the
irrevocable election to report investments and investments whose use is limited at fair value with
changes in value reported in the excess of revenue over expenses. As a result of this election, the
Medical Center reflects changes in the fair value, including both increases and decreases in value
whether realized or unrealized, in ifs excess of revenue over expenses.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably pessible that changes in the values of investments will oceur in the
near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reporied in the consolidated balance
sheets and the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Investments Whose Use is Limited — Investments whose use is limited primarily include investments
held by trustees under debt agreements, seif-insurance trust agreements, and designated investments set
aside by the Board of Trustees (the “Board™) for purposes over which the Board retains conirol and may
at its discretion subsequently use for other purposes. In addition, investments whose use is [imited
include investments restricted by donors for specific purposes or periods, investments restricted by
donors 1o be held in perpetuity by the Medical Center, and the related appreciation on those investments.
Amounts required to meet current liabilities of the Medical Center have been classified as current assets.

Property, Plant, and Equipment — Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost. The camying
value is reviewed if facts and ¢ircumstances suggest that an impairment may exist, Depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable assets and is computed using the
straighi-line method. Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of
capital assets are capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. The Medical Center
recorded capitalized interest of $160,000 and $94,000 for the yvears ended September 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively,

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as fand, building, or equipment, are reported as increases in unresiticted
net assers and are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses. Gifts of long-lived assets with
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifis of cash or other assets that must
be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit danor stipulations
about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported
when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — Long-lived assets 1o be held and used are reviewed for
impairment whenever circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value, ess cost to sell,



Asset Retirement Obligations —AROs are legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-
lived assets. These liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and the related asset retirerment costs are
capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related assets by the same amount as the lability.
Asset retirement costs are subsequently depreciated over the useful lives of the related assets,
Subsequent {o initial recognition, the Medical Center records period-to-period changes in the ARO
liability resulting from the passage of time in interest expense and revisions to either the timing or the
amount of the original expected cash {flows to the related assets,

Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — The Medical Center
recognizes the overfunded or underfunded status of its defined benefit and postretirement plans as an
asset or Hability in its consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the funded status of the plans are reported
as a change in unrestricted net assets presented below the excess of revenue over expenses in its
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets in the year in which the changes occur,

The measurement of benefit obligations and net pericdic benefit cost is provided by third-party actuaries
based on esiimates and assumptions approved by the Medical Center’s management. These valuations
reflect the terms of the plans and use participant-specific information, such as compensation, age, and
years of service, ag well as certain assumptions, including estimates of discount rates, expected long-
term rate of returmn on plan assets, rate of compensation increases, interest crediting rates, and mortality
rates.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Netl Assets — Temporarily restricted net assets are those
whose use by the Medical Center has been limited by denors or faw 10 a specific time period or purpose.
Permanently restricted net assets refiect the original value of giffs that have been restricted by donors to
be mainained by the Medical Center in perpetuity.

Excess of Revenue over Expenses — The consolidated statements of operations include excess of
revenue over expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from excess of revenue
over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include the effective portion of changes in the fair value
of cash flow hedge instruments, permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods
and services, retirement benefit plan adjustments, and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets
acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acguiring
such assets).

Consolidated Statements of Operations — For purpose of display, transactions deerned by
management to be angoing, major, or central to the provision of health care and related services are
reported as operating revenue and expenses. Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as
nenoperating gains and losses,

Net Patient Service Revenue —— Nei patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and cthers for services rendered and includes estimated
retroactive revenue adiustments due to future audits, reviews, and investigations. Retroactive
adjustments are considered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related
services are rendered, and such amounts are acdjusted in future periods as adjustments become known or
as years are no longer subject to such audits, reviews, and investigations. Contracts, laws, and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation,
As a resuli, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material
amount in the near term.



Free Care — The Medica! Center provides care without charge or at amounts less than its established
rates to patients who meet certain criteria under its Board-established free care policy. Because the
Medical Center does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as free care, they are not
reported as net patient service revenue.

Direct and Indirect Research Revenune and Related Expenses — Revenue related to research grants
and contracts {s recognized as the related costs are incurred. Indirect costs relating to certain government
grants and contracts are reimbursed at fixed rates negotiated with the government agencies. Research
grants and contracts are accounted for as exchange transactions. Amounts received in advance of
incurring the related expenditures are recorded as unexpended research grants and are included in
accrued expenses.

Other Revenue — Revenue, which is not related to patient medical care and which is central to the day-
to-day operations of the Medical Center, is included in other revenue, This revenue includes cafeteria
sales, medical school revenue, administrative shared services revenue, temporary restricted gifts, grants
revenue, rental revenue, and other support services revenue,

Meaningful Use — The Medical Center is in the process of fully implementing Electronic Health
Record Technology (EHR). During 2012, the Medical Center qualified and applied for meaningful use
incentive payments from Medicare and Medicaid related to the implementation of EHR as provided for
under the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act. As a result, the
Medical Center recognized $4,265,000 of other revenue associated with these payments,

Gifts and Donations — Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Medical Center are
reported at fair value at the date the promise is received. Unconditional promises to give that are
expacted to be coilected in future years are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows.
The discounts on those amounts are computed using a risk-free rate applicable to the year in which the
promise is received. Amortization of the discount is included in contribution revenue. Conditional
promises to give are recognized when the conditions are substantially met. The gifts are reported as
either temporarily or permanently restricted net assets if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets, When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reciassified
as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements of operations as net assets released
from restrictions, Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are mef within the same year
received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial

statements,

Seif-Insurance Reserves — The liabilities for outstanding losses and loss-related expenses and the
related provision for losses and loss-related expenses include estimates for losses incurred, but not
reporied as well as losses pending settlement. Such liabilities are necessarily based on estimates and,
while management believes the amounts provided are adequate, the ultimate Hability may be greater
than or less than the amounts provided, As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded
estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. The methods for making such estimates and
the resulting Hability are actuarially reviewed on an annual basis, and any necessary adjustiments are
reflected in current operations.



Income Tax Status — The Internal Revenuve Service (IRS) has previously determined that MMC and its
subsidiaries {except MMP) are organizations as described in Section 501{¢)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code (IRC) and are exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 301(z) of
the IRC. MMP had significant net operating loss carryovers at September 30, 2032 and 2011, A
valuation allowance has been provided for the entire deferred tax benefit for the net eperating iosses, due
1o uncertainty of realization, MMP did not have taxable income in 2012 or 2011. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements -— In August 2010, the FASB issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-24, Health Care Entities (Topic 934), Presentation of Insurance
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, which clarifies that a health care entity should not net
insurance recoveries against a refated claim liability, Additionaily, the amount of the claim {iability
shouid be determined without consideration of insurance recoveries, The provisions of ASU Ne. 2010-
24 were adopted by the Medical Center on October 1, 2011. The adoption of ASU No. 2010-24
increased assets and liabilities in the amount of $1,133,000 as of September 30, 2012, There was no
impact on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended
September 30, 2012,

InJuly 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-07, Health Care Entities (Topic 954), Presentation and
Disclosure of Patient Sevvice Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and ihe Allowance for Doubitful
Accounts jor Certain Health Care Entities, which requires reclassifying the provision for bad debts
associated with patient service revenue from an operating expense to a deduction from patient service
revenue, It aiso requires enhanced disclosure about the policies for recognizing revenue and assessing
bad debts, disclosures of patient service revenue, as well as qualitative and guantitative information
about changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts, The provisions of ASU No. 2011-07 are effective
for the Medical Center beginning October |, 2012, The Medical Center has not determined the impact of
ASU No. 2011-07 on its consolidated financial statements,

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Reguivements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs, which amends ASC 820. ASU
No. 2011-04 also requires the categorization by level for items that are only required to be disclosed at
fair value and information about transfers between Level T and Leve! 2. In addition, ASU No. 2011-04
provides guidance on measuring the fair value of financial instruments managed within a portfolio and
the application of premiums and discounts on fair value measurements. ASU No. 2011-04 requires
additional disclosure for Level 3 measurements regarding the sensitivity of fair value to changes in
unobservable inputs and any interrelationships between those inputs. The new guidance is effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011, The adoption will not have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements. The Medical Cenier has not determined the impact on the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events — The Medicai Center has evaluaied subsequent events through February §, 2013,
which is the date the consolidated financial statements were issued.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAMS

As a nonprofit institution dedicated fo community service, the Medical Center provides many health-
related services that benefit the community, These services include coordinating access to care, free care
prograwis, teaching programs, and research activities. Exampies of these programs include CarePartners,
a health care program for those who cannot afford to buy insurance but are above the guidelines for
government programs; the Ah! Asthma Health program, which improves the care of children with
asthma; Raising Readers, a MaineHealth initiative, which aims to provide all Maine children between
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ages zero and five years with books; and Vocational Services programs that leverage approximately
$368,000 in federal funds in 2012 to integrate people with physical and psychological disabilities into
the community. The Medical Center also operates an International Clinic for Portland’s growing
immigrant and refugee population, the AIDS Consultation Service, and the Northern New England
Poison Center.,

The Medical Center provides free care to anyone whose income falls below 175% of the Federal Poverty
Level and alsc has a sliding scale beyond that to agsist patients whose income is up to 225% of the
Federal Poverty Level.

Maine Medical Center has an active teaching program that teaches medical students, resident physicians,
practicing physicians, nursing students, allied health professions students, and the public, These
programs are a significant source of health care manpower for the State of Maine as well as providing a
higher level of patient care. The Medical Center has entered info a partnership with the Tufts University
Schoo! of Medicine to train medical students focusing on Maine residents and providing them with a
rural, integrated experience in order to encourage them ultimately to practice in Maine. The Medical
Center provides a free Certified Nursing Assistant {CNA) program that produces much needed CNAs

for health care providers throughout the State of Maine (the “State”), including the Medical Center,
Maine Medical Center sponsors a number of programs from childbirth education to heart health to
smoking cessation in order to improve overall community health.

The research programs of Maine Medical Center Research Institute (MMCRI), which operates within
MMC, are focused around three specialties: cardiovascular disease, cancer, and bone and mineral
disease. Core strengths are molecular biclogy and genetics, outcomes and health services, cytometry,
ard clinical research. Research at MMCRI has a strong connection to clinical problems through a
translational approach, MMCRY's goal is to apply the latest scientific advances to the problems that
patients and physicians face in Maine. The state-of-the-art equipment and facilities at MMCRI enable
highly technical research and provide services for other academic and research centers throughout
Maine. In cooperation with the University of Maire and The Jackson Laboratory, graduate degree
programs have been established to provide rigorous basic research training to students in Maine.
MMCRI also provides a summer student internship to & number of pre-college and college students who
are interested in an opportunity to explore biomedical research as a possible career. All of these
programs are done in an effort to enhance advanced educational activities in Maine.

Most of the support for MMCRI is derived from sources outside the State of Maine. This positive flow
of funds into Maine is expended on salaries and services that directly support the local economy.
MMCRI produces hiomedical technology that is used to develop new companies, and its scientists serve
as magnets to attract other biomedical technology companies, thereby encouraging additional local
economic development.

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE

The Medical Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Medical
Center at amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with
major third-party payors follows:

Medicare and MaineCare — Inpatient acute care services rendered to each program’s beneficiaries are
paid at prospectively determined rates per discharge. These rates vary accerding to a patient
classification system that is based on clinical diagnosis and other factors. Qutpatient services are paid
based on a prospective rate per ambulatory visit/procedure. The Medical Center is reimbursed for cost-
reimbursable items at an interim rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost
reports by the Medical Center and audits thereof by the Medicare Fiscal Intermediary and the State of
Maine.
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In 2004, the State of Maine, facing significant budget deficits, passed legislation establishing several
health care provider taxes (“State taxes™). The enactment of the State taxes allowed the State of Maine to
add revenues to the State of Maine General Fund, while minimizing the potential of lost federal
matching funds in the MaineCare program. The hospital-specific portion of the State taxes for 2012 and
2011 was based on a percentage of MMC’s net patient service revenue in 2008. On July 1, 2012, the
State of Maine passed a special onetime tax assessment of 0.39% on MM’s net patient service revenue,
As a result, for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Medical Center recorded State taxes
of approximately $14,992,000 and $14,944,000, respectively. For the three months ended September 30,
2012, the Medical Center recorded $628,000 for this assessment. Concurrent with the implementation of
the State tax, the State of Maine increased the MaineCare reimbursement rates. Management estimates
that the changes in the MaineCare reimbursement rates yielded payments to the Medical Center for the
years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, of approximately $11,149,000 and $11,751,000,
respectively. The net impact of the State tax and the change in reimbursement rates were a decrease in
income from operations of $3,843,000 and $3,193,000 for the vears ended September 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively,

In 2003, the State of Maine enacted legislation to provide affordable health insurance to small
businesses and individuals and to control health care costs. Thig legislation became known as Dirigo
Health. The law provides for the development of an affordable heaith care plan with sliding scale
premium subsidies while further increasing access to health care coverage through the expansion of
eligibility for the MaineCare program. The law alse covers quality and cost-containment strategies, such
as the development of a State Health Plan, voluntary caps on the cost and operating margins of hospitals
and insurers, and revised Certificate of Need (CON) regulations, including a Capital Investment Fund
{CIF). In 2011, the CON regulations were significantly revised, and the CIF was repealed.

In 20035, the Dirige Health law was supplemented by additional legislation titled “An Act to Implement
Certain Recommendations of the Commission to Study Maine’s Community Hospitals.” The law
requested hospitals to voluntarily hold their consolidated operating margins to 3% and to voluntarily
restrain their increases in expense per case-mix-adjusted discharge to less than 110% of the forecasted
increase in the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid hospital services market basket index for the coming
federal fiscal year, This law alsc addressed the jurisdiction of Dirigo Health, called for the
standardization of the reporting of hospital financial information, and established a workgroup to
identify opportunities fo streamline hospital administrative costs.

The consolidated balance sheets at September 380, 2012 and 2011, include amounts due from the State of
Maine under the MaineCare program of $65,644,000 and $54,405,000, respectively, which represents a
concentration of credit risk. Although the State of Maine’s current budget does not provide for amounts
due to the Medical Center, the amounts recorded have been determined based upon applicable
regulations, and the Medical Center expects that these amounts will ultimately be paid in full, Due to the
complex nature of such regulations, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will
change by a matertal amount,

Nongovernmental Payors — The Medical Center has also entered into payment agreements with certain
commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations.

The basis for payment to the Medical Center under these agreements includes prospectively determined

rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively determined daily rates.
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Net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, consists of the following
(in thousands):

2012 2011
Gross charges:

Inpatient services $ 276,430 $ 271,362
Inpatient ancillary services 656,492 635,865
Outpatient services 684,926 581,355
1,617,848 1,488,582

Deductions from gross charges:
Contractual adjustments 673,637 594,196
Free care 45108 41,315
718,745 635,511
Total net patient service revenue $ 899,103 $ 853,07

The Medical Center provides care without charge or at amounts less than its established rates o patients,
who meet certain criteria under its Board-established free care policy. Because the Medical Center does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as free care, they are not reported as net patient
service revenue, The Medical Center estimates the costs associated with providing charity care by
calculating a ratio of total cost to total gross charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the gross
uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The estimated
cost of caring for charity care patients for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, was
$19,530,000 and $19,187,000, respectively. Funds received from gifts and grants to subsidize charity
services provided for the vears ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, were $245,000 and $297,000,
respectively.

Net patient service revenue in 2012 and 2011 increased by approximately $13,000,000 and $11,935,000,
respectively, primarily as a result of favorable seftiements with third-party payors regarding prior years.

PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Patient accounts receivable consists of the following at September 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Patient accounts receivable $280,681 $247,822
Less:
Allowances for contractual adjustments and advance payments
from third-party reimbursing agencies 145,199 136,130
Allowances for bad debts 41,125 34,662
Allowances for free care 7,792 9,196
Patient accounts receivable — net $ 86,565 § 67,834




6. INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENTS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

The compesition of investments and investments whose use is limited at September 30, 2012 and 2011,
is set forth in the following table {in thousands):

2012 2011
Investments (current assets) $204,718 $215,887
Investments whose use is limited 258,270 230,935
Total 34629883 $446,822
Temporary cash investments § 9,661 $ 10,411
Bonds and notes 198,507 236,208
Marketable equity securities 43,597 37,424
Mutual funds 162,672 125,079
Hedge funds, limited partnerships, and other 48,551 37,700
Total $462,988 $446,822

Investments whose use is limited include amounts required by debt agreements and amounts restricted
by donors. The Board of Trustees also segregates certain unrestricted net assets as Board designated in
order to make provision for future capital improvements, to fund self-insured professional and general
Hability and workers’ compensation risks, and to provide for other specific purposes.

Investmen(s whose use is limited by debt agreements include debt service funds, which are comprised of
semiannual deposits to fund principal and interest payments. These investments are held pursuant to the
requirements of the outstanding Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bond Indentures.

The current portion of investments whose use is limited at September 30, 2012 and 2011, is comprised
of the following (in thousands):

2012 2011
Trusteed under debt agreements $4,142 £3.921
Trusteed self-insurance trusts 1,601 1,795
Total 35,743 35,716
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Investment income and gains (losses) on investments and investments whose use is limited, cash
equivalents, and other investments for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, consist of the
following (in thousands):

2012 2011
Unrestricted net assets:
Interest and dividends $ 9,955 $12,601
Increase in fair value of investments 13,983 436
23,948 3,031
Temporarily restricted net assets:
Interest and dividends 604 432
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments 11,147 (2,107
11,751 (1,675)
Total $ 35,699 $11,356

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes
between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
reporting entity (observabie inputs that are classified within Levels | and 2 of the hierarchy) and the
reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified
within Level 3 of the hierarchy).



The following tables present information as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, about the Medical
Center’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis {in thousands):

Temporary cash investments

Bonds and notes:
U8, government and agency
Corporate
Municipal government — United States
Foreign governament

Total bonds and notes

Marketable equity securities;
Consutmer discretionary
Energy
Financial services
Health care
Industrials
Information technelogy
Materials
Telecommunications
Utilities

Total marketable equity securities

Mutual funds:
Equity funds
Fixed-income funds
International equity funds
Closed-end infernational equity funds

Total mutual funds

Other funds:
Common/collective trusts
Exchange-traded funds
Hedge funds
Limited partnerships

Total other funds

Total

September 30, 2012

Active Markets
far ldentical
Assets {Level 1)

5 83561

61,602

61.602

10,570
4,093
5111
5,170
4,623
8.811
3,291
1,383

341

43,597
67.003

63,065
20,761

5.843

162,672

10,221

10,221

$287.653
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Other

Observable
inputs {Level 2}

b 100

20,832
114,853
350
870

136,805

31,738

§168,763

Significant
Unobservable
tnputs (Level 3) Total

§ - 3 966!

82,434
114,853
350
8§70

- 198,507

10,570
4,095
5111
3,170
4,625
8811
3,291
1.383

541

- 43,597

67,003
65,063
20,761

9.843

162,672

123

18,221

31,635

6,572 6,372

6,572 48.551

6,572 $462.988




Temporary cash investments

‘Bonds and notes:
U.S. government and agency
Caorporate
Municipal government -— United States
Foreign government

Tatal bonds and notes

Marketable equity securitics:
Consumer discretionary
Energy
Financial services
Health care
Industrials
Information technology
Materials
Teleconmunications
Utilities

Total marketable equity securities

Mutual funds:
Equity funds
Fixed-income funds
International equity funds
Closed-end international equity funds

Total mutoal funds
Other funds:
Common/collective trusts
Exchange-traded funds
Hedge funds
Limited partnerships

Total other funds

Total

September 30, 2011t

Active Markets
for tdentical
Assets (Level 1)

79,138

79,138

8,994
3,655
4514
4,127
3,992
7,346
2.404
1,595

797

37,424
34,686
63,707

17,343
9,343

125,079

8,706
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- Other Significant
Observable Unobservable
Inputs {Leve! 2)  inputs (Level 3) Total
¥ 126 5 - § 10,411
26,534 105,672
127,555 127,555
788 788
2,193 2,193
157,070 - 236,208
8.594
3,635
4,514
4,127
3,992
7,346
2,404
1,563
797
- - 37,424
34,686
63,707
17,343
9,343
- - {25,079
93 93
8,766
23,293 23,293
5,608 3,608
28,994 - 37,760
$186,190 § - $446,822




The following tables provide information regarding the fair value measurements of the assets held by the
Medical Center's defined benefit pension plan (see Note 13) at September 30, 2012 and 2011 (in
" thousands):

September 30, 2012

Active Markets Other Significant
for tdentical Observabte Unobservabie .
Assefs (Level 1} Inputs (Levael 2)  inputs (Levet 3) Tota!
Temporary cash investments I 84 § 4,341 $ - $ 5135
Bonds and notes:
Federal agency bonds 6,396 11,722 18,118
Corporate bonds 25,094 25,094
Total bonds and nofes 6,396 36,816 - 43212
Marketable equity sceurities:
Consumer discretionary 19,378 19,378
Energy 7,206 7.206
Financial services 8,776 8,776
Health care 9,063 0,063
industrials 7,523 7,525
Information technology 15,196 15,196
Materials 6,331 6,331
Telecommunications 3,440 3,440
Utilities 982 982
Total marketable equity securifies 77,897 - - 77897
Mutual funds:
Fixed~income funds 69,987 69,987
International equity funds 50,558 50,558
Closed-end international equiry funds 35,533 35,533
Total mutual funds 156,078 - - 156,078
Gther funds:
Common/collective trusts 8,022 21,010 29,032
Exchange-traded funds 30,230 30,234
Hedge funds 78,139 78,159
Limited partnerships 6,139 6,159
Tota! other funds 30,230 92,340 21,010 143,580
Total $271,415 $133,497 $21,010) $425922
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Ternporary cash investments

Bonds and notes:
Federal agency bonds
Corporate bonds

Total bonds and notes

Marketable equity securities:
Consumer discretionary
Energy
Financial services
Health care
Industrials
Informarion technology
Materials
Telecommunications
Utitities

Total marketable equity securities

Mutual funds:
Fixed-income funds
International equity funds
Closed-end international equity funds

Total mutual funds

(rher funds:
Common/collective trusts
Exchange-traded funds
Hedge funds
Limited partmerships

Total other funds

Total

September 30, 2011

Active Markets
for tdentical
Assets (Level 1)

§ 2214

10,353

10,353

14,467
6,118
6,552
6,729
5,058

12,191
4,602
3,039
1,226

60,882

66,281
40,428
28 444

135,153

19,964

_19.964

5228366

Other
Observabie
inputs (Level 2)

24,526

61,176
5,718

51,420

$101,939

Significant
Unobssrvable
Inputs {Level 3} Totat

$ - § 2215

{2,082
8,789

- 20,871

14,467
6,118
6,552
6,729
3,958

12,181
4.602
3,039
1,226

- 60,882

66,281
46,428
28,444

- 135,153

17,476 42,062
19,904
68,473

5718

7,297

24.773 136,137

$24.773 5355278

The Medical Center uses the following fair value hierarchy to present its fair value disclosures:

Level I — Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or Habilities in active markets. Active markets
are those in which fransactions for the asset or lability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2 - Other observable inputs, either directly or indirectly, including:

Quoted prices for similar assets in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in nonactive markets {few transactions, limited
information, noncurrent prices, high variability over time, ete.);
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¢ Inputs other than quoted process that are observable for the asset (interest rates, yield curves,
volatilities, default rates, etc.); and

e inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other observable market data,
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data,

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at
fair value:

Temporary Cash Investments — The carrying value of cash investments approximates fair value as
maturities are less than three months and/or include money market funds that are based on quoted prices
and actively traded.

Bonds and Notes — The estimated fair values of debt securities are based on quoted market prices
and/or other market data for the same or comparable instruments and transactions in establishing the
prices. The debt securities classified as Level 2 were classified as such due to the usage of observable
market prices for similar securities that are traded it less active markets or when observable market
prices for identical securities are not available, marketabie debt instruments are priced using nonbinding
market consensus prices that are corroborated with observable market dats; quoted market prices for
similar instruments; or pricing models, such as a discounted cash flow model, with all significant inputs
derived from or corroborated with observable market data.

Marketable Equity Securities — The fair values of marketable equity securities are principally based on
quoted market prices.

Mutual Funds — The fair values of mutual funds are based on quoted market prices,

Common Collective Trusts — As a practical expedient, the fair vajve of a common collective trust is
based on the NAV of the fund, representing the fair value of the underlying investments, which are
generally securities that are traded on an active market. Such investments are classified as Level 2
because the Medical Center has the ability fe redeem its investment in the fund at the NAV per share (or
its equivalent) at the measurement date or within the near term and there are no other potential liquidiry
restrictions. Common collective trusts, categorized as Level 3, are subject to 2 minimum holding period
and a redemption period in exeess of 90 days.

Exchange-Traded Funds — These funds are valued based on quoted market prices.

Hedge Funds and Limited Parinerships — The estimated fair values of limited partnerships and hedge
funds, for which no quoted market process are readily available, are determined based upon information
provided by the fund managers. Such information is generally based on NAV of the fund, which
approximates fair value, The Medical Center has classified certain of its investments reported at NAV as
Level 2 because the Medical Center has the ability to redeem its investment in the fund at the NAV per
share (or its equivalent) at the measurement date or within the near term and there are no other potential
Hquidity restrictions. Funds categorized within Level 3 are subject to a minimum holding period or
lockup, are in liguidation, cannot be redeemed at the measurement date or within 90 days thereof, are
subject to redemption notice periods in excess of 90 days, or have the ability to limit the aggregate
amount of shareholder redemptions.



Interest Rate Swaps — The Medical Center uses inputs other than guoted prices that are observable to
value the intevest rate swaps. The Medical Center considers these inputs to be Level 2 inputs in the
context of the fair vaiue hierarchy. The fair value of the net interest rate swap lability was $15,017,000
and $15,589,000 at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These values represent the estimated
amounts the Medical Center would receive or pay to terminate agreements, taking into consideration
current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the counterparty,

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Medical Center in estimating the fair value of
the Medical Center’s financial instruments that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis for
disclosures in the financial statements:

Receivables and Payables —- The carrying value of the Medical Center’s receivables and payables
approximates fair value, as maturities are very short term.

Pledges Receivable — The current yields for one- to 10-year U.S. Treasury notes are used to discount
contributions receivable, The Medical Center considers these yields to be a Level 2 inpuf in the confext
of the fair value hierarchy. Pledges received were discounted at rates ranging from 0.17% to 4% in 2012
(0.13% to 4.00% in 2011). Pledges received in 2012, which have been recorded at fair value, totaled
approximately $2,693,006 {$2,007,000 in 2611).

Long-Term Debt — The fair value of the bonds and notes payable is estimated based on discounted cash
flow with interest at current rates based on similar issues. The fair market value of the Medical Center’s
long-term debt payable at September 30, 2012 and 2011, approximates the recorded value.

The following tables set forth a summary of the Medical Center’s investments valued using a reported
NAV at September 30, 2012 and 2011, including investments held in the Medical Center’s defined
benefit pension plan (in thousands):

Fair Valie Estimated Using NAV per Share
September 30, 2012

Endowment

and Redemption Other Redemption Redemption
hvestment Pension Operating Frequency Restrictions Notice Period
Collective 1.8, Gov. STIF {f} $ 8022 3 - Monthly None § days
Weatherlow Ofishare Fund 1T Ltd. {a) 18,223 9,240 Quarterly None 45 days
Genesis (b} 21010 Quarterly Up to t5-day setilement period 60120 days
Geness {(b) 6,572 Quarterly Up to 15-day settlement period  60-120 days
Wellington Trust (¢) 42,872 13,058 Monthly None 10 days
Nyes Ledge (¢} 9,460 9,336 December 31 None S0 days
Adamas (d) 6,159 December 31 None 92 days
Avenue Stratege Partners (g} 7,604 Quarterty None &0 days
Total (h) §113,350 $38,200
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Fair Value Estimated Using NAY per Share
September 30, 2011

Endowment
and Redsmption Other Redemption Redemption

Investment Pension Operating and Fraguency Restricticns Notice Period

Collective U8, Gov, §TIF (H) § 24,526 $ - Monthly None 5 days

Weatherlow Offshore Fund U 14d {a) 17 868 6,477 Quarierly MNong 45 days

Genesis {b) 17,476 Quarterly Up to i5-day settlement period 60 days

Genesis {b) 5,608 Cuarterty Up to 15-day settlement period 60 days

Wellington Trust {c) 35,716 10,749 Maonthly None 10 days

Nyes Ledge (e) 7,592 6,067 December 31 Nene 90 days

Adamas (d} 5,718 December 31 None 92 days

Avenue Strategic Partners (g) 7297 Quarterly 5% redemption charge for

redeeming prior to the {8-month
anniversary of a subseription 60 days

Total (h) 116,193 328,601

{a)  Under amaster-feeder structure, the fund secks to achieve #s objective by mvesting all or substantiaily ali of its assets in the Weatheriow
Fund 1L P The Weatherlow Fund 1 1.P tnvests predominately in Hmited partnerships and sumilar investment vehicles,

(b} The Emerging Markets Fund has been established under the Genests Group Trust for Employee Benetit Plans, a tax-exempt pooled trust
destgned to permit qualified employee beneflt plans and certain government plans to commingle a portion of their investment. The
Genesis Emergig Markets, Limited Partnership Endowment abjective is to achieve capital appreciation over the medium Lo long term
through investments in securities emerging markets The objective of the fund is to provide participants with a broadly diversified means
of mvesting in developing countries and immature stock markets, and thus fo previde access to superior returns offered by high rates of
ceonomic and corporate growth, whilst limiting individual country risk.

{c}  The fund’s objective is long-term total return in excess of a customized blended benchmark over a full business cycle. The tdex is
defined as 40% MSCl Energy 33 B and above/15% MSCT Metals and Mining $3 B and above/25% Equal Sector Weighted S&P
GSCland 20% Barclays Capital TIPS one to 10 years” index.

{d)  The purpose of the Partnership 18 (o seek capital appreciation and income by mvesting 1S assets in investment pools, investment
partnerships, and simitar entities (the Investiment Funds), which 1 turn, mvest tn publicly traded equity and debt securities of US. and
foreign wssuers and may also invest in some illiquid investments meluding, but not limited to, real estate and derivatives,

{e)  The fund’s investment objective is to provide investors with attractive, absolute, and relative retums that exhibit moderate volatility and
a low correlation to overall stock and bond markets. The fund altempts fo achieve this objective by investing primarily with & diversified
group of hedge fund managers that Nyes Ledge Capital Management, LLC believes to be the best availabie, while carefully diversifying
across varying styles and strategies.

{f)  The Govermment Short-Term Ivestment Fund (STIF) seeks to provide a reasonable rate of vreturn by investing v securities that are
either 1ssued or guaranteed by the U.S Treasury and/or L1.S. government agencies.

{gy  The Avenue U.5. Strategy seeks to achieve attractive risk-adjusted returns, primarify by focusing on the distressed debt and undervalued
securities of U S, companies. In addition, the Avenue U.S. Stralegy may mvest w real estate debt ar equity

{h)  There arc no unfunded commitments for additional investments,
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The following table presents the changes in fair value measurements for investments with unobservable
inputs for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 {in thousands):

2012 2011

Balance — beginning of year $ - $ -
Transfers from Leve] 2 5,608
Unrealized gains 964
Balance — end of year $6,572 $ -
The amount of total gains included in changes in net assets

atiributable to the change in unrealized gains relating to assets

still held at the reporting date, § 944 5 -

The following table presents the changes in fair value measurements for the Medical Center’s defined
benefit pension plan investments with unchservable inputs for the years ended September 30, 2012 and
2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011

Balance — beginning of year $24,773 £20,253
Transfers to Level 2 ' (7,604)
Purchases/sales 7,600
Unrealized gains (losses) 3,841 {3,080}
Balance — end of year $21,010 $24,773
The amount of total gains (losses) included in changes in net assets

attributable to the change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to assets

still held at the reporting date. § 3,534 § (3,08G)

The valuation methods as described in above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Medical
Center believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the
use of different methodelogies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
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8.

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment at September 30, 2012 and 2011, consist of the following (in thousands):

2012 2011

Land - $ 21,852 $ 21,910
Land improvements 6,234 5,729
Buildings 545,661 531,993
Eguipment 323,853 294,249
Construction in progress 40,896 30,327

938,496 884,208
Less accumulated depreciation 473,078 421,560
Total $465418 § 462,648

Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, was approximately
$34,426,000 and $55,823,000, respectively. At September 30, 2012, the remaining commitment on
construction confracts approximated $2,857,000. The value of property, plant, and equipment
acquisitions in accounts payable at September 30, 2012 and 2011, was approximately $1,554,000 and
$655,000, respectively.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following at September 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011

Prepaid capital costs $33,847 $18.86]
Grants, notes, and pledges receivable 6,374 6,110
Investmenis in joint ventures 5,678 5177
Goodwill and intangible assets 1,694 1.694
Insurance receivables 970

Other 11,838 12,440
Total $60,401 $44,282

The Medical Center’s investments in joint ventures are approximately $5,678,000 and §5,177,000 at
Septentber 30, 2012 and 201 &, respectively. The Maine Heart Center and the MMC Physician-Hospital
Organization, Inc., ventures are physician and hospital collaborations, which manage risk and provide
incentives to deliver high-quality, cost-effective patient care. New England Rehabilitation Hospital of
Portland (NERH) is an acute care rehabilitation facility. Maine Molecular Imaging, LLC provides
mobile PET/CT imaging services, The MaineGeneral Cardiac Cath Lab, LLC provides cardiac
catheterization services to the population of central Maine. The Medical Center’s investments in these
joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting as its ownership in each joint
venture is greater than 20% and less than or equal to 50%,
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Summary financial information for NERH for 2012 and 2011, consists of the following {in thousands):

2012 2011
Percentage of ownership 50 %o 50 %
Assets $20,440 $21,200
Liabilities 13,992 14,047
Shareholders’ equity 6,448 7,153
Net revenue 34,171 31,527
Operating expense 25,076 25,274
Total net earnings 0,094 6,253
MMC’s share of net earnings 4,548 3,127
Charges to NERH for rent and other services 3,901 3,843
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16, LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, consists of the following (in thousands);

2012 2011

Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority:
Revenue refunding bonds — Series 2071 A Serial Bonds; payable in
varicus installments of principal and interest through 2030, interest
rates ranging from 2% to 5%. $15,128 $15,383

Revenue refunding bonds — Series 201 1B Serial Bonds; payable in
various mstallments of principal and interest through 2013, interest
rates ranging from 1.50% to 2.30%. 1,660 2,525

Revenue bonds — Series 2008A Revenue Bonds; payable in
various instaliments of principal through 2036; variable rate demand
obiigations; the average interest rate in effect for the years ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011, was 0.18% and (.28%, respectively.
The interest rate at September 30, 2012 and 2011, was .20% and
0.29%, respectively. Interest is set weekly by the remarketing agent
and may be changed to a different period or converted to a fixed rate, 87,490 60,324

Revenue bonds — Series 2008B Revenue Bonds; payable in various
instaliments of principal through 2014; variable rate demand
obligations; the average interest rate in effect for the years ended
2012 and 2011 was 0.16% and 0.28%, respectively. The
interest rate at September 30, 2012 and 2011, was 0.18% and
0.29%, respectively. Interest is set weekly by the remarketing
agent and may be changed to a different period or converted
1o a fixed rate. 6,701 11,102

Add unacereted original issue premium. 636 712

Promissory note payable to a bank, interest at 5.99% with a maturity
date of October 1, 2027. 2,563 2,660

Promissory note payable to a bank, interest at LIBOR, plus 1%

(1.22% and 1.23% at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively)

with a maturity date of November 15, 2015, 1,041 1,330
Promissory note payable 10 a bank, interest at LIBOR, plus ¢.75%

(0.97% and 0.98% at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively)

with a maturity date of March 1, 2020. 577 653

{Continued)
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2012 2011

Promissory note payable to a bank, interest at LIBOR, plus 1%
{1.22% and 1.23% at September 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively) with a maturity date of March 1, 2020. § 1,070 § 1211

Promissory note payable to a bank, interest at LIBOR, plus 0.75%
{0.97% and 1.23% af September 30, 2012 and 201 1) with a

maturity date of March 1, 2017, 2,132 2,369

Other — including capital lease obligations 1,905 2,633

120,905 131,402

Less current portion of long-term debt 11,247 14,193

Total $109,658 $117,209
(Concluded)

Annual principal maturities of long-term debt for the five fiscal yzars after September 30, 2012, and the

years thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ending Bonds and Capital Lease
September 30 Notes Obligations
2013 § 10,113 1,146
2014 7.783 505
2013 4,599 208
2016 4,878 Hi0
2017 4,746 59
Years thereafter 85,845
$118,364 2,018
Less amount representing interest under capital lease obligations 113
$1,905

The Series 2008A and 2008B bondholders have the option to put the bonds back to the Medical Center,
Such bonds would be subiect to remarketing efforts by the remarketing agent. To the extent that such
remarketing efforts were to be unsuccessful, the nonmarketable bonds would be purchased from the
proceeds from two letter of credit agreements with a bank, which expire on October 3, 2018, and July 2,
2014, respectively, If the letter of credit agreements are not extended or repiaced, the bonds must either
be tendered or converted to long-term fixed-rate bonds. If tendered, MMC, pursuant to the loan
agreement, would be precluded from insiructing the remarketing agent to conduct an auction with the
bonds to be sold on a variable rate basis, and the bonds would be purchased from the proceeds of the
letter of credit agreements. Bonds purchased from the proceeds of the letter of credit agreements are
converted to “Bank Bonds™ and are payable over nine years. The Series 2008 A and 2008B bonds have
been classified in accordance with the repayment provisicns contained in the letter of credit agreements
in the accompanying consoclidated balance sheets, The Series 20084 and 2008B bonds have been
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reported in accordance with the scheduled maturities contained in the bond agreements in the table of
annual principal payments above.

It all the Series 2008 A and 2008B bonds were put back to the Medical Center on September 30, 2012,
and not remarketed, the required repayments of all long-term debt (excluding capital lease obligations),

after giving effect to the terms of the related letler of credit agreement, would be as follows {in
thousands):

Years Ending

September 30

2013 $ 2,581
2014 14,324
2015 13,556
2016 13,306
2017 13,047
Years thereafter 61,550

The Board of Trustees of the Medical Center adopted a System Funding Agreement and a Corporate
Model Master Trust Indenture (the “Indenture”) and the Board of Trustees of MaineHealth adopted a
System Funding Agreement and a Parent Madel Master Trust Indenture. These actions resulted in the
creation of an Obligated Group for the MaineHealth system. MaineHealth subsidiaries that are
Designated Affiliates of the Obligated Group have access to lower cost capital and less restrictive debt
covenants. The Designated Affiliates are indirectly liable for the debt service on the obligations issued
under the Indenture for each participant. The Medical Center must remain a part of the Obligated Group,
but has approval authority over new subsidiaries of MaineHealth requesting participation in the
Obligated Group. On September 30, 2012 and 2611, the Obligated Group has obligations totaling
approximately $180,845,000 and $192,798,000, respectively, that are covered under the Master Trust
Indenture, The Medical Center is indirectly liable for debt service payments on obligations of
approximately $68,189,600 and $70,923,000 at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Interest Rate Swaps — The estimated fair values of the interest rate swap agreements at September 30,
2012 and 2011, and the change in their fair values for the years then ended are as follows (in thousands):

Change in Net Gain (lLoss)
Unrgalized Loss Recognized
Recognized in in Excess of
Estimated Net Assets Revenue over Qutstanding
Fair Value {Effective Portion) Expenses Notional Amount
instrument 2042 2014 2012 2011 2612 2011 2012 2011
Nonhedged contracts $(12,339)  $(12,50%) - 5 - $163 $(1,542) § 72408 § 78,154
Nonhedged contracts 1,275 474 801 120 25,000 23,000
Hedged contracts (3953 {3,560) (4i6) (758) 4 (423 16,600 16,000
Total $15.017) ${15,589) ${416) $0758) % $01,564) $113,408 $119,154

The fair values of the interest rate swap agreements are reported in other long-term assets (labilities).
The change in fair value of the effective portion of the interest rate swap agreements that qualify for
hedge accounting are reported as a change in unrestricted net assets. The change in fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements that do not qualify for hedge accounting {including any ineffective portion
of qualifying hedge instruments) are reported as a nonoperating activity. The Medical Center has
reported the net periodic interest rate settlement on the interest rate swaps as a component of intersst
expense in the consolidated statements of operations.
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11.

The primary risk managed by the Medical Center’s derivative instruments is interest rate risk. The
Medical Center uses interest rate swaps to modify its exposure 10 interest rate risk by converting a
portion of its variable rate borrowings to a fixed-rate basis, thus reducing the impact of interest rate
changes on future interest expense. The Medical Center also uses other interest rate swaps (o restructure
its interest rate exposure by utilizing swaps with different maturity and basis techniques.

These inferest rate, basis, and constant maturity swaps involve counterparty credit risk exposure. The
counterparties are major financial institutions that at one fime met the Medical Center’s criteria for
financial stability and creditworthiness. In each interest rate swap agreement, the counterparty is
required to provide a credit support amount. If the counterparty’s debt is rated below certain levels and
there is a counterparty liability, the counterparty is required to post collateral,

Certain of the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds and Revenue
Refunding Bonds were issued under the terms of a Master Trust Indenture Agreement. Under the terms
of the bonds, the Medical Center is required to maintain certain deposits with a trustee. Such deposits are
included with investments whose use is limited in the conselidated financial statements. The bonds aiso
require that the members of the Obligated Group satisfy certain measures of financial performance
(including a minimum debt service coverage ratio) as long as the bonds are cutstanding. Management is
not aware of any noncompliance with such covenants at September 30, 2012.

Defarred financing costs of $662,000 in 2012 and $723,000 in 2611 are reported as a component of
other assets and represent the costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the bonds. These costs
are being amortized over the term of the bonds. Amortization expense for the years ended September 30,
2012 and 2011, was approximately $61,000 and $74,000, respectively. The original issue
discount/premium is accreted over the term of the related bonds using the effective interest method.

The Medical Center has a $15,000,000 revolving line of credit with a bank, which expires in March
2013, The line is uncollateralized and shail bear interest at a per annum rate equal to one and cne-hglf
percent (1.5%) above the one-month London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The interest rate on this
line is limited by a floor as follows: the minirum interest rate (i.e., floor} is 2% per annum, No balance
was outstanding on this line of credit at Septernber 30, 2012.

SELF-INSURANCE TRUSTS AND RESERVES

The Medical Center is partially self-insured for professional and general Hability risks. The Medical
Center shares risk above certain amounts with an insurance company for all claims reiated to the
partialiy self-insured plans. The Medical Center maintains separate trusts for professional and general
liability insurance. The Medical Center funds these trusts based upon actuarial valuations and historical
experience. Self-insurance reserves for seli-insured unpaid claims and incidents are estimated using
actuarial valuations, historical payment patterns, and current irends. Self-insurance reserves are recorded
in the period the claim or incident occurs and adjusted in future periods as additiona! data become
known.

The Medical Center provides health and dental insurance for its employees through a self-insured plan
administered by MaineHealth, the parent corporation of the Medical Center. For financial reporting
purposes, the Medical Center is allocated its pro rata share of plan expenses based on its number of
employees and dependents. Seif-insurance reserves for unpaid claims and incidents are carried at
MaineHealth. The difference between actual and projected plan expenses is reflected in the future
premiums charged to the Medical Center by MaineHealth,
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12,

13.

The Medical Center provides workers’ compensation insurance for its employees through a seif-insured
plan administered by MaineHealth. Employees covered under this plan include all current employees, as
well as employees with work injury claims incurred after December 31, 1995, For financial reporting
purposes, the Medical Center is charged a pro rata share based on payroll classifications. Self-insurance
reserves are carried at MaineHealth for unpaid claims and settlements are estimated using actuarial
valuations. Self-insurance reserves are recorded in the period the incident occurs and adjusted i future
periods as additional data become known. Four claim-related incidents, which occurred in 1985, 1992,
1993, and 1994, continue to be adminisiered through the Medical Center. Self-insurance reserves for
these claims are carried at the Medical Center, The amounts reserved for unpaid claims and settlements
are estimated using actuarial valuations.

CONDITIONAL ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Medical Center has previously recognized a liability for the fair value of its conditional assef
retirement obligaticns. The liability is related to the estimated costs to remove the asbestos contained
within the Medical Center’s facilities, The conditional asset retirement obligation is reported with other
Habilities.

A reconciliation of the Habilities for asset retirement obligations at September 30, 2012 and 2011, is as
follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Asset retirement obligations — beginning of year 316,559 $16,220
Accretion expense 439 571
Remediation {114} {2323
Asset retirement obligations — end of year 516,884 $16,559

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined Benefit Pension Plan — The Medical Center sponsors a defined benefit pension plan (the
“Plan”) covering all employees that work 756 or more hours in a plan year. The Plan was amended
effective January 1, 2011, to change the basis of a participant’s accrued benefit. Prior to January 1, 2011,
accrued benefits were based on final average pay. Effective January 1, 2011, for participants hired on or
before December 31, 2009, there is a benefit based on the participant’s final average pay through
December 31, 2020, and vears of service through December 31, 2010. For participants currently
employed or hired on or afler January 1, 2010, accrued benefits are based on a cash balance formula that
became effective January 1, 2011, A participant’s cash balance account is increased by an annual cash
balance contribution for participants with 750 hours of service, and interest credits in accordance with
the terms of the amended Plan document. The annual cash balance contribution is determined by
applying a rate based on age and years of service to the participant’s annual compensation. Inferest
credits are equal to a percentage of the participant’s cash balance account on the first day of the Plan
vear and are credited on the last day of the Plan year prior to payment of the annual cash balance
contribution. Except for certain instances, the rate of interest used to determine the interest credit for a
Plan vear is 5%. Retiring or terminating employess have the optien to receive a lump-sum payment,
annuity, or transfer to another qualified plan in accordance with the terms of the amended Plan
document, an amount that was earned subsequent to January 1, 2011,
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The Medical Center’s funding policy is to contribute amounis to fund current service cost and to fund
over 30 years the estimated accrued benefit cost arising from qualifying service prior to the
establishment of the Medical Center’s plan. The assets of the plan are held in trust and are investedin a
diversified portfolio that includes temporary cash investments, marketable equity securities, mutual
funds, U.S. Treasury notes, corporate bonds and notes, hedge funds, and other funds.

Defined Benefit Postretirement Medical Plan — The Medical Center offers its employees who retire
from the Medical Center prior to age 65 the option to continue their participation in the Employee
Health Plan until age 65. Retirees pay 100% of the cost. The retiree must terminate from the plan upon
age 65 (the age for Medicare eiigibility). In addition, the Medical Center offers a Retiree Group
Companion Plan benefit to a limited group of employees if certain special eligibility requirements are
met. To be eligible to access this benefit, an employee must have attained age 55 with five years of
pension service as of September 30, 2004, and be enrolled in the Employee Health Plan at the time of
their retirement. If under 65 when retiring, the retirees must continue their enrollment in the active
employee plan untll they turn 65 at 100% of the active rate. The retiree may then enroll in the Retiree
Group Companion Plan at age 65 once they have first enrolled in Medicare.
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The activity in the defined benefit pension plan and postretirement medical plan using valuation dates of
September 30, 2012 and 2011, consists of the foilowing (in thousands):

Net periodic benefit cost:
Service ¢ost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan asseis
Amortization of;
Actuarial foss
Prior service (credit) cost

Net periodic benefit cost

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation ~- beginning of year

Service cost
Interast cost
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid
Expenses paid

Beneflt obligation — end of year

Change in plan assets:
Net assets of plan — beginning of year
Actual returmn on plan assets
Employer contribution
Benefits paid
Expenses paid

Net assets of plan — end of year

Net amount recognized

Defined Benefit

Postretirement

Pension Plan Medical Plan
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ 22,682 $ 20,796 h) - 3 -
26,307 25,206 436 444
(33,418 {30,340y
13,084 10,142 118 2]
(1,462) {1,462) {23) (23
$ 27,193 3 24,342 h} 534 $ 513
$ 537.677 $ 489,454 3 9,196 3 8,675
22,682 20,796
26,307 25,206 439 444
80,823 25,758 1,356 531
(20,378} (22,71 {408) (454)
(834) {826}
$ 646,277 $ 537,677 $ 10,583 $ 5,196
$ 355,543 $ 343,542 ) - $ -
50,369 (2,862)
41,0630 38,400 407 454
(20,37%9) {(22,71hH (407 {454}
(834) (826)
$ 425,729 $ 355,543 $ - $ -
§(220,548) $(182,134) $(10,583) $(9,196}
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The additional defined benefit pension plan and posiretirement medical plan disclosure information for
the vears ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, is as foliows (in thousands): '

Pefined Benefit Postretirement
Pension Plan Medical Plan
2012 2011 2012 2011

Amounts recognized in the consolidated

balance sheets:

Prepaid pension costs b3 - $ 38,762

Accrued retirement benefits (220,548) {220,896} $(10,583) 5(9,196)
Net amounts recognized in the

consolidated balance sheets $(220,548) $(182,134) $(10,583) $(9,196)
Additional information —

accumuiated benefit obligation $(602,897y $(494,176)

Unrestricted net assets at September 30, 2012 and 2011, include unrecognized losses of $285,681,000
and $234,893,000, respectively, related to the defined pension benefit plan. Of this amount, $21,889,000
is expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost in 2013, The loss in 2012 and 2011 is primarily
due 1o a decrease in the discount rate used to determine the benefit obligation, changes in other actuarial
assumptions, and variances in demographic experience compared to prior assumptions,

The assumptions of the Plan as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, are as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011

Measurement date September 30 September 39
Census date January 1 Janvary 1
Used to determine net periodic pension cost:

Piscount rate 5.00 % 525 %

Rate of compensation increase 3.00 2.060
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.00 8.00
Used to determine benefit obligation:

[iscount rate 4.25 5.00

Rate of compensation increase for 2012 and 2013 2.00 3.00

Rate of compensation increase for 2014 and 2015 2.75 3.00

Rate of compensation increase for 2016 and after 3.00 3.00

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets for the Pension Plan reflects the plan sponsor’s
estimate of future investment returns (expressed as an annual percentage) taking into account the
allocation of plan assets among different investment classes and long-term expectations of future returns
on each class.

The targeted allocation for the Pension Plan investments are: Debt Securities — 30.0%, U.S. Equity
Securities — 22.5%, [nternational Equity Securities — 17,5%, Emerging Market Equity Securities ——
5.0%, Natural Resources — 10.0%, and Alternative Investments — 15.0%. The Pensicn Plan’s
investments as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, are disclosed in Note 7.
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The Pension Plan’s overall financial objective is to provide sufficient assets to satisfy the retirement
benefit requirements of the Pension Plan’s participants. This objective is to be met through a
combination of confribuiions to the Pension Plan and investment returns, The long-term investment
objective for the plan is to aftain a total return (net of investment management fees) of at least 5% per
year in excess of the rate of inflation measured by the Consumer Price Index. The nature and duration of
benefit obligations, along with assumptions concerning asset class returns and return correlations, are
considered when determining an appropriale asset aflocation to achieve the investment objectives,

investment policies and strategies governing the assets of the plan are designed to achieve the financial
objectives within prudent risk parameters. Risk management practices include the use of external
mnvestment managers, the mainienance of a partfolio diversified by asset class, investment approach, and
security heldings, and the maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet benefit obligations as they come
due,

The medical inflation assumption used for mesasurement purposes in the per capita cost of covered health
_care benefits for the Postretirement Medical Plan were 7.5% and 8.0% annual rates of increase for the
years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These rates were assumed to graduaily decrease
to 5% over a period of years and remain at that level thereafter. A 1% change in the medical inflation
rate would cause an approximately $1,424,000 change in the benefit obligation,

The welghted-average discount rates used in determining the accumulated postretirement medical
benefit obligation were 4.25% and 5,00% for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The weighted-average discount rates used in determining the net periodic postretirement
medical benefit cost were 5.00% for fiscal 2012 and 5.25% for fiscal 2011. As the posfretirement
medical plan is unfunded, no assumption was required as to the long-term rate of return on assets.

Future benefits are expected te be paid as follows at September 30, 2G12 (in thousands):

FPostretirement

Medical Plan
Years Ending Defined Benefit {Net of Retiree
September 30 Pension Plan Contributions)
2013 § 28,910 $ 665
2014 32,255 690
2015 34,776 694
2016 37,719 746
2017 41,591 79%
20182022 266,263 4,637

The estimated expected contribution to be made during 2013 is $62,000,000,

Defined Contribution Pension Plans - The Medical Center also sponsors a 403(b) retirement pian for
all employvees, The Medical Center provides a 50% match of each dollar coniributed by the emplovee up
10 a maximum contribution of 2% of their gross earnings. The employees are eligible to receive the
employee mateh after one vear of service. The expense recognized for the Medical Center’s match was
approximately $35,733.000 and $5,283,000 in 2012 and 2011, respectively.



14, NET ASSETS

Temporarily Restricted Nef Assets — Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted primarily for
health care services and consist of the following at September 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands);

2012 2011
Donor-restricted specific purpose funds $ 4,883 § 5,940
Accumulated appreciation on permanently restricted net assets 70,763 66,123
Plant replacement fiinds 362 602
Pooled life and charitable remainder trusts 2,083 3,369

£78,093 76,034

Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Permanently restricted net assets at September 30, 2012 and
2011, consist of investments to be held in perpetuity, the income from which is expendable primarily to
support the care of patients (in thousands):

2012 2011

Permanently restricted net assets $25019 $23,560

Endowment Funds — The Medical Center’s endowment consists of funds established for a variety of
purposes. For the purposes of this disclosure, endowment funds include donor-restricted endowment
funds, As reguired by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported
hased on the exisience or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Refevant Law — The Medical Center has interpreted state iaw as requiring realized
and unrealized gains on permanently restricted net assets to be retained in a temporarily restricted net
asset classification until appropriated by the Board of Trustees (the “Board”™) and expended. State law
allows the Board o appropriate as much of the net appreciation of permanently restricted net assets as is
prudent considering the Medical Center’s long- and short-term needs, present and anticipated financial
requirements, and expected total retun on its investments, price levei trends, and general economic
conditions. The amount appropriated related to the net appreciation of permanently restricted net assets
in 2012 was approximately $6 million. There were no amounts appropriated in 201 1.

As a resulf of this interpretation, the Medical Center classifies as permanently restricled net assets (a) the
original value of the gifts donated to the permanent endowment when explicit donor stipulations
requiring permanent maintenance of the historical fair value are present and (b) the original value of the
subsequent gifis to the permanent endowment when expiicit donor stipulations requiring permanent
maintenance of the historical fair value are present. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted
endowment fund comprised of accumulated gains not required to be maintained in perpetuity is
classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure in a
manner consistent with the donor’s stipulations. The Medical Center considers the following factors in
making a determination to apprepriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: duration and
preservation of funds, purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, general economic conditions,
the possible effect of inflation and deflation, the expected total return from income and the appreciation
of investments, other resources of the Medical Center, and the investment policies of the Medical
Center.



Endowment Investment Return Objectives —— The Medical Center has adopted investment policies
for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to the programs supported
by its endowment, while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets,
Endowment assets include those assets of donor-resiricted funds that the organization must hold in
perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s), as well as Board-designated funds, Under this policy, the
endowment assets are invested in a manner to attain a total return {net of investment management fees)
of at least 5.5% per year in excess of inflation, as measured by the Consumer Price Index. To satisfy its
long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Medical Center targets a diversified asset allocation that places a
greater emphasis on equity-based investments within prudent risk constraints,

Endowment Net Asset Composition — The following is a summary of the endowment net asset
composition by type of fund at September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the changes therein for the vears then
ended (in thousands):

Temporarily Permanentiy

Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets — October 1, 2610 $ 68,001 $23,019 $91,020
Investment return — net depreciation (1,878) {1,878)
Gifts, donations, and other 541 541
Endowment net assets — September 30, 2011 66,123 23,560 89,683
Investment return -— net appreciation 10,664 10,664
Appropriation of endowmenf assets for expenditure (6,024) (6,024)
(Gifts, donaticns, and other 1,459 1,459
Endowment net assets — September 30, 2012 $70,763 $25,019 $95,782

Funds with Deficiencies — From time to fime, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-
restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the Medical Center to retain
as a fund of perpetual duration. There were no material deficiencies of this nature as of September 30,
2012 or 2011.
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16.

17.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Medical Center to concentration of credit risk,
consist of patient accounts receivable, estimated amounts receivable under reimbursement reguiations,
and certain investments. Investments, which include government and agency securities, stocks, and
corporate bonds, are not concentrated in any corporation or industry. The Medical Center grants credit
without collateral to its patients, most of whom are insured under third-party payor agreements, The mix
of receivables from patients and third-party payors at September 30, 2012 and 2011, was as follows:

2012 2011
Medicare 31 % 29 %
MaineCare 16 18
Anthem Biue Cross 6 7
Other third-party pavors 36 36
Patients 11 10

100 % 100 %

rm——

OPERATING LEASES

The Medical Center leases equipment and office space under various noncancelable operating leases,
Fulure minimum payments due under noncancelable operating leases with a term of one year or more as
of September 30, 2012, are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ending

September 30

2013 £ 6,122
2014 5,619
2015 4,567
2016 2,951
2017 1,869
Thereafter 3,660

§ 24,788

Payments made under operating leases amounted to approximately $6,255,000 in 2012 and $6,400,000
in2011.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the vears ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Medical Center charged affiliates $27,736,000
and $17,905,000, respectively, for services provided. For the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011,
MaineHealth charged the Medical Center $31,619,000 and $14,377,000, respectively, for management,
legal, and audit services, For the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, MaineHealth charged the
Medical Center $54,615,000 and $58,784,000, respectively, for health insurance (see Note 11). For the

- 37 -



years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, MaineHealth charged the Medical Center $2,927,000 and
$2,927,000, respectively, for workers™ compensation insurance (see Note 11), The Medical Center
maintains an agreement with NorDx, a subsidiary of MaineHealth, to receive substantially all
laboratory services. For the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, NorDx charged the Medical
Center $22,264,000 and $21,824,000, respectively, for the laboratory services.

The Medical Center invests monies for MaineMHealth and certain MaineHealth subsidiaries in
commingled investment accounts. These amounts are excluded from the imvestments held and reported
by the Medical Center.

The MaineHealth’s Board of Trustees has approved $106 million in capital expenditures to acquire and
implement an enterprise-wide software solution to include inpatient clinical information sy stems,
revenue cycle management, financial management systems, supply chain, and human resource
management systems. These systems will be implemented over four years. The Medical Center’s
allocated portion of this expenditure is estimated at $60 million, which has been recorded by the Medical
Center as a long-term other asset, The total paid by the Medical Center for its aflocated portion
amounted to approximately $34,000,000 and $19,000,000 at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively,
It is anticipated that the Medical Center’s allocated share will be applied to the capital portion of
amounts that MaineHealth will charge to the Medical Center when the systerns are in use.

The following table sets forth a summary of the Medical Center’s due to/from affiliated entities balances
at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively (in thousands):

2012 2011
Due From Dueto Due From Dueto
Current:
MaineHealth - 3 168 § 927 $ 518
NorDx 1,881 236
Western Maine Heaith Care Corporation 306 331
Southern Maine Medical Center 1,057 1,091
Waldo County Healthcare 270 441
HomeHealth-Visiting Nurses of Southern Maine 3,152 85
Maine Mental Health Partners 221 768
Pen Bay Healthcare 1,722 814
Synemet 132 123
Lincoln County Heath Care 341 202
ACO 22
Other 1,078 3,321 1,088 495
$5,149 $8,522 $5,872 $1,249
Noncurrent:
MaineHealth $5,564 $ - 55,564 -
Other 4 23
55,568 5 - $5,587 3 -




18. FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Medical Center provides health care services through its acute care, specialty care, and ambulatory
care facilities. Expenses refating to providing these services are as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Professional care of patients $611,526 $ 550,029
Dietary 10,078 10,260
Household and property 38,081 37.3%4
Administrative services 76,596 78,458
Research 21,085 25,020
State taxes 14,992 14,944
General services and employee benefits 80,902 81,903
Interest 3.907 4,851
Depreciation and amortization 54,487 55,899
Provision for bad debts 40,714 39,119

$ 952,368 $ 897,877

19. CONTINGENCIES

The Medical Center is subject to complaints, claims, and litigation that have arisen in the normal course
of business, In addition, the Medical Center is subject to compliance with laws and regulations of
various governmental agencies. Recently, governmental review of compliance with these laws and
regulations has increased, resulting in fines and penaities for noncompliance by individual health care
providers. Compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to future government review,
interpretation, or actions, which are unknown and unasserted at this time.
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MAINE MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
{in thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Patient accounts receivable — net

Curent portion of investments whose use is limited

Inventories, prepaid expenses, and other current
assets

Estmated amounts reccivable under reimbursement
regulations

Curment portion of notes and amounts recelvable
from affiliated entities

Total current assets

INVISTMENTS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED BY:
Debt agreements
Bourd designation
Se l-nsurance trust agreements
Specially designated speeific purpose funds
Plant replacement funds
Furnds functioning as endowment funds
Pooled life income funds

Lesg current portion

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT - Net

ESTIMATED AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE
UNDER REIMBURSEMENT REGULATIONS

NOTES AND AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM
AFFILIATED ENTITIES — Less current pottion

OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL

w41 -

Maine Maine
Metical Medical MMC
Center Partners Realty  Eliminations Consolidated
§ 19,538 1,604 s - 5 - § 21142
204,718 204,718
74.423 12,142 86,5605
5,743 5,743
16,730 2,474 186 19,390
2,898 2,898
6,308 11,720 (12,879 5,149
330,358 16,220 11,906 {12,879 345,603
4,142 4,142
76486 76,486
21,445 21,445
36,273 36,273
19,276 19,276
98,013 98,013
2,638 2,635
258,270 - - - 258,270
5,143 5,743
252,527 - - - 252,527
433,033 2,086 30,299 465418
50,277 50,277
5.568 5,568
43.518 10,883 60,401
$1,121.281 $29.189 5422035 $(12,879) $1,1759,79¢
(Continued)



MAINE MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
{In thousands)

Maine Maine
Medical Medical MMC
Center Partners Realty Eliminations Consolidated
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of feng-term debt $ 10,190 5 - § 1,057 I - $ 11,247
Accounts payable and other current lialbilities 31,475 366 61 32,102
Accrued payroll, payrol! taxes, and amounts withheld 20,427 6,332 26,959
Accrued earned time 21,968 2,498 24,466
Accrued interest payable 423 423
Estimated amounts payabie under reimbursement
reguiations 37,585 37,585
Self-insurance reserves 1,601 1,601
Current portion of notes and amounts payable to
affiliasted entities 20,243 1,158 (12,879 8,522
Total current labilities 143,912 9,566 2,276 (12,879) 142,905
ACCRUED RETIREMENT BENEFITS 232,708 232,708
SELFINSURANCE RESERVES 16,766 16,766
LONG-TERM DEBT -~ Less current portion 103,543 6,115 109,638
OTHER LIABILITIES 33,702 483 34,185
Total liabitities 530,631 9,596 8,874 (12,879} 536.222
NETASSETS:
Unrestricted 487,538 19,593 33,331 340,462
Temporarily restricted 76,093 78,093
Permanently restricted 25,019 25,016
Taotal net assets 590,650 19,593 33,331 - 643,574
TOTAL $1,121.281 $29,189 $42.205 $ (12,879 $1,179,796

{Concluded)
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MAINE MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
{In thousands)

Maine Maine

Medical Medical MMC

Center Partngrs Reaity  Eliminations Gonsolidated
UNRESTRICTED REVENUE AND OTHER SUPPORT:

Net patient service revenue $818,120 $ 80,983 5 - $ - $899,103

Direct research revenues 13,493 13,493

indirect research revenues 4,380 4,380

Other revenue 83,283 33,785 5,818 (56,448) 06437

Total unrestricted revenue and other support 919,276 114,768 5.818 {56,449 083413
EXPENSES:

Salaries 348,614 83,088 431,702

Employes benefits 110,025 11,676 121,701

Supplies 136,625 583 61 137,269

Professional fees and purchased services 126,793 h,332 535 (22,373) 111,287

Facility and other costs 32,660 35,946 1,777 (34074) 36,309

Staze taxes 14,992 14,992

Interast 3,502 445 3,807

Depreciation and amertization 52,610 50 1,376 54,487

Provision for bad debts 36,389 4335 40,714

Total expenses 862,212 142 451 4,154 (56,445} 952,368
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 57,064 (27,683) 1,664 - 31,045
NONOPERATING GAINS:

Gifis and other — net of cxpenses 2,752 2,752

Interest and dividends 9,965 9,965

Recognized loss on cash flow hedge instruments 879 109 948

Equity in earnings of joint venlures 498 4,462 4,960

Total nonoperating gains — net 14,094 4462 LG9 - 18,665
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES BEFORE

INCREASE IN FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENTS 71,158 (23,221 1,773 49710
INCREASE IN FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENTS 13,983 13,983
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 85,141 (23.221) 1,773 - 63,693
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS FOR PROPERTY,

PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 2,026 2,029
EQUITY TRANSFER (TO) FROM AFFILIATES {29,739 26,591 {3,14%)
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN ADJUSTMENTS (53,504 {53,504
CHANGE [N NET UNREALIZED LOSS ON CASH FLOW HEDGE

INSTRUMENTS (416) {416
INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS $ 3511 $ 3370 31773 5 - 3 8654
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Acty 28, 2013

Susanna M. Bokeer, ALA, LEED AP BD+C
Associate

Senior Project Manager

Perkins+ Wil

225 Franklin Sreet, Sulte 1100

Bogion, kA 02110

Ra: Mdine Medical Center - Bean Roof Addition
Utitity Capacity - Tan 13
AKF Proiect No, B120229-000

Dear Susanna,

The new Maine Medical Center - Bean Roof Addition project will have minimal impact on the utilities
serving the existing campus. These existing utilities have sufficient capacity fo support the addition.

There will be no addifional utility infrastructure work reguired for the following systems:

« Domestic and Fire Water
¢ Sonitary Sewer

e Storm Drainage

e MNaotural Gas

¢ [Hecthic Service

Please feal free to call with any questions or comments regarding this matter or if you wish to discuss
this further.

AKF

Petar ! Reilly, P.E. T Dennis Kaiser — P+W
Parner Dieter Gartrer — F+W
PIR/sv BMM, RAC



PER KINS
- WL L

TAb {1

Fire Safety Summary

Per the Code Report prepared for the Bean 2 Roof Addition on December 19, 2012 (and enclosed with
this submission), the project complies with the reguirements of NFPA,

PABOstONE521017,.000-Maine_Medical Master_Pian\152:17.001_ptaster_Plarm\DOCS\C0.0-ProjectMgmnt\00.06-WorkPlaniTeam Meatings



Prepared By AndrewP Schwaibenberg S
R-ev.iev.'ved By: DonkE. Contoas PE.
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Bean Addition - MMC
December 18 2012
Fage 1

Intfroduction

The project includes renovations and an addifion to the second floor of the Bean
Building at Maine Medical Ceniar in Portiand, Maine. The following code
summary report is based on the plans received December 10, 2012 and the
Statement of Condifions plans received November 4, 2011, The following is a list
of applicable codes:

Appiicable Code

Code Type (M;)dpei Code Basis)
Building 2009 international Building Code
Fire Prevention | NFEA 101 Life Safety Code, 2008 Edition
Accessibility | Maine Human Rights Commission
Electrical | 2011 Naticnal Electrical Code

. | ASHRAE 62.1 - 2007
Mechanical | ASHRAE 822 2007
Pjumbing | 2009 Uniform Plumbing Code {with State Amendmants)
| Energy Conservation | 2009 intemational Enargy Conservation Code

For the purpose of this report, the building is assumed 1o be fully sprinkiered in
accordance with the International Building Code (1BC) Section 803,

1. Occupancy Classification:

IBC Occupancy Classifications (Section 302)
s« -2 {Hospital)

NFPA 101 Occupancy Classifications {Section 6.1)
« Health Care

2. Min. Construction Type:

= |IBC - Type iB (noncombustible, 2 hour rated)
e NFPA 101~ Type | (2,2,2) {(noncombustibie, 2 hour rated)

3. Height and Area Limitations:

Since the existing construction type of Bean and Richard is I1B, the aliowable
area for this building (Bean and Richard) is uniimited; therefore, the addition
does not excaed the area limitation for this building (IBC Table 503).

The addition will be separated from the adjacent existing building by two hour
fire barriers; this separation permits the existing portions of the building to
remain as-is without requiring full compliance with NFPA 101 (NFPA 101
Section 18.1.1.4. 1},

4. Fire Resistance Ratings:

The following fire resistance ratings are required in accordance with IBC
Table 801 and various sections of the code.



Bean Addition ~ MIMC
December 19, 2012

Fage 2
- Fire Resistance Openi_ng
New Building Elements Rating (Hrs) Pro(t:?s)ves
Structure! Frame i .
Extarior Bearing Walls 2h .
Interior Bearing Walls 2* .
Extetior Non-Bearing Walls Based on F3D | -
Interior Non-Bearing Walls 0 J -
Floor Construction il } .
Roof Construction 1 ’ -

Exit Access Corridars {1BC 407.2 & 407.3) Smoke Rasistant | Positive-latching

Stair Shafts (IBC 1022.1) 2 1%
Other Shafts (IBC 708 4) 2 1%
[ Trash Room Greater than 100 # in Area (IBC
E | o
Table 508.2.5) Smoke Resistant | Self Closing

Rooms With Equipment Greater than 400,000 . .
Btuh Input Capacity (IBC Table 508.2.5) Smoke Resistant Seff Closing

:
A

Not less than the rating supported (IBC 707.5, 709.4, and 712.4).

Fire walls, fire barriers, fire pariitions, smoke barriers, and smoke partitions,
ar any other wall required to have protected openings or penetfrations must
be identified with signs or stenciling within accessible concealed spaces (i.e.
fioor-ceifling, attic spaces) at 30 f intervals with at least 0.5" lefters stating:
‘FIRE AND/OR SMOKE BARRIER — PROTECT ALL OPENINGS" or similar
wording (IBC 703.6).

Exterior Wall Openings & Fire Resistance Rating:

The exterior wall rating requirements and opening limitations are based on
the fire separation distance for sach wall. The fire separation distance is
measured perpendicular to the exterior wall {o the centerline of a public
strest, an interior lot fine, or an imaginary lot line between two huildings on
the same tof (IBC 702.0). Since the fire separation distance of the new
exterior walls is more than 30 fi, the walls are not required to be rated anhd the

aflowabie area of openings is not limited (IBC Table 802 and Section 705.8.1
Exc. 2).

. Vertical Floor Openings

The current plans do not indicate anhy unenclosed floor openings on the
second fioor of the building.
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7. Finishes:

New interior Finish

The new interior finish of walls,-ceilings and floors must comply with the code
for new construction as shown in the table below.

Building Component Waé};c% s%%ig;gs ”Bgegg;iﬂ
Exit Enclosures and Passageways Class B Class Hi
Corridors - Class B Class i
Rooms & Enclosed Spaces Class B DOCFF-1

Exterior Finish

Exterior wall finishes must full comply with the requirements of 2009 iBC 14.
Combustible materials are permitted to be used as an exterior wall finish for
this building in accordance with 2008 IBC Seclion 1406.0; however, all
exterior wall fimshes and architectural trim located greater than 40 feet above
grade plane must be constructed of approved noncombustitle materials and
must be secured ¢ the wall with metal or other approved noncombustibie
brackets (2009 IBC Section 1406.2.2). Additionally, combustible exterior wall
finish is limited to 10% of the exterior wall surface area wheare the fire
separation distance 1s 5 ft or less.

The use of plastic materials as part of the exterior wall assembly (i.e. foam
plastic insulation, exterior coatings and facings) must comply with 2009 IBC
26 (2009 iBC 1404.8). The wall assembly must be tested in accordance with
NFPA 285 (2009 iBC 2803.5.5). Note that this test standard is a full scale
assembly test. We recommend confirming with the manufacturer that the
foam plastic insulation is part of an approved NFPA 285 assembly.

Smoke Compariments:

Smoke compartments are provided in the existing Bean buiiding. The
addition must also comply with the following smoke compartment
requirements:

« Every story containing inpatients for sleeping or treatment, or an occupant
load greater than 50 of any use, must be divided info not less than two
smoke compartments (NFPA 101 Section 18.3.7.1(1) & (2)).

The design is compliant.

+ The size of each smoke compartment must not exceed 22,500 SF unless
the area is an atrium separated in accordance with NFPA 101 Section
B.B.7 (NFPA 101 Section 18.3.7.1(3)).

The addition to the Bean building will be considered a separate smoke
compartment as shown on the aftached plans.
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The fravel distance from any point {o reach a door in the reguired smoke
barrier must be limited fo 200 # or less (NFPA 101 Section 18.3.7.1(4)).

The design is compliant.

The smoke barrier is required to be 1 hour rated except where an atrium
is used and the smoke barrier terminates at an atrium wall and not iess
than two separate smoke compariments are provided on each floor.
Smoke dampers are not required in duct penetrations of smoka barriers in
fully ducted hesating, ventilation, and air-conditioning systems where the
systems serve a single smoke compartment (NFPA 101 Section 18.3.7.3
& 2009 1BC 716.5.5),

The addition is being separated from the aexisting building by two hour fire
barriers.

Not less than 30 net SF per patient must be provided within the aggregate
area of corridors, patient rooms, treatment rooms, lounge or dining areas,
and other fow hazard areas on each side of the smoke barrier (NFPA 101
Secfion 18.3.7.5.1).

If appears that a non-sleeping suite will be included within the addiiion to the
Bean Building. The non-sleeping suife exceeds 2,500 SF as currently shown
on the ptans. The suite complies with the following provisions:

Non-sleeping Suites

Since the suite is more than 2,500 SF a minimum of two exit access
doors are required (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.7.3.2).

One exit must be directly to an exit access corridor, the second exit is
permitted to be through a suite if the suile is separated by the same
construction as corridors (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.7.3.2).

The maximum suite size is 10,000 SF (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.7.3.2),
Travel distance between any point in the non-sleeping suite to an exit
access door must not exceed 100 ft where the suite is arranged with one
intervening room. Travel distance between any point in the non-sieeping
suite to an exit must not exceed 50 ft where the suite is arranged with two
intervening rooms. Travel distance between any point in the non-sieeping
suite to an exit must not exceed 200 ft {NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.7.3.4).

Means of Egress:

The calcuiated occupant load for the proposed fioor pians, the correspending
reguired number of exits, the provided number of exits, and the provided
egress capagity are summarized below (IBC Tables 1004.1.1, 10211 &
1005.1 and NFPA 101 Tables 7.3.1.2 & 7.3.3.1). See Appendix A of this
report for detatled egress calculations.
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Means of Egress

B Number of Exits ; Exit Capacity

|
Floor Occupant Load Required | Provided {persons)

2 458 I 4 850

General Egress Reguirements:

Maximum exit access travel distance must be less than 200 # (1BC Table
1016.1, NFPA 101 Table A7.6.1). The trave! distance from any pointin a

smoke compartment to a smoxe barrier door must not exceed 200 1 (IBC
407 .4). : :

Maximurn dead-end corridor lengih must be less than 20 ft (IBC 1018.4).

All stair doors must swing in the direction of egress travel (NFPA 101
Section 7.2.1.4.3}.

Doors must swing in the direction of egress trave! when serving an
oceupant load of 50 or more persons (IBC 1008.1.2),

All means of egress lighting and exit signs throughout the puilding must
be provided with an emergency power supply {0 assure continued

flumination for not less than 1.5 hours in case of primary power less (IBC
1006.1 & 1011.1).

Remote means of egress must be separated by % of the diagonal
dimension of the room or space they serve (IBC 1015.2.1). The distance
between exits must be measured in a straight line between exit doors.

At least 30 net SF per patient must be provided within the aggregate area
of patient rooms, corridors, freatment rooms, founge, dining, and other
low-hazard areas on each side of the smoke barrier (IBC 407.4.1).

A means of egress must be provided from every smoke compariment
without requiring an occupant to return through the smoke companment
from which means of egress originated (IBC 407.4.2).

Sleeping rooms more than 1,000 SF and non-sleeping rooms more than
2,500 SF must be provided with at least two remote means of egress
(NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.5.1 & 18.2.5.5.2),

Every habitable rocm must have direct access o an exit access corridor
uniess the rooms are located in & suite (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.6.1).

Corridor walls are not required to have a fire-resistance rating but must be
smoka-resistant by forming a barrier o imi the transfer of smoke (NFPA
101 Section 18.3.6.2).
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Corrider doors must be constructed to resist the passage of smoke and
be seif-latching and provided with positive-tatching hardware (NFPA 101
Section 18.3.6.3.1 & 18.3.6.3.5). Doors {o toilet rooms, bathrooms, sink
closets and similar auxiliary rooems that do not contain flammable or
combustible materials are not required to comply with these requirements
{NFPA 101 Section 18.3.6.2.1(3) & 18.3.6.3.6).

Every corridor must provide access to not less than two approved exits
without passing through intervening rcoms or spaces other than corridors
or lobbies (NFPA 101 Section 18.2.5.4).

Travel distance from any point in a health care sleeping room and an exit
access door in that room must not exceed 50 ff (NFPA 101 Section
18.2.6.2.3).

10. Required Fire Protection Systems:

-]

NFFA 13 sprinkier system {2008 1BC 407.5)
Fire alarm system (2008 18C 407 .6)
Standpipe system (2008 1BC 905.3.1)

Fire extinguishers (2009 1BC g08.1)

11. Accessibility for Persons with Disabilities

This faciiity is cpen to and used by the general public. The new building must
therefore comply in full with the provisions of the Maine Human Righis
Commission {Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines).

JN20DIN1227-00d_Fries\Reports\Code Report.aoex
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APPENDIX: Eagress Plans
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Construction Mansgement Plan

L Maine Medical Center Bean 2 Roeof Addition
%’“‘EE 22 Bramhball Street, Portiand, ME

1. Hours of Construction

« Construction activities are restricted to the hours from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00
p.m on weekdays.

o Start-up and warm-up hours of equipment will not commence before
6:00 a.m.

o If construction activity is required outside these hours, Suffolk will
coordinate with Maine Medical Center for approval.

2. Worker hovess and Parling

« Suffolk will require that workers at the Maine Medical Center parking
area on 995 Congress Street.

3. Podestrian Boonss

¢ The project boundaries are within the Maine Medical Center campus.
Suffoik will implement the necessary measures to ensure safe pedestrian
flow around the site, including the use of temporary sidewaiks and
lighting, protective barriers, redirection of pedestrians and directional
signage.

4. Gnew Hemoval

« Suffolk will be responsible for the removal of snow within the project
ared.

s Maine Medica! Center will service any on campus roads, including the
service road.



G, Holze

» The Bean 2 Roof Addition project will work to minimize any excessive
noise impacts. Suffolk will employ the following best management
practices on site and make every effort to prevent nuisance noise
conditions:

- The use of mufflers, including vehicle or equipment turn off whenever
possible,

- Usage of existing power for temporary electricity to minimize use of
on-site genarators.

- Suffoik wiil pre-notify Maine Medical Center departments affected by
unavoidable construction noise with the MMC Project Manager.

- Suffelk will identify in advance activities that may generate
unavoidable excessive noise and use all reasonable efforts to
minimize emission levels,

&. Gonstruction Safety, Security and Access

s Construction safety is a top priority on the Bean 2 Roof Addition project
site; full-time on-site supervision will be provided by Suffolk.

« All subcontractors, vendors, and visitors shall be required to adhere to
Suffolk’s Project Safety Program. All subcontractors and vendors will be
required to attend Maine Medical Center Contractor Site & Safety
Orientation.

+ Access to the site is restricted to construction personnel,

+ Visitors will not be allowed on site unescorted and must sign in at
Suffolk’s on-site field office. *

« Signage shall be posted at site access points indicating that visitors must
check in at the field office; that the area is a construction site and is a hard
hat area; and that access to the site is limited to authorized personnel
only.

» Security on the site is established by a separation fence.



» Gates will be provided at the locations where access will be required
and shall be kept locked during nonworking hours.

« Construction area lighting shall be provided in accordance with OSHA
requirements for safety and security.

s Emergency contact list shall be provided.

7. Waste Disposal and Recyoling

» Suffolk shall utilize a licensed waste hauler will be used for disposal of
all waste and implement recyciing when appropriate.

« Suffolk shall maintain the site in a clean and orderly manner and free
from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish.

&. Five and Emergency Vehicle fccess and Suppression

o

» Fire Department and emergency vehicles will access the site via the
service road which will remain open at all times. Access gates will be
provided at each end of the site.

s Suffolk will meet with the City of Portland Fire Department to review
site access once

» Suffolk will extend the existing fire standpipes as building construction
progresses. Locations and requirement wiil be reviewed with the Fire
Department.

. Donstruction Trock Beutes

» Suffolk will manage deliveries and materials entering and leaving the
site (reference Sheet SLP.O5 for specifics).

19, Delivery Time and Routes

« Suffolk will manage deliveries to the site during morning and afternoon
peak hours in a manner that minimizes disruption to traffic flow on
adjacent streets.



« it is anticipated that project trucks will access that site via Gilman
Street,

+ Deliveries will be restricted between 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.

+ {tis Suffolk’s intention to bring all major deliveries via Gilman through
MMC Loading Dock area.

1. Truck Gueuing/Lay-Down Areas

« Construction truck queuing will take place on the Maine Medical Center
campus at the large turnaround at the Gilman Street entrance.

« Temporary construction fences will be instalied to segregate
construction areas from Maine Medical Center employees and visitors.

» All material lay down and deliveries will be within temporary fence area
on the service road.

« All major deliveries shall be directed to a local rigger’s yard until the site
is ready to take the delivery.

¢ All deliveries shall be planned and scheduled with Suffoik to ensure an
efficient process.
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TAR b

Maine Medical Center
22 Bramhall Street
Portland, Maine

Site Plan Application for Maine Medical Center
Bean Building
22 Bramhall Street, Portland

Provide written summary of solid waste, trash and recycling management.
See Attached MMC Hazardous Materials and Waste Plan

All solid waste/trash, recyclables, medical waste and hazardous material waste will be
incorporated into our existing procedures and services. Existing site locations will be
used,..no new site locations required.

Contracts with following Vendors in place for next two+ vears.

1. Solid Waste and Trash - Troiano Waste Services
PO Box 3541
Portland, ME 04104
Picked up daily, 7:00 and per “on call as needed”

2. Recyeling - Casella Pine Tree Waste
87 Pleasant Hill Road
Scarborough, ME 04074-9306
Picked up 7:00 Am every Tuesday and Thursday AM

3, Medical Waste Management — OXUS Environmental
167 Sebasticook Street

Picked up every other Thursday 7:30 AM

4, Hazardous and Environmental Waste EQ NorthEast Inc.

183 Industrial Road
Wrentham, Ma.
Picked up Bi-Monthly as arranged by MMC Department of Safety and also per

“On Call basis/as needed”



MAINE MEDICAL CENTER
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE PLAN

PURPOSE:

The purpose of Maine Medical Center’s (MMC) Hazardous Materials and Waste Plan is
to assure that the entire institution complies with all applicable rules and regulations defined by
the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA} and the Maine Department of
Environmental Protection (DEP). This management plan will also assure that all hazardous

materials and waste that are used by MMC employees are handied in a manner that is safe to
them and the environment

SCOTE:

The Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan applies to all employees and departments
of Maine Medical Center including all offsite facilities. By following this plan MMC will
minimize the risks to patients, visitors, personnel, and the environment to hazardous materials
and waste. The plan also ensures that wastes are handled and disposed of in accordance with the
EPA, Department of Transportation (DOT), and state and local regulations.

This pian has specific topic appendices which cover:
A. Chemical Hazards covered by a specific OSHA regulation
1. Ethylene Oxide
2. Glutaraldehyde
3. Lead
B. Pharmaceuticals covered by EPA and or DEP regulations
1. Chemotherapy and surveillance of the potentially exposed employee
2. Anti neoplastics
3. Narcotics
C. Radioactive Materials and Radioactive Wastes
D. Bio-hazardous Materials and Bio-hazardous Wastes
E. Recyclables
1. Universal Wastes (electronics, batteries, fluorescent light bulbs)
2. Paper & Cardboard
3. Vegetable Oil

Pagel



RESPONSIBILITY:

Administration .
Administration of Maine Medical Center is ultimately responsible for regulatory
compliance of hazardous materials and waste management at MMC owned facilities or

for any hazardous materials or wastes generated by MMC employees or processes while
working at any facility leased by MMC,

Safety Director
The Safety Director of Maine Medical Center is responsible for the overall
implementation of this plan. The Safety Director is also responsible for the overall
compliance with the program relative to all local, state and federal regulations governing
the use, storage and disposing of hazardous materials and wastes,

Department Directors
Department Directors are responsible for:

i.

2.

Employees

Assess the compliance risks represented by the use of chemicals in departmental
operations.

Develop, maintain and implement department-wide and job specific chemical
safety procedures.

Implement a department specific hazard communication program including an
annual review of the department's chernical inventory.

Provide job specific safety training prior to initial exposure to a chemical hazard
and annually thereafter.

Provide employee with appropriate personal protective safety equipment (PPE) at
no cost to the employee as determined by a PPE Hazard Analysis.” Assure that
emplovees are instructed on the proper use and care of the safety equipment and
that such equipment is utilized when the job activities require it.

Employees are responsible for:

1.

SR

“

Following safe practices as outlined in established operating procedures/policies.
Attending all mandated training programs.
Asking for clarification when unsure of proper procedure.

Using prescribed equipment for the job, using it in accordance with all safety
instructions and training.

Wearing PPE when applicable.

Abiding by all safety rules and practices, and taking an an active part in fulfilling
your role in the safety program.

Page 2



PROGRAM COMPONENTS - GENERAL APPLICATION

1.

Selecting, ordering, receiving, labeling, handling, storing, using, and dispesing of
hazardous materials and waste from receipt or generation through use or final
disposal.

The following processes will be utilized to carry out the above components of the
Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program:

Selecting: Materials will be selected for inclusion in the Hazardous Materials and
Waste Management Program based on need, the hazards of the material and
departmental approval.

Ordering, Receiving, Labeling and Containers:

The Materials Management Department will be responsible for receiving,
identifving, labeling, and delivering all hazardous materials used in the hospital, if
ordered through the Materials Management Department.

Hospital departments ordering hazardous materialg directly and receiving
shipment of these materials directly will be responsible for identifying and
labeling their own hazardous materials and waste. This procedure is also outlined
in MMC’s Hazard Communication Program. Maine Medical Center has adopted
the National Fire Protection Agency (NFPA) hazard warning iabel system. The
labels must contain the identity of the hazardous chemical or material and an
appropriate hazard warning that contains the nature of the hazard (i.e. poison,
corrosive, flammable, efc.). '

Handling, Storage, and Use: Hazardous materials will be stored in specified
labeled containers. Regular Hazardous Materials and Waste Management surveys
will be conducted to see that hazardous materials and waste are labeled, handled,
stored, used, and disposed properly.

Examples:
I. Flammable materials should be stored in a cool, dry, well-ventilated

storage arca, away from combustible materials and in approved flammable
storage cabinets.

2. The storage area for flammables will be supplied with fire extinguishers.

3. Acids and alkalines will be stored separately in well-ventilated areas.

4, Corrosive materials will be stored separately in well-ventilated areas and
in approved cabinets.

5. Staff using hazardous materials will be educated on the potential hazards
of use and appropriate spill procedures.

6. Staff will be-educated on the location of Safety Data Sheets (SDS) sheets

and the use of protective equipment available, as appropriate,

Page 3



d. Dispesing: The disposal of ali hazardous materials will be by one of the

following methods:

1. Unused materials are to be returned to provider (when applicable )

2. Hazardous waste/universal waste is to be removed by a licensed hazardous
waste contractor,

3. Infectious/Biomedical Waste is to be labeled and removed by a licensed

Bio-Waste hauler,

Environmental services will provide approved containers that contain
(ccupational Safety and Health Agency’s (OSHA) biohazard symbol (see symbol
below). All areas that store biohazards will also have biohazard symbo! affixed in
clear view at entrance. OSHA designates fluorescent orange or orange-red as the
color to identify blood borne pathogens.

&

Fr——

NOTE:

Nursing staff will be responsibie for chemotherapy labeling, see Chemotherapy
Safe Handling & Disposal policy,

€. Chemical Inventory: A chemical inventory will be kept current for each
department as part of the hospitals Hazard Communication Program retained in
the Safety Office. The chemical inventory will contain all hazardous chemicals
found in the hospital. Safety Data Sheet’s (SDS) will be acquired for all

chemicals on the inventory. Copies of prior inventories will be maintained for 30
years.

f SDS: SDS sheets are to be obtained for every tdentified hazardous material and
chemical used in the hospital, All chemicals are too be ordered through MMC’s
Materials Management Department to assure that the facility will receive an SDS.
All contractors conducting work on MMC property are to have a current copy of

~all SDS’s for chemical products used onsite. A current copy of SDS’s will be
available on the intranet to employees.

2. Identify, evaluate, and inventory hazardous materials and wastes used or generated.
¢ [Establish written criteria, consistent with applicable law and regulation

o The following criteria will be utilized in defining hazardous materials:
e NOTE: See separate plans for each waste listed below

Page 4



a, Hazardous Chemical Material: Any material which may be explosive,
flammable, poisonous, corrosive, oxidizing, ixritating, or otherwise harmful and is
likely to cause internal or external injury o humans or the environment.

b. Hazardous Gaseous and Vaporous Material: Any substance which may be
dispersed through the air and act as a poison, irritant, or asphyxiate.
c. Infectious Waste Material: Regulated medical or infectious waste is defined as

any human tissue, organ(s), or material that has become soaked or saturated with
blood or an Other Potentially Infectious Material (OPIM) as defined by OSHA.
Sharps are any instrument or object that could puncture the skin and potentially be
contaminated with pathogens, see Institutional Exposure Plan.

¢.  -Radieacetive Hazardous Maferial: Any material capable of giving off radiant
energy in the form of particles or rays, such as alpha, beta, or gamma rays.

Managing chemical wastes, chemotherapeutic wastes (chemotherapy), radioactive
wastes, and regulated medical or infectious waste, including sharps,

Implementation:
Chemical and infectious wastes wiil be managed in the following ways:

a. Chemical Wastes: Hazardous chemical waste is defined as any chemical that is
explosive, flammable, poisonous, corrosive, oxidizing, irritating, or otherwise
harmful and is likely to cause internal or external injury to lrumans or the
environment.

Each department that generates or handles chemical waste will have written
policies and procedures for handling and using that chemical.

b. Chemotherapeutic Wastes: Chemotherapeutic or antineoplastic waste is defined
as a chemotherapy chemical that remains in containers, vials, fubes, or waste due
to an accident or spillage.

Each department that generates chemotherapeutic waste will have written policies
and procedures for safe handling, admixtures, transportation, administration, and
disposai of the waste.

c. Radioactive Wastes: Radioactive waste 1s defined as waste {rom any material
which is capable of giving off radiant energy in the form of particles or rays, such

as aipha, beta, or gamma rays.

All federal, state, and local regulations governing the use of radiation will be met.

Page 5



Each department that generates radioactive waste will have written policies and

procedures for safe handling, admixtures, transportation, administration, and
disposal of the waste.

d. Regulated Medical or Infectious Wastes, Including Sharps: Regulated
medical or infectious waste is defined as any human tissue, organ{s), or material
that has become soaked or saturated with blood or an Other Potentially Infectious
Material (OPIM} as defined by OSHA. Sharps are any instrument or object that
could puncture the skin and potentially be contaminated with pathogens.

Each department that generates or handles infectious waste will have written
policies and procedures for identification, safe handling, packaging, storage,
transportation, and disposal of the waste. The policies and procedures from these
departments will be reviewed and approved by the Infection Control Department.

Providing adequate and appropriate space and equipment for safe handling and
storage of hazardous materials and waste.

Appropriate space that eliminates or minimizes access to the public, especially small
children, and equipment is provided for the safe handling and storage of all hazardous

materials and waste based on all applicable federal, state, and local regulating agency
requirements. :

Reporting and investigating all hazardous materials or waste spills, exposures or
other incidents,

All occurrences involving hazardous materials and waste that affect patients, visitors,
personnel, or property will be reported first to the employee's immediate supervisor. After
the situation is contained and emergency response, if applicable, 1s complete, an incident
report is then to be completed and given to the Risk Manager and then the Safety
Director. It is the joint responsibility of the Department Directors, the Safety Director and
Risk Manager 1o ensure that adequate investigation and proper procedures are followed in
the event of a spill, exposure, or incident.

Monitering and dispesal of hazardous gases and vapors,

Hazardous Gases and Vapors: Any substance which may be dispersed through the air
and act as a poison, irritant, or asphyxiate (includes waste gas anesthesia, xylene,
formaldehyde, ethylene oxide, and glutaraldehyde).

An environmental exposure monitoring plan has been developed according to applicable
(OSHA regulations and is implemented in the prescribed time period. Applicable periodic
personal monitoring is done for Ethylene Oxide and Nitrous Oxide. Elevated levels will
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be reported to Employee Health Services and Safety Office.

All other environmental results are reviewed by the hospitals Industrial Hygienist and
action taken 1f the results are above the acceptable exposure limit.

Emergency security procedures that describe the specific precautions, procedures,

and protective equipment used during hazardeus material and waste spills o
exposures,

Spill Procedures:

See Emergency Procedures on MMC’s homepage or call emergency response namber for
your location announce Code Orange.

Occupational exposures: Post-exposure personal monitoring is done if medically
indicated for any suspected or bona fide occupational exposure to a hazardous chemical.
The Safety Office will consult with Employee Health Services regarding medical
surveillance requirements post exposure to hazardous substances.

If an employee suspects occupational exposure to a hazardous substance, (s)he follows
the Indoor Air Quality process. In addition, the employee is offered a copy of the
applicable current SDS form for her/his personal files. In addition, a copy of the SDS§ is

secured in the individual’s Employee Health Medical Record in accordance with OSHA's
recordkeeping standard.

Orientation/education program for personnel who manage or have contact with
hazardous materials and waste that addresses: .

a. Procedures and precautions for selecting, handling, storing, usmg, and
disposing of hazardous materials and waste.

b. Emergency procedures for hazardous material and waste spilis or
£XPosure.

C. Health hazards of mishandling hazardous materials or waste.

d. Procedures for reporting hazardous materials and waste incidents, spills or
exposures.

All employees will be provided education regarding hazardous materials and waste
management at the facility and departimental level. [t wiil be accomplished in the
following manner:

. All new employees wili be provided with facility hazardous materials and waste
management education during New Employee Orientation. They will also be oriented to
departmental hazardous materials and waste management responsibilities during their
first thirty days of employment in the department.
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2. All employees will receive at least annual hospital-wide hazardous materials and waste
management education.

3. The departmental programs will be based on employee needs, either reguested or
assessed, and are coordinated by the respective department Directors. The Safety Director
wiil assist in providing information for departmental programs,

Ongoing monitoring of performance regarding actual or potential risks related fo

one or more of the following:

Performance improvement standards for Hazardous Materials and Waste Management
will be monitored on an ongoing basis and reported to the EOC Committee periodically
and will include at least one of the following:

&.

o R0 T

Staff knowledge and skills

Level of staff participation

Monitoring and inspection activities

Emergency and incident reporting .

[nspection, preventive maintenance, and testing of equipment

ANNUAL EVALUATION

The EOC Hazardous Materials and Waste Commitiee will annually review the Hazardous
Materials Management Plan obiectives, scope, and effectiveness in meeting current established
objectives. Recommended performance improvements in the plan based on the review will be
submitted to the EOC Committee for approval.

Original Date: 2/2002
Revision Date: 8/2012

References: 1, State of Maine Hazardous Waste Rules Chapter 850, EPA Regulations 40 Code

of Federa! Reguiations
2. Department of Transportation 49 CFR 173
3. Hazard Communication Standard 29 CFR 1910, 1200
4. MMC’s Spill Contingency Plan
5. National Fire Protection Association Standards
6. Occupational Safety & Health Administration Regulations
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Plan Sponsor:

Signature Satety Manager Date

Administrative Approval:

Signature SVP Human Resources Date
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PERKINS
SWILL

Conformity with Design Standards for the Bean 2 Roof Addition Project

The Bean 2 Roof Addition Project design intent is meant to be a light, modern addition on the Maine
Medicaf Center Campus with a massing that maximizes the expansion of level two including an eight foot
cantilever to the East. The exterior construction materials include white metal panel, a curtain wail
system, clear and fritted glass and opague white spandrel panels.

The glazed perimeter provides controlled natural light for staff, patients and families. Fritied glass at the
east elevation mitigates morning sun in the summer and provides a veil of privacy for occupanis inside as
well as avoidance of the glass looking dark in the daytime as clear glass does, There is ne lighting
proposed for the exterior of the project.

The Mechanical Level massing angles back to minimize the building height above the Emergency
Department Couttyard. Mechanical louvers integrate into the wall system fo provide a simple and clean
exterior, All mechanical and electrical building systems equipment is located within the building on the
Mechanical Level, Equipment that must be on the exterior is recessed in a well or areaway to screen the
view. As a result, there is no mechanical equipment visible on the exterior of the project.

PABCEONY152117,.000-Maine_Medical_Master_Plan\152117.001_Master_Plan\DOCS\I0.0-ProjectMgmniiC0.06-WorkPlan\Tearn Meetings



TAB \@

Aoy 28, 2013

susanna d. Boker, AlA, LEED AP BO+C
Assoniate

Seniot Project Manager

Parkins+Will,

Bostorn, MA 02110

Re: Maine Medical Center - Bean Roof Addition
HVAC Emissions-Tab 18
AKF Project No. B120229-000

Daar Susanna,

As requested, we are writing fo confirm that the HYAC emissions for the Maine Medical Center —
Beon 2 Roof Addition Project meet applicable state and federal emissions requirements. The existing
central steam boiler plant will provide all the steam required for heating, humidification and
sterilization for the project and there will be no new sources of emissions for the project.

Plaase feel free to call with any guestions or comments regarding this matter orif you wish to discuss
this further.

%W/W’

David P. Roberts, P.E. Cc  Dennis Kaiser - P+W
Mechanical Project Engineer Dieter Gartner - P+W
DPR/sv B, RAC



Maine Medical Canter PERKINS+WILL
Bean 2 Roof Addition C140135461 (MMC) /152168.00 (P+W)

CD Pricing Set 05/23/13
Not for Construction

SECTION 04 20 00 - UNIT MASONRY

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SUMMARY
A, Section Includes:

Building {common) brick.

Steel reinforcing bars.

Masonry joint reinforcement.,
Embedded flashing.

Miscellaneous masonry accessorias,

B. Related Requirements:

1. Section 03 30 00 "Cast-in-Place Concrete” for installing dove-tail stots for
masonry anchors.

2. Section 05 12 00 "Structurat Steel Framing” for installing anchor sections of
adiustable masonry anchors for connecting to structural steef frame,

3. Section 05 50 00 "Metat Fabrications” for furnishing steel lintels and shelf
angles for unit masonry.

4,  Section 07 62 00 "Sheet Metal Flashing and Trim" for exposed sheet metal
flashing and for furnishing manufactured reglets instalied in masonry joints.

1.2 DEFINITIONS

A. Reinforced Masonry: Masonry containing reinforcing steel in grouted cells.

1.3 PREINSTALLATION MEETINGS

A. Pre-instaliation Conference: Conduct conference at Project site to comply with
requirements in Section 01 31 00 "Project Management and Coordination.”
1.4 ACTION SUBMITTALS
A, Product Data: For each type of product indicated.
B. Shop Drawings: For the following:
1. Masonry Units: Show sizes, profiles, coursing, and locations of special

shapes.

2. Stone Trim Units: Show sizes, profiles, and locations of each stone trim unit
required,

UNIT MASONRY
04 20 00 -1



. Maine Medical Center PERKINS+WILL
Bean 2 Roof Addition C140135461 (MMC) /152168.00 (P+W)

CD Pricing Set 05/23/13
Not for Construction

1.5

3. Reinforcing Steel: Detail bending and placement of unit masonry reinforcing
bars., Comply with ACI 315, "Details and Detailing of Concrete
Reinforcement.” Show elevations of reinforced walls,

4. Fabricated Flashing: Detail corner units, end-dam units, and other special
applications.

INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

List of Materials Used in Constructing Mockups: List generic product names
together with manufacturers, manufacturers' product names, model numbers, lot
numbers, batch numbers, source of supply, and other information as required to
identify materials used. Include mix proportions for mortar and grout and source of
aggregates.

1. Submittal is for information only. Nelther receipt of list nor approval of
mockup constitites approval of deviations from the Contract Documents
unless such deviations are specifically brought to the attention of Architect
and approved in writing.

Qualification Data: For testing agency.
Material Certificates: For each type and size of the following:
1. Masonry units,
a. Include material test reports substantiating compliance with
requirements.

b. For masonry units used in structural masonry, include data and
calculations establishing average net-area compressive strength of

units.
2. Cementitious materials. Include brand, type, and name of manufacturer.
3. Pre-blended, dry mortar mixes. Include description of type and proportions of
ingredients.
4, Grout mixes. Include description of type and proportions of ingredients,
5. Reinforcing bars.
&, Joint reinforcement.
7. Anchors, ties, and metal accessories,

Mix Designs: For each type of mortar and grout. Include description of type and
proportions of ingredients.

1. Include test reports for mortar mixes required to comply with property
specification. Test according to ASTM C 108/C 109M for compressive
strength, ASTM C 1506 for water retention, and ASTM C 91 for air content,

2. Include test reports, according to ASTM C 1019, for grout mixes required to
comply with compressive strength requirement,

Statement of Compressive Strength of Masonry: For each combination of masonry
unit type and mortar type, provide statement of average net-area compressive
strength of masonry units, mortar type, and resulting net-area compressive

UNIT MASONRY
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1.6

1.7

strenath of masonry determined according to Tables 1 and 2 in
ACT 530.1/ASCE 6/TMS 602.

Cold-Weather and Hot-Weather Procedures: Detailed description of methods,
materials, and equipment to be used to comply with reguirements.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

Testing Agency Qualifications: Qualified according to ASTM C 1093 for testing
indicated.

Preconstruction Testing Service: Owner will engage a qualified independent testing
agency to perform preconstruction testing indicated below. Retesting of materials
that fail to comply with specified requirements shall be done at Contractor's
expense,
1. Martar Test (Property Specification): For each mix reguired, according to
ASTM C 780 for compressive strength.
2. Prism Test: For each type of construction required, according to
ASTM C 1314.

Source Limitations for Masonry Units: Obtain exposed masonry units of a uniform
texture and color, or a uniform blend within the ranges accepted for these
characteristics, from single source from single manufacturer for each product
required.

Source Limitations for Mortar Materials: Obtain mortar ingredients of & uniform
guality, including color for exposed masonry, from single manufacturer for each
cementitious component and from single source or producer for each aggregate.

Masonry Standard: Comply with ACI 530.1/ASCE 6/TMS 602 unless modified by
requirements in the Contract Documents,

DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

Store masonry units on elevated piatforms in a dry location. If units are not stored
in an enclosed location, cover tops and sides of stacks with waterproof sheeting,
securely tied. If units become wet, do not instaill until they are dry.

Store cementitious materials on elevated platforms, under cover, and in a dry
tocation. Do not use cementitious materials that have become damp,

Store aggregates where grading and cther required characteristics can be
maintained and contamination avoided.

Deliver pre-blended, dry mortar mix in moisture-resistant containers designed for
use with dispensing sitos. Store pre-blended, dry mortar mix in delivery containers
on ejevated piatforms, under cover, and in a dry location or in covered
weatherproof dispensing silos.

UNIT MASONRY
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E.

1.8

2.1

Store masonry accessories, including metal ifems, to prevent corrosion and
accumulation of dirt and oil.

FIELD CONDITIONS

Protection of Masonry: During construction, cover tops of walls, projections, and
sills with waterproof sheeting at end of each day's work., Cover partially completed
masonry when construction is not in progress.

1. Extend cover a minimum of 24 inches (600 mm) down hoth sides of walls and
hold cover securely in place,

2. Where one wythe of multi-wythe masonry walls is completed in advance of
other wythes, secure cover a minimum of 24 inches (600 mm) down face
next to unconstructed wythe and hold cover in place.

Do not apply uniform floor or roof loads for at least 12 hours and concentrated
toads for at least three days after building masonry walls or columns,

Stain Prevention: Prevent grout, mortar, and soll from staining the face of
masonry o be left exposed or painted. Immediately remove grout, mortar, and
soit that come in contact with such masonry.

1. Protect base of walls from rain-splashed mud and from mortar splatter by
spreading coverings on ground and over wall surface.

2. Protect sills, ledges, and projections from mortar droppings.

3 Protect surfaces of window and door frames, as well as similar products with
naintea and integral finishes, from mortar droppings.

4.  Turn scaffold boards near the wall on edge at the end of each day to prevent
rain from spiashing mortar and dirt onto completed masonry.

Cold-Weather Requirements: Do not use frozen materials or materials mixed or
coated with ice or frost, Do not build on frozen substrates. Remove and replace
unit masonry damaged by frost or by freezing conditions. Comply with cold-
weather construction reguirements contained in ACI 530.1/ASCE 6/TMS 602,

1. Cold-Weather Cleaning: Use liquid cleaning methods only when air
temnperature is 40 deg F (4 deg C) and higher and wilt remain so until
masonry has dried, but not less than seven days after completing cleaning.

Hot-Weather Requirements: Comply with hot-weather construction requirements

contained in ACI 530.1/ASCE 6/TMS 602,

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

Provide structural unit masonry that develops indicated net-area compressive
strengths at 28 days.

UNIT MASONRY
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2.2

2.3

2.4

1. Determine net-area compressive strength of masonry from average net-area
compressive strengths of masonry units and mortar types {unit-strength
method) according fo Tables 1 and 2 in ACI 530.1/ASCE 6/TMS 602.

2. Determine net-area compressive strength of masonry by testing masonry
nrisms according to ASTM C 1314,

MORTAR AND GROUT MATERIALS

Regional Materials: Aggregate for mortar and grout, cement, and lime shall be
extracted, harvested, or recovered, as well as manufactured, within 500 miles (800
km) of Project site.

Portiand Cement: ASTM C 150, Type I or I, except Type III may be used for coid-
weather construction. Provide natural color or white cement as required to produce
mortar color indicated.

Hydrated Lime: ASTM C 207, Type S.

Portiand Cement-Lime Mix: Packaged biend of portiand cement and hydrated lime
cantaining no other ingredients.

REINFORCEMENT

Uncoated Steel Reinforcing Bars: ASTM A 615/A 615M or ASTM A 996/A 996M,
Grade 60 (Grade 420).

Masonry Joint Reinforcement for Single~-Wythe Masonry: Either ladder or truss type
with single palr of side rods.

TIES AND ANCHORS

Materials: Provide ties and anchors specified in this article that are made from
rmaterials that comply with the following unless otherwise indicated.

1.  Stainless-Steel Sheet: ASTM A 666, Type 316.

2.  Steel Plates, Shapes, and Bars: ASTM A 36/A 36M.

3. Stainless-Steel Bars: ASTM A 276 or ASTM a 666, Type 304,

Adiustable Anchors for Connecting to Structural Steel Framing: Provide anchors
that allow vertical or horizontal adjustment but resist tension and compression
forces perpendicular to plane of wall.

1.  Tie Section: Triangular-shaped wire tie, sized to extend within 1 inch {25
mm) of masonry face, made from 0.25-inch- (6.35-mm-) diameter, stainless-
steel wire. Mill-gailvanized wire may be used at interior walls unless otherwise
indicated.

Adjustable Anchors for Connecting to Concrete: Provide anchors that aliow vertical
or horizontal adiustment but resist tension and compression forces perpendicular to
plane of wall.

UNIT MASONRY
042006-5



Maine Medical Center PERKINS+WILL
Bean 2 Roof Addition C140135461 (MMC) /152168.00 {(P+W)
CD Pricing Set 05/23/13
Not for Construction

2.5

2.6

1. Connector Section: Dovetall tabs for inserting into dovetat! siots in concrete
and attached to tie section; formed from 0.109-inch- (2.78-mm-) thick,
stainless-steel sheeat,

a. 0.108-inch- {2.74-mm-) thick, galvanized sheet may be used at interior
walls uniess otherwise indicated.

MISCELLANEQOUS ANCHORS
Unit Type Inserts in Concrete: Cast-iron or malieable-iron wedge-type inserts.

Dovetail Slots in Concrete: Furnish dovetail slots with filler strips, of slot size
indicated, fabricated from 0.034-inch {0.86-mm), galvanized steel sheet.

EMBEDDED FLASHING MATERIALS

Metal Flashing: Provide metal flashing complying with SMACNA's "Architectural
Sheet Metal Manual” and as follows:

1. Stainless Steel: ASTM A 240/A 240M, Type 304, 0.016 inch {0.40 mm) thick,
2. Metal Drip Edge: Fabricate from stainless steel. Extend atf least 3 inches {76
mm) into wall and 1/2 inch (13 mm) out from wall, with outer edge bent

down 30 degrees and hemmed.

3. Metal Seatant Stop: Fabricate from stainless steel. Exfend at least 3 inches
(76 mm} into wall and out to exterior face of wall, At exterior face of wali,
bend metal back on itself for 3/4 inch (19 mm) and down into joint 1/4 inch
{6 mm) to form a stop for retaining sealant backer rod.

4, Metal Expansion-Joint Strips; Fabricate from stainless steel to shapes
indicated.

Application: Uniess otherwise indicated, use the following:

1, Where flashing is indicated to receive counter flashing, use metal flashing.

2. Where flashing is indicated to be turned down at or beyond the wall face, use
metal flashing.

3. Where flashing is partly exposed and is indicated to terminate at the wall
face, use metal flashing with a hemmed drip edge

4, Where flashing is fully concealed, use metal flashing.

Single-Wythe CMU Flashing System: System of CMU cell flashing pans and
intertocking CMU web covers made from high-density polyethylene incorporating
chemical stabilizers that prevent UV degradation. Cell flashing pans have integral
weep spouts that are designed to be buill into mortar bed joints and weep coliected
moisture fo the exterior of CMU walls and that extend into the cell 1o prevent
clogging with mortar.

1. Products: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide the following:

a. Mortar Net USA, Lid.; Biok-Flash.

UNIT MASONRY
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D, Adhesives, Primers, and Seam Tapes for Flashings: Flashing manufacturer's
standard products or products recommended by flashing manufacturer for bonding
flashing sheets to each other and to substrates.

2.7 MISCELLANEOUS MASONRY ACCESSORIES

A, Compressible Filler: Pre-molded filler strips complying with ASTM D 1056,

Grade 2Al; compressible up to 35 percent; of width and thickness indicated;

formulated from neoprene.

B. Preformed Control-Joint Gaskets: Made from styrene-butadiene-rubber compound
and designed to fit standard sash block and to maintain lateral stability in masonry
wall; size and configuration as indicated.

C. Bond-Breaker Strips: Asphalt-saturated, organic reofing felt complying with
ASTM D 226, Type 1 {(No. 15 asphalf felt).

2.8 MASONRY CLEANERS

A. Proprietary Acidic Cleaner: Manufacturer's standard-strength cleaner designed for
removing mortar/grout stains, efflorescence, and other new construction stains
from new masonry without discoloring or damaging masonry surfaces. Use product
expressly approved for intended use by cleaner manufacturer and manufacturer of
masonry units being cleaned,

1. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide products
by one of the following:

a. Diedrich Technologies, Inc.
b. EaCo Chem, Inc
C. ProSoCo, Inc.

2.9 MORTAR AND GROUT MIXES

A, General: Do not use admixtures, including pigments, air-entraining agents,
accelerators, retarders, water-repelient agents, antifreeze compounds, or other
admixtures, untess otherwise indicated.

1. Do not use caicium chioride in mortar or grout.

2. Use portland ceme mortar,

3. For exterior masonry, use portland cement-lime mortar,

4, For reinforced masonry, use portland cement-lime mottar.

5.  Add cold-weather admixture (if used) at same rate for all mortar that will be
exposed to view, regardiess of weather conditions, to ensure that mortar
color is consistent.

B, Mortar for Unit Masonry: Comply with ASTM C 270, Proportion Specification.

Provide the following types of mortar for applications stated uniess another type is
indicated or needed to provide required compressive strength of masonry.

UNIT MASONRY
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3.1

3.2

1. For masonry below grade or in contact with earth, use Type 5.
2. For interior non-load-bearing partitions; and for other applications where
another type is not indicated, use Type N.

Grout for Unit Masonry; Comply with ASTM C 476,

1. Use grout of type indicated or, if not otherwise indicated, of type (fine or
coarse) that will comply with Table 1.15.1 in ACI 530.1/ASCE 6/TMS 602 for
dimenstons of grout spaces and pour height,

2. Proportion grout in accordance with ASTM C 476, paragraph 4.2.2 for
specified 28-day compressive strength indicated, but not less than 2000 psi
(14 MPa)l.

3. Provide grout with a slump of 10 to 11 inches {254 to 279 mm) as measured
according to ASTM C 143/C 143M,

PART 3 - EXECUTION

EXAMINATION

Examine conditions, with Installer present, for compliance with requirements for
installation tolerances and other conditions affecting performance of the Work,

1. For the record, prepare written report, endorsed by Installer, listing
conditions detrimental to performance of work.

2. Verify that foundations are within tolerances specified.

3. Verify that reinforcing dowels are properly placed.

Before installation, examine rough-in and built-in construction for piping systems to
verify actual locations of piping connections.

Proceed with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.

INSTALLATION, GENERAL

Thickness: Build cavity and composite walls and other masonry construction to full
thickness shown. Build single-wythe walls to actual widths of masonry units, using
units of widths indicated.

Leave openings for eguipment to be installed before completing masonry. After
installing equipment, complete masonry to match the construction immediately
adjacent to opening.

Use full-size units without cutting if possible. If cutting is required to provide a
continuous pattern or to fit adjoining construction, cut units with motor-driven
saws; provide clean, sharp, un-chipped edges. Allow units to dry before laying
uniess wetting of units is specified. Install cut units with cut surfaces and, where
possible, cut edges concealed,

UNIT MASONRY
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D.

3.3

3.4

Select and arrange units for exposed unlt masonry to produce a uniform blend of
colors and textures.

1.

Mix units from several pallets or cubes as they are placed.

Matching Existing Masonry: Match coursing, bonding, color, and texture of existing
masonry.

TOLERANCES

Dimensions and Locations of Elements:

1.

For location of elements in elevation do not vary from that indicated by more

than plus or minus 1/4 inch (& mm) In a story height or 1/2 inch (12 mm)
total.

Lines and Levels:

1.

2.

For bed joints and top surfaces of bearing walls do not vary from level by
more than 1/4 inch in 10 feet {6 mm in 3 m), or 1/2 inch (12 mm) maximum.
For vertical lines and surfaces do not vary from plumb by more than 1/4 inch
in 10 feet (6 mm in 3 m), 3/8 inch in 20 feet {9 mmin 6 m}, or 1/2 inch {12
mmy) maximum.

For lines and surfaces do not vary from straight by more than 1/4 inch in 10
feet (6 mmin 3 m), 3/8 inch in 20 feet (9 mm in 6 m), or 1/2 inch {12 mm)
maximum.

For faces of adjacent exposed masonry units, do nof vary from fiush
alignment by more than 1/16 inch (1.5 mm) except due to warpage of
masonry units within folerances specified for warpage of units.

Joints:

1.

For bed joints, do not vary from thickness indicated by more than plus or
minus 1/8 inch (3 mm), with & maximum thickness limited to 1/2 inch {12
mmj,

For exposed head joints, do not vary from thickness indicated by more than
plus or minus 1/8 inch (3 mm).[ Do not vary from adjacent bed-joint and
head-joint thicknesses by more than 1/8 inch (3 mmj}.]

LAYING MASONRY WALLS

Lay out walls in advance for accurate spacing of surface bond patterns with uniform
joint thicknesses and for accurate location of openings, movement-type joints,
returns, and offsets. Avoid using less-than-haif-size units, particularly at corners,
jambs, and, where possible, at other locations,

Bond Pattern for Exposed Masonry: Unless otherwise indicated, lay exposed
masonry in running bond; do not use units with less than nominal 4-inch {100-mm)
horizontal face dimensions at corners or jambs.

UNIT MASONRY
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C.

3.5

3.6

Lay concealed masonry with all units in a wythe in running bond or bonded by
lapping not less than 2 inches (50 mm). Bond and interlock each course of each
wythe at corners. Do not use units with less than nominal 4-inch {100-mm)
horizontal face dimensions at corners or jambs.

Stopping and Resuming Work: Stop work by racking back units in each course
from those in course below; do not tooth, When resuming work, clean masonry
surfaces that are {o receive mortar, remove l00se masonry units and mortar, and
wetb brick if required hefore laying fresh masonry.

Built-in Work: As construction progresses, build in itemns spacified in this and other
Sections. Fill in solidly with masonry around built-in items.

Fill space between steel frames and masonry solidly with mortar unless otherwise
indicated.

Where built-in items are to be embedded in cores of hollow masonry units, place a
layer of metal lath, wire mesh, or plastic mesh in the joint below and rod mortar or
grout into core.

Build non-load-bearing interior partitions full height of story to underside of solid
floor or roof structure above unless otherwise indicated.

1. Install compressible filler in joint between top of partition and underside of
structure above.

2. Fasten partition top anchors to structure above and build into top of partition,

2. Wedge non-load-bearing partitions against structure above with smatll pieces
of tile, slate, or metal, Fill joint with mortar after dead-load deflection of
structure above approaches final position.

3. At fire-rated partitions, treat joint between top of partition and underside of
structure above to comply with Section 07 84 46 "Fire-Resistive Joint
Systems.”

MORTAR BEDDING AND JOINTING

Lay solid masonry units with completely filled bed and head joints; butter ends with
sufficient mortar to fill head joints and shove into place. Do not deeply furrow bed
joints or slush head joints.

Tool exposed joints slightly concave when thumbprint hard, using a jointer larger
than joint thickness unless otherwise indicated.

MASONRY JOINT REINFORCEMENT

General: Install entire tength of longltudinal sige rods in mortar with a minimum

cover of 5/8 inch (16 mm) on exterior side of walls, 1/2 inch (13 mm) elsewhere,

Lap reinforcement a minimum of 6 inches (150 mm).

1. Space reinforcernent not more than 8 inches (203 mm) o.c. in foundation
walls and parapet wails.

UNIT MASONRY
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B.

3.7

3.8

3.9

Interrupt joint reinforcement at control and expansion joints untess otherwise
indicated,

Provide continuity at wall intersections by using prefabricated T-shaped units,
Provide continuity at corners by using prefabricated L-shaped units.

Cut and bend reinforcing units as directed by manufacturer for continuity at

corners, refurns, offsets, column fireproofing, pipe enclosures, and other special
conditions.

ANCHORING MASONRY TO STRUCTURAL STEEL AND CONCRETE

Anchor masonry to structural steel and concrete where masonry abuts or faces
structural stesl or concrete to comply with the following:

1. Provide an open space not less than 1/2 inch {13 mm) wide between masonry
and structural steel or concrete uniess otherwise indicated. Keep open space
free of mortar and other rigid materials.

2. Anchor masonry with anchors embedded in masonry joints and attached to
structure.

3.  Space anchors as indicated, but not more than 24 inches (610 mm) o.c.
vertically and 36 inches {915 mm) o.c. horizontally.

CONTROL AND EXPANSION JOINTS

General: Instali control and expansion joint materials in unit masonry as masonry
progresses. Do not allow materials to span controf and expansion joints without
provision to allow for in-plane wall or partition movement.

REINFORCED UNIT MASONRY INSTALLATION

Temporary Formwork and Shores: Construct formwork and shores as needed fo
support reinforced mascnry elements during construction,

1. Construct formwork to provide shape, line, and dimensions of completed
masonry as indicated. Make forms sufficiently tight to prevent leakage of
mortar and grout, Brace, tie, and support forms to maintain position and
shape during construction and curing of reinforced masonry.

2. Do not remove forms and shores until reinforced masonry members have
hardened sufficiently to carry their own welght and other loads that may be
nlaced on them during construction.

Placing Reinforcement: Comply with requirements in ACI 530.1/ASCE 6/TMS 602.

UNIT MASONRY
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3.10

A,

3.11

FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

Testing and Inspecting: Owner will engage special inspectors to perform tests and
inspections and prepare reports. Allow inspectors access to scaffolding and work
areas, as needed to perform tests and inspections. Retesting of materials that fail
to cormnply with specified requirements shall be done at Contractor's expense,

Inspections: Level 1 special inspections according to the "Internationa! Building
Code."

1 Begin masonry construction only after inspectors have verified proportions of
site-prepared mortar.

2. Place grout only after inspectors have verified compliance of grout spaces and
of grades, sizes, and locations of reinforcement.

3. Place grout only after inspectors have verified proportions of site-prepared
grout,

Taesting Prior to Construction: One set of tests.

Testing Frequency: One set of tests for each 5000 sqg. ft. {464 sq. m) of wali area
or portion thereof,

Clay Masonry Unit Test: For each type of unit provided, according to ASTM C 67 for
compressive strength,

Mortar Aggregate Ratio Test {Proportion Specification): For each mix provided,
according to AST™M C 780,

Mortar Test (Property Specification): For each mix provided, according to
ASTM C 780. Test mortar for mortar air content and compressive strength,

Grout Test (Compressive Strength): For each mix provided, according to
ASTM C 1019,

Prism Test: for each type of construction provided, according to ASTM € 1314 at 7
days and at 28 days.

REPAIRING, POINTING, AND CLEANING

Remove and replace masocnry units that are loose, chipped, broken, stained, or
otherwise damaged or that do not match adjoining units. Install new units to
match adjoining units; install in fresh mortar, pointed to eliminate evidence of
replacement.

Pointing: During the tooling of joints, enlarge volds and holes, except weep holes,
and compiletely fill with mortar. Point up joints, including corners, openings, and
adjacent construction, to provide a neat, uniform appearance. Prepare joints for
sealant application, where Indicated.

In-Progress Cleaning: Clean unit masonry as work progresses by dry brushing to
remove mortar fins and smears before tooling joints,

UNIT MASONRY
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D. Final Cleaning: After mortar is thoroughly set and cured, clean exposed masonry
as follows:

1. Ramove large mortar particles by hand with wooden paddies and nonmetallic
scrape hoes or chisels,

2, Test cleaning methods on sample wall panel; leave one-half of panel un-
cleaned for comparison purposes. Obtain Architect's approval of sampie
cleaning before proceeding with cleaning of masonry.

3. Protect adjacent stone and non-masonry surfaces from contact with cleaner
by covering them with liguid strippable masking agent or polyethylene film
and waterproof masking tape.

4. Wet wall surfaces with water before applying cleaners; remove cleaners
promptly by rinsing surfaces thoroughly with clear water.

5. Clean brick by bucket-and-brush hand-cleaning method described in BIA
Technical Notes 20.

6. Ciean masonry with a proprietary acidic cleaner applied according to
manufacturer's written instructions.

7. Cilean stone trim to comply with stone supplier's written instructions.

8. Ciean limestone units to comply with recommendations in ILI's "Indiana
Limestone Handbook."

3.12 MASONRY WASTE DISPOSAL

A, Salvageable Materials: Unless otherwise indicated, excess masonry materials are
Contractor's property. At completion of unit masonry work, remove from Project
site.

B. Waste Disposal as Fill Material: Dispose of clean masonry waste, including excess
or soli-contaminated sand, waste mortar, and broken masonry units, by crushing
and mixing with fil material as fill is placed.

1. Crush masonry waste to less than 4 inches (100 mm) in each dimension.

2. Mix masonry waste with at {east two parts of specified fill material for each
part of masonry waste. Fill material is specified in Section 31 20 00 "Earth
Moving."

3. Do not dispose of masonry waste as fill within 18 inches {450 mm) of finished
grade.

C.  Excess Masonry Waste: Remove excess clean masonry waste that cannot be used

as fill, as described above, and other masonry waste, and legally dispose of off
QOwner's property.

END OF SECTION
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SECTION 06 16 00 - SHEATHING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SUMMARY

A, Section Includes:

Bw e

Wall sheathing.

Roof sheathing.

Composite nail base insulated roof sheathing.
Sheathing joint and penetration treatment.

B. Related Requirements:

1.

2.

Section 06 10 53 "Miscellaneous Rough Carpentry” for plywood backing
paneis.

Section 07 25 G0 “Weather Barriers" for water-resistive barrier applied over
wall sheathing. :

1.2 ACTION SUBMITTALS

A, Product Data: For each type of process and factory-fabricated product., Indicate
component materiais and dimensions and include construction and application
details.

1.

Include data for wood-preservative freatment from chemical treatment
manufacturer and certification by treating plant that treated plywood complies
with requirements. Indicate type of preservative used and net amount of
preservative retained.

Include data for fire-retardant treatment from chemical treatment
manufacturer and certification by treating plant that treated plywood complies
with requirements, Inciude physical properties of treated materials.

For fire-retardant treatments, include physical properties of treated plywood
both before and after exposure to elevated temperatures, based on testing by
a qualified independent testing agency according to ASTM D 5516,

For products receiving a waterborne treatment, include statement that
moisture content of treated materials was reduced to levels specified before
shipment to Project site.

Inciude copies of warranties from chemical treatment manufacturers for each
type of treatment,

1.3 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

A, Evaluation Reports; For following products, from ICC-ES:

1.

Preservative-treated plywood.

SHEATHING
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2. Fire-retardant-treated plywood,
3. Foam-plastic sheathing.

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE
A.  Testing Agency Qualifications: For testing agency providing classification marking
for fire-retardant-treated material, an inspection agency acceptable to authorities

having jurisdiction that periodically performs inspections to verify that the material
bearing the classification marking is representative of the material tested.

1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING
A, Stack panels flat with spacers beneath and between each bundle to provide air

circulation. Protect sheathing from weather by covering with waterproof sheeting,
securely anchored. Provide for air circulation around stacks and under coverings.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS
A, Fire-Test-Response Characteristics: For assemblies with fire-resistance ratings,
provide materials and construction identical to those of assemblies tested for fire
resistance per ASTM E 119 by a testing and inspecting agency acceptable to
authorities having jurisdiction.

1. Fire-Resistance Ratings: Indicated by design designations from "NFPA 101:
Life Safety Coded, 2009 Edition.

2.2 PRESERVATIVE-TREATED PLYWOOD

A, Preservative Treatment by Pressure Process: AWPA UI; Use Category UC2 for
interior construction not in contact with the ground,

1. Preservative Chemicals: Acceptable to authorities having jurisdiction and
containing no arsenic or chromium,

B. Mark plywood with appropriate classification marking of an inspection agency
acceptable to authorities having jurisdiction,

C.  Application: Treat all plywood unless otherwise indicated.

2.3 FIRE-RETARDANT-TREATED PLYWOQD

A, General: Where fire-retardant-treated materials are indicated, use materials
complying with requirements in this article that are acceptable te authoerities having

SHEATHING
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2.4

jurisdiction and with fire~-test-response characteristics specified as determined by
testing identical products per test method indicated by & guaiified testing agency,

Fire-Retardant-Treated Plywood by Pressure Process: Products with a flame-spread
index of 25 or less when tested according to ASTM E 84, and with no evidence of
significant progressive combustion when the test is extended an additional 20
minutes, and with the flame front not extending more than 10.5 feet (3.2 m)
beyond the centeriine of the burners at any time during the test.

1.
2.

Use treatment that does not promote corrosion of metat fasteners.

Interior Type A: Treated materials shall have & moisture content of 28
percent or less when tested according to ASTM D 3201 at 92 percent reiative
humidity. Use where exterior type is not indicated.

Design Value Adjustment Factors: Treated iumber plywood shall be tested
according ASTM D 5516 and design value adiustment factors shall be
calculated according to ASTM D 6305, Span ratings after treatment shall be
not lesg than span ratings specified. For roof sheathing and where high-
temperature fire-retardant treatment is indicated, span ratings for
temperatures up to 170 deg F (76 deg C} shall be not less than span ratings
specified.

Kitn-dry material after treatment to a maximum moisture content of 15 percent.
Do not use material that is warped or does not comply with requirements for
untreated material.

Identify fire-retardant-treated plywood with aporopriate classification marking of
qualified testing agency.

Appiication: Treat all plywood unless otherwise indicated.

WALL SHEATHING

Glass-Mat Gypsum Wall Sheathing: ASTM C 1177/1177M,

1.

W N

Products: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide cne of the
foliowing:

CertainTeed Corporation: GilasRec,

G-P Gypsum Corporation; Dens-Glass Goid.
National Gypsum Company. Gold Bond e{2)XP.
Temple-Inland Inc.; GreenGlass

United States Gypsum Co.; Securock,

PaoTw

Type and Thickness: Type X, 5/8 inch {15.9 mm) thick.
Size: 48 by 120 inches {1219 by 3048 mm) for vertical installation.

SHEATHING
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2.5

A.

o 0

2.6

2.7

FASTENERS

General: Provide fasteners of size and type indicated that comply with
requirements specified in this article for material and manufacture.

1, For roof and wail sheathing, provide fasteners of Type 304 stainless steel,
Nails, Brads, and Staples: ASTM F 1667.

Power-Driven Fasteners: NES NER-272.

Wood Screws: ASME B18.6.1.

Screws for Fastening Gypsum Sheathing to Cold-Formed Metal Framing: Steel driil
screws, in length recommended by sheathing manufacturer for thickness of
sheathing to be attached, with organic-polymer or other corrosion-protective
coating having a salt-spray resistance of more than 800 hours according to

ASTM B 117.

1. For steel framing iess than 0.6329 inch {0.835 mm) thick, use screws that
comply with ASTM C 1002.

2. For stee! framing from 0.033 to §.112 inch (0.84 to 2.84 mm) thick, use
screws that comply with ASTM C 954,

Screws for Fastening Oriented-Strand-Board-Surfaced, Polyisocyanurate-Foam
Sheathing to Metal Roof Deck: Steel drill screws, in type and {ength recommended
by sheathing manufacturer for thickness of sheathing to be attached, with organic-
polymer or other corrosion-protective coating having a salt-spray resistance of
more than 800 hours according to ASTM B 117. Provide washers or plates if
recommended by sheathing manufacturer.

SHEATHING JOINT-AND-PENETRATION TREATMENT MATERIALS

Sealant for Glass-Mat Gypsum Sheathing: Silicone emulsion sealant complying
with ASTM C 8§34, compatible with sheathing tape and sheathing and recommended
by tape and sheathing manufacturers for use with glass-fiber sheathing tape and
for covering exposed fasteners,

1, Sheathing Tape: Self-adhering giass-fiber tape, minimum 2 inches (50 mm)
wide, 10 by 10 or 10 by 20 threads/inch (330 by 390 or 390 by 780
threads/m), of type recommended by sheathing and tape manufacturers for
use with silicone emulsion seafant in sealing joints in glass-mat gypsum
sheathing and with a history of successful in-service use,

MISCELLANEOUS MATERIALS
Adhesives for Field Gluing Panels to Framing: Formulation complying with

ASTM D 3498 that is approved for use with type of construction pane! indicated by
manufacturers of both adhesives and panels.

SHEATHING
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1. Adhesives shall have a VOC content of 70 g/L or fess when calculated
according to 40 CFR 59, Subpart D (EPA Method 24).

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 INSTALLATION, GENERAL

A, Do not use materials with defects that impair quality of sheathing or pieces that are
too small to use with minimum number of joints or optimum joint arrangement.
Arrange joints so that pieces do not span between fewer than three support
members,

B. Cut panels at penetrations, eddes, and other obstructions of work; fit tightly
against abutting construction uniess otherwise indicated.

C.  Securely attach to substrate by fastening as indicated, complying with the
following:

1 NES NER-272 for power-driven fasteners,
2. Table 2304.9.1, "Fastening Schedule," in ICC's "International Building Code.”
3 Table R602.3(1), "Fastener Schedule for Structural Members,” and
Table R602.3(2), "Alternate Attachments,” in ICC's "International Residential
Code for One- and Two-Family Dwellings.”

D, Use common wire nails uniess ctherwise indicated, Select fasteners of size that will
not fully penetrate members where opposite side will be exposed to view or will
receive finish materials. Make tight connections. Install fasteners without splitting
wood.

E. Coordinate wall and roof sheathing instailation with flashing and joint-sealant
instaliation so these materials are instalied in sequence and manner that prevent
exterior moisture from passing through completed assembly.

F. Do not bridge building expansion joints; cut and space edges of panels to match
spacing of structural support elaments,

G,  Coordinate sheathing installation with installation of materials instalied over

sheathing so sheathing is not exposed to precipitation or left exposed at end of the
workday when rain is forecast.

3.2 GYPSUM SHEATHING INSTALLATION

A, Comply with GA-253 and with manufacturer's written instructions.
i Fasten gypsum sheathing to cold-formed metal framing with screws.
2. Instail boards with a 3/8-inch (9.5-mm) gap where nen-load-bearing
construction abuts structuraf elements.
3. install boards with a 1/4-inch (6.4-mm) gap where they abut masonry or
similar materials that might retain moisture, to prevent wicking.

SHEATHING
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B.  Apply fasteners so heads bear tightly against face of sheathing, but do not cut into
facing.

C.  Horizonta! Instaliation: Install sheathing with V-grooved edge down and tongue
edge up. Interiock tongue with groove to bring long edges in contact with edges of
adjacent boards without forcing, Abut ends of hoards over centers of studs, and
stagger end joints of adjacent boards not less than one stud spacing. Attach
boards at perimeter and within field of board to sach steel stud.

1. Space fasteners approximatety 8 inches (200 mm)} o.c, and set back a
minimum of 3/8 inch (9.5 mm) from edges and ends of boards.

2. For sheathing under stucco cladding, boards may be initially tacked in place
with screws if overiying self-furring metal lath is screw-attached through
sheathing to studs immediately after sheathing is instalied.

D.  Seal sheathing joints according to sheathing manufacturer's written instructions,

1.  Apply elastomeric sealant to joints and fasteners and trowel flat. Apply
sufficient amount of sealant to completely cover joints and fasteners after
troweling. Seal other penetrations and openings.

2. Apply glass-fiber sheathing tape to giass-mat gypsum sheathing joints and
apply and trowel silicone emulsion sealant to embed entire face of tape in
sealant. Apply seaiant to exposed fasteners with a trowel so fasteners are
completely covered. Seal other penetrations and openings.

3.3 CEMENTITIOUS BACKER UNIT INSTALLATION

A.  Install panels and treat joints according to ANSI A108.11 and manufacturer's
written instructions for tyne of application indicated,

END OF SECTION

SHEATHING
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1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

SECTION 07 16 16 - CRYSTALLINE WATERPROOFING
PART 1 - GENERAL

SUMMARY
Section inctudes crystatline waterproofing.

Related Requirements:

PREINSTALLATION MEETINGS

Preinstatiation Conference: Conduct conference at Project site.

ACTION SUBMITTALS

Product Data: For each type of product,

i1, Include construction details, meterial descriptions, and instaliation
instructions,

INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

Quatification Data: For Applicator.

Product Certificates: For each type of waterproofing, patching, and plugging
material.

Product Test Reports: For each product formulation, for tests performed by
manufacturer and witnessed by a gualified testing agency.

Field quality-control reports.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

Applicator Qualifications: A firm experienced in applying crystalline waterproofing
simifar in material, design, and extent to that indicated for this Project, whose work
has resulted in applications with a record of successful in-service performance,

Mockups: Build mockups fo verify selections made under Sample submittals, to
demonstrate aesthetic effects, and to set guality standards for materials and
execution.

1, Build mockup of typical vertical and horizontal surfaces as shown an
Drawings.

CRYSTALLINE WATERPROOFING
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2. Approval of mockups does not constitute approval of deviations from the
Contract Documents contained in mockups unless Architect specifically
approves such deviations in writing.

1.6 FIELD CONDITIONS

A.  Weather Limitations: Proceed with application only when existing and forecasted
weather conditions permit crystaliine waterproofing to be performed according to
manufacturer's written instructions.

B. Proceed with waterproofing work only after pipe sieeves, vents, curbs, inserts,
drains, and other projections through the substrate to be waterproofed have been
completed. Proceed only after substrate defects, including honeycombs, voids, and
cracks, have been repaired to provide a sound substrate free of forming materials,
including reveal inserts.

C. Ambient Conditions: Proceed with waterproofing work only if temperature is
maintained at 40 deg F (4.4 deg C) or above during work and cure period, and
space is well ventilated and kept free of water.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 WATERPROOFING MATERIALS

A.  Crystalline Waterproofing: Prepackaged, gray-colored proprietary blend of portland
cement, specially treated sand, and active chemicals that, when mixed with water
and applled, penetrates into concrete and concrete unit masonry and reacts
chemically with the byproducts of cement hydration in the presence of water fo
develop crystaliine growth within substrate capillaries to produce an impervious,

" dense, waterproof substrate; with properties complying with or exceeding the
criteria specified below.

1. Products: Subject to compliance with reguirements, provide one of the
foliowing:

Anti-Hydro International, Ing.; A-H Hydrocap.

AQUAFIN, Inc.; AQUAFIN-1C,

BASF Building Systems; Tegraproof.

Conproco Corporation; Conpro Super Seal,

Euclid Chemical Company {The), an RPM company; HEY'DI K-11.
Gemite Products Inc.; Cem-Kote CW Plus.

1CS Penetron International Ltd.; Penetron,

International Chem-Crete, Inc.; Chem-Cretex Cem 600,

IPA Systems, In¢.; Drycon.

KQSTER American Corporation; KOSTER NB 1 Grey.

Kryton International Ing.; Krystol T1 & T2 Waterproofing System.
Tremco Incorporated, an RPM company; Permagulk Crystalline
Waterproofing.

Xypex Chemical Corporation; Xypex Concentrate,

SERTT e e a0 oW
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2. Water Permeabitity: Maximum zero for water at 30 feet (8 m) when tested
according to COE CRD-C 48.

3. Compressive Strength: Minimum 4000 psi (27.6 MPa) at 28 days when tested
according to ASTM C 108/C 109M,

2.2 ACCESSORY MATERIALS

A, Patching Compound: Factory-premixed cementitious repair mortar, crack filler, or
sealant recommended by waterproofing manufacturer for filling and patching tie
holes, honeycombs, reveals, and other imperfections; and compatible with
substrate and other materials indicated.

B.  Plugaing Compound: Factory-premixed cementitious compound with hydrophobic
properties and recommended by waterproofing manufacturer; resistant to water
and moisture but vapor permeabie for all standard applications {vertical, overhead,
and horizontal surfaces not exposed to vehicular traffic); and compatibie with
substrate and other materials indicated.

C. Water: Potable.

2.3 MIXES
A.  Crystalline Waterproofing: Add prepackaged dry ingredients to water according to

manufacturer's written instructions. Mix together with mechanical mixer or by hand
to reguired consistency.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

A, Examine substrates, areas, and conditions, with Applicator present, for suitable
conditions where waterproofing is to be applied.

B. Proceed with application only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.

C.  Notify Architect in writing of active leaks or defects that would affect system
performance.

3.2 PREPARATION
A, Comply with manufacturer's written instructions.
B. Protect other work from damage caused by cleaning, preparation, and application

of waterproofing. Provide temporary enclosure to confine spraying operation and to
ensure adequate ambient temperatures and ventilation conditions for application.

CRYSTALLINE WATERPROOFING
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C.

3.3

Do not allow waterproofing, patching, and piugging materials to enter reveals or
annular spaces intended for resilient sealants or gaskets, such as joint spaces
between pipes and pipe sleeves,

Stop active water leaks with plugging compound.
Repair damaged or unsatisfactory substrate with patching compound.

1. At holes and cracks 1/16 inch {1.6 mm) wide or larger in substrate, remove
loosened chips and cut reveal with sides perpendicular to surface, not
tapered, and minimum 1 inch (25 mm) deep. Fill reveal with patching
compound flush with surface,

Surface Preparation: Remove efflorescence, chalk, dust, dirt, mortar spatter,
grease, oils, paint, curing compounds, and form-reiease agents to ensure that
waterproofing bonds to surfaces,

1. Ctean concrete surfaces according to ASTM D 4258.

& Scratch- and Fioat-Finished Concrete: Etch with 10 percent muriatic acid
solution according to ASTM D 4260,

b. Smooth-Formed and Trowel-Finished Concrete: Prepare by mechanical
abrading or abrasive-blast cleaning according to ASTM D 4259,

2. Clean concrete unit masonry surfaces according to ASTM D 4261,

a. Lightweight Concrete Unit Masonry: Etch with 10 percent muriatic acid
solution or abrade surface by wire brushing. Remove acid residue until
pH readings of water after rinse are not more than 1.0 pH lower or 2.0
pH higher than pH of water before rinse.

D. Medium- and Normal-Weight Concrete Unit Masonry: Sandblast or
bushhammer to a depth of 1/16 inch (1.6 mm),

3. Concrete Joints: Clean reveals,

APPLICATION

General: Comply with waterproofing manufacturer's written instructions for
application and curing.

i.  Saturate surface with water for several hours and maintain damp condition
until applying waterproofing. Remove standing water.

2. Apply waterproofing to surfaces, and extend waterproofing onto adjacent
surfaces as follows:

a. Onto columns integrai with treated walls.

b,  Onto interior nontreated walis Intersecting exterior treated walils, for a
distance of 24 inches (600 mm) for cast-in-place concrete and 48 inches
{1200 mm) for masonry,

c. Onto exterior walis end onto both exterior and interior columns, for a
height of 12 inches {300 mm), where floors, but not walls, are treated.

CRYSTALLINE WATERPROOFING
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d. Onto every substrate in areas indicated for treatment, inciuding pipe
trenches pipe chases pits sumps and similar offsets and features.

3, Number of Coats: Number required for specified water permeabiiity.
4, Application Method: Apply to ensure that each coat fills voids and is in full
contact with substrate or previous coat.

5. Dampen surface between coats.

B.  Final Coat Finish: Smooth.

C. Curing: Moist-cure waterproofing for three days immediately after final coat has
set, followed by air drying, unless otherwise recommended in writing by
manufacturer.

3.4 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

A, Manufacturer's Field Service: Engage a factory-authorized service representative to
test and inspect completed application of waterproofing.

B. Prepare test and inspection reports.

END CF SECTION
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SECTION 07 21 00 - THERMAL INSULATION
PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SUMMARY

A. Section Inciudes:
1. Mineral-woo! board insulation.
2. Mineral-wool blanket insulation.

B. Related Requirements;
1, Section 06 16 0C "Sheathing™ for foam-plastic board sheathing over wood or

steel framing.

2. Section 09 21 16.23 "Gypsum Board Shaft Wall Assemblies”, Section 09 26
13 "Gypsum Veneer Plastering” for installation in metal-framed assembilies of
Insulation specified by referencing this Section,

1.2 ACTION SUBMITTALS

A, Product Data: For each type of product ingicated.

1.3 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

A, Product Test Reports: Based on evaluation of comprehensive tests performed by a
qualified testing agency, for each product.

B.  Research/Evaiuation Reports: For foam-plastic insulation, from ICC-ES.

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A, Surface-Burning Characteristics: As determined by testing identical products
according to ASTM E 84 by a qualified testing agency. Identify products with
appropriate markings of applicable testing agency.

1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

A, Protect insulation materials from physical damage and from deterioration due to
moisture, soiling, and cother sources. Store inside and in a dry location. Comply
with manufacturer's written instructions for handiing, storing, and protecting during
instaliation.

B.  Protect foam-plastic board insulation as foliows:

1, Do not expose to sunlight except 1o necessary extent for period of installation
and concealment,

THERMAL INSULATION
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2.1

2.2

2. Protect against ignition at all times. Do not deliver foam-plastic board
materials to Project site before installation time.

3. Quickly complete instaliation and concealment of foam-plastic board
insulation in each area of construction,

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

MINERAL-WOOL BOARD INSULATION

Basis-of-Design Product: Subject to compliance with reqguirements, provide Roxuli,
Inc, CurtainRock 80 RFF or comparable product by one of the following:

Fibrex Insulations Inc.
Isolatek International.
Owens Corning.
Thermafiber.

PN

Recycled Content: Postconsumer recycled content plus one-half of pre-consumer
recycled content not less than 25 percent.

Un-faced, Mineral-Woo! Board Insulation: ASTM C612; with maximum flame-

spread and smoke-developed indexes of 15 and zero, respectively, per ASTM E 84;

passing ASTM E 136 for combustion characteristics,

1. Nominal density of 8 Ib/cu. ft. (128 kg/cu. m), Type 1II, thermal resistivity of
4.35deg F x h x sq. fr./Btu x in. at 75 deg F (30.2 K x m/W at 24 deg C).

2. Fiber Color: Darkened,

Foil-Faced, Minerai-Wool Board Insulation: ASTM C 612, ASTM e96, with

permeance {WVTR} 0.02%; faced on one side with foil-scrim or foil-scrim-

polyethylene vapor barrier; with maximum flame-spread and smoke-developed

indexes of 25 and 35, respectively, per ASTM E 84,

1. Nominal density of 8 lb/cu. ft. (128 kg/cu. m}, Type III, thermal resistivity of
4,35 deg F x h x sg. ft./Btu x in. at 75 deg F {(30.2 K x m/W at 24 deg C).

MINERAL-WOOL BLANKET INSULATION

Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with reguirements, provide products by one
of the foilowing;

Fibrex Insulaticns Inc.
Owens Corning.

Roxu! Inc.
Thermafiber.

e

Recycled Content: Postconsumer recycled content plus one-haif of pre-consumer
recycled content not less than percent.

THERMAL INSULATION
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C. Un-faced, Minerai-Woo! Blanket Insulation: ASTM C 665, Type I (blankets without
membrane facing); consisting of fibers; with maximum flame-spread and smoke-
developed indexes of 25 and 50, respectively, per ASTM E 84; passing ASTM E 136
for combustion characteristics.

D.  Reinforced-Foil-Faced, Mineral-Wool Blanket Insulation: ASTM C 865, Type Il
{reflective faced), Class A (faced surface with a flame-spread index of 25 or less
per ASTM E 84}, Category 1 {(membrane is & vapor barrier), faced with foil scrim,
foil-scrim kraft, or foll-scrim polyethylene.

2.3 INSULATION FASTENERS

A. Adhesively Attached, Spindle-Type Anchors: Plate welded to projecting spindle;
capable of holding insuiation of specified thickness securely in position indicated
with self-locking washer in place.

1. Products: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide one of the
foilowing:
a. AGM Industries, Inc.; Series T TACTOO Insul-Hangers.
b, Gemgeo; Spindle Type.

2. Plate: Perforated, galvanized carbon-steel sheet, 0.030 inch (0.762 mm)
thick by 2 inches {50 mm) square.

3.  Spindle: Copper-coated, low-carben steel; fully annealed; 0.105 inch (2.67
mm)} in diameter; fength to suit depth of insulation indicated.

B. Insulation-Retaining Washers:  Self-locking washers formed from 0.016-inch-
(0.41-mm-) thick galvanized-steel sheet, with beveled edge for increased stiffness,
sized as required to hold insulation securely in place, but not less than 1-1/2 inches
{38 mm) sguare or in diameter,

1. Products: Subiect to compliance with requirements, provide{ one of] the
following:
a. AGM Industries, Inc.; SC150.
b, Gemco; Dome-Cap 5-150,

2. Protect ends with capped self-locking washers incorporating & spring steel
insert to ensure permanent retention of the cap.

C. Insulation Standoff: Spacer fabricated from galvanized mild-steel sheet for fitting

over spindie of insulation anchor to maintain air space of 1 inch (25 mm) between
face of insulation and substrate to which anchor is attached,

1. Products: Subject ¢ compliance with requirements, provide the following:

a. Gemego; Clutch Ciip.

THERMAL INSULATION
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D.  Anchor Adhesive: Product with demonstrated capability to bend insulation anchors
securely to substrates indicated without damaging insulation, fasteners, and
substrates.

1 Products; Subject to compliance with requiréments, provide one of the
following:
a. AGM Industries, Inc.; TACTOO Adhesive.
b,  Gemco; Tuff Bond Hanger Adhesjve.
PART 3 - EXECUTION
3.1 PREPARATION

A. Clean substrates of substances that are harmfu! to insulation or vapor barriers,
including removing projections capabie of puncturing vapor barriers, or that
interfere with insulation attachment.

3.2 INSTALLATION, GENERAL

A, Comply with insulation manufacturer's written instructions applicable to products
and applications indicated.

B. install insulation that is undamaged, dry, and unsciled and that has nof been left
exposed to ice, rain, or snow at any time.

C.  Extend insulation to envelop entire area to bhe insulated. Cut and fit tightly around
obstructions and fill voids with insulation. Remove projections that interfere with
placement.

D, Provide sizes to fit applications Indicated and selected from manufacturer’s
standard thicknesses, widths, and lengths. Apply single layer of insulation units to
produce thickness indicated unless multiple lavers are otherwise shown or required
to make up total thickness.

3.3 INSTALLATION OF INSULATION FOR FRAMED CONSTRUCTION

A, Apply insulation units to substrates by method indicated, complying with
manufacturer's written instructions. If no specific method is indicated, bond units
to substrate with adhesive or use mechanical anchorage to provide permanent
pitacement and support of units.

3.4 INSTALLATION OF INSULATION IN CEILINGS FOR SOUND ATTENUATION
A, Where mineral wool blankets are indicated for sound attenuation above ceilings,

instalt blanket insulation over entire ceiling area in thicknesses indicated. Extend
insulation 48 inches (1219 mm) up either side of partitions.

THERMAL INSULATION
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3.5 INSTALLATION OF INSULATION FOR CONCRETE SUBSTRATES
A.  Install board insulation on concrete substrates by adhesively attached, spindle-type
insulation anchors as foilows:

1. Fasten insulation anchors to concrete substrates with insulation anchor
adhesive according to anchor manufacturer's written instructions. Space
anchors according to insulation manufacturer's written instructions for
insulation type, thickness, and application indicated.

2.  Apply insuiation standoffs tc each spindie to create cavity width indicated
between concrete substrate and insuiation.

3.  After adhesive has dried, install board insulation by pressing insulation into
positiory over spindies and securing it fightly in place with insulation-retaining
washers, taking care not to compress insulation below indicated thickness,
First course of insulation to be mechanically fastened to the concrete
substrate with subseguent insulation section to be applied as stated here-in.

4, Where insulation will not be covered by other building materials, apply capped
washers o tips of spindles.

3.6 INSTALLATION OF CURTAIN-WALL INSULATION
A, Install board insulation in curtain-wall construction as specified within the Design

Development Specifications, according to curtain-wail manufacturer's written

instructions.

1. Hold insulation in place by securing to metal curtain-wall backpans within
window frames, secured at infervals recommended in writing by insulation
manufacturer to hold insuiation securely in place against backpan. Maintain
cavity width of dimension indicated between backpan, insuiation and glass.

2. Instali insulation where it contacts perimeter fire-containment system to
prevent insulation from bowing under pressure from perimeter fire-
containment system,

3.7 PROTECTION
A.  Protect installed insulation from damage due to harmful weather exposures,

physical abuse, and other causes. Provide temporary coverings or enclosures
where insulation is subject to abuse and cannot be concealed and protected by
permanent construction immediately after installation.

END OF SECTION

THERMAL INSULATION
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SECTION 67 27 13 - MODIFIED BITUMINOUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
PART 1 - GENERAL

SUMMARY

Section includes seif-adhering, vapor-retarding, modified bituminous sheet air
barriers.

Related Reguirements:

1. Section 06 16 00 "Sheathing” for wall sheathings and wall sheathing joint-
and-penetration treatments.

DEFINITIONS

Air-Barrier Material: A primary element that provides a continuous barrier to the
mavement of air.

Air-Barrier Accessory: A transitional compoenent of the air barrier that provides
continuity.

Air-Barrier Assembly: The collection of air-barrier materials and accessory

materiais applied to an opaque wall, including joints and junctions to abutting
construction, to contro! air movement through the wali.

PREINSTALLATION MEETINGS
Preinstaitation Conference: Conduct conference at Project site.
1. Review air-barrier reguirements and installation, special detalls, mockups, air-

leakage and bond testing, air-barrier protection, and work scheduling that
covers alr barriers.

ACTION SUBMITTALS

Product Data: For each type of product.

1, Include manufacturer's written instructions for evaluating, preparing, and
treating substrate; technical data; and tested physical and performance
properties of products,

Shop Drawings: For air-barrier assemblies,

MODIFIED BITUMINOUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
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1, Show locations and extent of air barrier. Include details for substrate joints
and cracks, counterflashing strips, penetrations, inside and outside corners,
terminations, and tie-ins with adjoining construction.

2. Include details of interfaces with other materials that form part of air barrier,

1.5 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

A.  QGualification Data: For Installer. Inciude list of ABAA-certified installers and
supervisors employed by the Installer, who work on Project.

B. Proguct Certificates: From air-barrier manufacturer, certifying compatibitity of air
barriers and accessory materials with Proiect materials that connect to or that
come in contact with air barrier.

C.  Product Test Reports: For each air-barrier assembly, for tests performed by a
qualified testing agency.

1.6 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Instalier Qualifications: An entity that employs instaliers and supervisors who are
trained and approved by manufacturer.

1. Instalier shall be licensed by ABAA according to ABAA's Quality Assurance
Program and shall employ ABAA-certified instaliers and supervisors on
Project.

B. Mockups: Build mockups to set guality standards for materials and execution and
for preconstruction testing.

1, Build integrated mockups of exterior wall assembly as shown on Drawings,
incorporating backup wall construction, external cladding, window, storefront,
door frame and sill, insuiation, ties and other penetrations, and flashing te
demonstrate surface preparation, crack and joint treatment, application of air
barriers, and sealing of gaps, terminations, and penetrations of air-barrier
assembly.

a. Coordinate construction of mockups to permit inspection by Owner's
testing agency of air barrier before external insulation and cladding are
installed.

b. Include junction with roofing membrane and building corner condition,

c. If Architect determines mockups do not comply with requirements,
reconstruct mockups and apply air barrier until mockups are approved,

2. Approval of mockups does not constitute approva! of deviations from the
Contract Documents contained in mockups unless Architect specifically
approves such deviations in writing.

3. Subject to compliance with reguirements, approved mockups may become
part of the completed Work {f undisturbed at time of Substantial Completion.

MODIFIED BITUMINOUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
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1.7 PRECONSTRUCTION TESTING

A, Preconstruction Testing Service: Owner will engage a qualified testing agency to
perform preconstruction testing on field mockups.

B.  Mockup Testing: Air-barrier assemblies shall comply with performance
requirements indicated, as evidenced by reports based on mockup testing by a
qualified testing agency.

1. Qualitative Air-Leakage Testing: Mockups will be tested for evidence of air
leakage according to ASTM E 1186, chamber pressurization or
depressurization with smoke tracers .

2. Quantitative Air-Leakage Testing: Mockups will be tested for air leakage
according to ASTM £ 783.

3.  Adhesion Testing: Mockups will be tested for minimum air-barrier adhesion of
16 ibf/sq. in. (110 kPa) according to ASTM D 4541,

4, Notify Architect seven days in advance of the dates and times when mockups
wiil be tested,

1.8 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

A, Remove and replace liquid materials that cannot be applied within their stated sheif
life,

B. Protect stored materials from direct sunlight,

1.9 FIELD CONDITIONS

A, Environmental Limitations: Apply air barrier within the range of ambient and
substrate temperaturas recommended by air-barrier manufacturer.

1. Protect substrates from environmental conditions that affect alr-barrier
performance.

2. Do not apply alr barrier to a damp or wet substrate or during snow, rain, fog,
or mist.

PART 2 ~ PRODUCTS
2.1 MATERIALS, GENERAL

A, Source Limitations: Obtain primary air-barrier materials and air-barrier accessories
from single source from single manufacturar,

B. VOC Content: 250 g/L ortess when calculated according to 40 CFR 59, Subpart D

{EPA Method 24) and complying with VOC content limits of authorities having
jurisdiction.

MODIFIED BITUMINOUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
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2.2

A

2.3

2.4

PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

General: Air barrier shall be capable of performing as a continuous vapor-retarding
air barrier and as a liguid-water drainage plane flashed to discharge to the exterior
incidental condensation or water penetration. Air-barrier assembiies shall be
capable of accommodating substrate movement and of sealing substrate expansion
and control joints, construction material changes, penetrations, tie-ins to instailed
waterproofing, and transitions at perimeter conditions without deterioration and air

leakage exceeding specified limits,

Alr-Barrier Assembly Air Leakage: Maximum 0.04 cfm/sq. ff. of surface area at
1.57 ibf/sq. ft. (0.2 U/s x sq. m of surface area at 75 Pa} ASTM E 283,

SELF-ADHERING SHEET AIR BARRIER

Modified Bituminous Sheet: 40-mil- (1.0-mm-) thick, self-adhering sheet
consisting of 36 miis (0.9 mm) of rubberized asphalt laminated to a 4-mil- {0.1-
mm-) thick, cross-laminated polyethylene film with release liner on adhesive
side and formulated for application with primer that complies with VOC limits of
authorities having jurisdiction.

1. Products: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide one of the

foliowing:

a. Carlisle Coatings & Waterproofing Inc.; CCW-705.

b. Grace, W, R. & Co. -~ Conn.; Perm-A-Barrier Wall Membrane,
C. Henry Company; Blueskin SA.

d. Meadows, W. R., Inc.; SeaiTight Air-Shield,

e. Tremco Incorporated, an RPM company; ExoAir 110/11GCLT.

2. Physical and Performance Properties:

8. Air Permeance: Maximum 0.004 ¢fm/sg. ft. of surface area at 1.57-
ibf/sqg. ft. (0.02 L/s ¥ sq. m of surface area at 75-Pa) pressure
difference; ASTM E 2178,

Tensile Strength: Minimum 250 psi (1.7 MPa); ASTM D 412, Die C.
Uitimate Elongation: Minimum 200 percent; ASTM D 412, Die C.
Puncture Resistance: Minimum 40 {bf (180 N); ASTM E 154,

Water Absorption: Maximum 0.15 percent weight gain after 48-hour
immersion at 70 deg F (21 deg C); ASTM D 570.

Vapor Permeance: Maximum 0.05 perm (2.9 ng/Pa x 5 X sg. m)
ASTM E 96/E 96M, Water Method.

—n

ACCESSGRY MATERIALS

General: Accessory materials recommended by air-barrier manufacturer to
produce a complete alr-barrier assembly anda compatible with primary air-barrier
membrane,

MODIFIED BITUMINCUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
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B. Primer: Liguid waterborne primer recommended for subsirate by air-barrier
material manufacturer.

C.  Counterflashing Strip: Modifled bituminous 40-mii- {1.0-mm-) thick, self-adhering
sheet consisting of 32 mils (6.8 mm) of rubberized asphalt laminated to an 8-mil-
{0.2-mm-) thick, cross-laminated polyethylene film with release liner backing.

D.  Butyl Strip: Vapor retarding, 30 to 40 mils (0.76 to 1.0 mm) thick, seif-adhering;
polyethviene-film-reinforced top surface laminated to laver of buty! adhesive, with
release tiner backing.

E. Modified Bituminous Strip: Vapor retarding, 40 mils (1.0 mm) thick, smocth
surfaced, self-adhering; consisting of 36 mils (0.9 mm) of rubberized asphalt
laminated to a 4~-mil- {0.1-mm-) thick, cross-laminated poiyethylene film with
release liner backing.

F. Termination Mastic: Alr-barrier manufacturer's standard cold fluid-applied
elastomeric liquid; trowel grade,

G.  Substrate-Patching Membrane: Manufacturer's standard trowel-grade substrate
filler,

. Adhesive and Tape: Air-barrier manufacturer's standard adhesive and pressure-
sensitive adhesive tape.

1. Stainless-Steel Sheet: ASTM A 240/A 240M, Type 304, 0.0187 inch (0.5 mm)}
thick, and Series 300 stainless-steel fastenars,

J. Spraved Polyurethane Foam Sealant: One- or two-component, foamed-in-place,
polyurethane foam sealant, 1.5- to 2.0-Ib/cu. ft. (24- to 32-kg/cu. m) density;
flame-spread index of 25 or less according to ASTM E 162; with primer and
noncorrosive substrate cleaner recommended by foam sealant manufacturer.

K. Modified Bituminous Transition Strip: Vapor retarding, 40 miis (1.0 mm) thick,
smooth surfaced, seif-adhering; consisting of 36 mils (0.9 mm) of rubberized
asphalt laminated te a 4-mil- (0.1-mm-) thick polyethylene film with release liner
backing.

L Elastomeric Flashing Sheet: ASTM D 2000, minimum 50- fo 65-mil- (1.3- to 1.6-
mm-) thick, cured sheet neoprene with manufacturer-recommended contact
adhesives and lap sealant with stainless-steel termination bars and fasteners.

M. Preformed Silicone-Sealant Extrusion: Manufacturer's standard system consisting
of cured low-modulus silicone extrusion, sized to fit opening widths, with a single-
component, neutral-curing, Class 106/50 (low-modulus) silicone sealant for
bonding extrusions to substrates.

1. Products: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide one of the
following:

a. Dow Corning Corporation; 123 Silicone Seal,
b. Momentive Perforimance Materials Inc,; US11000C UitraSpan.

MODIFIED BITUMINQUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
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3.1

3.2

Z, Pacora Corporation; Si-Span.
d.  Tremco Incorporated, an RPM company; Spectrem Simple Seal.

Joint Sealant: ASTM C 920, single-component, neutrai-curing silicone;

Class 100/50C {low modulus), Grade NS, Use NT related to exposure, and, as
applicabie to joint substrates indicated, Use O. Comply with Section 07 32 00
"Joint Sealants."

PART 3 - EXECUTION

EXAMINATION-

Examine substrates, areas, and conditions, with Instalier present, for compliance
with requirements and other conditions affecting performance of the Work.

1. Verify that substrates are sound and free of oll, grease, dirt, excess mortar,
or other contaminants.

2. Verify that concrete has cured and aged for minimum time period
recommended by air-barrier manufacturer,

3. Verify that concrete is visibly dry and free of moisture. Test for capillary
moisture by plastic sheet method according to ASTM D 4263,

4,  Verify that masonry joints are flush and completely filled with mortar.

Proceed with instaliation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected,

SURFACE PREPARATION

Clean, prepare, and treat substrate according to manufacturer's written
instructions. Provide clean, dust-free, and dry substrate for air-barrier application.

Mask off adjoining surfaces not covered by air barrier to prevent spiliage and
overspray affecting other construction.

Remove grease, oit, bitumen, form-release agents, paints, curing compounds, and
other penetrating contaminants or film-forming coatings from concrete,

Remove fins, ridges, mortar, and other projections and fill honeycomb, aggregate
pockets, holes, and other voids in concrete with substrate-patching membrane.

Remove excess mortar from masonry tias, shelf angles, and other obstructions.

Prepare, fill, prime, and treat joints and cracks in substrates. Remove dust and dirt
from joints and cracks according to ASTM D 4258,

1. Install modified bituminous strips and center over treated construction and
contraction loints and cracks exceeding a width of 1/16 inch (1.6 mm).

Bridge and cover isolation joints, expansion joints, and discontinuous wall-to-wall,
deck-to~wall, and deck-to-deck joints with overlapping modified bituminous strips.

MODIFIED BITUMINOUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
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H.

3.3

At changes In substrate plane, apply sealant or termination mastic beads at sharp
corners and edges to form a smooth transition from one plane to another,

Cover gaps in substrate plane and form a smooth transition from one substrate
plane to another with stainiess-steel sheet mechanically fastened to structural
framing to provide continuous support for air barrier.

INSTALLATION

General: Install modified bituminous sheets and accessory materials according to
air-barrier manufacturer's written instructions and according to recommendations in

ASTM D 6135.

1. When ambient and substrate temperatures range between 25 and 40 deg F
{minus 4 and plus 5 deg C), install seif-adhering, modified biturminous air-
barrier sheet produced for low-temperature appiication. Do not instali low-
temperature sheet if ambient or substrate temperature is higher than 60
deg F (16 deg C).

Corners: Prepare, prime, and treat inside and outside corners according to
ASTM D 6135,

1. Install modified bituminous strips centered over vertical inside corners,
Install 3/4-inch (19-mm) fillets of termination mastic on horizontai inside

corners,

Prepare, treat, and seal vertical and horizontal surfaces at terminations and
penetrations with termination mastic and according to ASTM D 6135,

Apply primer to substrates at reqguired rate and allow it to dry. Limit priming to
areas that wili be covered by air-barrier sheet on same day. Reprime areas
exposed for more than 24 hours,

1. Prime giass-fiber-surfaced gypsum sheathing with number of prime coats
needed to achieve required bond, with adequate drying time between coats.

Apply and firmly adhere modified bituminous sheets horizontally over area to
recejve air harrier. Accurately align sheets and maintain uniform 2-1/2-inch- (64-
mm-) minimum {ap widths and end laps. Qveriap and seal seams, and stagger end
laps to ensure airtight instaliation,

1. Apply sheets in a shingled manner to shed water without interception by any
exposed sheet edges.
2. Roll sheets firmiy to enhance adhesion to substrate,

Apply continuous modified bituminous sheets over modified bituminous strips
bridging substrate cracks, construction, and contraction joints.

CMU; Instali air-barrier sheet horizontally against the CMU beginning at base of
wall, Align top edge of air-barrier sheet immediately below protruding masonry ties
or joint reinforcement or ties, and firmly adhere in place.

MODIFIED BITUMINGCUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
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1. QOveriap horizontally adiacent sheets 3 minimum of 2 inches (50 mm) and roll
seams.

2. Apply overtapping sheets with bottom edge slit to fit around masonry
reinforcing or ties. Roll firmly into place.

3. Seal around masenry reinforcing or ties and penetrations with termination
mastic.

4, Continue the membrane into all cpenings in the wali, such as doors and
windows, and terminate at points to maintain an airtight barrier that is not
visible from interior,

H.  Seal top of through-wall flashings fo air-barrier sheet with an additional 6-inch-
{150-mm-) wide, modified bituminous strip.

L. Seal exposed edges of sheet at seams, cuts, penetrations, and terminations not
concealed by metal counterflashings or ending in reglets with termination mastic.

1, install air-barrier sheet and accessory materials to form a seal with adjacent
construction and to maintain a continuous air barrier.

1. Coordinate air-barrier instailation with instaitation of roofing membrane and
hase flashing to ensure continuity of air barrier with roofing membrane,

2. Instail butyt strip on roofing membrane or base flashing so that a minimum of
3 inches {75 mm} of coverage is achieved over each substrate.

K.  Connect and seal exterior wall air-barrier membrane continucusly to roofing-
membraneg air barrier, concrete below-grade structures, floor-to-floor construction,
exterior glazing and window systems, glazed curtain-wall systems, storefront
systems, exterior louvers, exterior door framing, and other construction used in
exterior wall openings, using accessory materials.

L. Wali Openings: Prime concealed, perimeter frame surfaces of windows, curtain
walls, storefronts, and doors. Apply modified bituminous transition strip so that a
minimum of 3 inches {75 mm) of coverage is achieved over each substrate.
Maintain 3 inches (75 mm) of full contact over firm bearing to perimeter frames
with not less than 1 inch (25 mm) of full contact.

1. Modified Bituminous Transition Strip: Roll firmiy to enhance adhesion,

2, Elastomeric Flashing Sheet: Apply adhesive to wall, frame, and flashing
sheet. Install flashing sheet and termination bars, fastened at 6 inches (150
mm) o.c. Apply lap sealant over exposed edges and on cavity side of flashing

sheet.
3. Preformed Silicone-Sealant Extrusion: Set in full bed of silicone sealant

applied to walis, frame, and membrane.

M.  Fill gaps in perimeter frame surfaces of windows, curtain walls, storefronts, doors,
and miscellaneous penetrations of air-barrier membrane with foam sealant,

N. At end of each working day, seal top edge of air-barrier material to substrate with
termination mastic.

MODIFIED BITUMINOUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
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3.4

Apply joint sealants forming part of air-barrier assembly within manufacturer's
recommended application temperature ranges, Consult manufacturer when sealant
cannat be applied within these temperature ranges.

Repair punctures, voids, and deficient lapped seams In air barrier. Slit and flatten
fishmouths and blisters. Patch with air-barrier sheet extending 6 inches {150 mm)
beyond repaired areas in all directions.

Do not cover alr barrier until it has been tested and inspected by Owner's testing
agency.

Correct deficlencies in or remove air barrier that does not comply with
requirements; repair substrates and reapply air-barrier components,

FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

Testing Agency: Owner will engage a qualified testing agency to perform tests and
inspections.

Inspections: Air-barrier materials, accessories, and instaliation are subject to
inspection for compliance with requirements. Inspections may incluge the
following:

1 Continuity of air-barrier system has been achieved throughout the building
envelope with no gaps or holes.

2. Continucus structural support of air-barrier system has been provided.

3 Masonry and concrete surfaces are smooth, clean, and free of cavities,
protrusions, and mortar droppings. )

4, Site conditions for application temperature and dryness of substrates have
been maintained.

5. Maximum exposure time of materials to UV deterioration has not been
exceeded.

6. Surfaces have been primed,

7 Laps in sheet materials have complied with the minimum reguirements and
have been shingled in the correct direction (or mastic applied on exposed
edges), with no fishmouths.

8. Termination mastic has been appiied on cut edges,

0. Air barrier has been firmly adhered to substrate,

10. Compatible materiais have been used.

11. ‘Fransitions at changes in direction and structural support at gaps have been
provided.

12, Connections between assemblies (membrane and seatants) have complied
with requirements for cleanliness, surface preparation end priming, structural
suppart, integrity, and continuity of seal,

13. All penetrations have been sealed.

Tests: As determined by Owner's testing agency from among the following tests:
i. Qualitative Air-Leakage Testing: Air-barrier assembiies will be tested for

evidence of air leakage according to ASTM E 1186, smoke pencil with
pressurization or depressurization.

MODIFIED BITUMINOUS SHEET AIR BARRIERS
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3.5

2.

3.

Quantitative Air-Leakage Testing: Air-barrier assemblies will be tested for air
ieakage according to ASTM E 783,

Adhesion Testing: Air-barrier assembiies will be tested for minimum air-
barrier adhesion of 16 [bf/sq. in. (110 kPa) according to ASTM D 4541 for
each 600 sqg. ft. (56 sg. m} of installed air barrier or part thereof,

Air barriers will be considered defective if they do not pass tests and inspections.

1.

2.

Apply additional air-barrier material, according to manufacturer's written
instructions, where inspection results indicate insufficient thickness.

Remove and replace deficient air-barrier components for retesting as specified
above.

Repair damage to air barriers caused by testing,; follow manufacturer's written
instructions.

CLEANING AND PROTECTION

Protect air-barrier system from damage during application and remainder of
construction period, according to manufacturer's written instructions.

1.

Protect air barrier from exposure to UV light and harmful weather exposure as
reguired by manufacturer. If exposed to these conditions for maore than 30>
days, remove and replace air barrier or install additionat, fuil-thickness, air-
barrier application after repairing and preparing the overexposed membrane
according to air-barrier manufacturer's written instructions.

Protect air barrier from contact with incompatible materials and sealants not
approved by air-barrier manufacturer.

Clean spills, stains, and soiling from construction that would be exposed in the
completed Work, using cleaning agents and procedures recommended by
manufacturer of affected construction,

END OF SECTION
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SECTION 07 42 13.23 - METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SUMMARY

A, Section includes metal composite material wall panels.

1.2 COORDINATION

A.  Coordinate meta! composite material panel installation with rain drainage work,
flashing, trim, construction of soffits, and other adjoining work to provide a
leakproof, secure, and noncorrosive instaliation.

1.3 PREINSTALLATION MEETINGS
A, Preinstaliation Conference: Conduct conference at Project site.

1. Meet with Owner, Architect, Owner's insurer if applicable, metal composite
material panel Installer, structural-support Installer, and instaliers whose
work interfaces with or affects metal composite material panels, including
installers of doors, windows, and louvers,

2. Review and finalize construction schedule and verify availability of materials,
Installer's persenne!, equipment, and facilities needed to make progress and
avold delays,

3. Review methods and procedures related to metal compaosite material panel
instaliation, including manufacturer's written Instructions.

4, Examine support conditions for compiliance with reguirements, including
alignment between and attachment to structural members,

5. Review flashings, special siding details, wall penetrations, cpenings, and
condition of other construction that affect metal composite material panels.

6, Review governing regulations and reguirements for insurance, certificates,
and tests and inspections if applicabie,

7. Review temporary protection reguirements for metal composite material panel

assembly during and after installation.

Review procedures for repair of panels damaged after installation,

Document proceedings, including corrective measures and actions required,

and furnish copy of record to each participant.

©

1.4 ACTION SUBMITTALS
A, Product Data: For each type of product.

1. Include construction detaiis, materiai descriptions, dimensions of individual
components and profiles, and finishes for each type of panel and accessory,

METAL COMPQSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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B.  Shop Drawings:
1. Ing¢lude fabrication and installation fayouts of metal composite material
panels; details of edge conditions, joints, panel profiles, corners, anchorages,

attachment assembly, trim, flashings, closures, and accessories; and special
details.,

2. Accessories: Inciude details of the flashing, trim and anchorage, at a scaie of
not less than 1-1/2 inches per 12 inches {1.10).

C.  Samples for Initial Selection: For each type of metal composite material panel
indicated with factory-applied color finishes,

1. Include similar Sampies of trim and accessories involving color selection.

D.  Samples for Verification: For each type of exposed finish required, prepared on
Sampies of size indicated below,

1. Metal Composite Material Panels: 12 inches {305 mm) long by actual panel

width. Include fasteners, closures, and other metal composite material panel
accessories,

1.5 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS
A.  Qualification Data: For Installer.

B.  Product Test Reports: For each product, tests performed by a qualified testing
agency.

C.  Field guality-control reports.

D.  Sample Warranties: For speclal warranties.

1.6 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

A, Maintenance Data: For metal composite material panels to include in maintenance
manuals.

1.7 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A,  Insteller Qualifications: An entity that employs installers and supervisors who are
trained and approved by manufacturer.

B. Mockups: Buiid mockups to verify selections made under Sample submittals and to
demonstrate aesthetic effects and set quality standards for fabrication and
installation.

1. Build mockup of typical metal composite material panel assembly 4'-0"x8-0",
inctuding corner, soffits, supports, attachments, and accessories.

METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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1.8

1.9

1.10

2. Water-Spray Test: Conduct water-spray test of mockup of metal composite
material panel assembly, testing for water penetration according to
AAMA 501.2.

3.  Approval of mockups does not constitute approval of deviations from the
Contract Documents contained in mockups unless Architect specifically
approves such deviations in writing.

4, Subject to compliance with requirements, approved mockups may become
part of the completed Work if undisturbed at time of Substantial Complation.

DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

Deliver components, meta!l composite material panels, and other manufactured
items so as not to be damaged or deformed. Package metal composite material
panels for protection during transportation and handling.

Unlopad, store, and erect metal composite material panels in a manner to prevent
bending, warping, twisting, and surface damage,.

Stack metai composite material panels horizontally on platforms or paliets, covered
with suitabie weathertight and ventilated covering. Store metal composite material
panels to ensure dryness, with positive slope for drainage of water. Do not store
metal composite material panels in contact with other materials that might cause
staining, denting, or other surface damage.

Retain strippable protective covering on metal composite materifal panels during
instailation.

Copper Panels: Wear gloves when handling to prevent fingerprints and soiling of
syrface,

FIELD CONDITIONS

Weather Limitations: Proceed with instaliation only when existing and forecasted
weather conditions permit assembiy of metal composite material panels to be
performed acceording to manufacturers' written instructions and warranty
reguirements.

WARRANTY

Special Warranty: Manufacturer's standard form in which manufacturer agrees to
repair or replace components of metal composite material panel systems that fail in
materiais or workmanship within specified warranty period.

1. Failures inciude, but are not limited to, the following:
a. Structural failures including rupturing, cracking, or puncturing,
b, Deterioration of metals and other materiais beyvond normal weathering.

2, Warranty Period: Two years from date of Substantial Completion.

METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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B.  Special Warranty on Pane! Finishes: Manufacturer's standard form in which
manufacturer agrees to repair finish or replace metal composite material panels
that show evidence of deterioration of factory-applied finishes within specified
warranty period.

1. Exposed Panel Finish: Deterioration includes, but is not limited to, the
following:

a. Color fading more than 5 Hunter units when tested according to
ASTM D 2244,

b.  Chalking in excess of a No. 8 rating when tested according to
ASTM D 4214,
C. Cracking, checking, peeiing, or failure of paint to adhere to bare metal,

2. Finish Warranty Period: 10 years from date of Substantiai Completion.
PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 PERFORMANCE REGQUIREMENTS

A.  Structural Performance: Provide metal composite material panei systems capable
of withstanding the effects of the following loads, based on testing according to
ASTM E 330:

1.  Wind Leads: As indicated on Drawings.
2. Other Design Loads: As indicated on the structural Drawings.
3. Deflection Limits: For wind loads, no greater than 1/240 of the span.

B.  Air Infiltration: Air leakage of not more than 0.06 ¢fm/sq. ft. (0.3 L/s per sq. m)
when tested according to ASTM E 283 at the foliowing test-pressure difference:

1.  Test-Pressure Difference: 6.24 Ibf/sqg. ft. (300 Pa).

C. Water Penetration under Static Pressure: No water penetration when tested
according to ASTM E 331 at the following test-pressure difference:

1. Test-Pressure Difference: 6.24 Ibf/sqg. ft. (300 Pa).

D. Thermal Movements: Allow for thermal movements from ambient and surface
temperature changes by preventing buckling, opening of joints, overstressing of
components, failure of joint sealants, failure of connections, and other detrimental
effects. Base calculations on surface temperatures of materiais due Lo both solar
heat gain and nighttime-sky heat ioss.

i, Temperature Change (Range): 120 deg F {67 deg C), ambient; 180 deg F
(100 deg C), material surfaces,

E. Fire-Resistance Ratings: Comply with ASTM E 119; testing by a gualified testing
agency. Identify nroducts with appropriate markings of applicable testing agency.

METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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1, Indicate design designations from UL's "Fire Resistance Directory™ or from the
listings of another qualified testing agency.

2.2 CWP, METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS

A.  Metal Composite Material Wall Panel Systems: Provide factory-formed and -
assembled, metal composite matertal wall panels fabricated from two metal facings
that are bonded to a solid, extruded thermoplastic core; formed into profile for
installation method indicated. Include attachment assembly components, pane!
stiffeners, and accessories required for weathertight system.

1. Products: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide one of the
following:
a. Basis-of-Design Product: Subject to compliance with requirements,
provide CENTRIA Architectural Systems; Formabond Wall System or
comparable product by one of the following:

3A Composites USA, Inc.; Alucobond Plus.

Alcaa Inc.; Reynobond PE.

CENTRIA Architectural Systems; Formabond Wall System.
Citadel Architectural Products, Inc.; Envelope 2000 RS.
Firestone Meta! Products, LLC; UNA-FAB Series 1500.
Protean Construction Preducts, Inc.; ACM 100.

Qe o0

B. CwP-1, Aluminum-Faced Composite Wali Panels: Formed with 0.020-inch- (0.50-
mm-} thick, coil-coated aluminum sheet facings.

1. Panei Thickness: 0.236 inch (6 mm),
2. Core: Fire retardant.
3 Exterior Three-coat fluoro-polymer.,

a. Color: As selected by Architect from manufacturer's full range.

C.  Attachment Assembly Components: Formed from material compatible withh panel
facing.

D, Attachment Assembiy: Manufacturer's standard.

2.3 MISCELLANEOUS MATERIALS

A.  Miscellaneous Metal Sub-framing and Furring: ASTM C 645, cold-formed, metailic-
coated steel sheet ASTM A 653/A 653M, GO0 {Z275 hot-dip galvanized) coating
designation or ASTM A 792/A 792M, Class AZ50 (Class AZM150) aluminum-zinc-
alloy coating designation uniass otherwise indicated, Provide manufacturer's
standard sections as required for support and alignment of metal compesite
material panel system.

B. Panel Accessories: Provide components required for a compiete, weathertight
pane! system including trim, copings, fasciae, mullions, sills, corner units, clips,

METAL COMPQOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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2.4

flashings, sealants, gaskets, fillers, closure strips, and similar items. Match
material and finish of metal composite material panels unless otherwise indicated.

Flashing and Trim: Provide flashing and trim formed from same material as metal
composite material panels as required o seal against weather and to provide
finished appearance. Locations include, but are not limited to, bases, drips, sills,
jambs, corners, end-walls, framed openings, rakes, fasciae, parapet caps, soffits,
reveals, and fillers. Finish flashing and trim with same finish system as adjacent
metal composite material panels.

Panel Fasteners: Self-tapping screws designed to withstand design lcads. Provide
exposed fasteners with heads matching color of metal composite material panels by
means of plastic caps or factory-applied coating. Provide EPDM or PVC sealing
washers for exposed fastenars.

Panel Sealants: ASTM C 920; elastomeric polyurethane or silicone sealant; of type,
grade, class, and use classifications required to seal joints in metal composite
material panels and remain weathertight; and as recommended in writing by metal
composite material panel manufacturer,

FABRICATION

General: Fabricate and finish metal composite material panels and accessories at
the factory, by manufacturer's standard procedures and processes, as necessary {0
fuifiil indicated performance requirements demonstrated by laboratory testing.
Comply with indicated profiles and with dimensional and structural requirements.

Fabricate metal composite material pane! joints with factory-installed captive
gaskets or separator strips that provide a weathertight seal and prevent metal-to-
metal contact, and that minimize noise from movements.

Sheet Metai Flashing and Trim: Fabricate flashing and trim to comply with
manufacturer's recommendations and recommendations in SMACNA's "Architectural
Sheet Metal Manual" that apply To design, dimensions, metal, and other
characteristics of item indicated.

1. Form exposed sheet metal accessories that are without excessive oil canning,
buckling, and tool marks and that are true te line and levels indicated, with
exposed edges foided back to form hems,

2 Seams for Aluminum: Fabricate nonmoving seams with flat-lock seams.
Form seams and seal with epoxy seam sealer. Rivet joints for additional
strength.

3. Seams for Other Than Aluminum: Fabricate nonmoving seams in accessories
with flat-tock seams. Tin edges to be seamed, form seams, and solder.

4, Sealed Joints: Farm non-expansion, but movable, joints in metal to
accommaedate sealant and to comply with SMACNA standards.

5. Concesl fasteners and expansion provisions where possible. Exposed
fasteners are not allowed on faces of accessorias exposed o view.

6.  Fabricate cleats and attachment devices from same material as accessory
being anchored or from compatible, noncorrosive metal recommended in
writing by metal panel manufacturer,

METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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a. Size: As recommended by SMACNA's "Architectural Sheet Metal
Manual" or metal wall panel manufacturer for application but not less
than thickness of metal being secured.

2.5 FINISHES

A,  Protect mechanical and painted finishes on exposed surfaces from damage by
applying a strippable, temporary protective covering before shinping.

B.  Appearance of Finished Work: Variations in appearance of abutting or adjacent
pieces are acceptabie if they are within one-half of the range of approved Samples,
Noticeable variations in same piece are not accepiable. Variations in appearance of
other compenents are acceptabie if they are within the range of approved Samples
and are assembied or instatied to minimize contrast.

C. Aluminum Paneis and Accessories:

1. Three-Coat Fluoro-polymer: AAMA 620. Fluoropoiymer finish containing not
less than 70 percent PVDF resin by weight in both color coat and clear
topcoat. Prepare, pretreat, and apply coating to exposed metal surfaces to
comply with coating and resin manufacturers' written instructions.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

31 EXAMINATION

A, Examine substrates, areas, and conditions, with Installer present, for compliance
with requirements for instailation tolerances, metal composite material panel
supports, and other conditions affecting performance of the Work.

1. Examine wall framing to verify that girts, angles, channels, studs, and other
structural pane! support members and anchorage have been installed within
alignment tolerances required by metal composite material wall panei
manufacturer.

2. Examine wall sheathing to verify that sheathing joints are supported by
framing or blocking and that instaliation is within flatness tolerances required
by metal composite material wall panel manufacturer.

a. Verify that air- or water-resistive barriers have been instalied over
sheathing or backing substrate to prevent air infiltration or water
penetration,

B. Examine roughing-in for components and assemblies penetrating metal composite
material panels to verify actual iecations of penetrations relative to seam locations
of metal composite material panels before instailation,

C. Proceed with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.

METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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3.2

A,

3.3

PREPARATION

Miscellaneous Supports: Install sub-framing, furring, and other miscellaneous
panei support members and ancherages according to ASTM C 754 and metal
composite material panel manufacturer's written recommendations.

METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL PANEL INSTALLATION

General: Instali metal compasite material panels according to manufacturer's
written instructions in orientation, sizes, and locations indicated on Drawings.
Install panels perpendicular to supports unless otherwise indicated. Anchor metal
composite materizal panels and other components of the Work securely in place,
with provisions for thermal and structural movement.

1. Shim or otherwise plumb substrates receiving metal composite material
panels,

2. Flash and seal metal composite material panels at perimeter of ali openings.

Fasten with seif-tapping screws. Do notf begin installation untii air- or water-

resistive barriers and flashings that will be concealed by metal compaosite

material panels are installed,

Install screw fasteners in predrilled holes.

Locate and space fastenings in uniform vertical and horizontal alignment.

Install flashing and trim as metal composite material panel work proceeds.

l.ocate panel splices over, but not attached to, structural supports. Stagger

panel splices and end laps to avoid a four-panel lap splice condition.

Align bottoms of meta!l composite material panels and fasten with blind rivets,

bolts, or self-tapping screws, Fasten flashings and trim around openings and

similar elements with self-tapping screws.

3. Provide weathertight escutcheons for pipe- and conduit-penetrating panels,

O Uk

~4

Fasteners:

1. Aluminum Panels: Use aluminum or stainiess-stee! fasteners for surfaces
exposed to the exterior; use aluminum or gaivanized-steei fasteners for
surfaces exposed te the interior.

2. Copper Panels: Use copper, stainless-stee! or hardware-bronze fasteners,

Metal Protection: Where dissimilar metals contact each other or corrosive
substrates, protect against gaivanic action as recommended in writing by metal
composite material panel manufacturer.

Attachment Assembly, General: Install attachment assembly required to support
metal composite material wall panels and te provide a complete weathertight wall
system, including sub-girts, perimeter extrusions, tracks, drainage channels, panel
clips, and anchor channels.

1, Include attachment to supports, panel-to-panel joinery, panel-to-dissimilar-
material joinery, and panej-system joint seals.

METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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E. Installation: Attach metal composite material wall panels to supports at locations,
spacings, and with fasteners recommended by manufacturer to achieve
performance requirements specified.

1. Wet Seal Systems: Seal horizontal and vertical joints between adiacent metal
composite material wail panels with sealant backing and sealant. Install
sealant backing and sealfant according to requirements specified in Section
07 92 00 "Joint Sealants.”

2, composite material

3. Rain-screen Systems: Do not apply sealants to joints unless otherwise
indicated.

F. Ciip Installation: Attach panel clips to supports at locations, spacings, and with
fasteners recommended by manufacturer. Attach routed-and-returned flanges of
wall panels to panel clips with manufacturer's standard fasteners.

1. Seal horizontal and vertical jeints between adjacent panels with sealant
backing and sealant. Install sealant backing and sealant according to
reguirements specified in Section 07 92 00 "Joint Sealants.”

2. Sea! horizental and vertical joints between adjacent meta! composite material
wall panels with manufacturer's standard gaskets,

G, Accessory Installation: Install accessories with positive ancheorage to building and
weathertight mounting, and provide for thermal expansion. Coordinate instaliation
with flashings and other components,

1. install components required for a complete metal composite material panel
assembly including trim, copings, corners, seam covers, flashings, sealants,
gaskets, fillers, closure strips, and similar items. Provide types indicated by
metal composita material panel manufacturer; or, if not indicated, provide
types recommended in writing by metal composite material panel
manufacturer,

H.  Flashing and Trim: Comply with performance requirements, manufacturer's written

instailation instructions, and SMACNA's "Architectural Sheet Metat Manual.” Provide
concealed fasteners where possible, and set units true o line and level as
indicated. Install work with laps, joints, and seams that are permanently
watertight.

1. install exposed fiashing and trim that is without buckling and tool marks and
that is true to line and levels indicated, with exposed edges folded back to
form hems. Install sheet metal flashing and trim to fit substrates and to
result in waterproof performance.

2. Expansion Provisions: Provide for thermal expansion of exposed flashing and
trim. Space movement ioints at a maximum of 10 feet (3 m) with no joints
allowed within 24 inches (605 mm) of corner or intersection. Where lapped
expansion provisions cannot be used or would not be sufficiently waterproof,
form expansion joints of intermeshing hooked flanges, not less than 1 inch
(25 mm) deep, filled with mastic seaiant {concealed within joints).

METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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3.4 ERECTION TOLERANCES

A, Installation Toierances: Shim and align metal composite material wall panel units
within instalied tolerance of 1/4 inch in 20 feet (6 mm in 6 m), non-accumuliative,
on tevel, plumb, and location lines as indicated, and within 1/8-inch (3-mm) offset
of adjoining faces and of alignment of matching profiles.

3.5 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

A.  Testing Agency: Engage a qualified independent testing agency to perform field
tests and inspections.

B, Water-Spray Test: After installation, test area of assembly as directed by Architect
for water penetration according to AAMA 501.2.

C. Manufacturer's Field Service: Engage a factory-authorized service representative to
test and inspect completed metal composite material wall panel instaliation,
including accessories.

D. Metal composite material wall panels will be considered defective if they do not
pass test and inspections.

E. Additiona! tests and inspections, at Contractor's expense, are performed o
determine compliance of replaced or additional work with specified reguirements.

F. Prepare test and inspection reports.

3.6 CLEANING AND PROTECTION

A.  Remove temporary protective coverings and strippable films, if any, as metal
composite material panels are instalied, unless otherwise indicated in
manufacturer's written installation instructions. On compietion of metal composite
material panel instaliation, clean finished surfaces as recommended by metal
composite material panel manufacturer. Maintain in a clean condition during
construction.

8. After metat composite material panel installation, ciear weep holes and drainage
channels of obstructions, dirt, and sealant.

C. Repiace metal composite material panels that have been damaged or have

deteriorated beyond successful repair by finish touchup or similar minor repair
procedures,

END OF SECTION

METAL COMPOSITE MATERIAL WALL PANELS
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SECTION 07 54 23 - THERMOPLASTIC POLYCLEFIN {TPO) ROOFING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 SUMMARY

A, Section Includes:

1. Fully adhered TPO membrane rocfing system.
2. Vapor retarder.
3. Roof insulation.

B. Section includes the installation of acoustical rcoof deck rib insulation strips
furnished under Section 05 31 00 "Steel Decking.”

C.  Related Requirements:

1. Section 06 10 53 "Miscellaneous Rough Carpentry” for wood nailers, curbs,
and blocking.

2. Section 06 16 00 "Sheathing” for wood-based, structural-use roof deck
panels,

3. Section 07 21 00 "Therma! Insuiation” for insuiation beneath the roof deck,

4. Section 07 62 06 "Sheet Metal Flashing and Trim" for metal rocf penetration
flashings, flashings, and counter-flashings.

5. Section 07 71 29 "Manufactured Roof Expansion Joints" for proprietary
manufactured roof expansion-joint assemblies.

6. Section 07 22 00 "Joint Sealants” for loint sealants, loint fillers, and joint
preparation.

7. Section 22 14 23 "Storm Drainage Piping Speclalties” for roof drains,

THERMOPLASTIC POLYGLEFIN (TPO} ROOFING
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1.2 DEFINITIONS
A.  TPQO: Thermoplastic polyolefin.

B. Roofing Terminology: See ASTM D 1079 and glossary in NRCA's "The NRCA
Roofing and Waterproofing Manual” for definitions of terms reiated to roofing work
in this Section,

1.3 PREINSTALLATION MEETINGS

A, Consider retain%ng first paragraph below if roofing installation is large and
complicated. A preliminary roofing conference would precede a preinstallation
conference and focus on roof deck construction and pianning activities of roofing
Installer,

Preiiminary Roofing Conference; Before starting roof deck construction, conduct conference
at Project site.

1. Meet with Owner, Architect, Owner's insurer if applicable, testing and
inspecting agency representative, roofing Instailer, roofing system
manufacturer's representative, deck Installer, and installers whose work
interfaces with or affects roofing, including installers of roof accessories and
roof-mounted equipment.

2, Review methods and procedures refated to roofing installation, including
manufacturer's written instructions,

3. Review and finalize construction schedule and verify avallability of materials,
Installer's personnel, equipment, and facilities needed to make progress and
avoid delays.

4, Review deck substrate requirements for conditions and finishes, including
fiatness and fastening.

5. Review structural loading limitations of roof deck during and after roofing.

6, Review base flashings, specia! roofing details, roof drainage, roof
penetrations, equipment curbs, and condition of other construction that will
affect roofing system.

7. Review governing regulations and requirements for insurance and certificates
if applicabie.

8. Review temporary protection requirements for roofing system during and
after instailation.

9. Review roof observation and repair procedures after roofing installation.

Pre-instaliation Roofing Conference: Conduct conference at Project site,

10. Mest with Owner, Architect, Owner's insurer if applicable, testing and
inspecting agency representative, roofing Installer, roofing system
manufacturer's representative, deck Instailer, and installers whose work
interfaces with or affects rocfing, inciuding installers of roof accessories and
roof-mounted equipment,

THERMOPLASTIC POLYOLEFIN {TPO) RCGOFING
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11. Review methods and procedures refated to roofing installation, including
manufacturer's written instructions.

12. Review and finalize construction schedule and verify availability of materials,
installer's personne!, equipment, and facilities needed to make progress and
avoeid delays.

13. Examine deck substrate conditions and finishes for compliance with
requirements, including flatness and fastening.

14. Review structural loading limitations of rocf deck during and after roofing.

15, Review base flashings, speciai rocfing details, roof drainage, roof
penetrations, eguipment curbs, and condition of other construction that will
affect roofing system.

16. Review governing regulations and requirements for insurance and certificates
if applicable.

17. Review temporary protection requirements for roofing system during and
after installation.

18. Review roof observation and repair procedures after roofing installation.

1.4 ACTION SUBMITTALS

Product Data: For each type of product indicated,

Shop Drawings: For roofing system. Include plans, elevations, sections, details, and at-
tachments to other work.

1. Base flashings and membrane terminations.
2. Tapered insulation, including slopes.
3. Roof plan showing orientation of steel roof deck and orientation of for fully
adhered membrane rocfing.
4. Insulation fastening patterns for corner, perimeter, and field-of-roof locations.
Samples for Verification: For the foilowing products:

Sheet roofing, of color specified, including T-shaped side and end iap seam.
Roof insulation,

Walkway pads or rolls,

Metal termination bars.

Battens.

Six insulation fasteners of each type, length, and finish.

Six roof cover fasteners of each type, length, and finish.

0 00 N O

= O

1.5 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

Qualification Data: For qualified Installer and manufacturer,

Manufacturer Certificates: Signed by rocfing manufacturer certifying that roofing system
complies with requirements specified in "Performance Requirements" Article.

1 Submit evidence of compliance with performance requirements.
Product Test Reports: Based on evaluation of comprehensive tests performed by manufac-
turer and witnessed by a qualified testing agency, for components of membrane roofing sys-
tem,

THERMOPLASTIC POLYCLEFIN (TPO) ROOFING
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Research/Evaluation Reports: For components of membrane roofing system, from the 2009
International Building Code.

Field guality-control reports,
Warranties: Sample of special warranties.

1.6 CLOSEQUT SUBMITTALS
Maintenance Data; For roofing system to Include in maintenance manuals,

1.7 QUALITY ASSURANCE

Manufacturer Qualifications: A gualified manufacturer that is FM Approvals approved for
membrane roofing system identical to that used for this Project.

Installer Qualifications: A qualified firm that is approved, authorized, or licensed by mem-
brane roofing systemn manufacturer to install manufacturer’s product and that is eligible to
receive manufacturer's special warranty.

Exterior Fire-Test Exposure: ASTM E 108, Class B; for application and roof slopes indicated,
as determined by testing identical membrane roofing materials by a qualified testing agen-
cy. Materiais shall be identified with appropriate markings of appiicabie testing agency.
Fire-Resistance Ratings: Where indicated, provide fire-resistance-rated roof assembiies
identical to those of assemblies tested for fire resistance per ASTM £ 119 by a gualified test-
ing agency. Identify products with appropriate markings of applicable testing agency.

1.8 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

Deliver roofing materials fo Project site in original containers with seals unbroken and ia-
beted with manufacturer's name, product brand name and type, date of manufacture, ap-
proval or listing agency markings, and directions for storing and mixing with other compo-
nents.

Store liguid materials in their original undamaged containers in a clean, dry, protected toca-
tion and within the temperature range required by roofing system manufacturer. Protect
stored liquid material from direct sunlight.

1. Discard and legally dispose of liquid material that cannot be applied within its
stated shelf life.
Protect roof insulation materials from physical damage and from deterioration by sunlight,
moisture, sciling, and other scurces. Store in a dry focation. Comply with insulation manu-
facturer's written instructions for handiing, storing, and protecting during installation.
Handle and store roofing materials and place eguipment in a manner to avoid permanent
deflection of deck.

1.9 FIELD CONDITIONS
Weather Limitations: Proceed with instaliation only when existing and forecasted weather

conditions permit rocfing system to he installed according to manufacturer's written instruc-
tions and warranty requirements.
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110 WARRANTY

Speciai Warranty: Manufacturer's standard or customized form, without monetary limita-
tiom, in which manufacturer agrees to repair or replace components of membrane roofing
system that fail in materials or workmanship within specified warranty period.

1.  Special warranty includes membrane roofing, base flashings, roof insulation,
fasteners, cover boards, substrate board, roofing accessories, roof pavers,
and other components of membrane roofing system.

2. Warranty Period: 15 years from date of Substantial Completion.

Special Project Warranty: Submit roofing Installer's warranty, on warranty form at end of
this Section, signed by Installer, covering the Work of this Section, including all components
of membrane roofing system such as membrane roofing, base flashing, roof insulation, fas-
teners, cover boards, substrate boards, vapor retarders, roof pavers, and walkway products,
for the following warranty pericd;

3. Warranty Period: Two years from date of Substantial Completion.
PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 TPO MEMBRANE ROOFING
Fabric-Reinforced Thermoplastic Polyolefin Sheet: ASTM D 6878, internally fabric or scrim
reinforced, uniform, flexible fabric backed TPO sheet.,

1. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide products
by one of the following:

Carlisle SynTec Incorporated.

Custom Seal Roofing.

Firestone Building Products Company.

GAF Materials Corporation.

GenFlex Roofing Systems.

Jjohns Manville.

Mule-Hide Products Co., Inc.

Stevens Roofing Systems; Division of JPS Elastomerics.
Versico Incorporated.

Se e oo T

2. Thickness: 60 mils (1.5 mm), nominai,

3. Exposed Face Coior: Gray.
Source Limitations: Obtain components inciuding roof insulation, fasteners for membrane
roofing system from same manufacturer as membrane roofing or approved by membrane
roofing manufacturer,

2.2 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS
General Performance: Installed membrane roofing and base flashings shall withstand speci-
fied uplift pressures, thermally induced movement, and exposure to weather without failure

THERMOPLASTIC POLYOLEFIN (TPO) ROOFING
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due to defective manufacture, fabrication, installation, or other defects in construction.
Membrane roofing and base flashings shali remain watertight.

Material Compatibility: Provide roofing materials that are compatibie with one another un-
der conditions of service and application required, as demonstrated by membrane roofing
manufacturer based on testing and field experience.

Roofing System Design: Provide membrane roofing system that is identical to systems that
have been successfully tested by a qualified testing and inspecting agency to resist upHft
pressure calcuiated according to ASCE/SEL 7,

1. Commer Upiift Pressure: ~107.7 Ibf/sg. ft. (kPa/sg. m)>.

2. Perimeter Uplift Pressure: -71.5 Ibf/sqg. ft. (kPa/sg. m}>.

3. Field-of-Roof Uplift Pressure: -42.6 bf/sqa. ft. (kPa/sq. m)>.
FM Approvals Listing: Provide membrane roofing, base flashings, and component materiais
that comply with requirements in FM Approvals 4450 and FM Approvals 4470 as part of a
membrane roofing system, and that are listed in FM Approvals’ "RoofNav" for Class 1 or
noncombustible construction, as applicable. Identify materials with FM Approvals markings.

4, Fire/Windstorm Classification: Class 1A-120.

5. Hall Resistance: SH.
Solar Reflectance Index: Not less than 78 when calculated according to ASTM E 1980,
based on testing identical products by a qualified testing agency.
Energy Performance: Provide roofing system that is listed on the DOE's ENERGY STAR
"Roof Products Qualified Product List" for low-siope roof products.
Energy Performance: Provide roofing system with initial solar refiectance not less than 0.80
ang emissivity not less than 0.90 when tested according to CRRC-1.

2.3 AUXILIARY MEMBRANE ROOFING MATERIALS
General: Auxiliary membrane roofing materials recommended by roofing system manufac-
turer for intended use, and compatible with membrane roofing.

1. Liguig-type auxiliary materials shall comply with VOC limits of authorities
having jurisdiction.

2. Adhesives and sealants that are not on the exterior side of weather barrier
shall comply with the following limits for VOC content when calculated
according to 40 CFR 59, Subpart D (EPA Method 24):

Plastic Foam Adhesives: 50 g/L.

Gypsum Board and Panel Adhesives: 50 g/L.

Multipurpose Construction Adhesives: 70 g/L.

Fiberglass Adhesives: 80 g/L.

Singte-Ply Roof Membrane Adhesives: 250 g/L.

Other Adhesives: 250 g/L.

Singie-Ply Roof Membrane Sealants: 450 g/L.

Non-membrane Roof Sealants: 300 g/L.

Sealant Primers for Nonporous Substrates: 250 g/L.
i Sealant Primers for Porous Substrates: 775 g/L.

Sheet Flashing: Manufacturer's standard unreinforced thermoplastic poiyolefin sheet flash-

ing, 55 mils {1.4 mm) thick, minimum, of same color as sheet membrane.

Tompa0To
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Bonding Adhesive: Manufacturer’s standard, water based,

Slip Sheet: Manufacturer's standard, of thickness required for application.

Metal Termination Bars: Manufacturer's standard, predrilled stainless-steel or aluminum
bars, approximately 1 by 1/8 inch (25 by 3 mm) thick; with anchors.

Metal Battens: Manufacturer's standard, aluminum-zinc-alioy-coated or zinc-coated stee!
sheet, approximately 1 inch wide by 0.05 inch thick (25 mm wide by 1.3 mm thick), pre-
punched,

Fasteners: Factory-coalted steel fasteners and metal or plastic plates complying with corro-
sion-rasistance provisions in FM Approvals 4470, designed for fastening membrane to sub-
strate, and acceptable to membrane roofing system manufacturer.

Miscellaneous Accessories: Provide pourable sealers, preformed cone and vent sheet flash-
ings, preformed inside and outside corner sheet flashings, T-joint covers, lap sealants, ter-
mination reglets, and other accessories,

2.4 SUBSTRATE BOARDS
Substrate Board: ASTM C 1177/C 1177M, glass-mat, water-resistant gypsum substrate,
Type X, 5/8 inch (16 mm) thick,

1. Products: Subject to compiiance with requirements, provide the following:

a. Georgia-Pacific Corporation; Dens Deck,
Fasteners: Factory-coated steel fasteners and metal or piastic plates complying with corro-
sion-resistance provisions in FM Approvals 4470, designed for fastening substrate board to
roof deck.

2.5 VAPOR RETARDER

A, Reinforced-Polyethylene Vapor Retarders: Two outer lavers of polyethylene film
iaminated to an inner reinforcing layer consisting of either nylon cord or polyester
scrim and weighing not less than 25 1b/1000 sqg. ft. (12 kg/100 sg. m), with
maximum permeance rating of 0.0507 perm (2.9 ng/Pa X s X 8G. m).

1. Products: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide the foilowing:
a. Reef Industries, Inc.; Griffolyn T-65,

2.6 ROOF INSULATION

General: Preformed roof insulation beards manufactured or approved by TPO membrane
roofing manufacturer, selected from manufacturer's standard sizes suitable for application,
of thicknesses indicated and that produce FM Approvals-approved roof insulation,
Extruded-Polystyrene Board Insulation: ASTM C 578, Type 1V, 1.6-th/cu. ft. (26-kg/cu. m)

Tapered Insulation: Provide factory-tapered insuiation boards fabricated to slope of 1/4
inch per 12 inches (1:48) minimum, uniess otherwise indicated,

Provide preformed saddles, crickets, tapered edge strips, and other insulation shapes where
indicated for sleping to drain. Fabricate to slopes indicated.

THERMOPLASTIC POLYQLEFIN {TPO) ROOFING
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2.7 INSULATION ACCESSORIES

General: Furnish roof insulation accessories recommended by insulation manufacturer for
intended use and compatibility with membrane roofing.

Fasteners: Factory-coated steel fasteners and metal or plastic plates complying with corro-
sion-resistance provisions in FM Approvals 4470, designed for fastening roof insulation and
cover boards to substrate, and acceptable to roofing system manufacturer.

Full-Spread Applied Insulation Adhesive: Insulation manufacturer's recommended spray-
appited, low-rise, two-compenent urethane adhesive formulated to attach roof insulation to
substrate or to another insulation layer.

Cover Board: ASTM C 1278/C 1278M, celiulosic-fiber-reinforced, water-resistant gypsum
substrate, 5/8 inch (16 mm) thick, '

1. Products: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide the following:

a. USG Corporation; Securock.

2.8 ASPHALT MATERIALS
Roofing Asphalt: ASTM D 312, Type III or Type IV,
Agphalt Primer; ASTM D 41.

2.9 WALKWAYS

Flexible Watkways: Factory-formed, nonporous, heavy-duty, stip-resisting, surface-textured
walkway pads or rolls, approximately 3/16 inch (5 mm) thick, and acceptable to membrane
rocfing system manufacturer,

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION
Examine substrates, areas, and conditions, with Instalier present, for compliance with the
following reguirements and other conditions affecting performance of roofing system:

1. Verify that roof openings and penetrations are in place and curbs are set and
braced and that roof drain bodies are securely clamped in place.

2. Verify that wood blocking, curbs, and nailers are securely anchored to roof
deck at penetrations and terminations and that nailers match thicknesses of
insulation.

3. Verify that surface plane flatness and fastening of steel roof deck complies
with requirements in Section 05 31 00 "Steel Decking."

4, Verify that minimum concrete drying period recommended by roofing system
manufacturer has passed.

5. Verify that concrete substrate is visibly dry and free of moisture. Test for
capiliary moisture by plastic sheet method according to ASTM D 4263.

6. Verify that concrete curing compounds that wili impair adhesion of roofing
components to roof deck have been removed,

Proceed with instaliation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.

THERMOPLASTIC POLYOLEFIN (TPO) ROOFING
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3.2 PREPARATION

Clean substrate of dust, debris, moisture, and other substances detrimental to roofing in-
stallation according to roofing system manufacturer's written instructions. Remove sharp
projections.

Prevent materials from entering and clogging roof drains and conductors and from spilling or
migrating onto surfaces of other construction. Remove rocf-drain plugs when no work is
taking place or when rain is forecast,

Complete terminations and base flashings and provide temporary seals fo prevent water
from entering completed sections of roofing system at the end of the workday or when rain
is forecast. Remove and discard tempoerary seals before beginning work on adjoining roof-
ing.

Install acoustical roof deck rib insulation strips, specified in Section 05 31 00 "Steel Deck-
ing," according to acoustical roof deck manufacturer's written instructions, immediately be-
fore instaliation of overlying construction and to remain dry.

3.3 SUBSTRATE BOARD
Instali substrate board with long joints in continuous straight lines, perpendicular to roof
slopes with end joints staggered between rows. Tightly butt substrate boards together,

1. Fasten substrate board to top flanges of steel deck according to
recommendations in FM Approvais' "RoofNav" and FM Giobal Loss Prevention
Data Sheet 1-29 for specified Windstorm Resistance Classification.

3.4 VAPQOR-RETARDER INSTALLATION

Polyethylene Film: Loosely lay polyethylene-film vapor retarder in a singte layer over area
t0 receive vapor retarder, side and end lapping each sheet a minimum of 2 inches {50 mm)
and 5 inches (150 mm), respectively.

Apply adhesive at rate recommended by vapor-retarder manufacturer. Seal laps with adhe-
sives,

Comnpletely seal vapor retarder at terminations, obstructions, and penetrations to prevent
alr movement into membrane roofing system,

3.5 INSULATION INSTALLATION

Coordinate installing membrane roofing system components so insulation is not exposed to
precipitation or left exposed at the end of the workday.

Comnply with membrane roofing system and insulation manufacturer's written instructions
for installing roof insulation,

Trirmm surface of insuiation where necessary at roof drains so comptleted surface is flush and
doas not restrict flow of water.

Mechanically Fastened and Adhered Insulation: Install each layer of insulation and secure
first layer of insulation to deck using mechanical fasteners specifically designed and sized
for fastening specified board-type roof insulation to deck type.

1. Fasten first fayer of insulalion according to requirements in FM Approvals'
"RoofNav" for specified Windstorm Resistance Classification,

THERMOPLASTIC POLYOLEFIN (TPO) ROCOFING
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2. Fasten first layer of insulation to resist uplift pressure at corners, perimeter,
and field of rocf,
3. Set each subseguent layer of insulation in a uniform coverage of full-spread
insulation adhesive, firmly pressing and maintaining insulation in place.
Install cover boards over insulation with fong jcints in continuous straight lines with end
joints staggered between rows. Offset joints of insulation below a minimum of 6 inches
{150 mm) in each direction. Loosely butt cover beards together and fasten to roof deck,

4, Fasten cover boards according to reguirements in FM Approvals' "RoofNav" for
specified Windstorm Resistance Classification.
Install slip sheet over cover beard and immediately beneath membrane roofing.

3.6 ADHERED MEMBRANE ROOFING INSTALLATION

Adhere membrane roofing over area to receive roofing and install according to membrane
roofing system manufacturer's written instructions.

Start instaliation of membrane roofing in presence of membrane roofing system manufac-
turer's technical personnel.

Accurately align membrane roofing and maintain uniform side and end laps of minimum di-
mensions reguired by manufacturer. Stagger end laps.

Bonding Adhesive: Apply to substrate and underside of membrane roofing at rate required
by manufacturer and allow to partially dry before installing membrane roofing. Do not apply
to splice area of membrane roofing.

In addition to adhering, mechanically fasten membrane roofing securely at terminations,
penetrations, and perimeter of roofing.

Apply membrane roofing with side laps shingied with slope of roof deck where possibie.
Seams: Clean seam areas, overlap membrane roofing, and hot-air weld side and end iaps
of membrane roofing and sheet flashings according to manufacturer's written instructions to
ensure a watertight seam instaliation.

1. Test lap edges with probe to verify seam weld continuity. Apply lap sealant to
seal cut edges of sheet membrane.
2. Verify fieid strength of seams a minimum of twice daily and repair seam
samptle areas.
3. Repair tears, voids, and lapped seams in roofing that does not comply with
requirements,
Spread sealant bed over deck drain flange at roof drains and securely seal membrane roof-
ing in piace with clamping ring.
Install membrane roofing and auxiliary materials £o tie In £o existing roofing to maintain
weathertightness of transition and to not void warranty for existing membrane roofing sys-
tern,

3.7 BASE FLASHING INSTALLATION

Instail sheet flashings and preformed flashing accessories and adhere to substrates accord-
ing to membrane roofing system manufacturer’s written instructions.

Apply bonding adhesive to substrate and underside of sheef flashing at reguired rate and
aliow to partially dry. Do not apply to seam area of flashing.

THERMOPLASTIC POLYOLEFIN (TPO) ROOFING
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Flash penetrations and field-formed inside and outside corners with cured or uncured sheet
flashing.

Clean seam areas, overlap, and firmly roll sheet flashings into the adhesive. Hot-air weld
side and end laps to ensure a watertight seam instatlation,

Terminate and seal top of sheet flashings and mechanically anchor to substrate through
termination bars.

3.8 WALKWAY INSTALLATION

Flexible Walkways: Install walkway products in locations indicated. Heat weld to substrate
or adhere walkway products to substrate with compatible adhesive according to roofing sys-
temn manufacturer's written instructions.

3.9 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

Testing Agency: Owner will engage a qualified testing agency to perform tests and inspec-
tions.

Final Roof Inspection: Arrange for roofing system manufacturer's technical personnel to in-
spect roofing instailation on compietion.

Repair or remove and replace components of membrane roofing system where inspections

indicate that they do not comply with specified requirements.

Additional inspections, at Contractor's expense, will be performed to determine compliance
of replaced or additional work with specified reguirements.

3.10 PROTECTING AND CLEANING

Protect membrane roofing system from damage and wear during remainder of construction
period. When remaining construction will not affect or endanger racfing, inspect roofing for
deterioration and damage, gescribing its nature and extent in a writfen report, with copies
to Architect and Owner,

Correct deficiencies in or remove membrane roofing system that does not comply with re-
quirements; repair substrates; and repair or reinstall membrane roofing system te a condi-
tion free of damage and detericration at fime of Substantial Completion and according to
warranty requirements,

Clean overspray and spillage from adjacent construction using cleaning agents and proce-
dures recommended by manufacturer of affected construction.

311 ROOFING INSTALLER'S WARRANTY

AND WHEREAS Reoofing Instalier has contracted (either directly with Owner or indirectly as a
subcontractor) to warrant said work against leaks and faulty or defective materials and
workmanship for designated Warranty Period,

NOW THEREFORE Roofing Installer hereby warrants, subject to terms and conditions herein
set forth, that during Warranty Period he will, at his own cost and expense, make or cause
to be made such repairs to or replacements of said work as are necessary o correct fauity
and defective work and as are necessary to maintain said work in a watertight condition,
This Warranty is made subject to the following terms and conditions:

THERMOPLASTIC POLYOLEFIN (TPO) ROOFING
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1. Specifically excluded from this Warranty are damages tc work and other parts
of the buiiding, and to building contents, caused by:

a, Lightning;

b. Pezak gust wind speed exceeding 120 mph {m/sec);

o Fire;

d. Failure of roofing system substrate, including cracking, settiement,

excessive deflection, deterioration, and decomposition;

e. Fauity construction of parapet walis, copings, chimneys, skylights,
vents, equipment supports, and other edge conditions and penetrations
of the work;

f. Vapor condensation on bottom of roofing; and
Activity on roofing by others, including construction contractors,
maintenance personnel, other persons, and animals, whether authorized
or unauthorized by Owner.

2. When work has been damaged by any of foregoing causes, Warranty shall be
nuil and void untl such damage has been repaired by Roofing Installer and
until cost and expense thereof have been paid by Owner or by another
responsible party so designated.

3. Rocfing Instalier is responsible for damage to work covered by this Warranty
but is not liable for consequential damages to building or building contents
resulting from leaks or faults or defects of work.

4. During Warranty Period, If Owner allows alteration of work by anyene other
than Roofing Installer, including cutting, patching, and maintenance in
connection with penetrations, attachment of other work, and positioning of
anything on roof, this Warranty shall become null and vold on date of said
alterations, but only to the extent said alterations affect work covered by this
Warranty. If Owner engages Roofing Installer to perform said alterations,
Warranty shali not become null and void unless Roofing Installer, before
starting said work, shail nave nofified Owner in writing, showing reasonable
cause for claim, that said alterations would likely damage or deteriorate work,
thereby reasonably justifying a limitation or termination of this Warranty,

5. During Warranty Period, if original use of roof is changed and it becomes used
for, but was not originally specified for, a promenade, work deck, spray-
coocled surface, flooded basin, or other use or service more severe than
originally specified, this Warranty shall become null and void on date of said
change, but only to the extent said change affects work covered by this
Warranty.

6. Owner shall promptly notify Roofing Installer of observed, known, or
suspected leaks, defects, or deterioration and shall afford reasonabie
opportunity for Roofing Installer to inspect work and to examine evidence of
such leaks, defects, or deterioration,

7. This Warranty is recegnized to be the only warranty of Roofing Instalier on
said work and shall not operate to restrict or cut off Owner from other
remedies and resources lawfully available to Owner in cases of roofing failure,
Specifically, this Warranty shail not operate to relieve Roofing Instalier of
responsibility for performance of original work according {o requirements of
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the Contract Documents, regardiess of whether Contract was a contract
directly with Owner or a subcontract with Owner's General Contractor,

END OF SECTION
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1.1

1.2

1.3

SECTION {7 71 00 - ROOF SPECIALTIES

PART 1 - GENERAL

SUMMARY

Section Includes:

1. Preformed copings.

2. Preformed roof-edge flashings.

3. Preformed roof-edge drainage systems.
4. Preformed reglets and counterflashings.

Related Sections:

1. Section 06 10 00 "Rough Carpentry” for wood nailers, curbs, and blocking,

2.

3. Section 07 92 00 "Joint Sealants" for field-applied sealants between roof
specialties and adiacent materials.

ACTION SUBMITTALS

Product Data: For each type of product indicated. Include construction detaiis,
materiai descriptions, dimensions of individual components and profiles, and
finishes,

Shop Drawings: For roof specialties. Include pilans, elevations, expansion-igint

focations, keyed details, and attachments to other work. Distinguish between

plant- and field-assembled work. Inciude the following:

1. Details for expansion and contraction; locations of expansion joints, including
direction of expanston and contraction.

2. Pattern of seams and laycut of fasieners, cleats, clips, and other attachments,

3. Details of termination points and assemblies, including fixed points.

4. Details of speciai conditions.

Sampies for Initial Selection: For each type of roof specialty indicated with factory-
applied color finishes.

Samples for Verification: For copings, rocf-edge flashings, roof-edge drainage
systems, reglets and counterflashings made from 12-inch (300-mm) lengths of fuli-
size components including fasteners, cover joints, accessories, and attachments.

INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

Product Test Reports: Based on evaiuation of comprehensive tests performed by a

gualified testing agency, for copings and reof-edge flashings.

1. Submit evidence that manufactured copings and roof edge flashings proposed
for this Project have passed SPRI tests RE-2 and RE-3.

Warranty: Sample of special warranty.

ROOF SPECIALTIES
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1.4

Al

1.5

1.6

1.7

CLOSEQUT SUBMITTALS

Maintenance Data: For roofing speciaities to include in maintenance manuals.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

Mockups: Bulld mockups to verify selections made under sample submittals and to
demonstrate aesthetic effects and set quality standards for fabrication and
instaliation.

1. Build mockup of typicai roof edge, including fascla gufter and downspout,
approximately 10 feet (3.C¢ m) long, including supporting construction, seams,
attachments, underlayment, and accessories,

2. Approval of mockups does not constitute approval of deviations from the
Contract Documents contained In mockups unless Architect specifically
approves such deviations in writing.

3.  Approved mockups may become part of the completed Work if undisturbed at
time of Substantial Completion.

Preinstaliation Conference: Conduct conference at Project site.

1. Meet with Owner, Architect, Owner's Insurer if applicable, Instailer, and
instaliers whose work interfaces with or affects roof specialties inciuding
instaliers of roofing materials and accessories,

2, Examine substrate conditions for compliance with requirements, inciuding
flatness and attachment to structural members.

3. Review special roof detalls, roof drainage, and condition of aother construction
that will affect roof speciaities.

DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

Do not store roof speciaities in contact with other materials that might cause
staining, denting, or other surface damage. Store rocf specialties away from
uncured concrete and masonry.

Protect strippable protective covering on roof specialties from expasure to suniight
and high humidity, except to extent necessary for the period of roof speciaities
instatlation.

WARRANTY

Special Warranty on Painfed Finishes: Manufacturer's standard form in which
manufacturer agrees to repair finish or replace roof specialties that show evidence
of deterioration of factory-applied finishes within specified warranty period.

1. Flugropolymer Finish: Deterioration includes, but is not Hmited to, the

following:

a. Color fading more than 5 Hunter units when tested according to
ASTM D 2244,

b. Chalking in excess of a No.8 rating when tested according to
ASTM D 4214,

C. Cracking, checking, peeling, or failure of paint to adhere to bare metai,
2. Finish Warranty Period: 20 years from date of Substantial Completion.

ROOF SPECIALTIES
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2.1

2.2

2.3

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

General Performance: Roof speciaities shall withstand exposure to weather and
resist thermally induced movement without failure, rattling, leaking, or fastener
disengagement due to defective manufacture, fabricalion, installation, or other
defects in construction,

FM Approvais' Listing: Manufacture and install copings and roof-edge flashings that
are listed in FM Approvals' "RoofNav" and approved for windstorm classification,
Class 1-60. Identify materials with FM Approvals' markings.

SPRI Wind Design Standard: Manufacture and install copings and roof-edge
fiashings tested according to SPRI ES-1 and capable of resisting the following
design pressures:

1. Design Pressure: As indicated within related Roofing Section.

Thermal Movements: Allow for thermal movements from ambient and surface
temperature changes to prevent buckling, opening of joinis, hole elongation,
oversiressing of components, failure of joint sealants, fallure of connections, and
other detrimental effects. Provide clips that resist rotation and avoid shear stress
as a resuit of thermal movements. Base calcuiations on surface temperatures of
materials due to both solar heat gain and nighttime-sky heat loss.

1. Temperature Change (Range): 120 degF {67 deg C), ambient; 180 deg F

{100 deg C), material surfaces.

MANUFACTURERS

Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide products by one
of the following:

Architectural Products Combany.

ATAS International, Inc.

Cheney Flashing Company.

Hickman Company, W, P.

Johns Manvilie.

Metal-Fab Manufacturing, LLC.

MM Systems Corporation.

Petersen Aluminum Corporation,

@ No AN

EXPOSED METALS

Aluminum Sheet: ASTM B 209 (ASTM B 209M), alloy as standard with

manufacturer for finish reguired, with temper to sult forming operations and

performance required.

1. Surface: Smooth, flat finish,

2. Mill Finish: As manufactured.

3. Exposed Coll-Coated Finishes: Prepare, pretreat, and apply coating to
exposed metal surfaces to comply with coating and resin manufacturers’
written instructions.

ROOF SPECIALTIES
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2.4

2.5

2.5

a. Three-Coat Fluoropolymer: AAMA 620, System consisting of primer,
fiucropolymer color coat, and clear fluoropolymer topcoat, with both
color coat and clear topcoat containing not less than 70 percent PVDF
resin by weight,

b. Concealed Surface: Pretreat with manufacturer's standard white or
light-colored acrylic or polyester backer finish, consisting of prime coat
and wash coat with a minimum total dry fiim thickness of 0.5 mil {0.013
mmy,

4, Clear Anodic Finish, Coil Coated: AAMA 611, AA-M12C22A41, Class 1, 0.018

mm or thicker,

5.  Color to match structural glazed curtain wail.

CONCEALED METALS

Aluminum Sheet: ASTM B 209 (ASTM B 209M), alloy and temper recommended by
manufacturer for type of use and structural performance indicated, mill finished,

Aluminum  Extrusions: ASTM B 221 {ASTM B 221M), alloy and temper
recommended by manufacturer for type of use and structurai performance
indicated, mill finished.

UNDERLAYMENT MATERIALS

Self-Adhering, High-Temperature Sheet: Minimum 30 to 40 mils (0.76 to 1.0 mm)

thick, consisting of slip-resisting polyethyiene-film top surface laminated to layer of

butyl or SBS-modified asphalt adhesive, with release-paper backing; cold applied.

Provide primer when recommended by underlayment manufacturer.

1. Thermal Stability: ASTM D 1970; stable after testing at 240 deg F (116
deg C).

2. Low-Temperature Flexibility: ASTM D 1970; passes after testing at minus 20
deg F (29 deg C).

3. Products: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide one of the
following:

Carlisle Coatings & Waterproofing; CCW WIP 300HT.

Grace Construction Products, a unit of W. R. Grace & Co.; Ultra.

Henry Company; Blueskin PE20Q0 HT.

Metal-Fab Manufacturing, LLC; MetShield.

Owens Corning,; WeatherlLock Metal High Temperature Underiayment.

000 T

MISCELLANEOUS MATERIALS

General: Provide materials and types of fasteners, protective coatings, sealants,
and other miscellaneous items required by manufacturer for a complete installation.

Fasteners: Manufacturer's recommended fasteners, suitable for application and

designed fo meet performance requirements, Furnish the following unless

ctherwise indicated:

1. Exposed Penetrating Fasteners: Gasketed screws with hex washer heads
matching color of sheet metal.

2. Fasteners for Aluminum: Aluminum or Series 300 stainiess steel.

3. Fasteners for Stainless-Steel Sheet: Series 300 stainiess steel.

ROOQOF SPECIALTIES
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2.7

2.8

4, Fasteners for Zinc-Coated (Galvanized) Steel Sheet: Series 300 stainless
steel or hot-cip zinc-coated stee! according to ASTM A 153/A 153M or
ASTM F 2329.

Elastomeric Sealant: ASTM C $20, elastomeric polyurethane or silicone polymer
sealant of type, grade, class, and use classifications required by roofing-specialty
manufacturer for each apptication.

Butyl Seaiant: ASTM C 1311, single-component, solvent-release butyl rubber
sealant; polyisobutylene plasticized; heavy bodied for hooked-type expansion joints
with limited movement.

Bituminous Ceating: Cold-applied asphalt emulsion complying with ASTM D 1187,

Asphalt Roofing Cement: ASTM D 4586, asbestos free, of consistency required for
application.

COPINGS

Copings: Manufactured coping system consisting of formed-metal coping cap in
section lengths not exceeding 12 feet (3.6 m), concealed anchorage; corner units,
end cap units, and concealed splice piates with same finish as coping caps.
1. Coping-Cap Material:  Formed aluminum, thickness as required to meet
performance requirements with a minimum thickness of 0.05¢ inch {1.27
rmm).
a. Finish: Three-coat fluoropolymer.
b. Coior: Match structural glazed curtain wall,
Corners: Factory mitered and mechanicaliy clinched and sealed watertight.
Special Fabrications; Radiussed sections Arched sections Bulinose face leg
Two-way sioped coping cap.
4. Coping-Cap Attachment Method: Snap-on, fabricated from coping-cap
material.
5. Snap-on-Coping Anchor Plates: Concealed, galvanized-steel sheet, 12 inches
(300 mm) wide, with integral cleats.
a. Color: As selected by Architect from manufacturer's full range.
6. Corners: Factory mitered and mechanically clinched and sealed waterlight.

w N

ROOF-EDGE FLASHINGS

Canted Roof-Edge, Fascia and Gravel Stop: Manufactured, two-plece, roof-edge
fascia consisting of snap-on metal fascia cover in section iengths not exceeding 12
feet (3.6 m) and a continuous formed galvanized-steel sheet cant, 0.028 inch {0.71
mm) thick, minimum, with extended vertical leg terminating in a drip-edge cleat,
Provide matching corner units,
1. Fascla Cover: Fabricated from the following exposed metal,
a. Formed Aluminum: Thickness as reguired to meet performance
requirements with a minimum thickness of 0.050 inch (1.27 mm).
2. Fascia Accessories: Fascia extenders with continuous hoid-down cleats, Wall
cap, Soffit trim, Overflow scuppers, Overflow scuppers with perforated
screens.

ROOF SPECIALTIES
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Roof-Edge Fascia: Manufactured, two-piece, roof-edge fascia consisting of snap-on
metal fascia cover in section lengths not exceeding 12 feet (3.6 m) and a
continuous formed- or extruded-aluminum anchor bar with integral drip-edge cleat
to engage fascia cover. Provide matching corner units.
1. Fascia Cover: Fabricated from the following exposed metal:
a. Formed Aluminum: Thickness as required to meet performance
requirements with a minimum thickness of 6.050 inch (1.27 mm).

One-Piece Gravel Stops: Manufactured, one-piece, metal gravel stop in section
lengths not exceeding 12 feet (3.6 m), with a horizontal flange and vertical
leg, drain-through fascia terminating in a drip edge, and concealed splice plates of
same material, finish, and shape as gravel stop. Provide matching corner units.
1. Fabricate from the following exposed metal:
a. Formed Aluminum:  Thickness as required to meet performance
requirements with a minimurm thickness of 0.032 inch (0.81 mm).

Aluminum Finish; Three-coat fluoropolymer,
1. Color: As selected by Architect from manufacturer's full range.

REGLETS AND COUNTERFLASHINGS

Reglets: Manufactured units formed to provide secure interiocking of separate

reglet and counterflashing pieces, from the following exposed metal:

1. Formed Aluminum: 0.024 inch (0.61 mm) thick.

2. Surface-Mounted Type: Provide reglets with slotted holes for fastening to
substrate, with neoprene or other suitable weatherproofing washers, and with
channel for sealant at top edge.

Counterflashings: Manufactured units of heights to overiap top edges of base
fiashings by 4 inches (100 mm) and in lengths not exceeding 12 feet (3.6 m)
designed to snap into reglets and compress against base flashings with joints
lapped, from the following exposed metal:

i, Formed Aluminum: 0.024 inch {0.61 mm) thick,

Accessories:

1. Flexible-Flashing Retainer: Provide resilient plastic or rubber accessory to
secure flexible flashing in reglet where ciearance does not permit use of
standard meta!l counterflashing or where reglet is provided separate from
metai counterflashing.

2. Counterflashing Wind-Restraint Clips: Provide cdlips te be installed before
counterflashing to prevent wind uplift of counterfiashing lower edge.

GENERAL FINISH REQUIREMENTS

Comply with NAAMM's "Metal Finishes Manual for Architectural and Metal Products”
for recommendations for applying and designating finishes.

Protect mechanical and painted finishes on exposed surfaces from damage by
applying a strippabie, temporary protective covering before shipping.

Appearance of Finished Work, Noticeable variations in same piece are not
acceptable. Variations in appearance of adjoining components are acceptable if

ROOF SPECIALTIES
077100-6



Maine Medical Center PERKINS+WILL
Bean 2 Roof Addition 140135461 (MMC) /152168.00 (P+W)

CD Pricing Set 05/23/13
Not for Construction

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

they are within the range of approved Samples and are assembled or instailed to
minimize contrast.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

EXAMINATION

Examine substrates, areas, and conditions, with Installer present, to verify actual
locations, dimensions, and other conditions affecting performance of the Work.

Examine walis, roof edges, and parapets for suitable conditions for roof specialties,

Verify that substrate is sound, dry, smooth, ciean, sioped for drainage, and
securely anchored,

Proceed with instaliation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected,

FABRICATION

Cutting and Forming Radiussed Copings / Roof Edges:

1. Cut curved shapes using templates to produce uniform smooth and consistent
edges. QOptional method of cutting may be a computer guided plasma arc
(water jet) cutter.

2. Form and bend fabrications with curved surfaces in jigs or formed using CNC
rolling machines which produce smooth consistent surfaces which show no
surface irregularities or other imperfections. Fabricate units to produce
uniform sightlines which are level, plumb and in the same plane as adjacent
units.

UNDERLAYMENT INSTALLATION

Self-Adhering Sheet Underlayment: Install wrinkle free. Apply primer if required
oy underiayment manufacturer. Comply with temperature restrictions of
underlayment manufacturer for installation; use primer rather than nails for
installing underiayment at !low femperatures. Apply in shingle fashion tc shed
water. Overlap edges not less than 3-1/2 inches {90 mm). Roll laps with roller,
Cover underiayment within 14 days.

INSTALLATION, GENERAL

General: Install roof speciaities according to manufacturer's written instructions.

Anchor roof specialties securely in place, with provisions for thermal and structural

movement. Use fasteners, solder, protective coatings, separators, sealants, and

other miscellaneous items as required to complete roof-specialty systems.

1. Install roof specialties level, plumb, true to line and elevation; with limited oii-
canning and without warping, jogs in alignment, buckling, or tool marks.

2. Provide uniform, neat seams with minimum exposure of soider and sealant,

3 Install roof specialties to fit substrates and to result in watertight
performance. Verify shapes and dimensions of surfaces to be covered before
manufacture,

ROOF SPECIALTIES
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4. Torch cutting of roof specialties is not permitted.
5. Do not use graphite penciis to mark metal surfaces,

Metal Protection: Protect metals against galvanic action by separating dissimitar

metals from contact with each other or with corrosive substrates by painting

contact surfaces with bituminous coating or by other permanent separation as
recommended by manufacturer.

1, Coat concealed side of uncoated aluminum and stainless-steel roof specialties
with bituminous coating where in contact with wood, ferrous metal, or
cementitious construction.

2. Underlayment: Where installing metal flashing directly on cementitious or
wood substrates, install a course of self-adhering, high-temperature sheet
underlayment.

3. Bed flanges in thick coat of asphalt roofing cement where required by
manufacturers of roof specialties for waterproof performance,

Expansion Provisions: Allow for thermal expansion of exposed roof specialties.

1. Space movement joints at @ maximum of 12 feet (3.6 m) with no joints within
18 inches (450 mm) of corners or intersections unless otherwise shown on
Drawings.

2. When ambient temperature at time of instaliation is between 40 and 70 deg F
(4 and 21 deg C), set joint members for 50 percent movement each way,
Adjust setting proportionately for installation at higher ambient temperatures.

Fastener Sizes: Use fasteners of sizes that will penetrate wood blocking or
sheathing not less than 1-1/4 inches (32 mm) for nails and not less than 3/4 inch
(19 mm) for wood screws substrate not less than recommended by fastener
manufacturer to achieve maximum pull-out resistance,

Seal joints as required for watertight construction. Place sealant to be completely
concealed in joint, Do not install sealants at temperatures below 40 degF {4
deg Q).

COPING INSTALLATION

Install cleats, anchor plates, and other anchoring and attachment accessories and
devices with concealed fasteners,

Anchor copings to meet performance requirements,

1. Interiock face and back leg drip edges of snap-on coping cap into cleated
anchor plates anchored to substrate at 30-Inch {760-mm) centers,

2. Interlock face leg drip edge into continuous cleat anchored to substrate at 24-
inch (600-mm) centers. Anchor back leg of coping with screw fasteners and
elastomeric washers at 24-inch {(600-mm} centers.

Coping Seam locations:

1, L.ocate seams as indicted.

2. Fabricate corners as one unit with seams a minimum of two-feet from corner
in each direction. Divide space between corner units evenly into lengths of 12
foot maximum.

ROOF SPECIALTIES
07710G-8



Maine Medical Center PERKINS+WILL

Bean 2 Roof Addition C140135461 (MMC) /152168.00 (P+W)
CD Pricing Set 05/23/13
Not for Construction

3.6 ROOF-EDGE FLASHING INSTALLATION

A, Install cleats, cants, and other anchoring and attachment accessories and devices
with concealed fasteners.

B.  Anchor roof edgings with manufacturer's required devices, fasteners, and fastener
spacing to meet performance reqguirements,

C.  Roof-Edage Seam locations:

1. Locate seams as indicted.
2, Fabricate corners as gne unit with seams a minimum of two-feet from corner
in each direction. Divide space between corner units evenly into lengths of 12
foot maximum.
3.7 REGLET AND COUNTERFLASHING INSTALLATION

A.  General: Coordinate installation of reglets and counterflashings with instaliation of
base flashings.

B, Embedded Regiets: See Section 03 30 00 "Cast-in-Place Concrete” and
Section 04 20 00 "Unit Masonry” for installation of reglets.

C. Surface-Mounted Reglets: Install reglets to receive flashings where flashing
without embedded reglefs is indicated on Drawings. Install at height so that
inserted counterflashings overlap 4 inches (100 mm) over top edge of base
flashings.

D. Counterflashings: Insert counterflashings Into reglets or other indicated receivers;
ensure that counterflashings overlap 4 inches (100 mm) over fop edge of base
flashings, Lap counterflashing joints & minimum of 4 inches (100 mm) and bed
with elastomeric sealant. Fit counterflashings tightly to base flashings.

3.8 CLEANING AND PROTECTICN

A, Clean exposed metal surfaces of substances that interfere with uniform oxidation
and weathering.

B. Clean and neutralize flux materials. Clean off excess solder and sealants.

Remove temporary protective coverings and strippable films as roof specialties are
installed. On compietion of installation, clean finished surfaces including removing
unused fasteners, metal filings, pop rivet stems, and pieces of flashing. Maintain
roof specialties in a clean condition during construction.

D.  Replace roof specialties that have been damaged or that cannot be successfully

repaired by finish touchup or similar minor repair procedures.

END OF SECTION

RCOF SPECIALTIES
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1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

SECTION 08 44 23 - STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
PART 1 - GENERAL

SUMMARY

Section Inciudes:

1. Factory-clazed, four-sided structural-sealant-glazed curtain-wall assemblies.
Related Requirements:

1. Section 08 44 13 "Glazed Aluminum Curtain Walls" for conventionally glazed
curtain walls.

2. Section 08 80 00 - “Glazing”

ALLOWANCES

Preconstruction iaboratory mockup, Source quaiity-control and field quality-control
testing is part of testing and inspecting allowance.

PREINSTALLATION MEETINGS

Pre-installation Conference: Conduct conference at Project site.

ACTION SUBMITTALS
Product Data: For each type of product.

1.  Include construction details, material descriptions, dimensicons of individua!
components and profiles, and finishes.

Shop Drawings: For structural-sealant-glazed curtain walls. Include plans,
elevations, sections, full-size details, and attachments to other work,

1. Include details of provisions for assembly expansion and contraction and for
draining moisture occurring within the assembly to the exterior,

2. Include full-size isometric details of each vertical-to-horizontal intersection of
structural-sealant-glazed curtain walls, showing the following:

a. Jolnery, including concealed welds.

D, Anchorage.

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
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C. Expansion provisions.

d. Glazing,

. Flashing and drainage.

3.

Show connection to and continuity with adjacent thermal, weather, air, and
vapor barriers,

C. Samples for Initial Selection: For units with factory-applied color finishes.

B.  Samples for Verification: For each type of exposed finish reguired, In
manufacturer's standard sizes.

E. Fabrication Sample: Of each verticai-to-horizontal intersection of assemblies, made
from 12-inch {300-mm) lengths of full-size components and showing details of the

foliowing:

1. Joinery, including concealed welds.
2. Anchorage.

3. Expansion provisions.

4, Glazing.

5. Flashing anc drainage.

F. Delegated-Design Submittai: For structural-sealant-glazed curtain walls indicated
to comply with performance requirements and design criteria, including analysis
data signed and sealed by the qualified professional engineer responsibie for their
preparation.

1.5 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

A, LEED Submittals:

1

Product Data for Credit IEQ 4.1: For glazing sealants used inside the

weatherproofing system, documentation including printed statement of VOC
content,

l.aboratory Test Reports for Credit IEQ 4.1 For glazing sealants used inside
the weatherproofing system, documentation indicating that products comply
with the testing and product requirements of the California Department of
Public Health's "Standard Method for the Testing and Evaluation of Volatile
Organic Chemical Emissions from indoor Sources Using Environmental
Chambers."

B. Preconstruction Laboratory Mockup Testing Submittals:

1.

Testing Program: Developed specifically for Project.

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
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2. Test Reports: Prepared by a qualified preconstruction testing agency for each
mockup test.

3. Record Drawings: As-built drawings of preconstruction laboratory mockups
showing changes made during preconstruction laboratory maockup testing,

C.  Qualification Data. For Instalier and laboratory mockup testing agency and field
testing agency.

D. Energy Performance Certificates: For structural-sealant-glazed curtain walls,
accessories, and components from manufacturer,

1, Basis for Certification: NFRC-certified energy performance values for each
structural-sealant-glazed curtain wall.

E. Product Test Reports: For structural-sealant-glazed curtain walis, for tests
nerformed by a qualified testing agency.

F. Quality-Controt Program: Developed specifically for Project, including fabrication
and installation, according to recommendations in ASTM C 1401, Include periodic
qualiity-confrol reports.

G.  Source guality-control reports,

H.  Field guality-contro! reports.

I Sample Warranties: For speciat warranties.

1.6 CLOSEQUT SUBMITTALS

A. Maintenance Data: For structurai-sealant-giazed curtain walis to include in
maintenance manuals.

B. Maintenance Data for Structural Sealant: For structural-sealant-glazed curtain
walls to include in maintenance manuals. Include ASTM C 1401 recommendations
for postinstaliation-phase quality-contro! program,

1.7 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A Installer Qualifications: An entity that employs installers and supervisors who are
trained and approved by manufacturer,

B, Laboratory Mockup Testing Agency Qualifications: Qualified according to
ASTM E 639 for testing indicated and accredited by IAS or ILAC Mutual Recognition
Arrangement as complying with ISO/IEC 17025,

C. Testing Agency Qualifications: Qualified according to ASTM E 6989 for testing
indicated and accredited by IAS or ILAC Mutual Recognition Arrangement as
complying with ISO/IEC 17025,

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
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D.

1.8

1.9

Product Options: Information on Drawings and in Specifications establishes
requirements for aesthetic effects and performance characteristics of assemblies,
Aesthetic affects are indicated by dimensions, arrangements, alignment, and
profiles of components and assemblies as they relate to sightlines, to one another,
and to adioining construction,

1. Do not change intendead aesthetic effects, as judged solely by Architect,
except with Architect's approval. If changes are proposed, submit
comprehensive explanatory data to Architect for review.

Structural-Sealant Glazing: Comply with ASTM C 1401 for design and installation
of curtain-wall assemblies.

MOCKUPS

Mockups: Build mockups to verify selections made under Sampte submittals and to
demonstrate aesthetic effects and set quality standards for fabrication and
instaliation.

1. Buitd mockup of typical wall area as shown on Drawings.

2.  Testing shall be performed on mockups according to requirements in "Field
Quality Centrol" Article,

3. Approval of mockups does not constitute approval of deviations from the
Contract Documents contained in mockups uniess Architect specifically
approves such deviations in writing.

4, Subject to compliance with requirements, approved mockups may bacome
part of the completed Work if undisturbed at time of Substantial Completion.

PRECONSTRUCTION LABORATORY MOCKUPS

Preconstruction Testing Service: Engage a qualified testing agency to perform
testing on preconstruction laboratory mockups.

Build preconstruction laboratory mockups at testing agency facility; use personnel,
products, and methods of construction that will be used at Project site,

1. Size and Configuration: As indicated within the MMC bean 2 Roof Interim
Progress set dated March 15, 2013 and the final Construction documents
dated May 3, 2013,

2. Notify Architect seven days in advance of the dates and times when
preconstruction laboratory mockups will be constructed and tested.

Preconstruction Laboratory Mockup Testing Program: Test preconstruction
laboratory mockups according to reguirements in "Performance Requirements”
Article. Perform the following tests in the following order:

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
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1.10

1. Structural: ASTM E 330 at 50 percent of positive test load.
2. Alr Infiltration: ASTM E 283,
3. Water Penetration under Static Pressure: ASTM E 331.
4, Water Penetration under Dynamic Pressure. AAMA 501.1.
5, Structural: ASTM E 330 at 100 percent of positive and negative test loads.
Repeat the following:
a. Air Infittration: ASTM E 283.
b, Water Penetration under Static Pressure: ASTM E 331,
6. Interstory Drift: AAMA 501.4 at 100G percent of design displacement. Repeat
the following:
a. Air Infittration: ASTM E 283,
b. Water Penetration under Static Pressure: ASTM E 331.
7. Vertical Interstory Movement: AAMA 501.7. Repeat the following:
a. Alr Infiltration: ASTM E 283.
b,  Water Penetration under Static Pressure: ASTM E 331.
8. Thermal Cycling: According to AAMA 501.5, Repeat the following:
a. Alr Infiltration: ASTM E 283.
b. Water Penetration under Static Pressure; ASTM E 331,
9. Structural: ASTM E 330 at 100 and 150 percent of positive and negative test
ivads. Repeat the following:
a. Alr Infiltration: ASTM E 283.
b. Water Penetration under Static Pressure: ASTM £ 331,
WARRANTY

Special Warranty: Manufacturer agrees to repair or repiace components of glazed
aluminum curtain wall that do not comply with requirements or that fail in materials
or workmanship within specified warranty period.

1.

Failures include, but are not limited te, the following:

a. Structural failures including, but not limited to, excessive defiection.

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
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b, Noise or vibration created by wind and thermal and structural
movements.

c. Deterioration of metals, metal finishes, and other materials beyond
normal weathering.

d. Water penefration through fixed glazing and framing areas.
e, Failure of operating components.
2. Warranty Period: 10 years from date of Substantial Completion,
B.  Special Finish Warranty: Standard form in which manufacturer agrees to repair
finishes or replace aluminum that shows evidence of deterioration of factory-applied
finishes within specified warranty period.

1, Deterioration includes, but is not imited to, the foliowing:

a. Color fading more than 5 Hunter units when tested according to
ASTM D 2244.

D, Chalking in excess of a No. 8 rating when tested according to
ASTM D 4214,

c. Cracking, checking, peeling, or failure of paint to adhere to bare metal.

2. Warranty Period: 10 vears from date of Substantial Completion.
PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

A, Delegated Design: Engage a qualified professional engineer, as defined in
Section 01 40 00 "Quality Requirements,” to design structural-sealant-giazed
curtain walls,

B. General Performance: Compiy with performance requirements specified, as
determined by testing of structural-sealant-glazed curtain walls representing those
indicated for this Project without failure due fo defective manufacture, fabrication,
installation, or other defects in construction,

1. Structural-sealant-glazed curtain walls shall withstand movements of
supporting structure including, but not limited to, story drift, twist, column
shortening, long-term creep, and deflection from uniformly distributed and
concentrated live loads.

2. Failure also includes the following:

a. Thermal stresses transferring to building structure,

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
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b. Giass breakage.

c. Noise or vibration created by wind and thermal and structural
movements.

d. Loosening or weakening of fasteners, attachments, and other
components,

e. Failure of operating units.
C. Structural Loads:
1. Wind Loads: As indicated on Drawings.

2. Other Design Loads: As indicated within MMC bean 2 roof project interim
progress set dated March 15, 2013,

L. Deflection of Framing Members: At design wind pressure, as follows:

1. Deflection Normal te Wall Plane: Limited to 1/175 of clear span for spans up
to 13 feet 6 inches (4.1 m) and to 1/240 of clear span plus 1/4 inch (6.35
mm) for spans greater than 13 feet 6 inches (4.1 m) or an amount that
restricts edge defiection of individual glazing lites to 3/4 inch {15.1 mm),
whichever is less.

2. Cantilever Deflection: Where framing members overhang an anchor point, as
follows:

a. Perpendicular to Plane of Wall: No greater than 1/240 of clear span
plus 1/4-inch (6.35-mm) for spans greater than 11 feet 8-1/4 inches
{3.6 m) and/or 1/175 times span, for spans iess than 11 feet 8-1/4
inches {3.6 m).

E, Structural: Test according to ASTM E 330 as foilows:

1. When tested at positive and negative wind-ipad design pressures, assembites
do not evidence deflection exceeding specified limits.

2. When tested at 150 percent of positive and negative wind-ioad design
prassures, assemblies, including anchorage, do not evidence material failures,
structural distress, or permanent deformation of main framing members
exceeding 0.2 percent of span.

3.  Test Duraticns: As required by design wind velocity, but not less than 240
seconds,

F, Air Infiltration: Test according to ASTM E 283 for infiltration as follows:
1. Fixed Framing and Glass Area:

a. Maximum air leakage of 0.06 cfm/sq. ft. (0.30 L/s persg. m) at a
static-air-pressure differential of 6.24 |bf/sq. ft. (300 Pa) Water

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
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Penetration under Static Pressure: Test according to ASTM E 331 as
follows:

2. No evidence of water penetration through fixed glazing and framing areas
when tested according to & minimum static-air-pressure differential of 20

nercent of positive wind-load design pressure, but not less than 15 Ibf/sq. ft,
(720 Pa).

G. Water Penetration under Dynamic Pressure: Test according tc AAMA 501.1 as
foliows:

1. No evidence of water penetration through fixed giazing and framing areas
when tested at dynamic pressure equal to 20 percent of positive wind-load
design pressure, but not less than 15 Ibf/sqg. ft. {720 Pa).

2. Maximum Water Leakage: No uncontrolled waier penetrating assembiies or
water appearing on assemblies’ normally exposed interior surfaces from
sources other thar condensation. Water leakage does not include water
controlled by flashing and gutters, or water that is drained to exterior,

H.  Interstory Drift: Accommaodate design displacement of adjacent stories indicated.

1. Design Displacement: As indicated on the MMC Bean 2 roof project interim
progress set dated March 15, 2013,

2. Test Performance: Complying with criteria for passing based on building
occupancy type when tested according to AAMA 501.4 at design
dispiacement and 1.5 times the design displacement,

I. Seismic Performance: Structural-sealani-glazed curtain walls shall withstand the
effects of earthquake motions determined according to ASCE/SEI 7.

1. Seismic Drift Causing Glass Fallout: Complying with criteria for passing based
on building occupancy type when tested according to AAMA 501.6 at design
displacement and 1.5 times the design displacement.

2. Vertical Interstory Movement: Complying with criteria for passing based on
buiiding occupancy type when tested according to AAMA 501.7 at design
displacement and 1.5 times the design displacement.

J. Energy Performance: Certify and {abel energy performance according to NFRC as
follows:

1.  Thermal Transmittance (U-factor): Fixed glazing and framing areas shall
have U-factor of not more than ¢.69 Btu/sqg. ff. x h x deg F (3.92 W/sg. m
x K) as determined according to NFRC 100.

2.  Solar Heat Gain Coefficient: Fixed glazing and framing areas shall have a
solar heat gain coefficient of no greater than 0.35 as determined according to
NFRC 200,

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
08 44 23-8



Maine Medical Center PERKINS+WILL

Bean 2 Roof Addition C140135461 (MMC) /152168.00 (P+W)
CD Pricing Set 05/23/13
Not for Construction

3. Condensation Resistance: Fixed glazing and framing areas shall have an
NFRC-certified condensation resistance rating of no less than 15 as
determined according to NFRC 500.

K. Nolise Reduction: Test according to ASTM E 90, with ratings determined by
ASTM E 1332, as follows,

1. Qutdoor-Indoor Transmission Class: Minimum 26,
L. Blast Resistance:

1. Hazard Rating: No Break per ASTM F 1642,

2. Performance Condition: 5 per GSA-TS01,

M. Thermal Movements: Allow for thermal movements resuiting from ambient and
surface temperature changes:

1. Temperature Change: 120 deg F {67 deg C), ambient; 180 deg F (100
deg C), material surfaces.

2. Thermal Cycling: No buckling; stress on glass,; sealant failure; excess stress
on framing, anchors, and fasteners; or reduction of performance when tested
according to AAMA 501.5.

a. High Exterior Ambient-Air Temperature: That which produces an
exterior metal-surface temperature of 180 deg F (82 deg C).

b. Low Exterior Ambient-Ajr Temperature: -10 deg F {(minus 28 deg C).
N.  Structural-Sealant Joints:
1. Designed {o carry gravity loads of glazing.
2. Desianed to produce tensile or shear stress of less than 20 psi {138 kPa).
Q.  Structural Sealant: Capable of withstanding tensile and shear stresses imposed by
structurai-sealant-glazed curtain walls without failing adhesively or cohesively,
When tested for preconstruction adhesion and compatibility, cohesive failure of

sealant shall occur before adhesive fallure.

1.  Adhesive failure occurs when seslant puils away from substrate cleanly,
leaving no sealant material behind,

2. Cohesive failure occurs when sealant breaks or tears within itself but does not
separate from each substrate because sezlant-to-substrate bond strength
exceeds sealant’s internal strength.
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2.2

A,

2.3

MANUFACTURERS

Basis-of-Design Product: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide
Kawneer North America the 225 system 4 sided $SG system or comparable product
by one of the following:

1. Oldcastie, Inc.

2. YKK AP America Inc.

FRAMING

Framing Members: Manufacturer's extruded- or formed-aluminum framing
members of thickness required and reinforced as required to support imposed
foads.

1.  Glazing System: Retained with structural sealant on four sides.

2. Finish: High-performance organic finish.

3. Fabrication Method: Factory-fabricated system.

Brackets and Reinforcements: Manufacturer's standard high-strength aluminum
with non-staining, nonferrous shims for aligning system components.

Materials:

1. Aluminum: Alloy and temper recommended by manufacturer for type of use
and finish indicated.

a. Sheet and Plate: ASTM B 209 (ASTM B 209M).

b. Extruded Bars, Rods, Profiles, and Tubes: ASTM B 221 {(ASTM B 221M),
c. Extruded Structural Pipe and Tubes: ASTM B 429/B 429M.

d. Structural Profiles: ASTM B 308/B 308M.

2. Steel Reinforcement: Manufacturer's standard zinc-rich, corrosion-resistant
primer complying with SSPC-PS Guide No. 12.00; applied immediately after
surface preparation and pretreaiment. Select surface preparation methods
according tc recommendations in SSPC-SP COM, and prepare surfaces
according to applicable SSPC standard.

a. Structural Shapes, Plates, and Bars: ASTM A 36/A 36M.
b. Cold-Roiled Sheet and Strip; ASTM A 1C08/A 1008M,

C. Hot-Rolled Sheet and Strip: ASTM A 1011/A 1011iM,
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2.4

A.

B.

2.5

GLAZING
Glazing: Comply with Section 08 80 00 "Glazing."

Structural Glazing Sealants: ASTM C 1184, chemicelly curing silicone formulation
that is compatible with system components with which it comes in contact,
specifically formulated and tested for use as structural sealant and approved by
structural-sealant manufacturer for use in curtain-wall assembly indicated.

1. Color: As seiected by Architect from manufacturer's fuil range of colors.

Weather-seal Sealants: ASTM C 920 for Type S; Grade N3; Class 25; Uses NT, G,
A, and O; chemically curing silicone formulation that is compatibie with structural
sealant and other system components with which it comes in contact;
recommended by structurai-sealant, weather-seal-sealant, and structurai-sealant-
glazed curtain-wall manufacturers for this use.

1. Color: Match structural sealant.
Glazing Gaskets: Comply with Section 08 80 00 "Glazing."”
Glazing Sealants: Comply with Section 08 80 00 "Glazing."

Sealants used inside the weatherproofing system shall have a VOC content of 250
g/l or less,

Sealants used inside the weatherproofing system shal! comply with the testing and
oroduct reauirements of the California Department of Public Health's "Standard
Method for the Testing and Evaluation of Volatile Organic Chemical Emissions from
Indoor Sources Using Environmenta!l Chambers."

ACCESSCRIES
Fasteners and Accessories: Manufacturer's standard corrosion-resistant, non-
staining, non-bleeding fasteners and accessories compatible with adjacent

materials.

1. Use self-locking devices where fasteners are subject to loosening or turning
out from thermal and structural movements, wind loads, or vibration.

2. Reinforce members as required o receive fastener threads.

3. Use exposed fasteners with countersunk Phillips screw heads, finished to
match framing system.

Anchors: Three-way adjustable anchers with minimum adjustment of 1 inch (25.4
mm) that accommodate fabrication and installation tolerances in material and finish
compatible with adjoining materials and recommended by manufacturer,
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2.6

1. Concrete and Masonry Inserts: Hoi-dip galvanized cast-iron, malleable-iron,
or steel inserts compiying with ASTM A 123/A 123M or ASTM A 153/A 153M
reguirements.

Conceated Flashing: Dead-soft, 0.018-inch- {0.457-mm-) thick stainless steel,
ASTM A 240/A 240M of type recommended by manufaciurer,

Bituminous Paint: Cold-applied asphalt-mastic paint complying with SSPC-Paint 12
requirements except containing no asbestos, formulated for 30-mil {0.762-mm)
thickness per coat.

FABRICATION

Form or extrude aluminum shapes before finishing.

Weld in concealed locations to greatest extent possible to minimize distortion or
discoloration of finish. Remove weld spatter and welding oxides from exposed
surfaces by descaling or grinding.

Fabricate components that, when assembled, have the following characteristics:
1. Profiles that are sharp, straight, and free of defects or deformations.

2, Accurately fitted joints with ends coped or mitered.

3. Physical and thermal isolation of glazing from framing members.

4, Accommodations for thermal and mechanical movements of glazing and
framing to maintain required glazing edge clearances.

5. Provisions for field reptacement of glazing from exterior.

6. Fasteners, anchors, and connection devices that are concealed from view to
greatest extent possible.

7. Compeonents curved to indicated radii.

Factory-Assembled Frame Units:

1. Rigidly secure non-movement joints,

2. Prepare surfaces that are in contact with structural sealant according to
sealant manufacturer's written instructions, to ensure compatibility and
adhesion,

3. Preparation incluces, but is not limited to, cleaning and priming surfaces.

4, Seal joints watertight unless otharwise indicated.

5. Install glazing to comply with reguirements in Section 08 80 00 "Glazing.”
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E. After fabrication, clearly mark components to identify their locations in Project
according to Shop Drawings.

2.7 ALUMINUM FINISHES

High-Performance Organic Finish: Four-coat fluoropolymer finish complying with
AAMA 2605 and containing not less than 70 percent PVDF or FEVE resin by weight
in both color coat and clear topcoat. Prepare, pretreat, and apply coating to

exposed metal surfaces fo compiy with coating and resin manufacturers' written
instructions.

1.  Color and Gloss: As selected by Architect from manufacturer's full range,

2.8 SOURCE QUALITY CONTROL.
A.  Structural Sealant: Perform quality-control procedures compiying with

ASTM C 1401 recommendations inciuding, but not limited to, assembiy material

qualification procedures, sealant testing, and assembly fabrication reviews and
checks,

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

A. Examine areas, with Installer present, for compliance with reguirements for
installation tolerances and other conditions affecting performance of the Work,

B, Proceed with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected,

3.2 PREPARATION

A.  Prepare surfaces that are in contact with structural seslant according to sealant
manufacturer's written instructions to ensure compatibility and adhesion.
Preparation includes, but is not limited to, cleaning and priming surfaces.

3.3 INSTALLATION
A, General:
1, Comply with manufacturer's written instructions.
2, Do not install damaged components.

3. Fit joints to produce hairline joints free of burrs and distortion.

4, Rigidly secure non-movement joints.

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
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3.4

5. Install anchors with seperators and isolators to prevent metal corrosion and
electrelytic deterioration and to prevent impeding movement of moving joints.

5, Where welding is required, weld components in concealed locations to
minimize distertion or discoloration of finish. Protect glazing surfaces from
welding.

7. Seal joints watertight unless otherwise indicated.

Metal Protection:

1. Where aluminum is in contact with dissimilar metals, protect against galvanic
action by painting contact surfaces with primer, applying sealant or tape, or
installing nonconductive spacers as recommended by manufacturer for this

purpose,

2. Where aluminum is in contact with concrete or masenry, protect against
corrosion by painting contact surfaces with bituminous paint.

install components plumb and true in alignment with established lines and grades.

Instail operable units level and plumb, securely anchored, and without distortion,

Adjust weather-stripping contact and hardware movement to produce proper

operation,

Install glazing as specified in Section 08 80 00 "Glazing.”

1. Prepare surfaces that are in contact with structural sealant according to
sealant manufacturer's written instructions, to ensure compatibility and
achesion. Preparation includes, but is not limited to, cleaning and priming
surfaces.

Install weather-seal sealant according to Section 07 92 00 "Joint Sealants” and

according to sealant manufacturer's written instructions, to produce weatherproof

joints. Instail joint filler behind sealant as recommended by sealant manufacturer.

ERECTION TOLERANCES

Erection Tolerances: Instali structural-sealant-glazed curtain walls to comply with
the following maximum tolerances:

1. Piumb: 1/8 inch in 10 feet (3.2 mm in 3 m); 1/4 inch in 40 feet {(6.35 mm in
12.2 m).

2. Level: 1/8inchin 20 feet (3.2 mm in 6 m}; 1/4 inch in 40 feet (6.35 mm in
12.2 m),

3, Alignment:

STRUCTURAL-SEALANT-GLAZED CURTAIN WALLS
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3.5

4.

a. Where surfaces abut in line or are separated by reveal or protruding
element up to 1/2 inch (12.7 mm) wide, limit offset from true alignment
to 1/16 inch (1.6 mm).

b. Where surfaces are separated by reveal or protruding element from 1/2
to 1 inch (12.7 to 25.4 mm) wide, limit offset from true alignment to
1/8 inch (3.2 mm).

C. Where surfaces are separated by reveal or protruding element of 1 inch
(25.4 mm) wide or more, {imit offset from true alignment to 1/4 inch (6
M.

tocation: Limit variation from plane to 1/8 inch in 12 feet (3.2 mm in 3.6 m);
1/2 inch (12.7 mm) over total length.

FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

Testing Agency: Engage a qualified testing agency to perform {ests and
inspections.

Test Area: Perform tests on one bay at least 30 feet (9.1 m}, by one story
representative areas of structurai-sealant-glazed curtain walls.

Field Guality-Control Testing: Perform the following test on representative areas of
structural-sealant-glazed curtain walls.

1.

Water-Spray Test: Before installation of interior finishes has begun, areas
designated by Architect shall be tested according to AAMA 501.2 and shall not
evidence water penetration.

a, Perform a minimum of three tests in areas as directed by Architect,

b. Perform tests in each test area as directed by Architect. Perform at
least three tests, prior to 10, 35 and 70 percent compiletion,

Air Infiltration: ASTM E 783 at 1.5 times the rate specified for laboratory
testing in "Performance Requirements" Article but not more than 0.50 cfm/sq.
ft. (2.25 /s per sg, m).

a. Perform a minimum of three tests in areas as directed by Architect.

b. Perform tests in each test area as directed by Architect. Perform at
least three tests, pricr tc 10, 35 and 70 percent completion.

Water Penetration; ASTM E 1105 at a minimum uniform and cydic static-air-
pressure differential of 0.67 times the static-air-pressure differential specified
for laboratory testing in "Performance Reguirements” Articie, but not less than
6.24 Ibf/sq. ft. (300 Pa), and shail not evidence water penetration,
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D. Structural-Sealant Adhesion: Test structural sealant according to recommendations
in ASTM C 1401, Destructive Test Method A, "Hand Puli Tab (Destructive),”
Appendix X2,
i, Test & minimum of eight areas on each building facade.
2. Repalr installation areas damaged by testing.

E.  Structural-sealant-glazed curtain walls will be considered defective if they do not
pass tests and inspections,

F. Prepare test and inspection reports.

END OF SECTION
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1.1

1.2

1.3

SECTION 08 80 00 - GLAZING
PART 1 - GENERAL

SUMMARY

Section inciudes glazing for the following products and applications, including those

specified in other Sections where glazing requirements are specified by reference to
this Section:

1. Windows,

2. Doors.

3. Glazed curtain walis.

4, Interior borrowed lites.

5. Clerestory lites

Reiated Sections:

1. Section 08 42 29.33 "Swinging Automatic Entrances."”

2. Section 08 44 23 “Structural Sealant Glazed Curtain Walis”,
3. Section 08 83 00 "Mirrors."

DEFINITIONS

Giass Manufacturers: Firms that produce primary glass, fabricated glass, or both,
as defined in referenced glazing publications.

Glass Thicknesses: Indicated by thickness designations in millimeters according to
ASTM C 1036.

Interspace: Space between lites of an insulating-glass unit.

PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

Generai: Iinstalled glazing systems shall withstand naormal thermal movement and
wind and impact loads {where applicable) without failure, including loss or glass
breakage attributable to the following: defective manufacture, fabrication, or
instaliation; failure of sealants or gaskets to remain watertight and airtight;
deterioration of glazing materiais; or other defects in construction.

1, Design Snow Loads: As indicated on the Structural Drawings.

2. Vertical Glazing: For glass surfaces sioped 15 degrees or less from vertical,
design glass to resist design wind pressure based on glass type factors for
short-duration load.

3. Sloped Glazing: For glass surfaces sioped more than 15 degrees from
vertical, design glass to resist each of the following combinations of loads:

GLAZING
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1.4

1.5

a, Outward design wind pressure minus the weight of the glass. Base
design on glass type factors for short-durstion load.

b. Inward design wind pressure plus the weight of the glass plus half of the
design snow load. Base design on glass type factors for short-duration
inad.

o Haif of the inward design wind pressure plus the weight of the glass plus
the design snow foad. Base design on glass type factors for long-
duration load.

Thermal Movemenis: Allow for thermal movements from ambient and surface

temperature changes acting on glass framing members and glazing components.

1. Temperature Change: 120 deg F (67 deg C), ambient; 180 deg F (100
deg C), material surfaces.

PRECONSTRUCTICN TESTING

Preconstruction Adhesion and Compatibility Testing: Test each glazing material
type, tape sealant, gasket, glazing accessory, and glass-framing member for
adhesion to and compatibility with elastomeric glazing sealants.

1. Testing will not be required if data are submitied based on previous testing of
current sealant products and glazing materials maiching those submitted.

2. Use ASTM C 1087 to determine whether priming and other specific joint-
preparation technigues are required to obtain rapid, eptimum adhesion of
glazing seaiants to glass, tape sealants, gaskets, and glazing channel
substrates.

3. Test no fewer than eight Samples of each type of material, including joint
substrates, shims, sealant backings, secondary seals, and miscellaneous
materials,

4, Schedule sufficient time for testing and analyzing results to prevent delaying
the Work.

5, For materials failing tests, submit sealant manufacturer's written instructions
for corrective measures including the use of speciatlly formuiated primers,

ACTION SUBMITTALS

Product Data: For each glass product and glazing material indicated.

Samples; For each type of the following products; 12 inches {300 mm) square,

1. Patterned giass.

2. Insulating glass.

Glazing Accessory Samples: For gaskets, sealants and colored spacers, in 12-inch
(300-mm) lengths. Install sealant Samples between two strips of material

representative in color of the adjoining framing system:.

Glazing Schedute: List glass types and thicknesses for each size opening and
location. Use same designations indicated on Drawings.

GLAZING
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E. Deiegated-Design Submittal: For glass indicated to comply with performance
requirements and design criteria, including analysis data sioned and sealed by the
qualified professional engineer responsible for their preparation,

1.6 INFORMATICNAL SUBMITTALS

A, Qualification Data: For giass testing agency and sealant testing agency.

B. Product Certificates: For glass and glazing products, from manufacturer.

C.  Product Test Reports: Based on evalualion of comprehensive tests performed by a
gualified testing agency, for insulating glass, giazing sealants and glazing gaskets.
1. For glazing sealants, provide test reports based on testing current seaiant

formulations within previous 36-month period.

D.  Preconstruction adhesion and compatibility test report.

E.  Warranties: Sample of special warranties,

1.7 QUALLITY ASSURANCE

A, Manufacturer Qualifications for Insulating-Glass Units with Spuiter-Coated, Low-E
Coatings: A gualified insulating-glass manufacturer who is approved and certified
by coated-glass manufacturer.

B. Installer Qualifications: A gualified instailer who employs glass instailers for this
Project who are certified under the National Glass Asscciation's Certified Glass
Installer Program.

C. Glass Testing Agency Qualifications: A qualified independent testing agency
accredited according to the NFRC CAP i Certification Agency Program.

B.  Sealant Testing Agency Qualifications: An independent testing agency qualified
according to ASTM C 1021 to conduct the testing indicated.

E. Source Limitations for Gtass: Obtain insulating glass from singie source from single
manufacturer for each glass type.

F. Basis-of-Design Product: Subiect to compliance with requirements, provide Viracon
800 Park Drive Qwatonna, MN 55060 company Source Limitations for Glazing and
Glazing Accessories: Obtain from single source from single manufacturer for each
product and instailation method.

G, Glazing Publications: Comply with published recommendations of glass product

rmanufacturers and organizations below, unless more stringent requirements are

indicated. Refer to these publications for glazing terms not otherwise defined in

this Section or in referenced standards.

1. IGMA Publicaticn for Insulating Glass: SIGMA TM-3000, "North American
Glazing Guidelines for Sealed Insulating Glass Units for Commercial and
Residential Use."

GLAZING
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H.

1.8

1.9

1.10

Safety Glazing Labeling: Where safety glazing labeling is indicated, permanently
mark glazing with certification label of the SGCC or another certification agency
acceptable to authorities having jurisdiction. Label shall indicate manufacturer's
name, type of glass, thickness, and safety glazing standard with which glass
compiies,

Insulating-Glass Certification Program: Permanently marked either on spacers or
on at least one compenent lite of units with appropriate certification labei of IGCC.

Mockups: Build mockups to verify selections made under sample submittals and to
demonstrate aesthetic effects and set quality standards for materials and
axecution.

1. Instail glazing tn mockups specified in Section 08 44 13 "Glazed Aluminum
Curtain Walls” to match glazing systems required for Project, including glazing
methods.

2. Approved maockups may become part of the completed Work if undisturbed at
time of Substantial Compietion.

Pre-installation Conference: Conduct conference at Project site.

1. Review and finalize canstruction schedule and verify avaiiability of materials,
Installer's personnel, equipment, and facilities needed to make progress and
avoid delays.

2. Review temporary protection reguirements for glazing during and after
installation.

DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

Protect glazing materials according to manufacturer's written instructions. Prevent
damage to glass and glazing materials from condensation, temperature changes,
direct exposure to sun, or other causes.

Comply with insulating-glass manufacturer's written recommendations for venting
and sealing units fo avoid hermetic seal ruptures due te altitude change,

PROJECT CONDITIONS

Environmental Limitations: Do not proceed with glazing when ambient and

substrate temperature conditions are outside limits permitted by glazing material

manufacturers and when glazing channe! substrates are wet from rain, frost,

condensation, or other causes.

1, Do not install glazing sealants when ambient and substrate temperature
conditions are outside limits permitted by sealant manufacturer or beiow 40
deg F (4.4 deg C).

WARRANTY

Manufacturer's Special Warranty on Insulating Glass: Manufacturer's standard form
in which insulating-glass manufacturer agrees to replace insulating-glass units that
deteriorate within specified warranty period. Deterioration of insulating glass is

GLAZING
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2.1

2.2

defined as faliure of hermetic seal under normat use that is not attributed to glass
breakage or to maintaining and cleaning insulating glass contrary to manufacturer's
written instructions. Evidence of failure is the obstruction of vision by dust,
moisture, or film on interior surfaces of glass.

1. Warranty Period: 10 vears from date of Substantial Completion,

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

GLASS PRODUCTS, GENERAL

Thickness: Where glass thickness is indicated, it is a minimum. Provide glass lites

in thicknesses as needed to comply with requirements indicated.

1. Minimum Glass Thickness for Exterior Lites: Not less than 6.0 mm thick.

2. Thickness of Tinted Glass: Provide same thickness for each tint color
indicated throughout Project.

Strength: Where float glass is indicated, provide annealed float glass, Kind HS
heat-treated float glass, or Kind FT heat-treated fioat giass as needed to comply
with "Performance Requirements” Articie. Where heat-strengthened glass is
indicated, provide Kind HS heat-treated float glass or Kind FT heat-treated float
glass as needed to compiy with "Performance Reguirements” Article. Where fuily
tempered glass s indicated, provide Kind FT heat-treated float glass.

Windborne-Debris-Impact Resistance: Provide exterior glazing that passes
enhanced-protection testing requirements in ASTM E 1996 for Wind Zone 3 when
tested according to ASTM E 1886. Test specimens shall be no smaller in width and
length than glazing indicated for use on the Project and shall be installed in same
manner as glazing indicated for use on the Project.

1, Large-Missile Test: For all glazing, regardiess of height above grade.

Thermal and Optical Performance Properiies: Provide giass with performance
nroperties specified, as indicated in manufacturer's published test data, based on
procedures indicated below:

i For insulating-giass units, properties are based on units of thickness indicated
for overall unit and for each lite.

2. U-Factors: Center-of-glazing values, according to NFRC 100 and based on
LBL's WINDOW 5.2 computer program, expressed as Btu/sq. fl. x h x deg F
(W/sg. m x K).

3.  Solar Heat-Gain Coefficient and Visible Transmittance: Center-of-glazing
values, according to NFRC 200 and based on LBL's WINDOW 5.2 computer
program.

4. Visible Reflectance: Center-of-glazing values, according to NFRC 300.

GLASS PRODULCTS

Fioat Glass: ASTM C 1036, Type I, Quality-Q3, Class I (clear) unless otherwise
indicated.

GLAZING
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2.3

A,

2.4

2.5

INSULATING GLASS

Insulating-Glass Units: Factory-assembled units consisting of sealed lites of glass

separated by a dehydrated interspace, qualified according to ASTM E 2190, and

complying with other requirements specified.

1. Sealing System: Dual seal, with polyisobutylene and polyurethane primary
and secondary.

2. Spacer: Polypropyiene covered stainless steel in color seiected by Architect .

3. Desiccant: Molecular sieve or silica gel, or blend of both.

Glass: Comply with appiicable reguirements in "Glass Products™ Article as
indicated by designations in "Insulating-Giass Types" Article and in "Insulating-
Laminated-Glass Types" Article.

GLAZING GASKETS

Dense Compression Gaskets: Molded or extruded gaskets of profile and hardness
required to maintain watertight seal, made from one of the foliowing:
1. Thermoplastic polyolefin rubber complying with ASTM C 1115,

Soft Compression Gaskets: Extruded or molded, closed-cell, integrai-skinned

thermopiastic polyolefin rubber gaskets complying with ASTM C 509, Type 11, black;

of profile and hardness reguired to maintain watertight seal,

1. Application: Use where soft compression gaskets will be compressed by
inserting dense compression gaskets on opposite side of glazing or pressure
applied by means of pressure-glazing stops on opposite side of glazing.

GLAZING SEALANTS

General:

1. Compatibility: Provide glazing sealants that are compatible with one another
and with other materials they will contact, including glass products, seals of
insulating-glass units, and glazing channel substrates, under conditions of
service and application, as demonstrated by sealant manufacturer based on
testing and field experience.

2. Suitabllity: Comply with sealant and glass manufacturers’ written instructions
for selecting glazing sealants suitable for applications indicated and for
conditions existing at time of installation.

3. Sealants used inside the weatherproofing system, shall have a VOC content of
not more than 250 g/L when calculated according to 40 CFR 5%, Subpart D
(EPA Method 24).

4, Coiors of Exposed Glazing Sealants: As selected by Architect from
manufacturer's full range.

Glazing Sealant: Neutral-curing silicone glazing sealant complying with
ASTM C 920, Type 5, Grade N5, Class 50, Use NT,

1. Products: Subject to compliance with reguirements, provide one of the
following:

a. BASF Building_Systems; Omniseal 50.
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2.6

2.7

Cow Corning Corporation; 795

GE Advanced Materials - Silicones; UltraPruf II SCS2900.

May National Associates, inc.; Bondafiex SH 295,

Pecora Corporation; 895.

Polymeric Systemns, Inc.; PSI-641.

Sika Corporation, Construction Products Division; SikaSil-C995,
Tremco Incorporated; Spectrem 2

SQ e QN o

MISCELLANECUS GLAZING MATERIALS

Generai: Provide products of material, size, and shape complying with referenced
glazing standard, requirements of manufacturers of glass and other glazing
materials for application indicated, and with a proven record of compatibility with
surfaces contacted in instailation,

Cieaners, Primers, and Sealers: Types recommended by sealant or gasket
manufacturer,

Setting Blocks: Elastomeric material with a Shore, Type A durometer hardness of
85, plus or minus 5.

Spacers: Elastomeric blocks or continuous extrusions of hardness required by glass
manufacturer to maintain glass lites in place for installation indicated.

Edge Blocks: Elastomeric material of hardness needed to limit glass lateral
movement (side walking).

Cylindrical Glazing Sealant Backing: ASTM C 1330, Type O (open-celi material), of
size and density to control glazing sealant depth and otherwise produce optimum
glazing sealant performance.

Perimeter Insulation for Fire-Resistive Glazing: Product that is approved by testing
agency that listed and labeled fire-resistant glazing product with which it is used for
appiication and fire-protection rating indicated.

FABRICATION OF GLAZING UNITS

Basis of Design for exterior glass is per VIRCON VE1-85

Fabricate glazing units in sizes reguired to fit openings indicated for Project, with
edge and face clearances, edge and surface conditions, and bite compiying with
written instructions of product manufacturer and referenced glazing publications, to

comply with system performance requirements.

Clean-cut or flat-grind vertical edges of butt-glazed monolithic lites to produce
square edges with slight chamfers at junctions of edges and faces,

Grind smooth and polish exposed glass edges and corners,

GLAZING
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2.8 INSULATING-GLASS TYPES

A, Glass Type GL-01: Ceramic-coated, insulating HS/HS Silkscreen vision glass.

Overall Unit Thickness: 1 inch {25 mm).
Thickness of Each Glass Lite: 6.0 mm,
Outdoocr Lite: Fully tempered float glass.
Interspace Content: Argon.

V175 - High Opacity White Viraspan #2 VE-40 Screen #2030
Indoor Lite: Fully tempered float glass
Coating Location: Second surface.

VLT: 59%

R Out: 18%

SHGC: 0.44

LSG: 1.34

Winter Nighttime U-Factor: .31 maximum,
Summer Daytime U-Factor: .29 maximum.
Solar Heat Gain Coefficient; .44 maximum.
Provide safety giazing labeling.

B.  Glass Type GL-02: Ceramic-coated,insulating spandrel glass.

1.
2.
3.

CO®NO S

QOverall Unit Thickness: 1 inch (25 mm).

Thickness of Each Glass Lite: 6.0 mm.

Outdoor Lite: Fully tempered Clear Monolithic HS Spandrel glass. V175 -
High Opacity white Viraspan

interspace Content: Argon.

interior Lite: Fully tempered float giass.

Low-E Coating: Pyroiytic or sputtered on third surface.
Opague Coating Location: Second surface.

Winter Nighttime U-Factor: .31 maximum.

Summer Daytime U-Factor: .29 maximum.

Provide safety glazing labeling.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

A, Examine framing, glazing channels, and stops, with Instalier present, for
compliance with the following:

1.

2.
3.
4

Manufacturing and installation tolerances, including those for size,
sguareness, and offsets at corners,

Presence and functioning of weep systems.

Minimum requirec face and edge clearances.

Effective sealing between joints of glass-framing members.

B, Proceed with instailation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.
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3.2

A.

3.3

PREPARATION

Clean glazing channels and other framing members receiving glass immediately
before glazing. Remove coatings not firmly bonded to substrates,

Examine glazing units to locate exterior and interior surfaces. lLabel or mark units
as needed so that exterior and interior surfaces are readily identifiable. Do not use
materials that will leave visible marks in the completed work.

GLAZING, GENERAL

Comply with combined written instructions of manufacturers of glass, sealants,
gaskets, and other glazing materials, uniess more stringent requirements are
indicated, including those in referenced glazing publications.

Adijust glazing channel dimensions as required by Project conditions during
installation to provide necessary bite on glass, minimum edge and face clearances,
and adeqguate sealant thicknesses, with reasonable tolerances.

Protect glass edges from damage during handling and installation. Remove
damaged glass from Project site and legally dispose of off Project site. Damaged
glass is glass with edge damage or other imperfections that, when installed, could
weaken glass and impair performance and appearance.

Apply primers to joint surfaces where required for adhesion of sealants, as
determined by preconstruction testing.

Install setting blocks in siil rabbets, sized and located to comply with referenced
glazing publications, uniess otherwise required by glass manufacturer. Set blocks
in thin course of compatible sealant suitable for heel bead.

Do not exceed edge pressures stipulated by glass manufacturers for installing glass
lites,

Provide spacers for glass lites where length plus width is targer than 50 inches

{1270 mm).

1. Locate spacers directly opposite each other on both inside and outside faces
of glass. Install correct size and spacing to preserve required face clearances,
uniess gaskets and glazing tapes are used that have demonstrated ability to
maintain reguired face clearances and to comply with system performance
reguirements.

2. Provide 1/8-inch (3-mm) minimum bite of spacers on glass and use thickness
equal to sealant width, With glazing tape, use thickness slightly less than
final compressed thickness of tape.

Provide edge blocking where indicated or needed fo prevent glass lites from moving
sideways in glazing channel, as recommended in writing by giass manufacturer and
according to reguirements in referenced glazing publications.

Set glass lites in each series with uniform pattern, draw, bow, and similar
characteristics.

GLAZING
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J,

3.4

3.5

3.6

Set glass lites with proper orientation s¢ that coatings face exterior or interior as
specified.

Where wedge-shaped gaskets are driven into one side of channel to pressurize
sealant or gasket on opposite side, provide adequate anchorage so gasket cannot
walk out when installation is subjected to movement,

Square cut wedge-shaped gaskets at corners and instali gaskets in a manner
recommended by gasket manufacturer to prevent corners from pulling away; seal
corner joints and butt joints with sealant recommended by gasket manufacturer,

SEALANT GLAZING {WET)

Install continuous spacers, or spacers combined with cylindrical sealant backing,
between glass lites and glazing stops to maintain glass face clearances and to
prevent sealant from extruding into glass channel and blocking weep systems untii
sealants cure. Secure spacers or spacers and backings in place and in position to
controt depth of instalied sealant relative to edge clearance for optimum sealant
performance.

Force sealants into glazing channels to eliminate voids and to ensure complete
wetting or bond of sealant to glass and channel surfaces.

Tool exposed surfaces of sealants to provide a substantial wash away from glass.

LOCK-STRIP GASKET GLAZING

Comply with ASTM C 716 and gasket manufacturer's written instructions. Provide
supplementary wet seal and weep system uniess otherwise indicated.

CLEANING AND PROTECTION

Protect exterior glass from damage immediately after instaliation by attaching
crossed streamers to framing held away from glass. Do not apply markers to glass
surface. Remove nonpermanent labels and clean surfaces.

Protect glass from contact with contaminating substances resulting from
construction operations. 1If, despite such protection, contaminating substances do
come into contact with glass, remove substances Immediately as recommended in
writing by glass manufacturer.

Examine glass surfaces adjacent to or below exterior concrete and other masonry

surfaces at frequent intervals during construction, but not less than once a month,
for buildup of dirt, scum, alkaline deposits, or stains; remove as recommended in

writing by glass manufacturer,

Remove and replace glass that is broken, chipped, cracked, or abraded or that is
damaged from natural causes, accidents, and vandalism, during construction
period.
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E. Wash glass on both exposed surfaces in each area of Project not more than four

days before date scheduled for inspections that establish date of Substantial
Completion. Wash glass as recommended in writing by glass manufacturer,

END OF SECTION
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